
Board Office Use: Legislative File Info. 
File ID Number 25-1313
Introduction Date 6/25/25 
Enactment 
Number 
Enactment Date 

Board Cover Memorandum 

To Board of Education 

From Kyla Johnson-Trammell, Superintendent  
Sondra Aguilera, Chief Academic Officer 

Meeting Date June 25, 2025 

Subject Expanded Learning Programs After School Program Master Contract 
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Ask of the 
Board 

XXApprove After School Master Contract 
☐Ratify Services Agreement

Services Vendor will serve as lead agency for program coordination, academic 
intervention, homework support, student supervision and a variety of 
enrichment services, as described in the Master Contract, for the six OUSD 
school sites listed in Exhibit A. 

Term Start Date: 7/1/25          End Date: 7/31/28 

Not-To-Exceed 
Amount $9,087,186.60 

Competitively 
Bid 

Yes 

If the Service Agreement was not competitively bid and the not-to-exceed 
amount is more than $96,700, list the exception(s) that applies (requires 
Legal review/approval and may require a resolution): [Exception] 

In-Kind 
Contributions 

District staff monitor budgets and grant compliance requirements.  District 
provides space and Custodial Services for after school programs. 

Funding 
Source(s) 

Resource 6010 – After School Education and Safety (ASES) Program in the 
amount of $3,052,242.60; Resource 4124 – 21st Century Programs in the 
amount of $184,944.00; Resource 2600 – Expanded Learning Opportunities 
Program (ELO-P) in the amount of $5,850,000.00 



Background  The After School Education and Safety (ASES) Program is the result of the 
2002 voter approved initiative, Proposition 49.  This proposition amended 
California Education Code 8482 to expand and rename the former Before 
and After School Learning and Safe Neighborhood Partnerships Program.  
The ASES Program funds the establishment of local after school education 
and enrichment programs.  These programs are created through 
partnerships between schools and local community resources to provide 
literacy, academic enrichment, and safe constructive alternatives for 
students in Kindergarten through ninth grade.  The ASES program is defined 
within the language of SB 638 and Education Code (EC) sections 8482 and 
8484.6. 
 
The general purpose of the 21st Century Community Learning Centers (21st 
CCLC) program is to establish or expand community learning centers that 
provide students with academic enrichment opportunities along with 
activities designed to complement the students’ regular academic program.  
California Education Code section 8421 further defines the purpose of the 
21st Century High School After School Safety and Enrichment for Teens 
(ASSETS) program as (1) creating incentives for establishing locally driven 
after school enrichment programs that partner schools and communities to 
provide academic support and safe, constructive alternatives for high school 
pupils in the hours after the regular school day, and (2) assisting pupils in 
passing the high school exit examination for public school programs. 
 
The Expanded Learning Opportunities Program (ELO-P) provides funding 
for afterschool and summer school enrichment programs for transitional 
kindergarten through sixth grade.  “Expanded learning” means before 
school, after school, summer, or intersession learning programs that focus 
on developing the academic, social, emotional, and physical needs and 
interests of pupils through hands-on, engaging learning experiences. It is the 
intent of the Legislature that expanded learning programs are pupil-
centered, results driven, include community partners, and complement, but 
do not replicate, learning activities in the regular school day and school year. 
 
This agency has demonstrated experience and capacity in serving in the 
after school lead agency role.  This organization successfully met all of the 
requirements of OUSD’s Request for Qualifications process for issuance of 
contracts for after school programs and has been approved as a qualified 
lead agency partner by the OUSD Expanded Learning Office.  The school 
Principal and their team have selected this agency from a list of approved 
lead agency partners. 
 
 

  
Attachment(s) ● Expanded Learning Programs After School Program Master Contract 

2025-2028 with Oakland Leaf Foundation 
● Request for Proposal 25-148ExLO and Vendor Bid Materials 
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Expanded Learning Programs 
After School Program Master Contract 2025-2028      

Between Oakland Unified School District and 
 

______________________________Oakland Leaf Foundation ______________________________ 
 
 
 
 

1. Intent. This Master Contract establishes the Oakland Unified School District's (“OUSD”) intent, contingent 
upon OUSD’s receipt of California Department of Education and/or U.S. Department of Education after-
school grant funds, to contract with _Oakland Leaf Foundation__ (“AGENCY”)  to serve as the lead agency 
to provide after-school and/or summer educational programs and to serve a sufficient number of students 
and run services for a sufficient number of days to earn the core grant allocation of funding at the OUSD 
school sites identified in the Scope of Work(s) to be incorporated into this      Master Contract by reference.   
A summary of Agency after school programs to be offered during the school year (“SUMMARY”) is 
attached hereto as Exhibit A.  Summer programs will be selected through a Scope of Work at a later date, 
based on OUSD needs, site availability, and subject to Board approval.  Identification of summer programs 
is anticipated in February of each year and after-school providers will be assigned to OUSD schools to 
facilitate summer programming.  

2. Scope of Work.  The Scope of Work consists of the approved Annual Budget Tool and Annual Expanded 
Learning Opportunity Program Planning Tool, templates of which are attached hereto as Exhibit B.  There 
shall be a Scope of Work for each separate school site served by AGENCY.  The term of the Scope of 
Work shall not exceed one year.   OUSD and AGENCY shall ensure that a Scope of Work is executed for 
each identified school site no later than 30 days prior to the date on which services under that Scope of 
Work are scheduled to begin. By approving this Master Contract, and the Scope of Work templates and 
Summary attached hereto as Exhibits A and B, the OUSD Board of Education (“BOARD”) delegates to 
the Executive Director of Community Schools and Student Services (“CSSS Executive Director”) the 
authority to approve and amend individual Scopes of Work for after school programs during the school 
year without further Board action required.  Any Scopes of Work or amendments exceeding the approved 
amounts in the SUMMARY require Board approval. 

3. These services will be funded by one or more of the following grants:  

● California Department of Education ("CDE") After School Education and Safety Program (“ASES”) 
● US Department of Education 21st Century Community Learning Centers (21st CCLC) 
● US Department of Education 21st Century High School After School Safety and Enrichment for 

Teens (“ASSETS”) 
● Expanded Learning Opportunities - Programs (“ELO-P”) 
● Oakland Fund for Children and Youth - This Master Contract will also outline services provided on 

OUSD school grounds through the Oakland Fund for Children and Youth (“OFCY”) After-School 
Initiative funds that shall be utilized as matching funds to CDE ASES and 21st CCLC funds. 

● Private grants 

4. Term of Master Contract. The term of this Master Contract shall be July 1, 2025, through July 31, 2028     
.  

5. Termination and Suspension.  

5.1.Termination for convenience by OUSD.  The BOARD may at any time terminate this MOU or 
any Scope of Work entered into pursuant to Section 2 of this MOU for any or no reason upon not 
less than five (5) days written notice to AGENCY.  OUSD shall compensate AGENCY for services 
satisfactorily provided through the date of termination.  The OUSD After Schools Program shall 
also annually review the AGENCY’s performance and bring recommendations to terminate the 
AGENCY to the Board. 
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5.2.Termination for cause by OUSD.  In addition, OUSD may terminate this MOU or any Scope of 
Work entered for cause should AGENCY fail to perform any part of this MOU.  Upon approval by 
OUSD legal counsel, the OUSD Superintendent or an OUSD Chief or Deputy may issue the 
termination notice without approval by the BOARD, in which case this Agreement would terminate 
upon ratification of the termination by the BOARD or three (3) days after the notice was provided, 
whichever is later, unless the condition or violation ceases or satisfactory arrangements for the 
correction are made.  If OUSD’s cost of procuring services from another contractor exceeds the 
cost of providing the services pursuant to this MOU, AGENCY shall pay the additional cost for the 
services through the end of the Term identified in Section 3.   

5.3.In the event of termination or suspension, AGENCY must, upon request, follow all transition 
protocols and actively participate in the transition process, attend all transition meetings, promptly 
turn in all keys and key fobs, transfer custody of all records, and inventory of all after-school 
supplies.   

5.4.Average Daily Attendance Requirement. In the event, an AGENCY fails to achieve 86 percent 
of their annual attendance target in any given calendar year (EC Section 8483.7[a][1][D]), 
AGENCY will be placed on probation from (January-May). If AGENCY is unable to meet 
compliance deliverables to improve ADA, AGENCY’s contract will be assessed to determine 
capacity to continue serving as the expanded learning provider at the school site. 

July-Dec: Capacity building, site work to increase ADA compliance 

Jan-May: Assessment Period, sites will review ADA to comply with 86% ADA requirements. 
Sites that fall below expectations, tier 2 supports will be implemented.  

Aug-Dec: Intensive Supports, sites falling below 86% ADA, intensive tier3 supports will be 
implemented. 

Jan-May: Transition  

5.5.Suspension. If OUSD, at its sole discretion, develops health and/or safety concerns related to 
the AGENCY’s provision of services, then the CSSS Executive Director may, upon approval by 
OUSD legal counsel, issue a notice to AGENCY to suspend the Agreement or Scope of Work, in 
which case AGENCY shall stop providing services under the Agreement until further notice from 
OUSD. OUSD shall compensate AGENCY for services satisfactorily provided through the date of 
suspension. During the period of suspension, OUSD may procure services from another agency. 

5.6. No Premature Termination by AGENCY. AGENCY hereby certifies that it is willing and able to 
provide required services for the full term of the MOU. AGENCY will not be permitted to unilaterally 
terminate the MOU or cease providing required services prior to completing the full term unless 
OUSD approves any change.  In the event AGENCY ceases to provide required services prior to 
the end of the MOU term, OUSD may secure the required services from another contractor.  If 
OUSD’s cost of procuring services from another contractor exceeds the cost of providing the 
services pursuant to this MOU, or OUSD is unable to secure required services from another 
contractor, AGENCY shall pay any additional cost through the end of the term identified in Section 
4. If OUSD suffers any loss of funding or other program consequences attributable to AGENCY’s 
premature termination, AGENCY shall pay any additional cost in addition to any damages 
otherwise due under this MOU.  

5.7. Alignment with OUSD’s initiatives: (Creating Joyful Spaces) - Complaints, safety, lack of 
inclusion.  (compromises district initiatives) _moving from approved to conditional. What does 
High Quality look like. Observations look like?  
 

6. Compensation. Contingent on OUSD receipt of California Department of Education and/or U.S. 
Department of Education after-school grant funds and subject to grant funding levels, the ASES, 21st 
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CCLC, and ELO-P grant award amount for the school sites listed above, funding projection is based on 
three-year grant totals for each school site identified in Exhibit A. The three-year not-to-exceed amount 
for this Master Contract is $__9,087,186,60__. AGENCY shall be entitled to compensation from these 
funds in accordance with the following terms and conditions:   

6.1.Total Compensation.  Subject to the provisions of 6.2 Positive Attendance and the provisions of 
6.3 Administrative Fee and subject to AGENCY compliance with Master Contract requirements, 
AGENCY shall receive the amount of the grant award less OUSD’s administrative fees and other 
site costs agreed to by the Site Administrator and AGENCY. Funding will be contingent on CDE 
grant allocations. Penalties may be assessed or payments withheld for non-compliance, including 
but not limited to Master Contract requirements, accurate attendance reporting, fiscal invoicing, 
full participation at OUSD required meetings, training, and in continuous quality improvement 
efforts. Falsification of attendance or any compliance documents will result in the termination of 
the contract.  

6.2.Positive Attendance. Payment for services rendered related to the ASES, 21st CCLC, ASSETS, 
and ELO-P grants shall be based on actual student attendance rates ($10.18 a day per student 
through ASES, 21st CCLC, ASSETS, and ELO-P.), not estimates, as those programs are 
“positive attendance based.”  OUSD reserves the right to modify the annual core allocation based 
on reported attendance. In the event that payments made to AGENCY exceed the reported 
attendance for the Core grant, the AGENCY will return payments to OUSD at the rate of $10.18 
a day for ASES, 21st CCLC, ASSETS, and ELO-P per student. Documentation of attendance 
must be submitted through the OUSD’s Aeries student information system in order for invoices 
for payment of services for the ASES, 21st CCLC, ASSETS, and ELO-P grants to be processed. 
Attendance is due by the 10th day of the following month.  In the event that any school site at 
which AGENCY has agreed to provide programming is closed for any emergency reason 
(including but not limited to reasons related to COVID-19), and AGENCY provides programming 
remotely pursuant to Section 7.4.5 of this MOU, AGENCY shall calculate attendance based on 
student participation in AGENCY’s remote programming. 

6.2.1. Reconciliation Process for Positive Attendance Based Grant Funds.  OUSD will adjust 
the payment of the “positive attendance based” grants based on a quarterly review of monthly 
invoices and attendance for services rendered related to the ASES, 21ST CCLC (Core Grant), 
ASSETS, and ELO-P for any adjustments resulting from the reconciliation of the attendance 
reports for that quarter’s months.  The attendance reconciliation process will assess the program’s 
performance with respect to the required compliance with the grant mandated attendance rates.  
Based on the review, financial adjustments of an additional payment or withholding will be made.  
Any remaining balance(s) will be forwarded to AGENCY or OUSD.  Any adjustment required in 
excess of the withholding will necessitate additional adjustments to future invoices and payments.   

6.2.2. Administrative Charges and Reconciliation. The reconciliation process for positive 
attendance-based grants must factor in the subtraction of administrative and other OUSD central 
charges, as outlined in section 6.3, from any grant amounts earned through attendance (OUSD 
indirect, custodial, evaluation, and After School Programs Office administrative and 
training/technical assistance fees). 

6.3.OUSD Administrative Fees.  OUSD shall charge and withhold up to 14% from the overall ASES, 
ELO-P, and 21st Century grant awards for central indirect, administrative, custodial, evaluation, 
and direct service training and technical assistance.   

6.4.AGENCY Administrative Fees.  AGENCY understands and agrees that it may not charge more 
than 5% of the total contract amount as administrative fees and that its administrative fees must 
be set at an appropriate dollar amount to keep the ASES, 21st CCLC, ASSETS, and 10% ELO-P 
grants within the grant-mandated allowable 15% for total indirect/administrative costs.  The 
agency administrative fees charged to the ASES, ELO-P, and 21st CCLC grants must be used for 
direct administrative costs and cannot be used for agency indirect costs.  Direct administrative 
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costs consist of expenditures for administrative activities that provide a direct benefit to the ASES, 
21st CCLC, ASSETS, and ELO-P programs.  Indirect costs consist of expenditures for 
administrative activities necessary for the general operation of the agency, but that cannot be tied 
to the ASES, 21st CCLC, ASSETS, and ELO-P programs.  

6.5.Program Budget. The grant will remain as part of the site budget. Funds will be encumbered 
from the site budget on behalf of AGENCY for each school year during the term of this Agreement 
and will not exceed the budget reflected in Exhibit B for each Scope of Work.  

6.6.Site Coordinator. (Per EC Section 8483.9(c)), the cost of a program Site Coordinator may be 
included as direct service provided that at least 85 percent of the Site Coordinator’s time is spent 
at the program site.  

6.7.Modifications to Budget.  Any modifications to the approved grant budget must be approved by 
OUSD and AGENCY, before expenditures of funds for modified line items are authorized.  Except 
as expressly set forth herein, OUSD shall not be liable to AGENCY for any costs or expenses 
paid or incurred by AGENCY in performing services for OUSD.  The granting of any payment by 
OUSD, or the receipt thereof by AGENCY, shall in no way lessen the liability of AGENCY to 
correct unsatisfactory work, although the unsatisfactory character of that work may not have been 
apparent or detected at the time a payment was made. Work, that does not conform to the 
requirements of this Agreement, may be rejected by OUSD and in that case must be replaced by 
AGENCY without delay. 

6.8.Program Fees.  The intent of the ASES, 21st CCLC, ASSETS, and ELO-P programs is to establish 
local programs that offer academic assistance and enrichment for students in need of such 
services regardless of their ability to pay.  Though it is not against the rules to charge fees for 
participation in programs, the CA Department of Education discourages it because it could 
exclude students in need from attending and taking advantage of the after-school program.  Fees 
should not create a barrier to participation in the after-school program.  After-school services must 
be equally accessible to all students targeted for services regardless of their ability to pay.  
Programs that propose to charge fees may not prohibit any family from participating based on 
their inability to pay and must offer a sliding scale of fees and scholarships for those who could 
not otherwise afford to participate. Any income collected from fees must be used to fund program 
activities specified in the grant application.  AGENCY shall do full accounting of fees collected, 
and documentation shall be kept for 5 years for auditing purposes. If AGENCY decides to charge 
fees, this decision shall be made collaboratively with the Site Administrator, and AGENCY shall 
work collaboratively with the Site Administrator and parent leaders to develop an appropriate 
program fee structure for the school community.  The fee structure must be identified within the 
Scope of Work approved by both parties prior to charging any program fees.  AGENCY shall 
provide the OUSD After School Programs Office with additional documentation upon request, to 
ensure grant compliance. Programs that charge program fees will waive or reduce these fees for 
students eligible for free or reduced-priced meals. Programs cannot charge fees if the child is a 
homeless youth, as defined by the federal McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. 
Sec.1143a), newcomers (refugee, asylee, and unaccompanied minor), or if the child is in foster 
care.  Any site receiving 21st Century Community Learning Center (CCLC) and ASSETS must 
report all fees collected (i.e., registration fees, family fees, application fees, etc.) to the OUSD 
After-School Program Office for CDE reporting. (EC 8482.6) 

7. Services.  AGENCY will serve as the lead agency at the OUSD school sites identified in the annual Scope 
of Work, will be responsible for operations and management of the ASES, 21st CCLC, ASSETS, ELO-P, 
OFCY, and private grants contracted to AGENCY by OUSD for fiscal years 2025-2026- through 2027-
2028. This shall include the following required activities: 

7.1.Student Outcomes. AGENCY shall achieve the student outcomes described in the grant 
application narrative and articulated in documents from the program evaluation team, both of 
which are incorporated herein.  AGENCY agrees to develop school specific outcomes, as defined 
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in partnership with the principal. AGENCY recognizes that the principal is the chief decision maker 
for after-school and summer programs, and ensures that school site objectives are met.  (EC 
8483.3[c][5], 8483.3[c][6]) 

7.2.Alignment with Single Plan for Student Achievement (“Site Plan”). AGENCY will ensure the 
after-school program aligns with objectives of OUSD and OUSD school sites identified in 
the “School Site List and Annual Grant Amounts” attached hereto as Exhibit A which are designed 
to ensure the success of students as articulated in the Site Plan(s). AGENCY will work in 
partnership with the school principal(s) to ensure that the program components are aligned with 
and complement OUSD standards and school site curriculum. (EC 8483.3[c][5], 8483.3[c][6]) 

7.3.Alignment with LCAP. AGENCY will ensure the after-school program aligns with objectives 
LCAP Goal 2: Focal student groups demonstrate accelerated growth to close our equity gap and 
should be supportive of other LCAP goals, as identified in the Annual Expanded Learning 
Opportunity Program Planning Tool within the Scope of Work. (EC8483.3[c][6]) 

7.4. Continuous Quality Improvement (CQI). AGENCY must fully engage in continuous quality 
improvement  (CQI) processes and complete the following steps of the CQI cycle each year, and 
timely submit corresponding CQI deliverables to the After School Programs Office:   

● beginning of year self-assessment using Truth, Hope, Change, Curiosity tool 
● planning with data (using self-assessment and other program data as available) 
● development of a quality action plan with SMART goals for program improvement 
● progress check for program quality e.g. quality coaching 
 
The CQI cycle is intended to be a collaborative process involving program staff and can include 
other stakeholders (ie. youth leaders, school partners, parents, and other community partners). 
 
Agency staff (Site Coordinators and other agency staff) are also required to participate in any 
OUSD sponsored CQI training provided by the OUSD After School Programs Office. 

7.5.Oversight. AGENCY will provide oversight, fiscal management, payroll services, technical 
assistance, and facilitation of collaboration with other service providers.  Agency must ensure 
compliance with ASES and 21st CCLC and ASSETS, and ELO-P funding guideline requirements 
and follow OUSD after-school policies and procedures. This includes compliance with OUSD 
staffing requirements and policies including No Child Left Behind and other legislative mandates.  
OUSD’s Expanded Learning Office will monitor all compliance requirements and provide regular 
supervision of sites at its discretion. AGENCY will provide all necessary documents within 48 
hours of written request by OUSD.  

7.6.Enrollment.  At each OUSD school site identified in the “School Site List and Annual Grant 
Amounts” attached hereto as Exhibit A, and for which there is a Scope of Work, AGENCY will 
enroll sufficient number of students and run services for a sufficient number of days to earn the 
full core grant allocation of funding. 

7.7.Program Requirements 

7.7.1. Program Hours. The program shall be offered Monday through Friday, every regular school 
day annually (EC Section 8483[a][1]), commencing immediately upon the conclusion of the 
regular school day, operating a minimum of 15 hours/week, and until 6:00 pm daily.(EC 
8483[a][1]), EC Section 8483[a][1][A][i]). Instructional activities must include a balance of both 
academic, enrichment/recreation, and physical components (EC Section 8483.3[c][5]).  ELO-P 
funding can be used to support intercession programming and before-school care. AGENCY will 
ensure expanded learning programs commence at full capacity on the first day of school and 
conclude on the last day of school.  
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7.7.2. Program Days. The program shall be offered a minimum of 177 - 180 days during the 2025– 
2026 through the 2027-2028 school years (EC Section 8483[a][1]).  AGENCY will close the ASES,  
21st CCLC, ASSETS, and ELO-P program(s) no more than a maximum of 3 days in each of the 
2025-2026 through the 2027-2028 school years for staff professional development, as permitted 
by Education Code.  Programs that receive 21st CCLC Supplemental or ELO-P grant funds or 
private funding for summer shall additionally operate a sufficient number of days and hours in the 
summer, on weekends, and during intercession in the manner prescribed by the grant legislation 
and/or funder, in order to meet attendance goals required by the CA Department of Education 
and/or the funder. AGENCY can not utilize      ASES/21stCCLC/ASSETS/ELO-P professional 
development days during the first week of school.       

7.7.3. Program Staffing. AGENCY agrees to ensure each school site is fully staffed (lead agency 
staff and/or subcontractors) and able to provide comprehensive programming to 86% of the grants 
ADA requirement commencing on the first day of school and continuing through the last day. 
AGENCY will ensure staff are clearly identifiable. Site coordinator salary is considered direct 
service and the Site coordinator must be on campus at least 85% of the time (8483.9[c]). AGENCY 
will provide staff with training and development (EC Section 8483.3[c][4]) to ensure high quality 
programming. Selection of the Site Coordinator is subject to the approval of the school site 
principal (EC Section 8483.4)  

7.7.4. Program Components. AGENCY agrees to provide programming that supports the guidelines 
as outlined in the ASES,  21st CCLC, ASSETS, and ELO-P  grants for students identified at each 
of the schools listed in the “School Site List and Annual Grant Amounts” attached hereto Exhibit 
A. AGENCY acknowledges and agrees to provide programming consistent with grant guidelines 
understanding that:  

● Educational and Literacy. An educational and literacy element that must provide tutoring 
and/or homework assistance designed to help students meet state standards in one or more 
of the following core academic subjects: reading/language arts, mathematics, history and 
social studies, or science.  A broad range of activities may be implemented based on local 
student needs and interests. (EC 8482.3[c][1][A], 8482.3[f][6], 8483.3[c][1]) 

● Enrichment. The enrichment element must offer an array of additional services, programs and 
activities that reinforce and complement the school's academic program. Enrichment may 
include but is not limited to arts, youth development, leadership, recreation, sports, music, 
career awareness, college interest, service learning, and other youth development activities 
based upon student needs and interests. (EC 8482.3[c][1][B], 8482.3[f][6], 8483.3[c][2]) All 
programs must offer both enrichment and recreation/physical fitness activities as core 
components of the after-school program, and summer program if summer program is provided. 
(EC 8483.3[c][7]) 

● Family Literacy Services.  AGENCY shall assess the need for family literacy services among 
adult family members of the students to be served by the program. All programs will, at a 
minimum, either refer families to existing services or coordinate with local service providers to 
deliver literacy and educational development services. (EC Section 8482.3[c][1][A]) 

● Equitable Access Programming. AGENCY shall include a component for students at all 
schools site receiving Equitable Access funding to support full access to program components. 

● Supplemental and Summer Services.  In all programs receiving 21st CCLC Supplemental 
and/or ELO-P grant funds or private funding for summer, AGENCY will provide educational 
and enrichment programming in the summer, on weekends, and/or during intercessions.  A 
broad range of activities may be implemented based on local student needs and interests, and 
district guidelines for summer programming. If summer services will be added, a separate 
Scope of Work will reflect the summer scope, summer budget and any changes in location as 
to summer services to be provided. 

● Elementary and Middle School Sports League Activities.   
All programs participating in the Middle School Sports League must include those activities in 
their Program Planning tool and Program Schedule. Middle School Sports League activities, 
including but not limited to on and off-site practices and games, are subject to the field trip 
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policy high-risk field trip activities requirements provided in this agreement. All sports 
participants and volunteers must have on file a completed Elementary and Middle School 
Sports Release of Liability and Assumption of Risk prior to participation.  The Elementary and 
Middle School Sports Release of Liability and Assumption of Risk template will be provided to 
the AGENCY by OUSD prior to the beginning of each school year.  

● Tk-6 school sites that receive ELO Program funding are required to offer the ELO Program 
to all TK/K-6 classroom-based pupils and provide program access to any TK/K-6 classroom-
based pupils upon parent/guardian request. (46120(d)(1)(B) or 46120(d)(4)). TK is not optional 
and is included in the requirement because TK is operated as a program within Kindergarten. 

 

7.7.4.1. Super Snacks/Snack/Supper/Beverages:  AGENCY shall meet Federal and State 
meal and snack requirements (8482.3[d][1], 8482.3[d][2], 8483.3[c][8]) and all meals and 
snacks must be provided by OUSD Nutrition Services department.  Nutrition Services shall: 

7.7.4.1.1. Provide meals and beverages that meet State and Federal standards; 

7.7.4.1.2. Provide the number of meals and beverages requested by AGENCY 
unless/until Nutrition Services determines that AGENCY’s participation is lower than the 
super snack/snack/meal/beverage count provided by the AGENCY, in which case, the 
number will be adjusted; 

7.7.4.1.3. Provide all supplies including utensils, napkins, forks, required; 

7.7.4.1.4. Support compliance by AGENCY with required State and Federal administrative 
requirements; 

7.7.4.1.5. Provide annual training to AGENCY. 

7.7.4.2. Each AGENCY participating in the Nutrition Services super 
snack/snacks/supper/beverage program shall: 

7.7.4.2.1. Attend annual training.  In the event that the person responsible for super snack 
or snack distribution changes, AGENCY will make arrangements with Nutrition Services for 
training of new employees or representative of the AGENCY; 

7.7.4.2.2. Complete After School Super Snack, Snack, and Supper Menu Production 
Worksheets (MPW) on a daily basis; 

7.7.4.2.3. Ensure meal count is accurate; 

7.7.4.2.4. Submit completed MPW to cafeteria staff by the next business day; 

7.7.4.2.5. Return leftovers to the cafeteria; 

7.7.4.2.6. Ensure that only students are served and receive food from the program; 

7.7.4.2.7. Ensure that meals are not removed from campus 

7.7.4.2.8. Immediately report to OUSD Site Coordinator and Nutrition Services any 
concerns related to food safety or food contamination 

7.7.4.3. AGENCY will be billed at the rates immediately below, for meals by Nutrition Services 
under the following conditions.   

7.7.4.3.1. MPW not completed and submitted by the next business day; 

7.7.4.3.2. Super Snacks and Snacks are ordered and not picked up 
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7.7.4.4. In addition to any applicable liability associated with audit findings. AGENCY will be 
charged OUSD's current meal costs that OUSD is unable to claim due to AGENCY’s failure to 
comply with program requirements: The current costs for the 2024-2025 school year are below; 
these amounts may change throughout the life of the agreement.  

7.7.4.4.1. Super Snack: $3.66 

7.7.4.4.2. Supper: $3.66 

7.7.4.5. AGENCY will be liable for audit findings and/or assessments (See Section 12 below) 
that are attributable to AGENCY’s failure to comply with the rules and regulations of the 
Nutrition Services program, including liability if reimbursement is denied Nutrition Services 
because of AGENCY’s failure to comply with program requirements. 

7.7.4.6. In accordance with guidance provided by the California Department of Education, in the 
event that the school site at which AGENCY has agreed to provide programming is closed for 
any emergency reason (including but not limited to reasons related to COVID-19), OUSD may 
fulfill its above-described obligations to provide after-school meals, snacks, and/or beverages 
through a “grab-and-go” meal distribution program, in which case AGENCY shall not be 
responsible for distributing after-school meals, snacks, and/or beverages. 

7.7.5. Staff Ratio. The staff to youth ratio shall not exceed 1:20 for elementary, middle, and high 
school programs, with no more than 20 youth for each qualified, adult staff supervisor. TK-K 
programs must operate on a 1:10 staff to youth ratio. (EC Section 8483.4)  

7.7.6. Remote Provision of Services. In the event that the school site at which AGENCY has agreed 
to provide programming is closed for any emergency reason (including but not limited to reasons 
related to COVID-19), AGENCY shall provide programming remotely, rather than in-person at the 
school site. 

7.8. Data Collection.  AGENCY will work with OUSD to collect and analyze data on student 
enrollment, student attendance, student academic performance, student satisfaction, and parent 
satisfaction.  This includes, but is not limited to: 

7.8.1. Accountability Reports. AGENCY will provide OUSD with the following set of program 
accountability reports: 

● Financial reports 
● Activity reports 
● Attendance reports 
● Outcomes reports: behavioral and academic 
● Staff qualifications  

7.8.2. Attendance Reports. AGENCY will provide OUSD with attendance reports using the 
OUSD/OFCY attendance systems and maintain required attendance records utilizing the 
OUSD/OFCY attendance systems, including completion of mandatory monthly reports.  Original 
written documentation of all daily attendance records, including all daily sign in/out sheets, will be 
maintained by Agency for 5 years following the termination of this Agreement for auditing purposes. 
(EC 8482.3[f][10][A], 8484[a][1][A]) 

7.8.3. Use of Enrollment Process. AGENCY will use OUSD online and paper After School Program 
Parent Permission packet, including early release waiver, for all after-school participants.  Forms 
will be provided to AGENCY by OUSD prior to the beginning of each school year.   AGENCY will 
seek approval from the OUSD After School Programs Office for any modifications to the OUSD 
enrollment packet, in advance of distribution. 

7.9.Maintain a Clean, Safe, and Secure Environment. AGENCY shall maintain clean, safe, and 
secure program environments for staff and students in conjunction with OUSD guidelines. 
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AGENCY, as they view necessary, will initiate and establish additional cleanliness, safety, 
supervision, training, and security policies and protocols sufficient to ensure staff, student, and 
family member safety.  (EC 8483.3[c][3]) 

7.10.      AGENCY shall register with and maintain current information within OUSD’s Community 
Partners Database, unless OUSD communicates to AGENCY in writing otherwise, based on 
OUSD’s determination that the services are not related to community schools outcomes. If/when 
agency programs and school sites change (mid-year or subsequent years), AGENCY shall 
promptly update the information in the database.                  

7.11.  Alignment of After School Safety Plan with School Site Comprehensive Safety Plan. 
AGENCY will use the OUSD After School Program Emergency Plan template and work 
collaboratively with school site administrator(s) to complete and/or update and submit an annual 
after-school safety plan(s) by mid-October each year which aligns with and is part of each  school 
site’s comprehensive safety plan. AGENCY will seek approval from the OUSD After School 
Programs Office for any modifications to the OUSD template, in advance of distribution.  

7.12. AGENCY shall comply with all applicable California and Federal laws, regulations, and 
ordinances. This includes, but is not limited to, compliance with the California Labor Code 6401.9 
(Workplace Violence Prevention Plan Law), as well as any other laws related to labor, 
employment, safety, health, and environmental regulations. The AGENCY shall ensure that all 
activities and services conducted under this Agreement are in strict compliance with such laws 
and regulations. Any violation of these laws, regulations, or ordinances by the AGENCY or any of 
its employees, subcontractors, volunteers, or agents shall constitute a material breach of this 
Agreement. 

7.12.1. OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT will not tolerate workplace violence and is 
committed to maintaining a safe workplace for all employees, supervisors, managers, vendors, 
contractors, and visitors. The workplace is defined as any time or place when on School District 
business, at a School District sponsored event, or if the conduct has an impact on the workplace, 
regardless of where the conduct occurs. Prohibited actions include, but are not limited to, the 
following types of behaviors: 

      
● Striking, punching, slapping, or assaulting another person  
● Throwing or kicking objects  
● Direct or implied threat to do harm to a person or to a property 
● Threatening or intimidating communications or gestures 
● Expression of a plan to hurt self/others 
● Possession of a dangerous, deadly weapon (including imitation weapons) at the 

workplace, unless an employee has been authorized in advance 
● Inappropriate behavior, statements, or actions that could reasonably be perceived as 

aggressive, threatening, or violent.      

7.13. Incident and Injury Reporting, Crisis Response and Training; Accident Insurance 

7.13.1. AGENCY will train staff and agents in required Incident and Injury Reporting and Crisis 
Response Protocols. All accidents or injuries to after-school program participants, visitors, or staff 
must be reported via email to OUSD’s incident reporting email address identified in the Incident 
and Injury Reporting and Crisis Response Protocols by AGENCY staff within one business day of 
occurrence. OUSD will secure at its own expense limited OUSD student accident insurance 
coverage to assist in payment of eligible student medical expenses incurred by parent/guardians 
due to OUSD student accidents during the after-school program. This coverage will be secondary 
to any primary medical insurance for which student participants are eligible. After School Program 
staff will immediately refer parent/guardians seeking payment of medical expenses under student 
accident coverage to OUSD’s designated accident insurance representative.  
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7.13.2. AGENCY will provide adaptive programming to support all OUSD students needs within 
reasonable accommodations. AGENCY will provide a welcoming environment to students who 
are physically, racially, ethnically, linguistically, and neurologically diverse to participate in 
expanded learning programs. Students with Individualized Education Programs (IEPs) or Section 
504 Accommodation Plans (504s) are encouraged to enroll in expanded learning, including after-
school programming. OUSD will assess and provide additional support to a school site to ensure 
reasonable accommodations are met.   

7.14. Meeting Participation. AGENCY will participate in technical assistance, training, orientation, 
monthly meetings and other support and resource development activities provided by OUSD and 
collaborative partners in conducting program planning, implementation, and evaluation. These 
include required regular meetings with the school principal or other identified designee to ensure 
collaboration with the school vision. AGENCY staff will participate in meetings facilitated by the 
OUSD After School Programs Office to address program quality, program improvement and 
general troubleshooting 

7.15. AGENCY will ensure staff is trained by an OUSD nurse to provide emergency medication 
for students with conditions such as asthma (albuterol inhaler), diabetes (glucagon, baqsimi 
(nasal spray)), severe allergies (Epi-pen), seizures (nayzilam, valtoco (nasal spray)), and any 
other condition where an emergency medication is prescribed which can be administered by 
trained staff in an emergency. This includes Non-emergency medication: ADHD medication, 
Benadryl, and Tylenol. 

7.15.1.1. Epi-Pen Medication Overview:  

● Epinephrine is the medication used in a severe allergic reaction. Epinephrine will 
open the airways and increase circulation. 

● Pre-measured doses of the medication are placed into auto-injectors or EpiPens. 
● It is safe to give epinephrine even if there is not a reaction. 
● The sooner it is given; epinephrine is more likely to reduce the chance of death. 
● Students given epinephrine must go to the hospital for observation.  

7.15.2. OUSD will be responsible via a School Nurse to monitor school district 
medication administration practices for compliance with established policies and procedures. This 
will include providing training to assigned staff in the appropriate administration of medication 
aligned with the school district policy and procedure, and maintain student medication records 
confidentiality. 

7.16.    Relationships. AGENCY will maintain six essential collaborative relationships to ensure 
partnerships toward effective program implementation: 

o Administration, faculty, and staff of each school site covered by this Master Contract 
(Exhibit A)  

o OUSD After School Programs Office 
o OUSD central administration departments 
o Parents/Guardians 
o Youth 
o Community organizations and public agencies 

7.17. Licenses. AGENCY shall obtain and keep in force all licenses, permits, and certificates 
necessary for the performance of this Agreement. 

7.18. Transportation of Students. AGENCY will ensure student safety by ensuring a policy that 
requires staff to have the necessary insurance coverage under section 8.3.8 to drive students in 
their personal cars. In addition, AGENCY will need signed permission from the family.       
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7.19. Loss of Standing as Qualified Organization: Failure to ensure MOU requirements are 
fulfilled may result in loss of good standing as a qualified organization and/or termination of the 
partnership.  

7.20. Student Discipline & Due Process: No student may be removed from participation in an 
after-school program operated by an Expanded Learning Lead Agency without due process. 
AGENCY must adhere to all applicable policies, procedures, and regulations governing student 
discipline to ensure fairness, equity, and transparency in decision-making. 

7.20.1. Review and Determination by OUSD Expanded Learning Office (EXLO): In the event that a 
student exhibits behavioral conduct that may warrant removal from the program, the Expanded 
Learning AGENCY must document all incidents, interventions, and attempts to support the student 
prior to any determination. Before taking any action to remove a student, the AGENCY shall submit 
a formal incident report and request for review to the OUSD Expanded Learning Office (EXLO). 

7.20.2. Approval Prior to Removal: The EXLO will conduct a comprehensive review of the reported 
behavioral conduct, including any mitigating circumstances, documented interventions, and 
student support strategies. The EXLO shall determine whether removal from the program is an 
appropriate and necessary action. No student shall be removed from participation unless and until 
the EXLO has vetted and approved such action in writing. 

7.20.3. Interim Measures: While awaiting EXLO review and approval, the AGENCY may implement 
temporary interventions, including but not limited to, behavior contracts, additional supervision, 
modified participation, or referrals to support services. However, an AGENCY may not enact a 
unilateral removal or exclusion of a student without following the due process outlined herein. 

7.20.4. Notification & Appeal: If removal is approved, the AGENCY must provide formal written notice 
to the student’s parent/guardian, outlining the reasons for removal and any available appeal 
process. Appeals must be submitted in writing within 30 days to the EXLO office for 
reconsideration. 

7.20.5. Non-Discrimination & Equity: All decisions regarding student behavior and potential removal 
must be made in alignment with OUSD policies on equity, inclusion, and non-discrimination. No 
student shall be excluded from participation in the program based on race, gender, disability status, 
or other protected classifications. 

7.20.6. Compliance & Accountability: Failure to adhere to this process may result in corrective action 
against the Agency. 

7.21. Equipment & Supply Inventory Management: All equipment and supplies purchased for the 
Expanded Learning Program (ELP) using funding from the After School Education and Safety 
(ASES), Expanded Learning Opportunities Program (ELOP), After School Safety and Enrichment 
for Teens (ASSETs), or 21st Century Community Learning Centers (21st CCLC) grants remain 
the sole property of the Expanded Learning Program and do not belong to the Lead Agency. Lead 
Agencies are prohibited from repurposing, transferring, or claiming ownership of such equipment 
for any use outside the scope of the Expanded Learning Program. 

7.21.1. Inventory & Documentation Requirements: Lead Agencies are required to maintain an 
accurate, up-to-date inventory of all equipment and non-consumable supplies purchased with 
grant funds. The inventory shall include, at a minimum: 

● Item description 
● Date of purchase 
● Cost of purchase 
● Serial number (if applicable) 
● Location of the item 
● Condition/status of the item 
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This inventory must be submitted to the OUSD Expanded Learning Office (EXLO) annually and 
made available upon request for audits or compliance reviews. 

7.21.2. Use, Storage, & Maintenance: Equipment and Supplies must be used exclusively for Expanded 
Learning Program activities and stored securely at the designated program site(s). Lead Agencies 
are responsible for ensuring proper maintenance and safeguarding of all program-purchased 
equipment. 

7.21.3. Transfer & Disposition of Equipment: If a Lead Agency discontinues its partnership with the 
Expanded Learning Program or ceases operations at a site, all purchased equipment and 
remaining non-consumable supplies must be returned to the OUSD Expanded Learning Office or 
transferred to a designated successor agency as determined by OUSD. The Lead Agency may 
not sell, repurpose, or otherwise reallocate equipment outside of these guidelines. 

7.21.4. Compliance & Enforcement: Failure to comply with inventory management and equipment 
ownership requirements may result in financial liability, grant non-compliance, or termination of the 
MOU. The OUSD Expanded Learning Office reserves the right to conduct site visits, audits, and 
compliance checks to ensure adherence to these provisions. 

8. Field Trip Policy.   FIELD TRIPS, OFF-SITE EVENTS, AND OFF-SITE ACTIVITIES: 

8.1. AGENCY shall provide each Site Administrator and the OUSD Expanded Learning Office with 
a schedule of all after-school program field trips and/or off-site events and/or off-site activities, on 
a template to be provided by OUSD, by the first day of each semester, and a schedule of all 
summer field trips and/or off-site events and activities by the first day of the summer program, if 
AGENCY is providing summer services.     

8.2. All field trips and off-site events/activities must be approved in advance by OUSD; AGENCY 
representatives, including staff and subcontractors, may not take students off-site for events, 
activities, and field trips without OUSD’s approval.  AGENCY shall submit OUSD’s Field Trip 
request form to the after-school site coordinator, agency director, and site administrator to seek 
approval. AGENCY shall comply with OUSD policy and regulations regarding Field Trips. 

 
If AGENCY becomes aware of an unauthorized field trip or off-site activity/event prior to the trip 
taking place, AGENCY shall cancel the trip/activity and notify the family, site leader, and OUSD 
Expanded Learning Office. Nothing in the preceding sentence shall be construed as requiring 
reporting to families, site leaders, or OUSD Expanded Learning Office when it is prohibited by 
law.  
 
If AGENCY becomes aware of an unauthorized field trip or off-site activity/event after the 
trip/activity has taken place, AGENCY shall immediately terminate the AGENCY staff or 
subcontractor organizing the trip, and notify the family, site leader, and OUSD Expanded 
Learning Office. Nothing in the preceding sentence shall be construed as requiring reporting to 
families, site leaders, or OUSD Expanded Learning Office when it is prohibited by law.   

 
8.3.AGENCY hereby certifies that after-school and any summer program staff and/or subcontractors 

will comply with OUSD board policy and regulations, and the procedures in Sections 8.3, 8.4, 8.5, 
and 8.6, for all field trips, off-site events and off-site activities. 

8.3.1. Licenses Permission Slips/Acknowledgement. Field trip/excursion permission slip must be 
signed by parent(s)/guardian(s) of all student participants and an acknowledgment must be signed 
by all adult chaperones both of which shall include the following information: 

8.3.1.1. a full description of the trip and scheduled activities 

8.3.1.2. student/adult participant health information 
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8.3.2. “Notice of Waiver of All Claims: Education Code § 35330 provides that all persons making a 
field trip or excursion shall be deemed to have waived all claims against any school district, charter 
school, or the State of California for injury, accident, illness or death occurring during or by reason 
of the field trip or excursion, regardless of who holds the claims. If the field trip or excursion to 
which this permission slip applies is out-of-state, I hereby knowingly waive all of my and my 
daughter’s/son’s/ward’s claims against any school district, charter school, and/or the State of 
California for injury, accident, illness or death occurring during or by reason of the out-of state field 
trip or excursion.” 

8.3.3. After-school and summer program staff or subcontractors leading trip must have a written list 
of students attending the trip. 

8.3.4. No student shall be prevented from making a trip due to lack of sufficient funds. 

8.3.5. After school and summer program staff or subcontractors leading the trip shall have a sufficient 
first aid kit in their possession or immediately available. If the trip is conducted in areas known to 
be infested with poisonous snakes, this first aid kit shall contain medically accepted snakebite 
remedies. 

8.3.6. Health Conditions/Medication: Trip participant health information will be gathered and 
reviewed in advance of the trip and any needed revisions to the supervision plan made, including 
making sure that chaperones understand relevant information (e.g. food allergies).  A plan will be 
developed to collect, secure, and dispense prescription medications from their original containers 
only and consistent with the physician’s instructions. 

8.3.7. Supervision  

8.3.7.1. AGENCY Executive Director must review and approve the supervision plan. 

8.3.7.2. Trip as structured is appropriate to age, grade level, and course of study. 

8.3.7.3. Chaperones are all AGENCY employees or subcontractors, parent(s)/guardian(s), or 
other authorized chaperones and are 21 or older. After School and Summer Program 
Coordinators and lead trip staff are satisfied that all chaperones are willing and able to perform 
required duties, including understanding and implementing instructions, understanding health 
information for students in their group, and responding effectively in the event of an emergency. 
Trip attendees shall be limited to assigned school or after-school program staff, students, and 
authorized chaperones. Guests, including but not limited to friends and other family members, 
are strictly prohibited absent prior written approval of the after-school program coordinator or 
AGENCY executive director. Before the trip, after school and summer program staff leading 
the trip shall provide any adult chaperones who may accompany the students with clear 
information regarding their responsibilities. Chaperones shall be assigned a prescribed group 
of students and shall be responsible for the continuous monitoring of these students' activities. 
Chaperones shall not consume alcoholic beverages or be under the influence of controlled 
substances while accompanying and supervising students on a trip.  

8.3.7.4. When a trip is made to a place of business or industry, staff shall arrange for an 
employee of the host company to serve as conductor. 

8.3.7.5. Adult: Student Ratio is at least 1:10 or higher if swimming or wading or high-risk trip. If 
the trip involves water activities, this ratio shall be revised to ensure closer supervision of 
elementary grade or younger students, appropriate to their ages. The ratio of adults to students 
on field trips and excursions shall be reasonable under the circumstances. 

8.3.7.6. Safety requirements have been met (e.g.: current First aid/CPR training of at least one 
chaperone, first aid kits, emergency contact and health info, instructions for chaperones, staff 
and chaperones have cell phones which are charged and available for communication). 
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8.3.8. Transportation Requirements: The AGENCY after-school and summer program staff or 
subcontractors shall ensure compliance with all state laws and may transport by the use of 
AGENCY’s own equipment, contract to provide transportation, or arrange transportation by the 
use of other equipment to enrolled after school and summer participants provided that:  (A) 
parent/guardians’ written permission has been obtained in advance;  (B) After School Program 
Coordinator and/or Summer Program Coordinator has confirmed that: transportation 
arrangements are safe and appropriate; (C)  all drivers have valid California driver’s license; (D) 
all drivers have received fingerprint clearance; (E) provided that such transport is covered under 
driver or registered owner’s personal automobile insurance or AGENCY automobile liability 
insurance policy for at least $100,000 per individual and $300,000 per occurrence for liability for 
bodily injury; and $50,000 per occurrence for liability for property damage; (F) all drivers and 
registered owners of private or rented vehicles used shall complete and sign declaration of driver 
forms assuring that: (i) the driver is at least 21 years of age and holds a current valid California 
driver’s license;(ii) the driver has not been convicted of reckless driving or driving under the 
influence of drugs or alcohol within the past five years; and (iii) the driver provides proof of sufficient 
insurance; (G) if AGENCY transports by use of an Agency owned vehicle or arranges and/or 
contracts with a third party to provide this transportation, the AGENCY or organization or company 
with whom they contract must meet or exceed the standards required of OUSD’s District approved 
bus vendors, including but not limited to: be licensed as a transportation provider, be certified to 
transport students (e.g., School Pupil Activity Bus certification) and have at least $5,000,000 
Automobile liability and $1,000,000 per occurrence/$2,000,000 aggregate General Liability 
insurance; which has an endorsement naming OUSD and AGENCY as additional insured; (H) 
arrangements have been made for additional vehicle for use in event of illness or emergency; and 
(I) students receive instruction in safe conduct on bus or other transport; and (J) drivers shall 
receive safety and emergency instructions and information which shall be kept in their vehicle, 
including health and emergency information for each student riding in his/her vehicle. 

8.3.9. AGENCY must have reasonable confirmation that all organizations involved in the trip have 
demonstrated expertise and exhibit reasonably safe and reputable operating procedures and 
business practices appropriate to student trips.  

8.3.10. Vendor is licensed to provide all proposed activities. 

8.3.11. All after-school program student participants on field trips, off-site events, or activities must be 
covered by medical or accident insurance. (See Incident and Injury Reporting and Accident 
Insurance above.) 

8.4. Additional Requirements for High Risk, Overnight, or Out of State Trips:  

8.4.1. Definition of High-Risk Activities 

8.4.2. Because of concerns about the risk to student safety, the after-school program coordinator 
shall not permit the following activities on campus or during AGENCY sponsored after-school or 
summer program trips, events, and activities unless the activity is properly supervised, students 
wear protective gear as appropriate, and each participant has medical or accident insurance 
coverage:  

● Amusement Parks 
● Interscholastic Athletic Activities 
● Bicycle riding 
● Circus Arts 
● Hiking (Moderate to rigorous terrain or length) vs short nature “walks”  
● Hang gliding 
● Horseback riding 
● Ice Skating 
● In-line or Roller Skating 
● Rock climbing, climbing walls 
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● Skateboarding or use of non-motorized scooters 
● Snow sports of any kind 
● Trampoline; Jumpers 
● Motorcycling 
● Rodeo 
● Target Shooting 
● Water Activities including but not limited to: swimming, snorkeling, scuba diving, 

sailing, boating, kayaking, river rafting, water slides, water skiing etc. 
● Outdoor active, experiential programs (Ropes course, pulley, etc.) 
● Other activities determined by the school principal to have a high risk to student 

safety 

8.4.2.1. The cost of limited OUSD student accident insurance coverage for student accidents 
during such activities shall be borne by OUSD.  

8.4.2.2. Students who operate or ride as a passenger on a bicycle, non-motorized scooter or 
skateboard upon a street, bikeway, or any other public bicycle path or trail shall wear a properly 
fitted and fastened bicycle helmet that meets the standards of law. Students also shall be 
required to wear such helmets while wearing in-line or roller skates.  

8.4.3. Department of Justice and FBI fingerprinting and fingerprint clearance must be obtained for all 
non-District employee chaperones. Chaperones who continue beyond one school year will need 
to get fingerprint clearance once every three years from the time they begin chaperoning on after-
school program trips. Chaperones shall act in accordance with district policies, regulations, and 
school rules. A person who is required to register as a sex offender pursuant to Penal Code 290 
shall not serve as a chaperone on any field trip. 

8.4.4. No chaperone shall be assigned to provide supervision or instruction of students unless he/she 
has submitted evidence of an examination within the past 60 days to determine that he/she is free 
of active tuberculosis. Chaperones whose skin test is negative shall thereafter be required to take 
a tuberculosis test every four years or sooner if deemed necessary by AGENCY.  

8.4.5. Letter must be sent to parent(s)/guardian(s) and if it is an overnight trip, a meeting must be 
held for staff, chaperones, parent(s)/guardian(s), and students in advance of the trip to discuss trip 
and safety-related procedures, itinerary and questions.  

8.4.6. Sleeping arrangements and night supervision are safe and appropriate. 

8.4.7. Vendor Proof of Insurance:  After School Program Coordinator and/or Summer Program 
Coordinator has obtained proof of insurance from all private vendors including: 

● Facility  
● Program  

8.5.Additional Requirements for Field Trips/Excursions Which Include Swimming or Wading 

8.5.1. No swimming or wading shall be allowed on trips unless planned and approved in advance. 

8.5.2. When wading in the ocean, bay, river, or other body of water as part of a planned, supervised 
outdoor education activity, after-school program staff shall provide for a number of chaperones to 
exceed the normal one to ten ratios and shall instruct both chaperones and students of the real 
and potential risks inherent in such activities and the precautions necessary for their safety. 

8.5.3. Swimming Activities 

8.5.3.1. Parents/guardians must provide written permission for the student to swim and must 
indicate the student's swimming ability. Students whose parents do not give permission for 
their child to swim shall be identified in advance of the trip and a tracking system is designed 
to ensure they do not enter the pool or swim area.  
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8.5.3.2. Swimming facilities, including backyard pools, must be inspected by the AGENCY 
Executive Director and after-school program staff before the trip is scheduled. 

8.5.3.3. Owners of private pools must provide a certificate of insurance, designating OUSD and 
AGENCY as an additional insured, for not less than $2,000,000 in liability coverage. 

8.5.3.4. Lifeguards must be designated for all swimming activities. If lifeguards are not provided 
by the pool owner or operator, the AGENCY Executive Director shall ensure their presence. 
The AGENCY Executive Director shall ensure that lifeguards are Red Cross certified or 
equivalent and must be at least 21 years old.  A swim test must be administered before any 
student is permitted in the deep end of the pool or swim area. A tracking system shall be 
designed in advance of trip to identify those students who have and have not passed the swim 
test. 

8.5.3.5. The ratio of adult chaperones to students shall be at least one to ten.  In grades 4-6, 
this ratio shall be at least one to eight. In grades K-3, this ratio shall be at least one to four. 

8.5.3.6. Specific supervisory responsibilities shall be determined in advance to accommodate 
the varying swimming abilities of students.  These responsibilities shall be clarified in writing 
and reviewed verbally before the trip.  

8.5.3.7. Emergency procedures shall be included with written instructions to adult chaperones 
and staff. 

8.5.3.8. Staff and chaperones assigned to supervise students must wear swimsuits, know how 
to swim, and be at each side of the pool or swim area actively monitoring students at all times. 

8.5.3.9. The After School Program Coordinator and/or Summer Program Coordinator may 
require students to wear flotation devices, depending upon their age and swimming ability. 

8.5.3.10. A buddy-system or other means of surveillance shall be arranged in advance and 
strictly enforced during swimming activities. 

8.6.Additional Requirements for trips to East Bay Regional Park District Bodies of Water 
(swimming pools, lagoons, shoreline parks and lakes) and Related Facilities 

8.6.1. At least 2 weeks prior to trip date, all persons attending trip, including, but not limited to, each 
and every student, teacher, instructor, chaperone, supervisor, parent, administrator, volunteer, or 
aide (hereinafter “participant”) will provide to the OUSD Office of the General Counsel an original, 
properly completed, signed and dated East Bay Regional Park District Waiver, on a form to be 
provided by the OUSD to AGENCY prior to the beginning of each school year, executed by either 
the participant if he or she is 18 years of age or older, or the participant’s parent or legal guardian 
if the participant is under 18 years of age 

8.6.2. Should AGENCY fail to provide an original, properly completed, signed, and dated East Bay 
Regional Park District Waiver for each trip participant as defined in Section 6.13.1 above, AGENCY 
agrees to hold harmless, defend and indemnify OUSD, its officers, employees, volunteers, and 
agents from all claims and actions resulting therefrom. 

8.7.In the event that a field trip cannot proceed as planned for any reason (including but not limited 
to the closure of the field trip destination in response to COVID-19), AGENCY shall provide 
alternative programming to students (including remote programming, in the event that the school 
site at which AGENCY has agreed to provide programming is closed). 

9. Financial Records. AGENCY agrees and understands that OUSD is responsible for fiduciary and 
programmatic oversight for the expenditure of the ASES, 21st CCLC, ASSETS, & ELO-P grant funds 
contracted to AGENCY by OUSD for the fiscal year 2025-2028 (EC 8482.3[f][5]). AGENCY will function 
as a sub-recipient of funding and as such, will follow all required fiscal guidelines and meet outlined 



_____________________________________________________________________________ 
     After School Program Master Contract 2025-2028, page 17 of 32     Rev. 1/13/2025      

standards as referenced in applicable Federal and State sub-recipient guidelines for the federal 21st 
Century Community Learning Centers grant program, CFDA Number 84.287, awarded by the Office of 
Elementary and Secondary Education Academic Improvement and Teacher Quality Programs office.  
Sub-recipients that receive over $500,000 of federal funds are required to undergo an annual audit and 
communicate findings to OUSD, as requested.  AGENCY will ensure that all contracted funds of this MOU 
are expended as per grant guidelines.   

9.1.Accounting Records. AGENCY will maintain its accounting records based upon the principles 
of fund accounting. 

9.2.Disputes. AGENCY shall make all records related to ASES, 21ST CCLC, ASSETS, and ELO-P 
available to OUSD for review.  OUSD and AGENCY shall meet and confer regarding any disputes 
as to the amount of actual expenses before taking any action to collect funds.   

10. Invoicing  

10.1. Billing Structure.  AGENCY shall only invoice for actual expenditures incurred.  Supporting 
documentation must be presented along with monthly invoices upon request.  Billing details must 
be provided upon request to OUSD to ensure compliance with related sub recipient and grant 
guidelines. 

10.2. Unallowable Expenses. AGENCY may not purchase computers or capital equipment using 
ASES, 21st Century Core Grant, 21st Century Direct Access, or 21st Century Family Literacy funds. 

10.3. Invoice Requirements.  AGENCY will submit invoices with evidence of the following staff 
qualifications for each AGENCY employee and AGENCY agent, including employees of 
subcontracting agencies and volunteers:  TB Clearance, current CA Department of Justice and 
FBI fingerprint clearance, and Instructional Aide requirement.  AGENCY will utilize the required 
OUSD invoicing and staff qualifications form, to be provided by OUSD to AGENCY prior to the 
beginning of each school year, for regular invoice submission.   

10.4. Submission of Invoices. AGENCY must submit invoices to OUSD on a timely and regular 
basis for services rendered through the Expanded Learning Office’s Salesforce Database. OUSD 
will not accept invoices submitted more than thirty days beyond the end of each fiscal quarter. No 
invoices will be accepted more than 30 days past the end of June 30 of the contractual fiscal year. 
AGENCY must also submit invoices according to specific invoicing deadlines as outlined by 
OUSD to ensure timely processing.  (Exhibit C)  

10.5. Submission of Invoices for ASES, 21st Century, and ELO-P Grants. For services rendered 
related to the ASES, 21st CCLC, ASSETS, ELO-P grants, OUSD shall pay AGENCY, on a 
monthly basis, for appropriately documented expenses related to the ASES, 21ST CCLC, 
ASSETS, and ELO-P grants, with a cumulative total for 2025-2028 not to exceed the amount 
identified in Section 6, and in accordance with the attached Exhibits to this Memorandum.  
Invoices for payment of services shall be submitted by the 10th of each month to the OUSD  
Expanded Learning Office via Salesforce Community invoicing tool. AGENCY will also submit the 
required OUSD invoicing and staff qualifications form via the Salesforce Community. 

11. Ownership of Documents. AGENCY agrees that, pursuant to California law, it shall maintain program 
and fiscal documentation for the ASES, 21st CCLC, ASSETS, and ELO-P programs for a minimum of five 
years.  All documents created by AGENCY pursuant to this MOU, including but not limited to reports, 
designs, schedules, registration packets, early release waivers, and other materials prepared, or in the 
process of being prepared, for the services to be performed by AGENCY, are and shall be at the time of 
creation and thereafter the property of OUSD, with all intellectual property rights therein vested in OUSD 
at the time of creation.  OUSD shall be entitled to access to and copies of these materials during the 
progress of the work.  Any such materials in the hands of AGENCY or in the hands of any subcontractor 
upon completion or termination of the work shall be immediately delivered to OUSD.  If any materials are 
lost, damaged or destroyed before final delivery to OUSD, AGENCY shall replace them at its own expense 
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and AGENCY hereby assumes all risks of loss, damage or destruction of or to such materials. AGENCY 
may retain a copy of all materials produced under this MOU for its use in its general business activities. 

12. Changes  

12.1. Agency Changes. AGENCY may, at any time, request in writing changes to the Scope of 
Work.  In the event that AGENCY encounters any unanticipated conditions or contingencies that 
may affect the scope of work or services and result in an adjustment in the amount of 
compensation specified herein, AGENCY shall so advise OUSD immediately upon notice of such 
condition or contingency. The written request shall explain the circumstances giving rise to the 
unforeseen condition or contingency and shall set forth the proposed adjustment in compensation. 
Such notice shall be given to OUSD prior to the time that AGENCY performs work or services 
related to the proposed adjustment in compensation. Any and all pertinent changes shall be 
expressed in an amended Scope of Work and signed by OUSD prior to AGENCY’s 
implementation of such changes; changes that increase the proposed budget may require prior 
approval by the BOARD. 

12.2. Changing Legislation. AGENCY understands that changes in Federal or state legislation or 
District policy may impact funding levels, grant requirements, and responsibilities of AGENCY 
during an academic school year.   This MOU may be amended during the 2025 - through the -
2028 fiscal years to reflect additional changes resulting from such legislation. 

13. Conduct of Consultant  

13.1. Staff Requirements.  AGENCY must comply with all Federal and State employment and labor 
laws. AGENCY will adhere to the following staff requirements for each AGENCY “agent”, including 
employees, staff of subcontracting agencies, and volunteers.  AGENCY will provide OUSD with 
evidence of staff qualifications, consistent with invoicing requirements outlined in Section 8.3 
which include: 

13.1.1. Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act. AGENCY will provide at its own expense Mandated 
Reporter training equivalent to that set forth in California Education Code section 44691(b) to all 
AGENCY agents at least annually within their first month working with OUSD students and comply 
with the Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act (CANRA) guidelines as Mandated Reporters to 
report suspicions of possible child abuse to the appropriate reporting agency as stated in California 
Penal Code § 11164 – 11174. 

13.1.2. Tuberculosis Screening. AGENCY agents who work with students must submit to a 
tuberculosis risk assessment as required by EC     49406 within the prior 60 days.  If tuberculosis 
risk factors are identified, AGENCY agents must submit to an intradermal or other approved 
tuberculosis examination to determine that he/she is free of infectious tuberculosis. If the results 
of the examination are positive, the AGENCY agent shall obtain an x-ray of the lungs. At his/her 
discretion, AGENCY agent may choose to submit to the examination instead of the risk 
assessment. 

13.1.3. Fingerprinting of Agents. Current California Department of Justice (CDOJ) fingerprint 
clearance and FBI fingerprint clearance for each AGENCY agent working with students. AGENCY 
shall not permit its agents to come into contact with students until CDOJ and FBI clearance is 
ascertained, and AGENCY shall certify in writing to OUSD that none of its agents who may come 
into contact with pupils have been convicted of a violent or a serious felony.  AGENCY shall further 
certify that it or its subcontracting agencies have received and reviewed fingerprint results for each 
of its agents, and Agency or its subcontracting agencies shall request and review subsequent 
arrest records for all agents who may come into contact with OUSD pupils in providing services to 
the District under this Agreement. (EC 8483.4) 

13.1.4. Minimum Qualifications. AGENCY staff and agents who directly supervise students and are 
included in the 1:20 staff-to-student ratio (EC 8483.4)must meet the following minimum 
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qualifications for an instructional aide:  a high school diploma or its equivalent and one of the 
following:  (a) an AA degree; or completion of 48-semester units in college; or (b) successful 
completion of the Instructional Assistant exam, administered by the Alameda County Office of 
Education. In addition, AGENCY shall provide at its own expense, First Aid and CPR Training to 
sufficient AGENCY staff to ensure that no less than 2 AGENCY staff members with current First 
Aid and CPR Training are present on-site during the program each day. AGENCY must provide 
staff and agents adequate professional development, training, coaching, and preparation time to 
enable staff and agent performance to meet the goals of the ASES/21st Century after-school grant 
program and provide a safe and secure program. 

13.2. Removal of Staff.  In the event that OUSD, in its sole discretion, at any time during the term 
of this MOU, desires the removal of any AGENCY related persons, employee, representative or 
agent from OUSD school site and/or property, AGENCY shall immediately upon receiving notice 
from OUSD of such desire, cause the removal of such person or persons.  In the event OUSD 
requests the removal of any AGENCY related persons, employees, representatives, or agents 
from the OUSD school site and/or property, the OUSD site administrator shall provide to the 
AGENCY written, supporting rationale for the decision. OUSD After School Program Office, after 
conferring with Legal and the Executive Officer supporting the site, shall decide, taking all the 
facts and circumstances into account, if AGENCY may reassign an employee or agent to another 
OUSD site.  Prior to the removal or change of any AGENCY staff member who is a regular part 
of the after-school program, AGENCY shall inform the Site Administrator with as much notice as 
possible, and will work with the Site Administrator to ensure a smooth transition in staffing. 

13.3. Conflict of Interest.  AGENCY shall abide by and be subject to all applicable OUSD policies, 
regulations, statutes or other laws regarding conflict of interest. OUSD shall be permitted to hire 
an officer or employee of AGENCY for OUSD services in connection with or unrelated to this 
Agreement and AGENCY shall be permitted to hire any officer or employee of OUSD to perform 
any service by this Agreement, provided that the agreement attached hereto as Exhibit G is fully 
executed prior to the performance of any services by the officer or employee.  AGENCY affirms 
to the best of his/her/its knowledge, there exists no actual or potential conflict of interest between 
AGENCY’s family, business or financial interest and the services provided under this MOU, and 
in the event of a change in either private interest or services under this MOU, any question 
regarding possible conflict of interest which may arise as a result of such change will be brought 
to OUSD’s attention in writing. 

13.4. Drug-Free / Smoke-Free Policy.  AGENCY understands that OUSD does not permit drugs, 
alcohol, and/or smoking at any time in any buildings and/or grounds on OUSD property.  AGENCY 
agrees to adhere to this policy for its students, staff, visitors, employees, and or subcontractors.  

13.5. Non-Discrimination.  Consistent with the policy of OUSD and California and Federal laws, 
AGENCY shall not engage in unlawful discrimination of students on the basis of actual or 
perceived physical or mental disability, medical condition, sex, gender, gender identity, gender 
expression, nationality, race, or ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation, or any other characteristic 
that is contained in the definition of hate crimes set forth in Section 422.55 of the California Penal 
Code. Consistent with the policy of  OUSD in connection with all work performed under Contracts, 
AGENCY shall not engage in unlawful discrimination in employment on the basis of actual or 
perceived race, color, national origin, ancestry, religion, age, marital status, pregnancy, physical 
or mental disability, medical condition, veteran status, gender, sex or sexual orientation.  
AGENCY agrees to comply with applicable Federal and California laws including, but not limited 
to, the Americans with Disabilities Act, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act, Title IX and  the 
California Fair Employment and Housing Act beginning with Government Code Section 12900 
and Labor Code Section 1735 and OUSD policy.  In addition, AGENCY agrees to require like 
compliance by all its subcontractor(s).   

13.6. Bullying; Sexual Harassment.  The District’s Board of Education recognizes the harmful 
effects of bullying and sexual harassment on student learning, school attendance, and 
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participation in after-school programs. In order to have safe environments that protect students 
from physical and emotional harm, AGENCY shall establish student safety as a high priority and 
shall not tolerate sexual harassment or bullying of any student. AGENCY shall adopt a policy 
expressly against harassment, sexual harassment, intimidation, and bullying and ensure related 
training on prevention and response is accordingly provided for all AGENCY employees and 
agents.  AGENCY employees shall undergo training around appropriate interactions with students 
in child development settings. 

13.7. Restorative Justice (RJ) and Positive Behavioral Interventions and Supports (PBIS). As 
a part of the District’s commitment to eliminate disproportionality in discipline affecting African 
American male students, the District has initiated Restorative Justice and PBIS programs at many 
school sites. AGENCY is encouraged to learn more about these programs at school sites and 
work with District Staff to implement programs in the after-school programs that support a positive 
school climate.  

14. Indemnification.  AGENCY shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend OUSD and each of its officers, 
officials, employees, volunteers, and agents from any loss, liability, audit fines, assessments, penalties, 
forfeitures, costs, and damages (whether in contract, tort or strict liability, including but not limited to 
personal injury, death at any time and property damage) incurred by OUSD, AGENCY or any other person 
and from any claims, demands, and actions in law or equity (including attorney's fees and litigation 
expenses), arising or alleged to have arisen directly or indirectly out of performance of this MOU.  
AGENCY’s obligations under the preceding sentence shall apply jointly and severally regardless of 
whether OUSD or any of its officers, officials, employees, volunteers, or agents are actively or passively 
negligent, but shall not apply to any loss or liability, fines, penalties, forfeitures, costs or damages caused 
solely by the active negligence or by the willful misconduct of OUSD.  If AGENCY should subcontract all 
or any portion of the work or activities to be performed under this MOU, AGENCY shall require each 
subcontractor to indemnify, hold harmless and defend OUSD, its officers, officials, employees, volunteers, 
or agents in accordance with the terms of the preceding paragraph. 

15. Insurance.  Throughout the life of the MOU, AGENCY shall pay for and maintain in full force and effect 
with an insurance company(s) admitted by the California Insurance Commissioner to do business in the 
State of California and rated not less than "A/VII" in Best Insurance Rating Guide, the following policies of 
insurance and shall require each subcontractor to do the same: 

15.1. Commercial General Liability insurance which shall include contractual, products and 
completed operations, corporal punishment and sexual misconduct and harassment coverage, 
and bodily injury and property damage liability insurance with combined single limits of not less 
than $1,000,000 per occurrence / $2,000,000 aggregate.  

15.2. An ACORD Sheet for Professional Liability or Corporal Punishment insurance: It should have 
minimum policy limits of $1MM per occurrence and $2MM aggregate;  

15.3. Either one of these two types of coverage are acceptable - It should be on an ACORD Sheet: 
A) Improper Sexual Conduct & Physical Abuse Liability or B) Sexual Abuse & Molestation. It 
should have minimum policy limits of $1MM per occurrence and $2MM aggregate minimum  

15.4. Worker’s Compensation insurance, as required by the California Labor Code, with not less 
than the statutory limits. 

15.5. Property and Fire insurance shall provide to protect:  Real Property, against risk of direct loss, 
commonly known as Special Form and Fire Legal Liability, to protect against liability for portions 
of premises leased or rented; Business Personal Property, to protect on a Broad Form, named 
peril bases, for all furniture, equipment, and supplies of AGENCY.  If any OUSD property is 
leased, rented, or borrowed, it shall also be ensured the same as real property. 

The above policies of insurance shall be written on forms acceptable to the Risk Manager of OUSD and 
endorsed to name the OUSD, its officers, employees, volunteers or agents, as additional insured.  Said 
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Additional Insured endorsement shall be provided to OUSD upon AGENCY’s execution of this MOU and 
before work commences under this      Master Contract.  If at any time said policies of insurance lapse or 
become canceled, OUSD may immediately terminate this agreement.  The acceptance by OUSD of the 
above-required insurance does not serve to limit the liability or responsibility of the insurer or AGENCY to 
OUSD.  (Exhibit D). OUSD has the rights to update the insurance requirements and AGENCY must 
comply with the updated requirements. Failure to comply will result in the termination of contract.  
 

16. Legal Notices. All legal notices provided for under this MOU shall be sent via email to the email address 
set forth below, or personally delivered during normal business hours, or sent by U.S. Mail (certified, return 
receipt requested) with postage prepaid to the other PARTY at the address set forth below. 

 
 

OUSD 
Name:   General Counsel       
Site/Dept:  OUSD Legal Department       
Address:  1011 Union Street, Site 946      
City, ST Zip:  Oakland, CA 94607 

Phone:   510-879-5060      
Email:   OUSDLegal@ousd.org 

 
AGENCY 
Name:   Melissa Mendez Ochoa  
Title:   Executive Director  
Address:  510 Third Street, Suite 200 
City, ST Zip:  Oakland, CA 94609 
Phone:   510-564-4334 
Email:   melissa.menez_ochoa@oaklandleaf.org 

 
Notice shall be effective when received if personally served or emailed or, if mailed, three days after 
mailing. Either PARTY must give written notice of a change of mailing address or email. 

17. Incorporation of Recitals and Exhibits. The Recitals and each exhibit attached hereto are hereby 
incorporated herein by reference.  

18.      Counterparts.  This MOU and all amendments and supplements to it may be executed in counterparts, 
and all counterparts together shall be construed as one document. 

19. Program Books and Supplies. Supplies can be purchased by OUSD and by the Lead Agency. A Lead 
Agency cannot exceed $4,500 in supply purchases. Supplies to be used in both the school day and after-
school program must be jointly funded, with a maximum of 50% applied to ASES/21st/ELOP/ASSETS. All 
supplies purchased with grant funding remain the property of OUSD and must remain at the site (see 
section 7.21). 

20. Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion:  The District 
certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principals: Are not presently debarred, 
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions 
by any Federal department or agency according to Federal Acquisition Regulation Subpart 9.4, and by 
signing this contract, verifies that this vendor does not appear on the Excluded Parties List.  
https://www.sam.gov/  
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On behalf of our respective institutions or organizations, we hereby execute this Memorandum of 
Understanding. 
 

OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  

_____________________________ _________ 
☐ President, Board of Education        Date 
☐ State Administrator 
☐ Superintendent 

 

_____________________________ _________ 
Secretary,                                             Date 
Board of Education 

 

_____________________________ _________ 
Executive Director                                 Date 
Community Schools and Student Services Dept. 
                 
 
_____________________________  _________ 
Chief Academic Officer                         Date 
Continuous School Improvement 

 
 
MOU template approved by OUSD Office of the 
General Counsel May 2025      

AGENCY  

_____________________________ _________ 
Agency Signature Date 
 
Melissa Mendez Ochoa, Executive Director  
Print Name, Title 

 

Attachments: 
● Exhibit A.  School Site List and Annual Grant 

Amounts 
● Exhibit B.  Scope of Work Template and Budget 

Tool Template 
● Exhibit C.  Procedure for Invoicing & Attendance 
● Exhibit D.  Certificates of Insurance 
● Exhibit E. Statement of Qualifications 
● Exhibit F. Agency Letter 
● Exhibit G. Agreement to Allow Distinct and 

Separate Employment by OUSD and AGENCY 
 
 
 
 
Legislative File ID: _25-1313_______ 

  
 

5/9/2025

5/9/2025

5/19/2025
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Exhibit A 
Schools Sites Supported Under this Agreement and Annual Grant Amounts 

After School Programs (Not Summer School) 
After-School Sites:  
School Site Name: Projected After-School 

Enrollment Numbers: 
Projected Total Annual Grant:  

Bret Harte Middle School 107 $565,130.84 

Cleveland Elementary School 83 $552,612.13 

EnCompass Academy 83 $452,612.13 

International Community School 83 $452,612.13 

La Escuelita Elementary 110 $553,482.84 

Think College Now Elementary 83 $452,612.13 

 Total:  $3,029,062.20 
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Exhibit B 

Blank Template of PPT and Budget Tool 

INSERT HERE 



25-26 OUSD Expanded Learning Programs - Program Planning Tool 
(PPT)

2025-2026 ELEMENTARY/MIDDLE & HIGH

Program Planning Tool Table of Contents 
Section Purpose Suggested Lead

(Principal, Site 
Coordinator, 
Agency Director)

School Site 
Information 

Outlines vital programmatic info, including services, 
funding sources, and critical stakeholders.

Agency Director

Program - Dates/Min 
Days

Identify program closure days for PD and clarify the 
minimum days for the school year.

Agency Director

Program - Operations 
(attendance/staffing)

Outlines the attendance and enrollment goals for 
the program.

Agency Director

Program Operations 
(Offering and 
Schedule, Sub-
Contractors)

Description of program schedule and program 
offerings, including any subcontractors or 
community-based programs the after-school 
program will host.

Site Coordinator & 
Site Principal

Program Model and 
Enrollment Process 

Identifies program model and offerings, including 
intersession. It also includes an enrollment process 
and timeline.

Site Coordinator & 
Site Principal

Inclusion Describes State/Federal/OUSD's requirements for 
supporting all students.

Site Coordinator & 
Site Principal

Program Components Includes CDE-required program components and 
how the program will meet these (educational and 
literacy component, educational enrichment, 
physical activity, social-emotional learning, family 
engagement, and universal design). 

Agency Director & 
Site Principal

  
 *Educational/Literacy

Agency Director & 
Site Principal

   *Social Emotional Agency Director & 
Site Principal

   *Enrichment Agency Director & 
Site Principal

   *Physical Activity Agency Director & 
Site Principal

   *Family Engagement Agency Director & 
Site Principal

Continuous Quality 
Improvement
Facilities Outlines which parts of the campus the Expanded 

Learning program will utilize, including UED 
programming.

Agency Director & 
Site Coordinator

Campus Safety & 
Access

Includes safety agreements between the Lead 
Agency and the School Site, including a link to the 
safety plan

Agency Director & 
Site Principal

* Community School Managers and Quality Supports Coaches should be a part of the planning process. 



SECTION 1: SCHOOL SITE AND AFTER-SCHOOL PROGRAM INFORMATION

School Site Information 
School Site Name:

School Type:

Tk Only Site
0 Elementary (TK-5)
0 Elementary/Middle (TK-8)
0 Middle (6-8)

Expanded Learning Lead Agency:
0 High School (9-12)
0 Alternative High School
0 Continuation High School
0 Comprehensive High School

Please indicate which funding source(s) is allocated to your 
site:

After-School Funding Source:

0 ASES
0 21st CCLC
0 ASSETS
0 Expanded Learning Opportunity Program 

(ELO-P)
0 Oakland Fund for Children and Youth (OFCY)
0 Program Fees

* Complete program budget is located in the site's 
Quip program folder

Program Model Before 
School 

0 After-School 0 Intersession 0

CDS Code: (This is a 14-digit code, search here)

Principal Name: Principal Signature and date:

Lead 
Agency Signatory 
Name:

Lead Agency Signature and date:

Executive Director, 
Community 
Schools & Student 
Services:

Andrea  Bustamante
Executive Director, CSSS Signature and 
date:

SECTION 2: PROGRAM OPERATIONS

PROGRAM DATES, MINIMUM DAYS & SCHEDULE

To be compliant with California Department of Education (CDE) grant requirements, the after-school program 
must commence immediately upon the conclusion of the regular day, operate a minimum of 15 hours/week, 
and be open until at least 6:00 pm on every school day for elementary and middle schools (EC 8483). Programs 
are required to operate all 180 days of the school year. Programs must begin to operate on the first day of 
school and run until the last day of school.

Program Operations for the 2025-2026 school year.   First Day: August 11, 2025           Last Day: May 28, 2026.
 
2025 UPDATED ED CODE:



Per CDE Education Code Section 8483.7(c) allows programs to close for a maximum of 3 days during a calendar 
year (not a school year)for staff development. Families and school site personnel must be notified of these 
program closure dates in advance, and the lead agency must maintain and upload documentation of 
professional development activities offered on these dates, including training agendas and staff sign-in sheets. 
This should be uploaded no later than 5 business days after the closure day.
Identify the three days (if any) your program plans to close this year for PD. The program must be open all 
other days of the school year. (Updates for any date changes are due September 2025).

1st: 2nd: 3rd:

ATTENDANCE, STAFFING, OUTREACH, AND RECRUITMENT
All programs serving students TK through 6th grade must be accessible to all students who need it. All 
programs are required to meet their ASES and/or 21CCLC ADA or risk grant reductions in the following school 
year. Accordingly, it is important for site teams to work collaboratively with the lead agency to identify outreach 
strategies to eliminate waitlists. 

*Sites utilizing ELO-Program funds must OFFER comprehensive after-school and intersessional Expanded 
Learning Opportunities to ALL unduplicated pupils in Transitional Kindergarten/Kindergarten through sixth 
grade (TK/K–6) classroom-based instructional programs starting in 2025–26. California Education Code (EC) 
Section 46120(a)(1).

*ELO-Program must prioritize enrollment for all unduplicated pupils.

*Pupils that are foster, unhoused, ELL and/or qualify for free and reduced-price meals cannot be charged 
fees. 
Enrollment Estimation:
25 - 26 (for the site’s combined funding) (ASES, 21CCLC, and 
ELOP)

Average Daily Attendance: 
CDE ADA Target (ASES, 21CCLC, 
ASSETs)

Staffing Estimations: 
Review enrollment projections for the 2025-26 school year to identify staffing requirements. All staff should be 
reflected in the Quip Budget         -        Allowable Expenses  Crosswalk
Grade Levels Served and Enrollment Estimations (Site-Based School Day Enrollment Data)
Grade Level TK/K 

10:1 
Student/Staf
f Ratio

1st - 5th Grade
20:1 Student/Staff Ratio

6th-8th 
Grade
20:1 
Student/Staff 
Ratio

9th-12th Grade
20:1 Student/Staff Ratio

Enrollment 
Estimation
Staffing Targets
Based on the 
projected 
enrollment 
numbers
Teachers on ET
(not UED/QSC) 
or
OUSD STAFF OT
PROGRAM OFFERING, SAMPLE SCHEDULE, AND COMMUNITY-BASED PARTNERS (SUB-CONTRACTORS)
0 The “Program Schedule” has been completed and uploaded into the deliverables folder.



0 Insert Link Here: {Ensure it is uploaded in your deliverable folder} 
______________________
The program schedule should include:
    a. Before care
    b. Class/Activity title, i.e., African Dance, Yoga  - be specific
    c. Day and time program is being offered
Use the attached template to describe program components, then link them to this 
document. Use the drop-box option (a) CDE--academic, enrichment, physical activity to 
indicate the component your offering fits under. 
*In the fall, sites are required to resubmit updated program schedules. This schedule should 
be clearly aligned with the supports identified in section 4.

Please list any community-based organizations/sub-contractors the site will partner with in the 2025-26 school 
year.
All Subcontractors should also be in the site’s Quip Budget    -     Allowable Expenses  Crosswalk
Organization Name: 
Example: Jane's Cooking

Estimated 
Contract 
Amount

Who will manage the 
services:
School Site - Lead Agency

Who is paying the 
subcontractor? (Lead 
Agency/School/ExLO)

SECTION 3: ENROLLMENT

ENROLLMENT PROCESS TO SERVE ALL STUDENTS
ENROLLMENT PROCESS & TIMELINE 

Please use this template as an example.      

Upload Instructions:

Please upload to your Program Plan Deliverables Folder. Please name your file in this 
format: SchoolName_EnrollmentTimeline.

Please check the box below after completing the above instructions
The enrollment timeline has been uploaded to Google 
Drive Deliverables Program Plan folder.   

Insert Link to Enrollment Timeline: __________________________

SECTION 4: INCLUSION 

INCLUSION - SUPPORTING ALL OUSD STUDENTS 
*Please check all the boxes to demonstrate awareness and implementation of mandatory expectations. 
Who can receive the Golden Ticket?
Per federal statute, California Education Code, and Oakland Unified School District policy, any students 
identified by the OUSD Transitional Student and Family Unit can receive a Golden Ticket. Golden ticket students 



get priority access into the after-school program. If a student/family indicates they have a Golden Ticket, the 
correct response is to enroll and admit them immediately. If you have any concerns regarding their status, 
reach out to your Expanded Learning Program Manager. Transitional students are by definition:

- Any OUSD student who is a homeless youth, as defined by the federal *McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance 
Act (42 U.S.C. Sec. 1143a), who is in foster care, or is designated as an unaccompanied minor.
- Any OUSD student who identifies as a newcomer, refugee or as an asylee.*Subtitle VII-B of the McKinney-
Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. § 11431 et seq.)

- Establishes the definition of homeless used by schools
- Ensures that children and youth experiencing homelessness have immediate and equal access to public 
education
- Provides for educational access, stability, and support to promote school success
- Needed to address the unique barriers faced by many homeless students

- OUSD's ExLO will also distribute Golden Tickets to students under special cirucmstances (Example: Emergency 
Transfers)
0      The expanded learning lead agency is aware of and will implement the OUSD Golden Ticket Policy.

Reasonable Accommodations Handout.                                    Expanded Learning Inclusion Policy
Oakland School Board passed Resolution No. 2021-0159 in June 2021: Ensuring Access to Social-Emotional and 
Academic Supports for Students with Disabilities.

SECTION 5: PROGRAM COMPONENTS 

PROGRAM COMPONENTS (The descriptions below should reflect the site's specific needs)
CDE requires that programs must provide a safe environment and include an educational component that 
provides tutoring and/or homework assistance; and an educational enrichment component, which may 
include, but is not limited to STEAM, recreation, prevention, and other Social Emotional Learning (SEL) activities 
(EC Section 8482.6); and provide opportunities for physical activity. (EC Section 8483.3[c][7]) The description 
below should reflect site-specific needs.

1) EDUCATIONAL COMPONENT 

OUSD requires that part of your Educational Component focuses on Literacy and includes academic support in 
the core subject (language arts, math, history/social science, etc). Make sure to include how district literacy 
practices will be integrated.

(i) Describe how the expanded learning program will provide the educational & literacy component. 
(ii) How are students building academic skills?
(iii) How does the program align/supplement the school day priorities and curriculum?
Respond Below: 

2) How is social-emotional academic development being integrated? (Include specific strategies for creating a 
safe & supportive environment through encouragement and actively engaged learning.)  (i.e., collaborative 
skills, self-management, responsible decision-making, etc.)

Respond Below: 

3) Enrichment Component that offers students engaging activities in various areas (fine arts, career technical 



education, presentation, etc.)
How does the expanded learning program choose which educational enrichment activities are offered? (Include 
specific strategies designed to foster skill-building youth voice and leadership, and diversity, access and equity.)
Respond Below: 

4) Physical Activity is an activity other than recess that is structured and supervised with a warm-up, structured 
physical activities, and a cool down. (This should happen for all students in the program.)
CDE expects Elementary programs to offer 30-60 minutes of developmentally appropriate, daily physical 
activity (to help meet CDE recommendation of 30-60 daily minutes of moderate to vigorous physical activity for 
youth). This is not ‘free play’ or recess. (We understand Middle and High will vary based on sports programs 
and scheduling.  Programs should provide a physcial component to non athletes.)

 Please explain how the expanded learning program will address physical activity in your program, including 
type, frequency, and target population. All students should have the opportunity for physical activity).

· Plan and evaluate (review fitness test results, track minutes, etc.)
· Include a variety of activities throughout the year
Describe how the expanded learning program will provide structured physical activity for all participants. 
(Include specific strategies to promote healthy choices and behaviors.)
Respond Below: 

5) Family Engagement that may include literacy activities and other educational services that engage adult 
family members of students.
Describe how the expanded learning program provides opportunities to promote literacy and/or other 
educational services to adult family members of students?
Respond Below: 

SECTION 6: CONTINUOUS QUALITY IMPROVEMENT

SECTION 6: CONTINUOUS QUALITY IMPROVEMENT (Alignment with CDE)

This cycle of improvement revolves around twelve critical standards—the Quality Standards for Expanded 
Learning in California—which were developed in partnership between the California Department of Education’s 
(CDE) After School Division and the California Afterschool Network (CAN) Quality Committee.

POINTS OF SERVICE Quality Standards & PROGRAMMATIC Quality Standards

Resources:
Definitions: CDE Quality Standards
Unpacked: CDE Quality Standards & CQI Spectrum
Unpacked: CDE Quality Standards & CQI Spectrum
0 California Department of Education Quality Standards have been entered into the 

Google Form.
Identify a Point of Service Standard you want to work on next year based on your data from Public Profit and set 
a goal for your program.



Evaluation Data Point:
Point of Service Quality Standard:
Goal:

SECTION 7: FACILITIES 

SECTION 8: Facilities

(a) Plan with the school site administrator which rooms and outside spaces the expanded 
learning program will use Monday - Friday from the start of the program to 6 pm. 
Make sure to include bathrooms and snack areas.

(b) Lead Agency Director, will go into the Facilitron website to complete facilities usage 
requests no later than May 16, 2025. Visit the Facilitron website at: 
www.facilitron.com/dashboard/login

*NOTE: If using the school kitchen during the program, there needs to be an additional 
approved Facilitron request. A Nutritional Services (NS) staff member must supervise 
the proper use of the kitchen equipment and clean up afterward. Program using the 
kitchen will need to pay for the NS staff member's time during the kitchen use, similar 
to custodian services. The staff's hourly rate will determine the rate of pay.

0 Lead Agency has reserved all facilities 
in Facilitron. 

Date Entered into Facilitron

Indoors (specify # of rooms)
i.e. 10 classrroms / 160 students

Common spaces (specify space names)
i.e. Cafeteria, library, gym, large play yard, etc

# of classrooms # of Students Hours to 
be used

Which common spaces will your program 
use?

SECTION 8: CAMPUS SAFETY AND ACCESS

Section 8: Campus Safety and Access

Please collaborate with the school’s administration team to come up 
with agreements around campus safety and facility entrances. Add a link 
to the OUSD protocol.
OUSD School Administrator Guidance to Police-Free Response Protocol 

Which entrances and exits will be open during the transition to 
afterschool?

Once the transition has occurred, how can teachers or parents access 
the campus to leave or pick up students?

In case of a lockdown or a secure school, does the site coordinator have 
access to keys they need to safely carry this out?
What other adults on campus after school who should calibrate with 
afterschool for safety?

Stay Away Orders
The site principal will ensure communication between school day and 



after school regarding stay away orders.  What is the process for the 
principal to inform the expanded learning site coordinator when a stay 
away order is implemented?

Add a link to your 2025-2026 safety plan.

Indicate all actions that will occur to ensure after-school program safety and alignment with school day 
procedures for emergency preparedness and emergency response:
0

The Site Administrator and ExLO Site Coordinator will meet at beginning of the school year 
to update the Expanded Learning Safety Plan collaboratively.

0
The school site will share the Comprehensive School Site Safety Plan with the site 
coordinator.

0
School day and expanded learning programs will coordinate emergency drill schedules & 
procedures (ie. earthquake, fire, and lockdown drills).

0
Expanded learning staff will participate in site-level faculty safety trainings.

0
School will provide expanded learning staff with access to disaster supplies and other 
resources in case there is an emergency after school.      

0
Site Administrator and ExLO Site Coordinator will meet regularly to review expanded 
learning incidences and update safety plans as needed.

0
The completed Expanded Learning 2026-2027 Safety Plan will be submitted to the 
Expanded Learning Programs Office by 10/1/25.

2. List the training and resources the school will provide to after school staff on safety procedures, including 
lockdown procedures and communication protocols for crisis response. How will you ensure staff is trained for 
emergencies? What are the onsite communication protocols and expectations?

0
The principal and site coordinator have reviewed the OUSD Expanded Learning 
Emergency/Crisis 1st Level Response Notification Protocol and understand expectations 
regarding communication and incident reporting when an issue involving after-school 
safety

0
Expanded learning coordinator will have access to facility keys to ensure safety for after-
school programs. Should a lockdown or a secure school is needed. The expanded learning 
Program will have access to facility keys for all areas where expanded learning 
programming occurs?

Culture Keeper 
0 The school site will utilize expanded learning and/or school day funds to pay Extra-

time/Over-time (ET/OT) for an ExLO Culture Keeper.
0 The school site does not need a Culture Keeper,



Site Name:
OFCY Match 

Funds

Program 
Fees (if 

applicable)

Other 
School Site 

Funds

Other Lead 
Agency 
Funds

Site #:

0.00 OUSD
Lead 

Agency
OUSD Lead Agency OUSD Lead Agency OUSD Lead Agency Lead Agency Lead Agency OUSD Lead Agency

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1120 3050 0 0 0 0
1120 0 0 0 0 0
1120
1120

0
3050 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2205 0 0 0
2225 0 0 0 0

0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

3000's 747.25 0 0 0
3000's 0 0 0 0
3000's 0 0 0 0

747.25 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

4310 0 0 0
4310 0 0 0
5829 0 0 0 0
4420 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Bus tickets for students
Total books and supplies

CONTRACTED SERVICES

Total classified
BENEFITS

Employee Benefits for Certificated 
Employee Benefits for Classified Staff 
Employee Benefits for Salaried 

Total certificated
CLASSIFIED PERSONNEL

Site Coordinator (list here, if district 
Culture Keeper (optional)

Total benefits
BOOKS AND SUPPLIES

Supplies 
Curriculum 
Field Trips
Equipment (including computers ‐ 

0.00
CERTIFICATED PERSONNEL

Quality Support Coach/Academic 
Certificated Teacher Extended 
Certificated Teacher Extended 
Certificated Teacher Extended 

CENTRAL COSTS: INDIRECT, ADMIN, 
OUSD Indirect (5.00%)
OUSD ASPO admin, evaluation, and 
Custodial Staffing and Supplies at 3.5%

TOTAL SITE ALLOCATION 0.00 0.00 0.00

2025‐2026 AFTER SCHOOL BUDGET PLANNING SPREADSHEET

ELEMENTARY & MIDDLE SCHOOLS 02.2024

%

ASES

%

21CCLC Core

%

21CCLC Equitable Access

%

ELO‐P

Resource 6010, Program  Resource 4124, Program  Resource 4124, Program  Resource 2600, Program 
Average # of students to be served daily 
(ADA):

TOTAL GRANT AWARD 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



5825 0 0
5825
5825
5825 0
5825
5825
5825 0
5825
5825
5825 0
5825
5825
5825

5825
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0

0

0 0

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

#### 3,797.25 0.00 #### 0.00 0.00 ### 0.00 0.00 ### 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
#### 0.00 0.00 #### 0.00 0.00 ### 0.00 0.00 ### 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTALS
3,797.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

0 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ASES 
MATCH 
REQUIREM
ENT:

0.00
ASES requires a 3:1 match for every grant award 
Total Match amount required for this grant:

BALANCE remaining to allocate ‐3,797.25 0.00 0.00 0.00
TOTAL GRANT AWARD/ALLOCATION  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Lead Agency admin (5% max of total 
contracted $ ‐ 10% for ELOP)

SUBTOTALS
Subtotals DIRECT SERVICE
Subtotals Admin/Indirect

Total budgeted per column
Total BUDGETED 3,797.25 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total value of in‐kind direct services
LEAD AGENCY ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS

Total services

Site Coordinator (list here if CBO staff)  
Academic Instructors (List each staff 
Enrichment Facilitators (List each staff 
Subcontractors (please list each specific 
STEM instructors _ (number of hours x 
College/career readiness facilitator  
Other Staff   (number of hours x 
Family Liaison (recommended for 21st 

Mental Health consultant (optional)
Staff time to participate in Professional 

TK Instructor 

IN‐KIND DIRECT SERVICES



0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

Date:
Lead  Date:

Facilities count toward 25% of this match requirement:
Remaining match amount required:
Match should be met by combined OFCY funds, 
Total Match amount left to meet:

Required Signatures for Budget Approval:

Principal:
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Exhibit C (1)  

 
PROCEDURE FOR INVOICING & ATTENDANCE 

Oakland Unified School District 
Comprehensive After School Programs  

 
The following procedures are required in submitting invoices that utilize ELO-P, 21st Century and/or ASES 
funding: 
 

All ELO-P, 21st Century and/or ASES attendances and invoices must be submitted via the 
OUSD/Expanded Learning Salesforce Community.  .           

♦ All attendance must be entered into Aeries Student Information System, and all copies of sign-in/sign-
out sheets must be uploaded into the site’s deliverable Google folder by the 10th of every month. 
Attendance sign-in must comply with OUSD and CDE’s protocols.   

 
♦ A detailed breakdown of charges must be provided, including the number of hours worked and the 

hourly rate. All subcontractors' payments and purchases under $500/per item must be reflected in the 
corresponding invoice. Receipts for purchases made with expanded learning funds must be attached to 
the invoice to support any expenses reflected on the invoice. Bus itinerary and reservation 
documentation must be attached for all field trip expenditures   Failure to fully complete an invoice 
according to these specifications may result in a delay of payment.    

 
♦ All invoices should cover only one calendar month, i.e. the 1st through the 30th or 31st, and should be entered by 

the 10th of every month.      
 
♦ Contractor, Agency, Site Coordinator, and Principal signatures will be collected through the Salesforce 

Community Database and DocuSign.  All of these signatures must be signed by the intended individual.   
 
♦ Invoices should be accompanied by one Invoicing and Staff Qualifications form per school site. 

 
 

If there are any questions regarding the invoicing process, please contact the expanded learning program 
manager.      . 
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Exhibit C (2) 

 
PROCEDURES for PAID INSERVICE/EXTENDED CONTRACTS and TIME SHEETS   

OUSD CERTIFICATED TEACHERS  
 
The following procedures are required in submitting fiscal forms for Paid In-service/Extended Time 
for OUSD employees utilizing the 21st Century and/or ASES funding: 
 
Paying OUSD Certificated Employees (Teachers)  
♦ Extended Contract teachers should submit a “Request for Extended Contract” form to After School 

Programs Office IN ADVANCE to approve all projected work to be completed, using appropriate 
Budget Org Key (Object Code usually -1120 or -1122)  

♦ Have Employee sign Extended Contract & ALL Time Sheets 
♦ Have Principal approve and sign Extended Contract & ALL Time Sheets 
♦ Please be sure to submit ORIGINALS of all documents 
♦ Please use only ONE SIDED Time Sheets 
♦ Deliver to OUSD After School Programs Office — All ELO-P, 21st Century and/or ASES Extended 

Contracts and Time Sheets must be submitted via email to the OUSD After School Programs Office in 
order to be processed and paid.        

♦ Union Contract rate for teachers on extended contracts is $47.50/hr. 
♦ Once the Extended Contract has been submitted and approved, only timesheets are required to be 

submitted for subsequent payments. 
♦ Timesheets should be submitted to the After School Programs Office no later than the last working day 

of any month for payment at the end of the following month. 
 

If there are any questions regarding these documents or procedures, please contact the Expaded Learning Office at 
expandedlearning@ousd.org. 
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Exhibit C (3) 

 
PROCEDURES for EXTENDED TIME and/or OVERTIME FORMS (ET/OT) 

for OUSD CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES  
 
The following procedures are required in submitting fiscal forms for Extended Time and/or Overtime 
(ET/OT) for OUSD classified employees utilizing ELO-P, 21st Century and/or ASES funding: 
 
Paying OUSD Classified Employees (SSOs, Custodians, Instructional Aides, etc.)  
♦ Complete Informed K-12 OUSD ET/OT Form 
♦ All Custodial ET/OT forms must be submitted to Custodial Services at 900 High Street. 
♦ All Culture KeeperET/OT forms must be submitted electronically to Culture Keeper Coordinator  
♦ Any other ET/OT forms for 21st Century and ASES classified staff must be routed to school Principal, 

who should then route to After School Program Office.  ET/OT forms must be delivered to the After 
School Programs Office no later than each classified payday for payment on the following payday. 

♦ Rate varies depending on the employee’s hourly rate   
 
 
 

If there are any questions regarding these documents and procedures, please contact our office at (510) 879-2888. 
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Exhibit D 
 

Certificates of Insurance and Additional Insured Endorsement 
 
 

INSERT HERE 
 

  



10/10/2024

Fidelity Insurance Service
a member of United Valley
801 Allston Way
Berkeley CA 94710

Aliyyah Harvey
(510) 548-8200 (510) 548-6145

aharvey@fidelityinsuranceservice.com

Oakland Leaf Foundation
520 3rd Street #109

Oakland CA 94607

NIAC 99998
Hartford Casualty Ins Co 29424
Amwins Brokerage Insurance Services

CL24101023563

A
Prof. Liability
Improper Sexual Conduct (ISC) Y 202416332NPO 10/05/2024 10/05/2025

1,000,000
500,000
20,000
1,000,000
3,000,000
3,000,000

Prof & ISC Occ & Agg 1mill/$2mill

A 202416332NPO 10/05/2024 10/05/2025

1,000,000

A 202416332UMBNPO 10/05/2024 10/05/2025
1,000,000
1,000,000

B 57WECAE2JLV 10/30/2024 10/30/2025
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000

C
Commercial Cyber and Privacy Liability

C4LRF-252661-CYBER2024 10/16/2024 10/16/2025 Occurrence & Aggregate $ 1,000,000
Retention $ 2,500

Oakland Unified School District is additional insured with respect to the operations of the named insured per written contract.

Oakland Unified School District Attn: Risk Management
1011 Union St Suite 987

Oakland CA 94607

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE
BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED
ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY







IMPROPER SEXUAL CONDUCT AND PHYSICAL ABUSE LIABILITY
COVERAGE PART DECLARATIONS

Oakland Leaf Foundation

RENEWAL OF NUMBER:  2023-16332

NAME OF INSURED AND MAILING ADDRESS:

2024-16332POLICY NUMBER:
Fidelity Insurance Service, Inc. - UV
P.O. Box 2096
Berkeley, CA  94702

PRODUCER:

510 3rd St.
Oakland, CA  94607

POLICY PERIOD: FROM 10/5/2024 10/5/2025TO
AT 12:01 A.M. STANDARD TIME AT YOUR MAILING ADDRESS SHOWN ABOVE

BUSINESS DESCRIPTION: After school & summer program for youth

IN RETURN FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE PREMIUM, AND SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS OF THIS
POLICY, WE AGREE WITH YOU TO PROVIDE THE COVERAGE AS STATED IN THIS POLICY.

LIMITS OF COVERAGE:
GENERAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000

$1,000,000EACH CLAIM LIMIT

PREMIUM
$2,750.............................................................................

.....................................................................................

NOTE: The limit of liability available to pay judgements or settlements shall be reduced by amounts incurred for Defense Costs.

FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS APPLICABLE TO THIS COVERAGE PART AND MADE PART OF THIS POLICY AT THE TIME OF ISSUANCE:

TOTAL PREMIUM: $2,750

IL P 001 01 04, NIAC-E069 ISC 02 19, NIAC-E131 ISC 05 20, NIAC-E180 ISC 01 21, NIAC-E342 ISC 08 22, NIAC-E57 02 12, NIAC-ISCET 05 20

COUNTERSIGNED: BY
(AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE)

Notice: This risk pooling contract is issued by a pooling arrangement authorized by California Corporations Code Section 
5005.1. The pooling arrangement is not subject to all of the insurance laws of the State of California and is not subject to 
regulation by the Insurance Commissioner. Insurance guaranty funds are not available to pay claims in the event the risk pool 
becomes insolvent.

NIAC-ISC
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Exhibit E  
 

Statement of Qualifications 
 
 

INSERT HERE 
 
  



Oakland Leaf
Statement of Qualifications

Oakland Leaf was founded in 2001 by a collective of East Oakland educators’ desire to cultivate
community transformation through creative education for youth and families. Their mission was to
counter the inequalities and violence surrounding the youth by providing innovative programs and
services that would equip them with the necessary skills to evolve into future leaders. That summer
Oakland Leaf developed and hosted its first annual enrichment summer camp that emphasized arts,
culture and social justice. The following fall, Oakland Leaf was invited to serve as the after-school
lead agency for an East Oakland school.

Now we serve 1,000 East Oakland students annually in our 7 after-school programs at high need
elementary and middle schools, two paid high school internships, and three summer camps, all free
of charge. Our vision is to embolden youth to be creative leaders who actualize a more loving, just,
and vibrant Oakland.

Our free, year-round programming for K-12 grade East Oakland students are designed to support
socioemotional skills, build a critical thinking toolkit through hands-on projects and develop the
next generation of Oakland leaders.

Oakland Leaf ’s programs create space for youth voice, building in opportunities for young people to
express their feelings productively, and grow as a leader to support important transitions. Our high
school paid internship programs provide high school youth with the space to develop their
leadership and career skills, learn about food justice and social inequities facing their communities to
cultivate a sense of belonging. And, Oakland Peace Camp creates an immersive experience that
connects fun, engaging activities with a social justice to propel our youth forward. For this reason,
our programs are designed to support the development of children and youth by feeding the minds,
bodies, and spirits of low-income youth and families in Oakland.

Our programming is based on youth development practices and principles. We develop and assess
our staff and programming for cultural relevance and engagement; a strategy reinforced by taking a
project based approach to our classes. All of our programs are culturally relevant, project-based, and
culminate in a student showcase or performance. This gives students the opportunity to showcase
their learning through expositions and community showcases.

Oakland Leaf, guided by our credo, “Love is an action!,” works in partnership with Oakland Fund
for Children and Youth (OFCY) and Oakland Unified School District (OUSD) to achieve a shared
vision of a full-service community school district. Students and schools with limited economic



Oakland Leaf
Statement of Qualifications

resources are targeted to ensure that students have access to the resources and the tools needed to
achieve academic success and develop into thoughtful and creative citizens. Our whole-child
approach to the work makes it possible for schools to provide wrap-around services for students
and families. We work with each school to support its specific Community Schools Strategic Site
Plan. We have been leading the way in helping Oakland public schools transcend traditional
classroom learning and we partner together by using our programs to transform schools into
thriving year-round community hubs.

Since its incorporation as a 5015(c)(3) in 2002, Oakland Leaf has matured into an organization with
reliable and effective administrative and financial practices. Our Board of Directors guides our fiscal
strategies, while fiscal operations are managed by our Executive Director with the support of a well-
qualified Finance & Operations Manager, certified in non-profit financial management. Additionally,
Oakland Leaf is audited yearly to ensure that the organization is using Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP).

Oakland Leaf has managed federal, state, and local funds through its partnerships with City and
State agencies such as OFCY, OUSD, ASES, and 21st Century Community Learning Centers. All of
our programs adhere to comprehensive City and State standards for fiscal and administrative
requirements such as staff-to-youth ratios and units of service requirements as well as measures for
accountability including quarterly evaluations, submission of reports, and invoicing.

Oakland Leaf has a current organizational budget of over $3.2 million with diverse funding sources.
In addition to successfully managing public revenue, we have increased our income from private
philanthropy. This year private philanthropy makes up 41% of our total income.

Oakland Leaf balances its priority to put as much revenue into programs as possible with the
realities of the need to invest in a strong and sustainable infrastructure. We have established
processes and procedures to ensure organizational consistency, accountability, transparency, data
collection, and program evaluation. We have also developed programs that ensure long-term
sustainability.
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Exhibit F  

 
Agency Letter 

 
 

INSERT HERE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
MEMO 
 
Date: March 10, 2025 
RE: Staff Qualifications 
 
 
 
To Whom It May Concern: 
 
All Oakland Leaf employees, volunteers, and agents working in our OUSD after-school program will 
have fingerprint clearance through the Department of Justice and FBI, and will also have TB 
clearance before they begin work on OUSD School sites. We will ensure that ATI numbers from 
fingerprinting are accompanied with our invoices. 
 
If you have any questions feel free to contact me at (510) 564-4334. 
 
Thank you, 

 
Melissa Mendez Ochoa 
Executive Director 
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EXHIBIT G 

Agreement to Allow Distinct & Separate Employment by OUSD and AGENCY 
 
As set forth in Paragraph 13.3 of the Memorandum of Understanding between AGENCY and Oakland 
Unified School District (“OUSD”), this Agreement (“Agreement”) allows for the employment of the 
EMPLOYEE, ___________________________, for distinct and separate employment roles with OUSD and 
with AGENCY.  These two employment positions do not overlap in duties, hours, or control by the 
respective employers, OUSD or AGENCY.  As used in this Agreement, “Parties” means Employee, OUSD, 
and AGENCY. 
 

1. Employment Position.  OUSD shall provide Employee with a written document describing the position that 
Employee shall perform for OUSD.  AGENCY shall provide Employee with a written document describing 
the position that Employee shall perform for AGENCY.  None of the duties performed for either employer 
shall interfere or conflict with their responsibilities for the other employer.   

2. Hours of Work.  OUSD shall inform Employee of the hours of work for the OUSD employment position.  
AGENCY shall inform Employee of the hours of work for the AGENCY position.  None of the work hours 
shall be overlapping.  Employee shall not work any hours beyond the regular working hours for either OUSD 
or AGENCY unless express written approval is given by the Employer for whom the extra hours are being 
worked.   

3. Control & Supervision – OUSD Employment.  During the employment position and working hours 
performed for OUSD, EMPLOYEE will devote their full services to OUSD and shall not engage in any work 
that conflicts with or compromises EMPLOYEE’s best efforts to OUSD.  EMPLOYEE shall be supervised 
by designated OUSD personnel and OUSD will provide the information, tools, and equipment necessary for 
such employment.  OUSD shall control all aspects of the employment relationship for the work performed 
for OUSD.  EMPLOYEE shall not use the information, tools, or equipment of OUSD in performing the work 
for AGENCY, without OUSD’s express permission.  All work product of the EMPLOYEE shall belong to 
the employer for whom the services were being provided at the time the work was created.  AGENCY shall 
not have any control or supervision over EMPLOYEE during the EMPLOYEE’s OUSD work hours. 

4. Control & Supervision – AGENCY Employment.  During the employment position and working hours 
performed for AGENCY, EMPLOYEE will devote their full services to AGENCY and shall not engage in 
any work that conflicts with or compromises EMPLOYEE’s best efforts to AGENCY.  EMPLOYEE shall be 
supervised by designated AGENCY personnel and AGENCY will provide the information, tools, and 
equipment necessary for such employment.  AGENCY shall control all aspects of the employment 
relationship for the work performed for AGENCY.  EMPLOYEE shall not use the information, tools, or 
equipment of AGENCY in performing the work for OUSD, without AGENCY’s express permission.  All 
work product of the EMPLOYEE shall belong to the employer for whom the services were being provided at 
the time the work was created.  OUSD shall not have any control or supervision over EMPLOYEE during 
the EMPLOYEE’s AGENCY work hours. 

5. Workers Compensation Liability Insurance.  As required by California and federal law, each employer shall 
maintain workers compensation liability insurance for Employee’s behalf for the employment position for 
which EMPLOYEE is employed by each of them.   

6. Wages.  OUSD is separately and independently liable for all wages and benefits earned by EMPLOYEE for 
performance of the OUSD employment position.  OUSD shall have no liability for any portion of wages and 
benefits earned by EMPLOYEE for performance of the AGENCY employment position, and AGENCY 
agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless OUSD from any such claim.  Similarly, AGENCY is 
separately and independently liable for all wages and benefits earned by EMPLOYEE for performance of the 
AGENCY employment position.  AGENCY shall have no liability for any portion of wages and benefits 
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earned by EMPLOYEE for performance of the OUSD employment position, and OUSD agrees to 
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless OUSD from any such claim. 

7. No Joint Employer Relationship.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that it is not their intent to create any 
joint employer relationship and, instead, each employment relationship is separate and distinct as set forth in 
this Agreement.  Notwithstanding, EMPLOYEE understands and agrees personnel information may be 
exchanged between OUSD and AGENCY.   

8. Termination.  Subject to any applicable employment laws, any Party may terminate this Agreement or any 
employment relationship created under this Agreement with two weeks written notice to the other Parties.   

9. Litigation.  This Agreement shall be performed in Oakland, California and is governed by the Laws of the 
State of California. The Alameda County Superior Court shall have jurisdiction over any state court litigation 
initiated to enforce or interpret this Agreement. 

10. Integration/Entire Agreement of Parties: This Agreement and the      Master Contract between AGENCY and 
OUSD from which this Agreement stems, constitute the entire agreement between the Parties and supersedes 
all prior discussions, negotiations, and agreements, whether oral or written. This Agreement may be 
amended or modified only by a written instrument executed by all Parties.  

11. Counterparts. This Agreement and all amendments and supplements to it may be executed in counterparts, 
and all counterparts together shall be construed as one document.  

12. Signature Authority. Each party has the full power and authority to enter into and perform this Agreement, 
and the person signing this Agreement on behalf of each Party has been given the proper authority and 
empowered to enter into this Agreement.   

13. Employment Contingent on Governing Board Approval: OUSD shall not be bound by the terms of this 
Agreement or employment of EMPLOYEE until it has been formally approved by OUSD's Governing 
Board, and no payment shall be owed or made to EMPLOYEE absent formal approval. This Agreement shall 
be deemed to be approved when it has been signed all Parties and employment of EMPLOYEE has been 
approved by the Governing Board.   
 
OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
___________________________________ 
□  President, Board of Education 
□  Superintendent or Designee  
 
___________________________________ 
Secretary, Board of Education  
 
AGENCY 
 
 
______________________________________ 
 
 
EMPLOYEE 
 
 
______________________________________ 

 



Request for Proposal #24-148ExLO

EXPANDED LEARNING LEAD AGENCY

FOR EXPANDED LEARNING OFFICES

OAKLAND UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Attention: Procurement Department

900 High Street, 2nd Floor

OAKLAND, CA 94601

email: procurement@ousd.org

phone: (510) 879-2990

Proposals Due:

July 12, 2024

THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS SOLICITATION ARE GOVERNED BY

THE APPLICABLE STATE AND FEDERAL LAWS.
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B. Schedule of Events

Event Date Info

RFP 2024 Announcement June 6, 2024

RFP Digital Application Released June 7, 2024
Link on Procurement Website

RFP Pre-Conference Q & A
(Virtual)

June 25, 2024
at 2:00 p.m. pst Zoom link on Procurement Website

Deadline for Questions June 28, 2024

RFP Submission Due Date July 12, 2024

Lead Agency Status Notifications September 6, 2024

School Site/Lead Agency
Confirmation of Partnership

November 29, 2024

OUSD MOU Approval Season May - June 2025

Lead Agency Service Contract July 1, 2025 - June 30, 2028

OUSD will use every effort to adhere to the schedule. However, OUSD reserves the right
to amend the schedule, as it deems necessary.

The District reserves the right to amend or cancel this proposal at any time.
Proposers are responsible for viewing any new changes related to this proposal online at

https://www.ousd.org/bidopportunities.

If a proposer desires any clarification or questions of any kind regarding this solicitation, the
proposer must make a written request and should be addressed via email to:

Francisco Flores, Procurement Analyst
francisco.flores@ousd.org

NOTE: Contacting Board members and/or any District staff other than the procurement analyst
who is outlined above, may disqualify the proposer from the selection process.
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What is an RFP? An RFP (Request for Proposals) is a proposal based selection
process, in accordance with Public Contracts Code section 20111.5. It is a request by
OUSD Expanded Learning Office for non-profit organizations to submit their proposals to
be considered an OUSD-approved primary contractor/expanded learning program
provider for district school-site based comprehensive expanded learning program
services, after which OUSD will determine which providers are qualified based on that
determination.

What is a Pre-Conference Q & A? A pre-conference Q & A is an opportunity to ask
members of the selection team any questions you may have, and/or clear up any
confusion regarding project details/scope of work that is in the RFP. This is an Optional
Online Meeting.

C.Introduction and Overview

The mission statement of OUSD’s Office of Expanded Learning states: In community, we
cultivate transformative experiences for youth on their journey as they become thriving, productive
leaders.

The Oakland Unified School District (OUSD) Department of Expanded Learning invites
interested nonprofit organizations to respond with their proposals to serve as an Expanded
Learning Program Provider in designing, planning, administering, and operating effective,
high-quality comprehensive expanded learning programs. Eligible providers will be committed
to support OUSD’s strategic plan to ensure strong readers by the third grade, support
empowered graduates, create joyful schools, and grow a diverse and stable staff. In addition,
eligible providers must also support citywide goals.

Lead Agency partners will invest in providing expanded learning supplemental programs
that complement the regular school day program and support the OUSD priorities for student
achievement, health, and well-being. Oakland Unified School District’s (OUSD) mission is to
build a Full-Service Community District focused on high academic achievement while serving
the whole child, eliminating inequity, and providing each child with excellent teachers daily.
Expanded Learning supports this mission while holding our values of equity, joy, and liberation
for youth and adults. Select Lead Agencies will commit to working in partnership with school
sites and the OUSD Expanded Learning Office (ExLO) to provide comprehensive
programming that supports the entire school community.

Through the RFP process, OUSD seeks organizations who demonstrate the capacity to
be adaptive, make necessary shifts, and be able to work within the established OUSD model
of school and community partnerships through various funding sources’ parameters.
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Organizations must be fiscally sound with the capacity to leverage other resources to provide
students with high quality expanded learning programming: after-school and summer youth
development experiences that complement and support school district and city priorities for
student success and well-being.

Community organizations that serve as a Lead Agency are an integral part of our
OUSD Full Service Community Schools and make an impactful contribution toward
strengthening student outcomes.

Term of the List of Qualified Agencies

This Request for Proposals (RFP) for Expanded Learning & Summer Program Lead
Agency will result in a list of OUSD vetted lead agencies with which OUSD will enter
three-year master contracts. From the list of contracted agencies, school site administrators
may select an OUSD approved expanded learning program provider. An organization being
placed on the approved lead agency list and entering a master contract with OUSD does not
guarantee an assignment at an OUSD school site.

The selection of the expanded learnings & summer program Lead Agency is at the
discretion of the school site administrator (Principal). School site administrators will select a
Lead Agency from the list of approved after-school providers by assessing the
quality/capacity of the current expanded learning program, identifying program goals, and
considering any other factors relevant to the school site. Yearly program plans are created
through a collaborative partnership between the Lead Agency and school site administrators
to ensure both parties are meeting overall program expectations.

Once selected to serve at a given school, a lead agency will be contracted to serve
that school site for three years, subject to continuing annual approval of the school site
administrator and District.

Overview of OUSD Expanded Learning Programs

OUSD Expanded Learning Programs strive to create and sustain "safe haven"
environments where Oakland children and youth can access expanded learning opportunities
and integrated education, health, cultural, and enrichment programs outside of school hours
or the regular school year. OUSD Expanded Learning Programs operate in all elementary,
middle, and high schools across the city of Oakland.

When programming is conducted in-person, over 15,000 students across 80+ schools
participate in OUSD expanded learning programs that operate Monday - Friday until 6:00 pm.
Students who participate in expanded learning programs every day receive an additional 540
hours of learning by the end of the school year, equivalent to 90 additional days of school. In
these valuable after-school hours, students engage in youth development activities that foster
their physical health, social-  emotional learning/well-  being, and support their academic

5



achievement in school. In order to meet these goals, the quality and success of the District’s
expanded learning programs is critical.

These expanded learning and summer programs are aligned with efforts in Oakland to
improve young people’s educational outcomes, including Oakland’s investment in the Kids
First! Legislative initiative goal to “Help Children and Youth Succeed in School and Graduate
High School” and the Oakland Unified School District’s Full Service Community Schools
initiative that seeks to provide health, education, and social services to youth, their families
and the community.

OUSD expanded learning and summer programs offer critical support to schools,
students, and their families. In addition to providing children and youth with sanctuary, quality
expanded learning programs to support students academically and socially, OUSD expanded
learning programs serve a large proportion of youth who typically benefit from additional
learning support, including students from low-  income households (81%) and English Learners
(31%). Additionally, approximately 23% of OUSD after-school participants are African
American and 46% are Latino.

OUSD seeks community partners whose organization mission and vision closely align
and support the District’s strategic plan and vision for Full Service Community Schools.

High quality expanded learning programs must satisfy the various grant funding
requirements— detailed further below and in the MOU—and provide additional opportunities
for youth to practice the academic and social skills they need to succeed. OUSD expanded
learning programs provide youth with a mix of academic support, recreational/physical, and
enrichment activities. Within these broad categories, expanded learning providers work
collaboratively with school partners to develop a balance of activities that meet the unique
interests and needs of the student population and support the goals and priorities of the
school community for student achievement and well-  being. Below are examples of the mix of
after-school activities offered in OUSD Expanded Learning Programs.

SAMPLE AFTER-SCHOOL ACTIVITIES BY CATEGORY

CATEGORY ACTIVITIES

Academic Support Academic Enrichment Learning, Tutoring, Expanded Library
Services, Supplementary Education Services, Homework
Support, Credit Recovery, Reading & Literacy, Math, Science

Recreation/
Physical
Activity /
Organized
Sports

Cooperative Games, Dance, Martial Arts, Yoga,
Intramural Sports, Sports Leagues, Mindfulness
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Enrichment Arts and Cultural Activities, Health and Nutrition
Education, Substance Abuse & Drug Prevention,
Violence Prevention, Counseling & Character Education

College and
Career

Career & Job Training, Entrepreneurial Education,
Technology/Telecommunications Training, Community
Service & Service Learning, Internships and Apprenticeships

Leadership
Development

Peer Mentoring, Peer Tutoring, Youth-Led
Community Service

Science
Technology
Engineering &
Math

Gardening, Coding, Robotics, Making, Forensics, Cooking

Outdoor
Education

Community Mapping, Hiking, Backcountry
Camping, Kayaking, Bicycling

D. Funding

OUSD Expanded Learning Programs are currently primarily funded through grants
from the California Department of Education (CDE). CDE provides funds to school districts
that collaborate with community partners to provide safe and educationally enriching
alternatives for children and youth during non-school hours. The base grants that CDE
awards to OUSD for after-school programs represent four (4) funding sources:

● After-School Education & Safety (ASES) for elementary, middle, and
K-8 schools are state funds. ASES grants are three-year renewable
funding sources.

● 21st Century Community Learning Center (21st CCLC) grants for
elementary, middle, and K-8 schools are federal funds. 21st CCLC
grants are awarded based on a highly competitive application process,
and last for five years.

● 21st Century After-School Safety and Enrichment for Teens (ASSETS)
grants for high schools are federal funds. 21st Century ASSETS grants
are awarded based on a highly competitive application process, and
last for five years.

● Expanded Learning Opportunities - Program (ELO-P) funding is a
universal grant that supports all TK - 6th Grade OUSD’s unduplicated
students' access to free expanded learning opportunities.

OUSD directly applies for these grant funds from the California Department of
7



Education, and grant funds are received and managed by the school district. OUSD
contracts a portion of grant funds to Lead Agencies to operate expanded learning
programs in close partnership with schools.

Additionally, Lead Agency partners leverage other funding and resources to
support high quality programs, including private grant dollars, AmeriCorps grants,
volunteers, and other in-  kind resources. Leveraging additional resources on behalf of
the expanded learning programs is an essential function of the Lead Agency partner
because of the reality that state and federal expanded learning grant dollars alone are
often inadequate to run a high-quality program. ELO-P, ASES, and 21st Century grant
dollars are currently awarded at a rate of:

○ ASES: $10.18/student/day for TK-8th Grade students
○ 21st Century: $10.18/student/day for TK-  8th Grade students
○ 21st Century ASSETS: $10.10/student/day for high school students
○ ELO-P: $15/student/day for TK-6th Grade students

Other considerations for the allocations of funds

● OUSD elementary and middle school ASES grants can only be used to provide
expanded learning programming daily (180 days) immediately after the school
day and facilitate programming for at least 15 hours a week until at least 6:00
pm.

● OUSD High School ASSETS base grants can be used to operate programs
before school, after school, weekends and during summer/intersession in
accordance with grant guidelines.

● Some sites may also receive 21st Century related grants including Supplemental
funding (to support summer programming).

● ASES and 21st CCLC grant funds are intended to complement, but not supplant,
other funding provided by OUSD, school sites, or community partners.

● ASES and 21st CCLC Grant funds are inadequate to cover the true cost of
running a high quality expanded learning program. OUSD and its Lead Agency
community partners are committed to leveraging additional funding and
resources to match grants provided by the California Department of Education.

● ASES/21st Century grants are attendance-  based grants.
● ELO-P funding must be used to provide expanded learning opportunities during

out-of-school time; before school, after-school, summer/intersession at no cost to
unduplicated students.

Sites that fail to meet calculated attendance will trigger California Department of
Education intervention and funding levels may be reduced. Sites must earn 85%
of attendance to be in good standing for full funding. Failure to achieve
attendance targets may result in a Lead Agency being removed from the OUSD
approved list of Lead Agencies.
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E. OUSD Expanded Learning / Program Operation

In Oakland, approved lead agencies must be equipped and have organizational
infrastructure to provide synchronous and asynchronous programming at the discretion of
OUSD, as reflected in the MOUs.

In the spirit of OUSD’s Full Service Community Schools vision, our approved
expanded learning organizations partners work closely with schools and their principals to
develop specific programmatic goals to provide holistic support and equitable learning
opportunities for all students. As school-day teachers focus on providing high quality
instruction in the classroom, expanded learning programs provide high quality enrichment,
physical, academic, and SEL opportunities to students during the after school and
non-school days when youth are most vulnerable to crime, violence, and risky behavior.

Expanded Learning Lead Agencies are expected to offer programming to all
students in TK - 12th grade reflected of the school site’s specific grant requirement.

F. Base-line Expanded Learning Program Requirements

The goal of the expanded learning program is to support student success in school
through academic support, social emotional development and educational enrichment. The
school site administrator, working in partnership with the Expanded Learning Lead Agency, is
an integral part of developing the expanded learning program components that are
appropriate to support his/her school site goals articulated in the School Site Plan. All Lead
Agencies are selected by Principals to collaborate on the development and implementation of
the expanded learning program in compliance with State and Federal guidelines, and District
requirements.

OUSD’s Expanded Learning Office goals align with grant requirements which aim to
provide a comprehensive expanded learning program during the school year and/or summer
program which consists of a balance of academic and enrichment activities, including daily
physical activity components. The funds cannot be used to supplant school day activities.

An expanded learning program must include the following:

● To satisfy ASES Funding:
○ Educational and literacy component to provide tutoring and/or

homework assistance,
○ Educational enrichment component and,
○ Daily physical activity/recreation component and,
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○ Serve a minimum 83 elementary and 111 middle school students
daily and, free to all unduplicated students

● To satisfy 21st CCLC E/M:
○ Educational and literacy components to provide tutoring and/or

homework assistance,
○ Educational enrichment component,
○ Physical activity/recreation component, and
○ Serve a minimum ADA contingent on grant allocation and,
○ Free to all unduplicated students

● To satisfy ASSETs:
○ Educational and literacy component to provide tutoring and/or

homework assistance,
○ Educational enrichment component,
○ Physical activity/recreation component, and
○ Serve a minimum of 139 students daily

● To satisfy ELO-P:
○ Offer 9 Hours of Programming (School day hours count toward the

9 hours)
○ Support TK-6th grade students
○ 175 school days & 30 days intersessions (For the purpose of this

site plan, the scope of work will be for a total of 60 school days)
○ TK/K staff ratio 10:1
○ Must offer the program to all unduplicated TK-6 grade students
○ Parallel ASES Compliance Reporting
○ ELO-P funding can not be used to provide school day support

(CDE Guidance)

Additional Program Requirements:
● All programs must provide a nutritious snack and track attendance daily.
● Expanded learning lead agencies and school sites are expected to implement

reasonable accommodations under Section 504 of the Americans with Disability Act
to support OUSD’s students with disabilities. The standard for reasonableness must be
determined on a case-by-case basis.

● Per federal statute, California Education Code, and Oakland Unified School District
policy, any students identified by the OUSD Transitional Student and Family Unit get
priority access into the after-school program. If a student/family indicates they are
homeless, newcomer, refugee, and/or asylee will have automatic enrollment.

● All programs must adhere and align with all OUSD safety policies and procedures, this
includes OUSD’s George Floyd Resolution which promotes a safe and supportive
environment.
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Please note that the below list of compliance requirements is not exhaustive. Lead Agencies
are expected to know and comply with these and other district and state and federal
requirements not listed here, including but not limited to state and federal laws and
requirements outlined in applicable OUSD Board policies and the Memorandum of
Understanding (“MOU”) with OUSD which all Lead Agencies selected to serve a school site
must sign and have approved by OUSD’s Governing Board. A sample MOU is attached as
Appendix III. Please note this MOU is subject to change depending on District needs.
Applicants are encouraged to review it for more program requirement specifics.

Operational Requirements

● Elementary and Middle School After-School Programs must operate 5 days/week,
for at least 15 hours/week, commencing immediately at the end of the regular
school day and run until at least 6 p.m.

● High School After-School Programs must operate a minimum of 15 hours/week

● Summer School Programs need only comply with legislative or funder requirements

● OUSD’s Expanded Learning Programs Office (ExLO) has established early-release
policies that must be implemented at each expanded learning and/or summer program.
Further details of required hours and attendance expectations are located in the MOU.

G. Staffing

Staff working in OUSD Expanded Learning Programs must meet the minimum
requirements to be in compliance with the California Dept of Education Codes. Staff
members who directly supervise students must meet the district’s Proposal for an
instructional aide, paraprofessional, or provide documentation that confirms completing
48 college units or the equivalent of an AA college degree.

Programs must operate with a minimum staff to student ratio of 1:20 for 1-12 grade
and 1:10 for TK-K. Unless otherwise advised due to the health and safety of the students.
It is required that each expanded learning program have a Site Coordinator who is
full-time, salaried with benefits, and present at the school site during their work hours.
The California Education Code provides that “selection of the program site [coordinator]
shall be subject to the approval of the school site principal.” The Lead Agency must notify
school principals in writing of any expanded learning staff changes within 24 hours.

11



Oakland expanded learning programs share a basic staffing pattern across all
sites, though specific staff duties may vary somewhat from site to site. The most
common staffing plan includes a full-  time Site Coordinator, a Quality Support Coach
(OUSD Credentialed Teacher), and youth development workers. Many programs also
work with additional service providers for specific services, and some may rely on regular
volunteer assistance as well. At some sites, certificated teachers provide targeted
academic assistance, and academic enrichment activities for expanded learning
participants through OUSD extended contracts.

Expanded Learning Lead Agencies should be fully staffed and prepared to provide
programming for a total of 180 days. Lead agencies should have contingency plans to ensure
that each program is fully staffed and able to meet the school site's enrollment needs.

H. Enrollment, Attendance and Evaluation Documentation

Approved Lead Agencies will need to consider CDE Guidelines, OUSD Expanded
Learning Office expectations, and site-level input (e.g. site administrator) when it comes to
student enrollment consideration, attendance protocol, and programmatic evaluation.

a. Enrollment: Approved Lead Agencies must be familiar with CDE guidelines of
ASES, 21st CCLC, ELO-P, and ASSETs Programs when working with a
unique population defined as foster youth, McKinney-Vento, and students
qualify with free-reduced lunch status. Lead Agencies must prioritize
enrollment for any child that is homeless, defined by the federal
McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. Sec.1143a),
newcomers (refugee, asylee, and unaccompanied minor), or if the child is in
foster care. Lead agency will work with the school site administrator to
develop a written enrollment policy. The enrollment policy needs to include,
but not be limited to, enrollment priorities, application process, and acceptance
notification, waitlist procedures, behavior guidelines, parental expectations,
student expectations, procedure for removing students from expanded
learning programs, and so on. Approved Lead Agencies are required to
provide the written enrollment policy to all families who apply for the program.

b. Fees: Unduplicated students must have access to the program at no cost.
Lead Agencies should implement a process for identifying unduplicated
students and ensuring that fees are not charged to those families.

c. Attendance: Approved Lead Agency is required to be aware of all required
attendance submission protocol and procedures to ensure good standing status
with the Expanded Learning Office and CDE. All attendance documentation
shall be closely monitored, and managed for accuracy by the Site Coordinator
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and/or occasional audit request by the district and CDE. This includes accurate
completion and daily maintenance of student sign in/out sheets, weekly
inputting of attendance data into the OUSD online system, and monthly
submission of scanned electronic attendance records to OUSD ExLO. Lead
Agencies are also responsible for conducting internal audits of attendance
records to ensure that program sites maintain accurate, verifiable data on
student attendance. All program records must be maintained for five years for
auditing purposes.

I. Contract and Payments

Agencies that are approved through the process described in this RFP must enter a
3-year master contract with the District. They may not begin operating at a school site
unless the District and agency have executed a contract on the District’s template. The
District’s Board of Education will likely approve these master contracts during the
May-August 2025 Board meetings.

Although the master contract will last for 3 years, note that agencies and sites will be
matched in 1-year relationships, as they are currently.

In Spring of each year, all Lead Agencies must initiate and engage in annual
program planning with school leadership at each program site. Lead Agencies will submit a
program plan and budget for the upcoming school year to the OUSD EXLO and Board of
Education for approval, at the beginning of each school year.

Invoices are processed on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred. Due to the timing of OUSD contracting and fiscal procedures, Lead Agency
partners must operate with a   4 month reserve covering the full cost of the agency’s OUSD
expanded learning program implementation. Typically, there are delays to the initial
payment of agency invoices at the beginning of each school year.

J. Guidelines for Charging Fees

The intent of ASES, 21st CCLC, ASSETS, and ELO-P grants, which aligns with
OUSD values, is to establish local programs that offers academic support and enrichment
to students in need of such services regardless of a family's inability to pay.

CDE and OUSD discourage charging fees as that could exclude students in need from
attending and taking advantage of the expanded learning program. ASES, 21st CCLC, ELO-P
grants do not prohibit charging fees for expanded learning programs; however, programs that
choose to charge fees, will need to collaborate with a Site Administrator to create and submit
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the program’s fee structure for approval in accordance with the terms in the MOU. In addition,
all students that fall under the category of unduplicated cannot be charged fees. Sites that
receive 21st CCLC and ASSETS grants will be required to report any fees collected (i.e.-
registration fees, family fees, application fees, etc.). Programs that opt to charge program
fees may not prohibit any family from participating due to financial circumstances. All program
materials related to outreach and enrollment must state clearly that no unduplicated child will
be denied services. CA EdCode stipulates that a sliding scale must also be offered in a fee
schedule.

K. RFP Process

OUSD Expanded Learning Office is conducting a dual pathway process for new
and current organizations. The RFP evaluation rubric will feature some questions that
may be differentiated based upon the organizations current approval status and will have
the same scoring process. Organizations should go through the appropriate process and
provide the necessary documentation.

Organizations interested in serving in the OUSD Expanded Learning Lead Agency
role for the 2025 -  28 school year must successfully complete the Lead Agency RFP
process and earn the designation of a recommended lead agency. Therefore, an
organization that does not successfully complete the Lead Agency RFP process or does
not earn a recommended status will not be approved to serve as an OUSD lead agency
for the 2025-  2028 cycle. Organizations that are not selected during this RFP cycle will
have the opportunity to reapply for the next RFP process which begins in 2028.

Organizations submitting an RFP proposal by the deadline will be assessed based
on their RFP application responses, and any additional supporting materials requested by
the RFP Review Team to determine the organization’s potential to serve in the Lead
Agency role. If additional information is required, organizations will be invited for an
interview with the RFP Review Team.

Organizations completing this RFP process will be assessed and scored into one
of the following categories:

1) Recommended: Community organization has adequately demonstrated its capacity
to serve in a Lead Agency role and to fulfill all comprehensive Lead Agency
responsibilities outlined by OUSD and CDE as well as those listed in Section III of
this RFP. The organization demonstrates the capacity to collaborate, integrate, and
adapt to the community. This recommended status will be valid for up to 3 years,
depending on the organization’s ability to meet and maintain and/or exceed federal,
state, and district compliance requirements, to be assessed annually.
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2) Not Recommended: Community organization has not adequately demonstrated
its capacity to serve in the Lead Agency role and to fulfill most of the Lead Agency
responsibilities outlined by OUSD and listed in Section III of this RFP.
Organizations receiving this not-recommended status will not be included in the list
of qualified organizations that will be shared with stakeholders. An organization
receiving this not recommended status may submit another Lead Agency RFP at a
future date when the OUSD opens up a new RFP cycle.

OUSD will notify an agency of its determination before or by September 6, 2024 via
email. If OUSD determines that an agency is Not Recommended, the agency shall have
the opportunity to contest that determination. Additional details regarding this process are
contained in Appendix V.

L. Minimum Proposals

Applicants may respond to one or more of the following Lead Agency categories:

Lead Agency: Elementary School (including K-  8)

Lead Agency: Middle School

Lead Agency: High School

OUSD is seeking applications from established community organizations that
currently possess 501(c)(3) status and adequate fiscal reserves to cover at least four (4)
months of general operating expenses as a Lead Agency partner. Grant funds
sub-contracted to Lead Agency partners do not cover the full cost of running a full
comprehensive expanded learning program in Oakland; thus, organizations choosing to
serve in the Lead Agency role must be financially stable and demonstrate the capacity to
leverage other resources in support of youth programming.

A demonstrable experience in operating a comprehensive expanded learning
program is strongly preferred, but all organizations must provide acceptable documents
demonstrating two (2) years of experience in the following areas:

● Providing program services to the students in the service category (ies). Specific
evidence of a positive track record of the capacity to effectively coordinate the entirety
of a school’s afterschool and/or expanded learning year-long program as well as
successful collaboration with the school site administrator, faculty, and staff.

● Agency administrative capacity to comply with compliance and fiscal policies of the
OUSD and CDE, including: agency administration manual; fiscal and personnel policies;
attendance records; cost allocation plans, etc.
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● Hiring, retention, and provision of professional development opportunities for qualified
staff to provide services to OUSD students in a culturally and linguistically competent
and age appropriate manner with a focus on youth development strategies.

● Capacity to effectively engage a large number of diverse students on an ongoing basis
who demonstrate the desire and enthusiasm to participate in the program at a very high
and consistent rate. Additionally, the agency can illustrate specific examples and
strategies it has developed that actively engage parents and family members
throughout the school year.

● Maintaining collaborative relationships with school site leadership in the development
and implementation of a quality expanded learning program that supports the district’s
and the school’s goals.

Organizations that apply for the Lead Agency role must be able to comply with all
requirements outlined in the standard OUSD Expanded Learning Lead Agency MOU (see
Appendix IV for sample of current year MOU) should it be chosen as Lead Agency. For
example, while a copy of the organization’s current insurance coverage is required with this
application, should the organization be chosen, it will need to attain the level of insurance
outlined in the MOU.

M. Application Submission Contents

Failure to provide any of the following information or forms may result in
an application being disqualified.

A Complete Lead Agency Application will consist of all the following required items:

1) Proposal Cover Sheet (see Appendix I for sample)

2) Letter of Agreement (no more than one (1) page): A one-  page letter
signed by the person authorized to obligate the proposing agency to
perform the commitments contained in the application. The letter should
state that the proposing agency is willing and able to perform the
commitments contained in the application.

3) Written Responses to Application Questions (no more than 8
double-  spaced pages in response to the six (6) titled sections that appear
in Appendix II Application Questions), signed under penalty of perjury,

4) Supporting Documents, listed in (Appendix III).

5) Boilerplate Checklist: “ Expanded Learning Program and Services
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Agreement” -  Submission of the Signed Boilerplate Checklist (Appendix IV)
will constitute a representation by your firm that it has read all of the clauses
contained in the OUSD Lead Agency Memorandum of Understanding. The
sample contract for the services detailed in this RFP (Appendix IV, version
for Fiscal Year   22-25), and that your firm is willing to comply with OUSD
contracting requirements.

6) Sample Program Schedule and Summary: Provide a sample program
schedule along with a short description of each activity. No more than (2)
pages.

N. Application Submission Instructions

Proposals shall be emailed to the Procurement Department at procurement@ousd.org no
later than July 12, 2024.

Proposal shall be submitted with subject line: “RFP Proposal # 24-148”
*When submitting your proposal, be sure to get a ticket number or confirmation email.

Proposals submitted via email should be submitted as PDF file format. PDF file size should be
sufficient enough to send via email, the District does not assume responsibility if the PDF file is
too large to email. If electronic submission is a factor, the District encourages hand delivery of
the proposal directly to the Procurement Department, 900 High Street 2nd Floor Oakland, CA
94601 between the hours of 9:00am - 3:00pm pst. All proposals delivered after scheduled
closing time for receipt of proposals will not be considered. Incomplete proposals may be
deemed non-responsive and therefore not considered.

The District reserves the right to reject any or all proposals. The award of this solicitation is
conditional on the winning bidder(s) accepting the terms of the MOU contract available to view
below. Proposals and any other information submitted by respondents in response to this
solicitation shall become the property of the District. Notwithstanding any indication by
Contractor of confidential contents, and with the exception of bona fide confidential
information, contents of proposals are public documents subject to disclosure under the
California Public Records Act after award. The District will not provide compensation to
Contractors for any expenses incurred by the Contractors for proposal preparation or for any
demonstration that may be made. Contractors submit proposals at their own risk and expense.

FORMAT

All submissions must be on the RFP Application Form, typed using an easy to read
12-  point font such as Arial or Times New Roman and one inch margins. All submissions
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must be double-  spaced. All submissions must answer all six (6) titled sections below in
no more than 8 pages total. Organizations may elaborate on specific documents
provided in the Required Supporting Documentation (Appendix III)
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O. Evaluation and Selection

For all applications, the completion of the application will be assessed first; applications that
do not submit complete documentation will not have the application reviewed.

OUTLINE THE PROCESS FOR NEW AND CURRENT ORGANIZATIONS

Applications demonstrating the capacity to meet minimum requirements will have their
Proposals evaluated and scored by an RFP Review Team made up of individuals with
expertise in the relevant subject matter for which the application is submitted. The RFP
review team will read and score responses to the application questions in Appendix II.

Application Rubric

Performance Area Expectations for OUSD Recommended Organizations
(not an exhaustive list)

Collaborative
Partnerships

(20 Points)

This performance area focuses
on the extent to which

organizations develop strong
relationships with ExLO, school
site, community-based partners,

families, and other program
stakeholders.

● Organizations establish and maintain clear, open and regular lines of
communication with stakeholders

● Organizations establish and maintain clear, aligned values with stakeholders
around supporting and honoring youth

● Organizations seek and respond to feedback, engage in active listening,
shared decision-making, and planning processes with stakeholders

● Organizations and partners celebrate one another and the unique role each
occupies in supporting youth

Empowerment
(10 Points)

This performance area focuses
on the extent to which

organizations promote youth
agency, self-actualization,
leadership, and liberation.

● Organizations provide opportunities for youth to own and share their stories
and speak their own “truth”

● Organizations celebrate youth interests, passions, culture, and help them to
explore their own growth

● Organizations provide opportunities for youth to lead and develop projects

● Organizations encourage youth to consider multiple perspectives

Safe and Supportive
Environment

(20 Points)

This performance area focuses
on organization’s ability and

capacity to attend to all facets of
safety for participants while

cultivating a sense of belonging.

● Organizations prioritize and implement systems of support to ensure physical,
emotional, cultural, structural, and inclusionary safety for youth and staff

● Organizations integrate SEL and restorative practices into program
culture

● Organizations establish strong relationships, clear boundaries, and trust
between staff, youth, and families

● Organizations clearly articulate and actualize values and group agreements
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Lifelong Learning
(15 Points)

This performance area focuses
on the extent to which

organization practices help to
support youths’ academic

engagement, cultivation, and
transformation.

● Youth engage in activities focused on nurturing fundamental habits for lifelong
learning

● Youth participate in diverse enrichment programming that reflect student
interests and that promote joy, skill-building, and hands-on experience

● Youth participate in activities that promote mindfulness, practice
socio-emotional learning, and developing a growth mindset

Adaptive
Programming

(15 Points)

This performance area focuses
on organization’s adaptive

capacity/willingness and that
practices reflect values of

diversity and inclusion of youth
and other stakeholders.

● Organizations offer differentiated services to meet individual student and family
needs

● Organizations provide services that are inclusive, responsive, and culturally
relevant

● Where applicable, organizations services are trauma-informed

● Organizations demonstrate capacity to adapt to physical, environmental,
cultural, and social shifts

Strong Systems and
Structures
(20 Points)

This performance area focuses
on the efficacy of an

organization’s program
structure, compliance
management capacity,

infrastructure viability, and a
thriving culture to support

responsible financial
management

of programs and services that
benefit students.

● Organization services are supported by a strong, stable, and adaptive
organizational infrastructure, financial capacity to deliver and sustain services,
and the ability to execute compliance expectations and deliverables

● Organizations are purpose- and values-driven and programming is aligned with
collaborative vision between the school site and the provider

● Organizations engage in continuous quality improvement processes to ensure
transparency of expectations and a culture of accountability, responsibility,
compliance, and metrics

● Organizations provide staff with consistent and applicable professional
development support and learning opportunities

Applicants must agree to abide by all OUSD policy requirements as outlined in the
Appendix IV Boilerplate MOU checklist. The list of “Approved Expanded Learning Lead
Agencies” will be utilized by school site administrators for a period of up to three (3) years
pending funding availability to select a Lead Agency to administer the expanded learning
program on his/her school site.

P. Terms & Conditions for Receipt of Applications

Errors and Omissions by Applicant

Applicants are responsible for reviewing all portions of this RFP, and promptly notifying the
District, in writing, if they discover any ambiguity, discrepancy, omission, or other error in the RFP.
Any such notification should be directed to the District promptly after discovery, but in no event
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later than five working days prior to the date for receipt of applications. Modifications and
clarifications will be made by addenda as provided below.

Change Notices

The District may modify the RFP prior to the application due date by issuing Change Notices,
which will on the OUSD The applicant shall be responsible for ensuring that its application
reflects any and all Change Notices issued by the District prior to the application due date
regardless of when the application is submitted.

Failure to Object to Errors and Omissions in Application

Failure by the District to object to an error, omission, or deviation in the application will in no way
modify the RFP or excuse the vendor from full compliance with the specifications of the RFP or
any contract awarded pursuant to the RFP.

Financial Responsibility

The District accepts no financial responsibility for any costs incurred by applicants in responding
to this RFP. Submissions of the RFP will become property of the District and may be used by
the District in any way deemed appropriate.

Proposer’s Obligations Under the Conflict of Interest Laws and Board Policies

A proposer must be aware that if the proposer will enter into a contract with the District,
proposer/contractor shall be responsible to comply with conflict of interest laws and Board
policies, which are briefly summarized in Section 11.4 (“Conflict of Interest”) of the attached
Appendix IV (“OUSD Expanded Learning Lead Agency MOU” sample contract). It is the
responsibility of a contractor to comply with the law and OUSD Board policies. Submission of an
application signifies that the quoted prices are genuine and not the result of collusion or any
other anti-competitive activity.

Reservations of Rights by the District

The issuance of this RFP does not constitute an agreement by the District that any contract
will actually be entered into by the District. The District expressly reserves the right at any
time to:

● Reject any or all applications;

● Reissue a Request for Proposals ;

● Prior to submission deadline for applications, modify all or any portion of the
selection procedures, including deadlines for accepting responses, the
specifications or requirements for any materials, equipment or services to be
provided under this RFP, or the requirements for contents or format of the
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applications;

● Procure any materials, equipment or services specified in this RFP by any other
means;

● Determine that no project will be pursued.

No Waiver

No waiver by the District of any provision of this RFP shall be implied from any failure by the
District to recognize or take action on account of any failure by a proposer to observe any
provision of this RFP.

Q. Standard Contract Provisions

Any agency selected from the Expanded Learning Program Lead Agency Qualified List
by a school site administrator, and which chooses to enter into contract with the District, will
enter into a contract substantially in the form of the Expanded Learning Lead Agency MOU,
attached hereto as Appendix IV. Failure to timely execute the contract, or to furnish any and
all insurance certificates and policy endorsements, surety bonds or other materials required
in the contract, shall be deemed an abandonment of a contract offer. The District, in its sole
discretion, may select another qualified agency and may proceed against the original
selectee for damages.
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APPENDIX I: RFP Application

2024 OUSD Request for Proposals Application (Template)
(Email procurement@ousd.org for template)

ASES, 21st CCLC, ELO-P, and ASSETS Expanded Learning Programs

Cover Sheet Template:

Organization Name

Primary Contact
Person:

Secondary Contact
Person:

Email: Email:

Telephone #: Telephone #:

Service Category: Check the grade levels your organization is interested in serving.

Elementary (Grades TK-5)

Elementary/Middle (Grades TK-8)

Middle (Grades 6-8)

High (Grades 9-12)
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Does your organization have 501c3 status? Please provide documentation of this
status in your supporting documentation section.

Yes

No

Are you currently an OUSD Approved Lead Agency Partner? Yes

No

Have you served as an OUSD Lead Agency partner before in past years?

If so, please identify the years and durations served.

Yes

No

# Years

Do you currently serve in the Lead Agency role for any other school districts besides
OUSD?

Yes

No

If yes, please list all school districts you have served.

How many school sites does your organization have the capacity to serve as a lead
agency?

# Sites

In the box below, please briefly explain your rationale for this number of sites?

On behalf of (Agency), I, (name)

(Position), declare under penalty of perjury under the laws

of the State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.

Signature: Date:
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APPENDIX II: Application Questions

After reading the RFP narrative, please respond to all of the prompts within all six (6) titled sections
below in no more than 8 double-  spaced pages in 12pt Font. Organizations may elaborate on
specific documents provided in the Required Supporting Documentation (Appendix III).

The prompts are distinct and differentiated based upon if the applicant is a new or a current
organization. See below for the definition of each designation and only respond to the prompts that
apply to organizations of that designation or status.

New Organizations/Applicants:
Organizations applying to be a comprehensive expanded learning provider within OUSD and were
not an OUSD-approved lead agency during the 2022-25 RFP cycle.

Collaborative
Partnerships
(up to 2 pages)

(20 Points)

1. Describe a collaborative partnership that the organization experienced
while engaged in a school and/or or district setting. Site specific
examples.

2. How does the organization seek and respond to feedback from
stakeholders? Please specify what the organization did to make this
happen.

3. How does the organization and its partners maintain clear and aligned
values for supporting and honoring youth?

4. Please provide specific examples of how the organization collaborates
with a variety of stakeholders to make decisions and ensure a positive
culture and climate in your programs.

Empowerment
(up to 1 page)

(10 Points)

5. Describe how the organization honors and celebrates different
perspectives and unique roles to support youth.

6. What professional development does your organization provide staff to
support student belonging, engagement, and leadership opportunities?

Safe and Supportive
Environment
(up to 1 page)

(20 Points)

7. Provide examples of strategies your organization implements to ensure
youth experience a sense of belonging, are valued, acknowledged, and
celebrated in the program.

8. What training is implemented and/or available to support staff in ensuring
their programs provide safe and supportive environments? Please share
examples of any curriculum and/or resources are available to staff.
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Lifelong Learning
(up to 1 page)

(15 Points)

9. What practices and resources within your organization support academic
engagement, confidence, and habits for lifelong learners?

10. Lifelong Learning can be formal, nonformal, informal, and self-directed;
describe how your organization supports staff-to-students learning in the
program offering.

11. Describe how youth participate in diverse enrichment programming that
reflects their interests and promotes joy, skill-building, and hands-on
experience. Site Examples.

Adaptive
Programming
(up to 1 page)

(15 Points)

12. What strategies are in place to support staff and students when the
organization has to make unexpected shifts due to physical,
environmental, and social contexts? Share how you would communicate
that.

13. How does the organization offer differentiated services to meet school,
student, and family needs?

14. Share an example of how the program will provide inclusive
programming to all OUSD students, including students with special
needs.

Strong Systems and
Structures
(up to 2 pages)

(20 Points)

15. Using the organization’s budget and profit and loss statement in the
required supporting documentation, create a budget narrative showing
how the organization would allocate funds to run a high-quality
comprehensive expanded learning program. These budgets must be
based on the grant requirements detailed in the Funding description
above (Section E.); including a required staffing ratio of 1:20 (or better)

○ Elementary/Middle School Funding: ($10.18 x (65%-total UDS) x
175 days)

■ Ex: (100 Unduplicated students x $10.18 x 175day) x 65%
= $115,797

○ Your budget must detail:
○ Projected Program Fees
○ Staffing costs for service delivery, staff training, and prep time
○ Full-time salaried site coordinator
○ Any agency management-level staff who grant funds will pay for

the support of direct service programming
○ Supplies, materials, curriculum, books, field trips, etc.
○ Agency administrative costs are not to exceed 5% from ASES

and 10% from ELO-P of the contracted amount Note:
■ The budget does not need to include snack costs

○ Strong practices for staff and program improvement with support
from the lead agency.

16. The state of California has introduced Expanded Learning Opportunities
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Program (ELO-P) funding, allowing expanded learning programs to grow
and adapt to meet the community's needs. ELO-P funds are subject to
shift based on state budgeting. How will the organization ensure that
current programming levels are sustainable if/when funds are no longer
accessible?

17. What is the organization's experience with implementing ASES/21st
CCLC/ASSETS/ELO programs? Share a success and a challenge that
the organization faced managing its requirements.. In retrospect, what
shifts would the organization make to achieve a more successful
outcome?

Current/Returning Organizations:
Active and contracted comprehensive expanded learning providers that are OUSD-approved for the
2022-2025 cycle. If the applying organization is on this list, it is classified as a returning or current
organization and can only respond to the prompts below.

Collaborative
Partnerships
(up to 2 pages)

(20 Points)

1. During SY 2022-2024, how did the organization and its partners maintain
clear and shared values around supporting and honoring the needs of
youth?

2. How has the organization sought and responded to feedback from
stakeholders, engaged in active listening, and made shared decisions?

3. Share a specific example of a successful collaborative partnership with
stakeholders. Share an example of a challenging collaborative
partnership and how the organization navigated the situation that did not
reach the desired outcome. In retrospect, what shifts would you make to
achieve a more successful outcome?

Empowerment
(up to 1 page)

(10 Points)

4. How has the organization supported youth agency and provided youth
leadership opportunities?

5. What professional development did the organization provide staff that
supported student engagement and leadership opportunities?

6. What shifts did your organization make to create spaces for youth voice
and choice?

Safe and Supportive
Environment
(up to 1 page)

(20 Points)

7. Provide examples of strategies your organization implemented to ensure
youth experienced a sense of belonging and felt valued, acknowledged,
and celebrated in the program.

8. What training was available to support staff in ensuring their programs
provide safe and supportive environments? Please share curriculum,
training, and resources available to staff.

9. How has the organization aligned with OUSD policy to provide a safe and
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supportive environment?

Lifelong Learning
(up to 1 page)

(15 Points)

10. What practices and resources within the organization support academic
engagement, confidence, and habits for lifelong learners?

11. Describe how youth participated in diverse enrichment programming that
reflected their interests and promoted joy, skill-building, and hands-on
experience. Site Examples.

Adaptive
Programming
(up to 1 page)

(15 Points)

12. What strategies are in place to support students when the organization
has to make unexpected shifts due to physical, environmental, and social
contexts?

13. How does the organization offer differentiated services to meet school,
student, and family needs?

14. Share an example of how the program provided inclusive programming
to OUSD students, including students with special needs.

Strong Systems and
Structures
(up to 2 pages)

(20 Points)

15. Using your organization’s budget and profit and loss statement in the
required supporting documentation, create a budget narrative showing
how your agency allocates funds to run a high-quality comprehensive
expanded learning program. These budgets must be based on the grant
requirements detailed in the Funding description above (Section E.),
including a required staffing ratio of 1:20 (or better).

○ Elementary/Middle School Funding: ($10.18 x (65%-total UDS) x
175days)

■ Ex: (100 Unduplicated students x $10.18 x 175day) x 65%
= $115,797

○ Your budget must detail:
○ Projected Program Fees
○ Staffing costs for service delivery, staff training, and prep time
○ Full-timeFull time salaried site coordinator
○ Any agency management-level staff who grant funds will paywill

be paid by grant funds for the support of direct service
programming

○ Supplies, materials, curriculum, books, field trips, etc.
○ Agency administrative costs are not to exceed 5% from ASES

and 10% from ELO-P of the contracted amount Note:
■ The budget does not need to include snack costs

○ Strong practices for staff and program improvement with support
from the lead agency.

16. The state of California has introduced Expanded Learning Opportunities
Program (ELO-P) funding, allowing expanded learning programs to grow
and adapt to meet the community's needs. ELO-P funds are subject to
shift based on state budgeting. How will your organization ensure that
current programming levels are sustainable if/when funds are no longer
accessible?
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17. During 2022-2024, what was your organization’s success around
meeting CDE compliance expectations? Expectations include meeting
staff ratio, staffing qualifications, average daily attendance, and serving
unduplicated, special needs, and TK/K students. . Share a success and a
challenge that the organization faced in meeting compliance
expectations. In retrospect, what shifts would your organization make to
achieve more successful outcomes?

APPENDIX III. Instructions for RFP Application Submission:

Any documents submitted after the deadline will not be accepted or reviewed.

Required Supporting Documentation Instructions:

To support RFP responses and verify organizational Proposals, the following
documentation is required. The Application Questions in Appendix II will directly
reference these documents and ask for an elaboration of the information these
documents provide. All documents received will be viewed internally and not shared
publicly. These documents do not count towards the 8-  page limit for the RFP
application described in Appendix II. Additionally, please label all supporting
documents clearly according to this list:

Any files missing could result in disqualification from the RFP process.

All files will need to be clearly labeled based on the list below:
● One (1) sample Expanded learning program schedule with activity summary
● A sample budget pertaining to the program schedule and activity summary
● Current Profit and Loss statement from 2022 or 2023
● Copy of 2023 990 Tax Form
● Copy of Monitoring Reports and/or other external evaluations of the program

(maximum of 1)
● Organizational chart of agency that illustrates how the OUSD Expanded Learning

Program is to be supported administratively and programmatically
● Copy of organization’s 501(c)(3) letter
● Bank statements to show proof of operating cash reserves
● Job description for site coordinator and program instructor positions
● Copy of IRS letter certifying tax exempt status
● Proof of “active” status with the office of the California Secretary of State Board roster
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and minutes – Include the current board roster indicating officers and affiliations as
well as Board approved minutes from the 2022-2023 school year.

● Signed letter of agreement (as elaborated upon in Section N)
● Most recent audited financial statements within 2 years and summary of the audit

findings
● Letters of reference (maximum of 2)
● Documents demonstrating fulfillment of minimum Proposals (see Section M)
● Copy of current certificate of current insurance: Commercial/General Liability $1M per

occurrence and Workman’s Comp.

The following documents listed below are not required upon submission of proposal but will be
required upon receiving ‘Recommended’ status.

1. Statement of Qualifications
A Statement of Qualifications is a paragraph or two on the organization's
letterhead that explains why they are qualified to provide this service.

2. Commercial General Liability Insurance Coverage via an ACORD sheet.
A. Address in the “Certificate Holder” section: Oakland Unified School District,
Attn: Risk Management; 1011 Union Street, Oakland CA 94607
B. Policy Limits: 1,000,000 per occurrence / $2,000,000 aggregate

2. (a) Policy Endorsement naming OUSD as an additional insured (from the Agent): this is a
Separate document from above.

3. An ACORD Sheet for Professional Liability or Corporal Punishment insurance: It should have
minimum policy limits of $1MM per occurrence and $2MM aggregate
3. (a) Policy Endorsement naming OUSD as an additional insured on this policy.

4. Either one of these two types of coverages are acceptable - It should be on an ACORD Sheet
A) Improper Sexual Conduct & Physical Abuse Liability or
B) Sexual Abuse & Molestation. It should have minimum policy limits of $1MM
per occurrence and $2MM aggregate minimum;

4. (a) Policy Endorsement naming OUSD as an additional insured on this policy.

5. Agency Letter: This letter states the following : (and should be on your letterhead)
(a) All of the employees that work at OUSD have passed fingerprint review by
CA DOJ and FBI, TB testing requirements, and mandate reporting.
(b) ATI Numbers (from fingerprinting) will need to appear on all invoices
submitted to OUSD
(c) Proof of fingerprint passage and TB Test passage of staff working at OUSD
will be available to OUSD upon demand.
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APPENDIX IV: OUSD Expanded Learning Lead Agency MOU

Boilerplate Checklist

1. Intent

2. Term of MOU

3. Termination

4. Compensation

4.1. Total Compensation

4.2. Positive Attendance

4.2.1. Reconciliation Process for Positive Attendance-Based Grant Funds

4.2.2. Administrative Charges and Reconciliation

4.3. OUSD Administrative Fees

4.4. Agency Administrative Fees

4.5. Program Budget

4.6. Modifications to Budget

4.7. Program Fees

5. Scope of Work

5.1. Student Outcomes

5.1.1. Alignment with Community School Strategic Site Plan

5.2. Oversight

5.3. Enrollment

5.4. Program Requirements

5.4.1. Program Hours

5.4.2. Program Days

5.4.3. Program Components

5.4.4. Staff Ratio

5.5 Data Collection

5.5.1. Accountability Reports
5.5.2. Attendance Reports

5.5.3. Use of Enrollment Packet
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5.6. Maintain Clean, Safe and Secure Environment

5.7. Meeting Participation

5.8. Relationships

5.9. Licenses

6. Field Trip Policy. Field Trips, Off Site Events and Off Site Activities

6.1. – 6.13.2., including, but not limited to:

6.1. Licenses Permission Slips/Acknowledgement

6.1.3. Notice of Waiver of All Claims

6.5. Health Conditions/Medication

6.6. Supervision

6.7. Transportation Requirements

6.11. Additional Requirements for High Risk, Overnight, Out of State Trips

6.12. Additional Requirements for Field Trips/Excursions Which Include Swimming or Wading

6.13. Additional Requirements for Trips to East Bay Regional Park District Bodies of
Water (swimming pools, lagoons, shoreline parks and lakes) and Related Facilities

7. Financial Records

7.1. Accounting Records

7.2. Disputes

8. Invoicing

8.1. Billing Structure

8.2. Unallowable Expenses

8.3. Invoice Requirements

8.4. Submission of Invoices

8.5. Submission of Invoices for ASESP and 21st Century Grants

9. Ownership of Documents

10. Changes

10.1. Agency Changes
10.2. Changing Legislation

11. Conduct of Consultant

11.1. Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act

11.2. Staff Requirements
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11.2.1. Tuberculosis Screening

11.2.2. Fingerprinting of Agents

11.2.3. Minimum Proposals

11.3. Removal of Staff

11.4. Conflict of Interest

11.5. Drug-  Free/Smoke Free Policy

11.6. Non-  Discrimination

12. Indemnification

13. Insurance

13.1. Commercial General Liability

13.2. Worker’s Compensation

13.3. Property and Fire

14. Litigation

15. Incorporation of Recitals and Exhibits

16. Counterparts

17. Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion

18. All exhibits, with required forms and timelines
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OUSD AFTER-SCHOOL LEAD AGENCY 2022-25 MOU SAMPLE CONTRACT

The contract template that is currently being used by lead agencies can be accessed by clicking
the following link. The MOU contract will be a master contract between OUSD and the lead
agency that does not specify the school site(s) where the agency is assigned, and that master
contract will last for three (3) years (but note that agencies and sites will continue be matched in
1-year relationships, as they are currently).

All applicants are required to review the MOU contract template currently in use, and sign the
OUSD Expanded Learning Lead Agency MOU Boilerplate Checklist of the RFP (Appendix IV).

If having a hard time opening the contract template, please email procurement@ousd.org for a copy.

Submission of this Signed Boilerplate Checklist will constitute a representation by your firm that

it has read all the clauses listed in the OUSD Expanded Learning Lead Agency MOU contract

sample (Appendix IV), is willing and able to comply with OUSD contracting requirements, and

understands that the standard OUSD Expanded Learning Lead Agency MOU is subject to change

annually.

Signature Date

Name and Title of Signatory Name of Organization
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APPENDIX V: Appeals Process for Applicants

Any applicant may appeal to the Oakland Unified School District Procurement Department if

the determination that it is not prequalified. An appeal must be based on one or both of two

following:

● Unfair process (e.g., the appellant’s proposal was treated differently than others, conflict

of interest by OUSD Department of Expanded Learning staff, etc.)

● Material error (e.g., the appellant’s proposal was reviewed under the wrong funding

strategy, failure to consider all application materials, incorrect application of evaluation

rubric or some other mistake of fact occurred), or

The appellant must submit the appeal by September 13, 2024 (i.e., 5 business days after the

Lead Agency Notification Date). If the appellant fails to file an appeal prior to the applicable

appeals deadline, the appellant waives any and all rights to challenge the decision of the District.

An appeal must clearly state the facts that establish one of the above-referenced bases for

appeal and how, as a result, the appellant’s proposal was affected negatively. The appeal will be

considered and adjudged by the Senior Manager, Rosaura Altamirano, whose decision will be final.

Appellant should submit the appeal and any supporting documents should be sent electronically

by email to:

Rosaura M. Altamirano
Senior Manager, Supply Chain & Logistics, rosaura.altamirano@ousd.org

Appellants will receive written notice of the outcome of their appeal by September 26, 2024. In

the event that an applicant’s appeal is successful, the agency will be treated as all other

prequalified agencies.
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$33(1',; ,� 5)3 $SSOLFDWLRQ

���� 286' 5HTXHVW IRU 3URSRVDOV $SSOLFDWLRQ �7HPSODWH�

$6(6� ��VW &&/&� (/2�3� DQG $66(76 ([SDQGHG /HDUQLQJ 3URJUDPV
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2UJDQL]DWLRQ 1DPH

3ULPDU\ &RQWDFW
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6HFRQGDU\ &RQWDFW
3HUVRQ�

(PDLO� (PDLO�

7HOHSKRQH �� 7HOHSKRQH ��

6HUYLFH &DWHJRU\� &KHFN WKH JUDGH OHYHOV \RXU RUJDQL]DWLRQ LV LQWHUHVWHG LQ VHUYLQJ�
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707-225-1466 510-872-3056
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X

X
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andleaf.org isabel.gonzalez@oaklandleaf.org



'RHV \RXU RUJDQL]DWLRQ KDYH ���F� VWDWXV" 3OHDVH SURYLGH GRFXPHQWDWLRQ RI WKLV
VWDWXV LQ \RXU VXSSRUWLQJ GRFXPHQWDWLRQ VHFWLRQ�

<HV

1R

$UH \RX FXUUHQWO\ DQ 286' $SSURYHG /HDG $JHQF\ 3DUWQHU" <HV

1R

+DYH \RX VHUYHG DV DQ 286' /HDG $JHQF\ SDUWQHU EHIRUH LQ SDVW \HDUV"

,I VR� SOHDVH LGHQWLI\ WKH \HDUV DQG GXUDWLRQV VHUYHG�

<HV

1R

� <HDUV

'R \RX FXUUHQWO\ VHUYH LQ WKH /HDG $JHQF\ UROH IRU DQ\ RWKHU VFKRRO GLVWULFWV EHVLGHV
286'"

<HV

1R

,I \HV� SOHDVH OLVW DOO VFKRRO GLVWULFWV \RX KDYH VHUYHG�

+RZ PDQ\ VFKRRO VLWHV GRHV \RXU RUJDQL]DWLRQ KDYH WKH FDSDFLW\ WR VHUYH DV D OHDG
DJHQF\"

� 6LWHV

,Q WKH ER[ EHORZ� SOHDVH EULHIO\ H[SODLQ \RXU UDWLRQDOH IRU WKLV QXPEHU RI VLWHV"

2Q EHKDOI RI �$JHQF\�� ,� �QDPH�

�3RVLWLRQ�� GHFODUH XQGHU SHQDOW\ RI SHUMXU\ XQGHU WKH ODZV

RI WKH 6WDWH RI &DOLIRUQLD WKDW WKH IRUHJRLQJ LV WUXH DQG FRUUHFW�

6LJQDWXUH� 'DWH�

X

X

X

20

X

6

Oakland Leaf Foundation Melissa Mendez Ochoa

Executive Director

06/08/2024

At this time, Oakland Leaf is able to serve only six Oakland Unified School District (OUSD) sites due to our current administrative 
capacity. This limitation ensures that we can provide the highest quality support and programming to the students and staff at these 
sites. By focusing our resources and efforts on a manageable number of locations, we can maintain the standards of excellence and 
compliance.



/HWWHU RI $JUHHPHQW

'HDU 2DNODQG 8QLILHG 6FKRRO 'LVWULFW¶V �286'� 'HSDUWPHQW RI ([SDQGHG /HDUQLQJ�

7KLV /HWWHU RI $JUHHPHQW HVWDEOLVKHV WKH LQWHQWLRQ RI 2DNODQG /HDI )RXQGDWLRQ WR ZRUN WRJHWKHU
ZLWK 2DNODQG 8QLILHG 6FKRRO 'LVWULFW¶V �286'� 'HSDUWPHQW RI ([SDQGHG /HDUQLQJ WR IDFLOLWDWH D
FRPSUHKHQVLYH DIWHU VFKRRO SURJUDP DW 286' VFKRRO VLWHV�

2DNODQG /HDI )RXQGDWLRQ¶V PLVVLRQ LV WR FXOWLYDWH FRPPXQLW\ WUDQVIRUPDWLRQ WKURXJK FUHDWLYH
HGXFDWLRQ� 2XU DSSURDFK WR \RXWK GHYHORSPHQW DQG VWXGHQW HPSRZHUPHQW HPSKDVL]HV
HQULFKPHQW DFWLYLWLHV WKDW IRFXV RQ� SURMHFW�EDVHG OHDUQLQJ� FRPPXQLW\ DZDUHQHVV� FXOWXUDO
OLWHUDF\� OHDGHUVKLS GHYHORSPHQW� VRFLDO MXVWLFH DQG UHIOHFWLRQ� 2XU JRDO LV WR GHYHORS \RXWK ZLWK
UHOHYDQW� VXVWDLQDEOH VNLOOV IRU WKHP WR EHFRPH FUHDWLYH LQGLYLGXDOV ZLWK KHDOWK\ KDELWV�

2DNODQG /HDI KDV SDUWQHUHG ZLWK 286' WR SURYLGH H[SDQGHG OHDUQLQJ SURJUDPV WR VWXGHQWV
VLQFH ����� ,Q WKDW UROH� 2DNODQG /HDI KDV DQG ZLOO FRQWLQXH WR�

Ɣ 6HUYH DV OHDG DJHQF\ IRU WKH SURJUDP LQFOXGLQJ ILVFDO UHVSRQVLELOLW\ IRU PDQDJLQJ DIWHU
VFKRRO JUDQW IXQGV SHU JUDQW UHTXLUHPHQWV DQG GHYHORSLQJ DIWHU VFKRRO SURJUDP DQG
EXGJHW SODQV LQ FORVH FROODERUDWLRQ ZLWK VFKRRO OHDGHUVKLS

Ɣ 3URYLGH DQ $IWHU 6FKRRO 6LWH 0DQDJHU DQG DGHTXDWH� TXDOLILHG VWDIILQJ WR HQVXUH
SURJUDP TXDOLW\ DQG FRPSOLDQFH DQG PHHW WKH JUDQW UHTXLUHG ���� VWXGHQW WR VWDII UDWLR�

Ɣ (QVXUH DOO KLULQJ FULWHULD DQG SURFHGXUHV VXFK DV ILQJHUSULQW FOHDUDQFHV� FULPLQDO
EDFNJURXQG FKHFNV� DQG 7% WHVWLQJ DUH FRPSOHWHG ZLWK DSSURYDO IRU DOO DIWHU VFKRRO
SURJUDP VWDII DQG YROXQWHHUV�

Ɣ 3URYLGH GDLO\ FRPSUHKHQVLYH DIWHU VFKRRO SURJUDPPLQJ FRQVLVWLQJ RI DFDGHPLF�
HQULFKPHQW� DQG SK\VLFDO DFWLYLW\�UHFUHDWLRQDO FRPSRQHQWV WR DQ DGHTXDWH QXPEHU RI
VWXGHQW SDUWLFLSDQWV WR IXOILOO DWWHQGDQFH UHTXLUHPHQWV�

Ɣ 2SHUDWH SURJUDP XQWLO �SP GDLO\ RQ HYHU\ GD\ UHJXODU GD\ VFKRRO LV LQ VHVVLRQ� WR IXOILOO
$6(6 DWWHQGDQFH UHTXLUHPHQWV�

Ɣ :RUN ZLWK WKH LQGHSHQGHQW HYDOXDWRU WR FROOHFW DQG DQDO\]H GDWD RQ VWXGHQW HQUROOPHQW�
DWWHQGDQFH� DFDGHPLF SHUIRUPDQFH� DQG VWXGHQW DQG SDUHQW VDWLVIDFWLRQ�

2DNODQG /HDI LV DZDUH RI WKHLU UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV ILVFDOO\ DQG SURJUDPPDWLFDOO\ IRU DOO FRPSOLDQFH
UHTXLUHPHQWV LI DSSURYHG DV OHDG DJHQF\� :H DUH FRPPLWWHG WR XSKROGLQJ DOO RI WKH
UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV RXWOLQHG LQ RXU DSSOLFDWLRQ� :H KDYH EHHQ KRQRUHG WR SDUWQHU ZLWK 286' DQG ZH
KRSH WKDW ZH FDQ FRQWLQXH WR JURZ RXU SDUWQHUVKLS IRU IXWXUH \HDUV�

6LQFHUHO\�

0HOLVVD 0HQGH] 2FKRD
([HFXWLYH 'LUHFWRU
2DNODQG /HDI )RXQGDWLRQ



&ROODERUDWLYH 3DUWQHUVKLSV

�� :H DFKLHYH YDOXH DOLJQPHQW DQG SULRULWL]LQJ \RXWK LQ GHFLVLRQ PDNLQJ WKURXJK VHYHUDO

NH\ PHWKRGV� 2XU PDQDJHUV HQJDJH LQ GDLO\ DQG ZHHNO\ LQIRUPDO PHHWLQJV ZLWK VFKRRO

DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ WR DGGUHVV LPPHGLDWH FRQFHUQV DQG PDLQWDLQ D VWHDG\ IORZ RI

FRPPXQLFDWLRQ� 0RQWKO\ PHHWLQJV EHWZHHQ PDQDJHUV DQG SULQFLSDOV SURYLGH D VWUXFWXUHG

RSSRUWXQLW\ WR UHYLHZ SURJUHVV DQG SODQ� ZLWK RXU 'LUHFWRU RI WKH $IWHUVFKRRO 3URJUDPV

MRLQLQJ TXDUWHUO\� 2XU ([HFXWLYH 'LUHFWRU PHHWV ZLWK WKH 3ULQFLSDO DQG 'LUHFWRU RI WKH

$IWHUVFKRRO 3URJUDPV DQQXDOO\ WR HQVXUH DOLJQPHQW RI YDOXHV DQG JRDOV�

$QRWKHU PHWKRG LV DFWLYH SDUWLFLSDWLRQ LQ VFKRRO PHHWLQJV WR HQVXUH VKDUHG YDOXHV WKDW

VXSSRUW DQG KRQRU WKH QHHGV RI \RXWK� 2XU PDQDJHUV DQG 3URJUDP &XOWXUH /HDGHUV DWWHQG

OHDGHUVKLS PHHWLQJV VXFK DV &RRUGLQDWLRQ RI 6WXGHQW 6HUYLFHV 7HDP �&267� DQG

6WXGHQW�)DPLO\ 6SHFLILF 667 PHHWLQJV WR DOORZ IRU WDUJHWHG VXSSRUW DQG LQWHUYHQWLRQV�

'XULQJ WKH ILUVW PRQWK RI WKH SURJUDP� DOO GLUHFW OLQH VWDII SDUWLFLSDWH LQ FODVVURRP

REVHUYDWLRQV WR LGHQWLI\ EHVW SUDFWLFHV DQG LPSOHPHQW LQ DIWHUVFKRRO WR HQVXUH FRQVLVWHQW

DQG HIIHFWLYH DSSURDFK WR \RXWK VXSSRUW�

7KHVH VWUDWHJLHV FROOHFWLYHO\ HQVXUH WKDW ZH DUH FRQVLVWHQWO\ IRFXVHG RQ VXSSRUWLQJ DQG

KRQRULQJ WKH QHHGV RI \RXWK DQG IRVWHULQJ DQ HQYLURQPHQW RI FROODERUDWLRQ�

�� 2QH RI WKH FRUH YDOXHV RI 2DNODQG /HDI LV SURYLGLQJ RSSRUWXQLWLHV IRU LQSXW IURP YDULRXV

VWDNHKROGHUV WR HQVXUH RXU DJHQF\ UHPDLQV DFFRXQWDEOH DQG FRPPLWWHG WR FRQWLQXRXV

LPSURYHPHQW� :H DGPLQLVWHU DQQXDO VXUYH\V WR VWDII� \RXWK� DQG SDUHQWV�JXDUGLDQV WR

JDWKHU IHHGEDFN RQ SURJUDP LPSDFW� VDWLVIDFWLRQ� DQG DUHDV IRU HQKDQFHPHQW� 8VLQJ

DQDO\WLFDO WRROV� ZH H[WUDFW LQVLJKWV IURP WKH GDWD DQG LPSOHPHQW SURJUDPPDWLF FKDQJHV



EDVHG RQ WKLV IHHGEDFN� 7KHVH FKDQJHV DUH GHVLJQHG E\ RXU SURJUDP PDQDJHU WHDP�

'XULQJ WKH GHVLJQ SURFHVV� ZH PHHW WR JHW IXUWKHU LQSXW� FUHDWLQJ D FROODERUDWLYH

RSSRUWXQLW\ WR DGDSW WKH FKDQJHV DFFRUGLQJ WR WKH VFKRRO
V QHHGV� $OO IHHGEDFN UHVXOWV DQG

SODQV IRU FKDQJH DUH WKHQ VKDUHG ZLWK WKH VWDNHKROGHUV�

�� 7KH ORQJ�VWDQGLQJ SDUWQHUVKLS ZLWK $PHULFD 6FRUHV� VSDQQLQJ RYHU ILYH \HDUV� KDV

FRQVLVWHQWO\ SURYLGHG YDOXDEOH RSSRUWXQLWLHV IRU VNLOO�EXLOGLQJ DPRQJ RXU VWXGHQWV� 2XU

SDUWQHUVKLS KDV EHHQ FKDUDFWHUL]HG E\ VWURQJ FRPPXQLFDWLRQ DQG VKDUHG YDOXHV� %RWK

RUJDQL]DWLRQV SULRULWL]H WKH ZHOO�EHLQJ DQG GHYHORSPHQW RI \RXWK� HQVXULQJ WKDW SURJUDPV

DUH WDLORUHG WR PHHW WKHLU QHHGV DQG LQWHUHVWV� 7KH FRQVLVWHQW FROODERUDWLRQ DQG PXWXDO

VXSSRUW KDYH DOORZHG XV WR FRQWLQXRXVO\ LPSURYH DQG DGDSW WKH SURJUDP� NHHSLQJ LW

UHOHYDQW DQG LPSDFWIXO�

&RQYHUVHO\� D SDUWQHUVKLS WKDW SUHVHQWHG FKDOOHQJHV ZDV ZLWK .LG]7R3UR� 7KH LVVXHV DURVH

IURP PLVPDWFKHG H[SHFWDWLRQV DQG FRPPXQLFDWLRQ JDSV� ,Q QDYLJDWLQJ WKLV FKDOOHQJLQJ

SDUWQHUVKLS� ZH DWWHPSWHG WR LQFUHDVH FRPPXQLFDWLRQ IUHTXHQF\ DQG FODULI\ H[SHFWDWLRQV�

0HHWLQJV ZHUH KHOG WR DGGUHVV VSHFLILF FRQFHUQV DQG UHDOLJQ WKH SURJUDP
V JRDOV ZLWK

VWXGHQW QHHGV� +RZHYHU� WKH FKDQJHV ZHUH QRW VXIILFLHQW WR IXOO\ WXUQ WKH VLWXDWLRQ DURXQG�

,Q UHWURVSHFW� DQ HDUO\ DOLJQPHQW RI JRDOV DQG H[SHFWDWLRQV ZRXOG KDYH EHHQ FUXFLDO IRU

DFKLHYLQJ D VXFFHVVIXO RXWFRPH� $ PRUH WKRURXJK LQLWLDO DOLJQPHQW ZLWK .LG]7R3UR

ZRXOG KDYH HQVXUHG ERWK SDUWLHV ZHUH RQ WKH VDPH SDJH IURP WKH VWDUW� /HDUQLQJ IURP WKLV

H[SHULHQFH� ZH QRZ HPSKDVL]H WKH LPSRUWDQFH RI DFWLYHO\ PHHWLQJ ZLWK SRWHQWLDO

SDUWQHUV� HYHQ WKRVH UHFRPPHQGHG E\ WUXVWHG VRXUFHV� WR HQVXUH FORVH DOLJQPHQW RI QHHGV

DQG FDSDFLW\ WR DFKLHYH LQWHQGHG RXWFRPHV�



(PSRZHUPHQW

�� 2DNODQG /HDI
V FRPPLWPHQW WR \RXWK DJHQF\ DQG \RXWK OHDGHUVKLS RSSRUWXQLWLHV LV

LQJUDLQHG LQ RXU YDOXHV DQG PDQLIHVWV WKURXJK LQLWLDWLYHV DLPHG DW HPSRZHULQJ \RXWK�

DPSOLI\LQJ WKHLU YRLFHV� DQG FXOWLYDWLQJ WKHLU OHDGHUVKLS� 2XU IUDPHZRUN HQVXUHV WKDW

VWXGHQWV RI DOO DJHV KDYH RSSRUWXQLWLHV WR DVVXPH OHDGHUVKLS UROHV UDQJLQJ IURP VHUYLQJ DV

HPFHHV IRU HYHQWV WR OHDGLQJ LFHEUHDNHUV DQG UHIOHFWLRQ� $GGLWLRQDOO\� ZH HQVXUH SURMHFWV

DUH LQLWLDWHG E\ LQVWUXFWRUV� \HW VWXGHQWV DUH DFWLYHO\ HQFRXUDJHG WR WDNH WKH OHDG LQ

GHVLJQLQJ� SODQQLQJ� DQG LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ� %\ DOORZLQJ WKLV FROODERUDWLYH VSDFH DQG UROHV�

ZH QRW RQO\ HPSRZHU VWXGHQWV EXW DOVR IRVWHU D VHQVH RI SURJUDP RZQHUVKLS�

�� 2DNODQG /HDI¶V VWDII XQGHUJR WUDLQLQJ LQ WKH %XLOGLQJ ,QWHQWLRQDO &RPPXQLWLHV DQG

2DNODQG /HDI 5HVWRUDWLYH -XVWLFH FXUULFXOXP WR HTXLS WKHP ZLWK WRROV WR HVWDEOLVK

LQFOXVLYH DQG HQULFKLQJ HQYLURQPHQWV DV ZHOO DV HVVHQWLDO WHFKQLTXHV IRU FRQIOLFW

UHVROXWLRQ DQG FRPPXQLW\ EXLOGLQJ� ,Q DGGLWLRQ� WUDLQLQJ VHVVLRQV RQ FODVVURRP

PDQDJHPHQW DQG SURMHFW�EDVHG OHDUQLQJ VWUDWHJLHV SURYLGH LQVWUXFWRUV ZLWK HIIHFWLYH WRROV

DQG WHFKQLTXHV WR VXSSRUW VWXGHQW HQJDJHPHQW DQG FXOWLYDWH \RXWK OHDGHUVKLS VNLOOV� :H

HQVXUH WKDW VWDII DUH ZHOO�SUHSDUHG WR FUHDWH WUDQVIRUPDWLYH OHDUQLQJ H[SHULHQFHV WKDW

QXUWXUH VWXGHQW HQJDJHPHQW DQG IRVWHU OHDGHUVKLS FDSDELOLWLHV DPRQJ WKH \RXWK ZH VHUYH�

�� :H KDYH LPSOHPHQWHG VHYHUDO VKLIWV WR SULRULWL]H \RXWK YRLFH DQG FKRLFH ZLWKLQ RXU

SURJUDPV� 2QH FKDQJH LQYROYHV RXU DSSURDFK WR H[WHUQDO SDUWQHUVKLSV� ZKHUH QHZ

SDUWQHUVKLS GHFLVLRQV DUH LQIRUPHG E\ \RXWK WR HQVXUH RXU SURJUDP RIIHULQJV DOLJQ FORVHO\

ZLWK WKHLU LQWHUHVWV DQG QHHGV� IRVWHULQJ D VHQVH RI FKRLFH DQG RZQHUVKLS DPRQJ VWXGHQWV��

7KHVH HIIRUWV QRW RQO\ HQDEOH XV WR FRQWLQXRXVO\ UHILQH RXU SURJUDPPDWLF RIIHULQJV EXW

DOVR HPSRZHU \RXWK E\ YDOXLQJ WKHLU LQSXW DQG LQYROYLQJ WKHP LQ GHFLVLRQ�PDNLQJ�



6DIH DQG 6XSSRUWLYH 6SDFHV �XS WR � SDJH � �� SRLQWV�

�� 2DNODQG /HDI HQVXUHV \RXWK IHHO D VWURQJ VHQVH RI EHORQJLQJ WKURXJK YDULRXV VWUDWHJLHV�

'XULQJ WKH ILUVW WKUHH ZHHNV RI VFKRRO� WKH ILUVW ZHHN DIWHU ZLQWHU EUHDN� DQG ZHHNO\� ZH

SULRULWL]H FRPPXQLW\�EXLOGLQJ DFWLYLWLHV WR IRVWHU FRQQHFWLRQ� 0RQWKO\ DVVHPEOLHV

FHOHEUDWH VWXGHQW DFKLHYHPHQWV DQG KRQRU WKRVH H[HPSOLI\LQJ RXU FRUH YDOXHV� 'DLO\

SURJUDP FORVLQJV LQFOXGH ³0XFK /RYHV�´ ZKHUH VWXGHQWV DQG VWDII VKDUH DSSUHFLDWLRQV�

IRVWHULQJ FRPPXQLW\ VSLULW� 6WXGHQWV HDUQ /HDI 'ROODUV IRU SRVLWLYH EHKDYLRU� ZKLFK

DFFXPXODWH WRZDUGV VWXGHQW�FUHDWHG UHZDUGV� 7KHVH LQLWLDWLYHV FUHDWH VDIH� VXSSRUWLYH

VSDFHV ZKHUH VWXGHQWV IHHO YDOXHG� DFNQRZOHGJHG� DQG HQFRXUDJHG WR WKULYH�

�� 2XU VWDII XQGHUJRHV WUDLQLQJ DW WKH VWDUW RI VFKRRO \HDU RU XSRQ RQERDUGLQJ� IRFXVLQJ RQ

:HLNHUW¶V <RXWK 3URJUDP 4XDOLW\ $VVHVVPHQW 7LHUV UHODWHG WR 6DIH DQG 6XSSRUWLYH

(QYLURQPHQWV� 7KLV LQFOXGHV HPRWLRQDO VDIHW\� D KHDOWK\ HQYLURQPHQW� HPHUJHQF\

SUHSDUHGQHVV� EHKDYLRU PDQDJHPHQW� FULVLV PDQDJHPHQW� DQG )LUVW $LG�&35� ,Q DGGLWLRQ�

ZH SURYLGH WRROV RQ VHVVLRQ IORZ� HQJDJHPHQW VWUDWHJLHV� VNLOO�EXLOGLQJ� DQG FUHDWLQJ

\RXWK�FHQWHUHG VSDFHV�� 6WDII DUH UHJXODUO\ REVHUYHG XVLQJ DQ LQWHUQDO WRRO WR HQVXUH

DGKHUHQFH WR VDIHW\ DQG VXSSRUW VWDQGDUGV� 7KLV DSSURDFK HQVXUHV VWDII DUH SUHSDUHG WR

FUHDWH HQYLURQPHQWV ZKHUH \RXWK WKULYH�

�� 2DNODQG /HDI FROODERUDWHV ZLWK RXU SULQFLSDOV WR SURYLGH D VDIH DQG VXSSRUWLYH

HQYLURQPHQW WKURXJK D VKDUHG YLVLRQ IRU D IXOO�VHUYLFH FRPPXQLW\ VFKRRO GLVWULFW� :H

UHJXODUO\ HYDOXDWH DQG DOLJQ RXU SUDFWLFHV ZLWK 286' SROLFLHV� 2XU VWDII UHFHLYHV WUDLQLQJ

RQ UHOHYDQW JXLGHOLQHV DQG SUDFWLFHV OLNH 6(/ WKUHH VLJQDWXUH SUDFWLFHV� 7KLV DSSURDFK

HQVXUHV RXU SURJUDPV PHHW DQG H[FHHG 286' VWDQGDUGV� FUHDWLQJ HQYLURQPHQWV ZKHUH

VWXGHQWV IHHO VDIH� VXSSRUWHG� DQG HPSRZHUHG WR OHDUQ DQG JURZ�



/LIHORQJ /HDUQLQJ

��� 2DNODQG /HDI
V IRFXVHV RQ OLIHORQJ OHDUQLQJ WR ERRVW DFDGHPLF HQJDJHPHQW DQG OLIHORQJ

OHDUQLQJ� 2XU 6FKRODUV LQ $FWLRQ FODVV RIIHU OLWHUDF\ LQWHUYHQWLRQV �5HDGLQJ ZLWK

5HOHYDQFH DQG 6,336� DQG KRPHZRUN VXSSRUW� &UHDWLYH IRUPDWV� OLNH DQDO\]LQJ VRQJ

O\ULFV� IRVWHU G\QDPLF OHDUQLQJ� &RPPXQLW\ VHUYLFH SURMHFWV IRU �WK DQG �WK JUDGHUV

SURPRWH FLYLF UHVSRQVLELOLW\ DQG OHDGHUVKLS� 6WXGHQWV DGGUHVV ORFDO LVVXHV DQG VHW SURMHFW

JRDOV WRJHWKHU� HQKDQFLQJ WKHLU VHQVH RI DJHQF\� 2DNODQG /HDI¶V 5HVWRUDWLYH -XVWLFH

FXUULFXOXP LQFOXGHV FXOWXUDOO\ UHVSRQVLYH� WUDXPD�LQIRUPHG OHVVRQV WKDW SURPRWH

VHOI�UHIOHFWLRQ DQG HPSDWK\� $FWLYLWLHV OLNH �$� %� &V RI 0H� DQG �0\ &RPPXQLW\� IRVWHU

HQYLURQPHQWDO DZDUHQHVV DQG VRFLDO MXVWLFH� :HHNO\ FUHZ FODVVHV WHDFK VHOI�PDQDJHPHQW�

VHOI�DZDUHQHVV� UHODWLRQVKLSV� DQG GHFLVLRQ�PDNLQJ� 6WXGHQW F\SKHUV HQFRXUDJH UHVSHFWIXO

GLDORJXH RQ UHOHYDQW WRSLFV� 2YHUDOO� 2DNODQG /HDI SUHSDUHV \RXWK WR WKULYH DFDGHPLFDOO\�

VRFLDOO\� DQG SHUVRQDOO\�

��� 2DNODQG /HDI
V SURYLGHV GLYHUVH HQULFKPHQW H[SHULHQFHV IRVWHULQJ MR\� VNLOO�EXLOGLQJ� DQG

KDQGV�RQ OHDUQLQJ� 6WXGHQWV HQJDJH LQ DUW 	 FXOWXUH FODVVHV HPSKDVL]LQJ PXOWLFXOWXUDO

HGXFDWLRQ� $FWLYLWLHV OLNH WKHDWHU ZRUNVKRSV DQG YLVXDO DUWV FODVVHV KHOS VWXGHQWV H[SORUH

WKHLU LGHQWLWLHV DQG DSSUHFLDWH RWKHU FXOWXUHV� 67(0 &ODVVHV VXFK DV �' DUW� URERWLFV�

FRGLQJ� DQG WLQNHULQJ LJQLWH FXULRVLW\ DQG GHYHORS FULWLFDO WKLQNLQJ� 6WXGHQWV HQJDJH LQ

VSRUWV� FRRNLQJ FODVVHV� DQG JDUGHQLQJ IRU +HDOWK 	 :HOOQHVV WR SURPRWH ILWQHVV�

HPRWLRQDO ZHOO�EHLQJ� DQG RYHUDOO KHDOWK� 2YHUDOO� 2DNODQG /HDI¶V SURJUDPV HQKDQFH

DFDGHPLF HQJDJHPHQW� OLIH VNLOOV� FXOWXUDO XQGHUVWDQGLQJ� DQG VRFLDO UHVSRQVLELOLW\�

SUHSDULQJ VWXGHQWV WR VXFFHHG DQG OHDG LQ WKHLU FRPPXQLWLHV�



$GDSWLYH 3URJUDPPLQJ

��� 2DNODQG /HDI UHVSRQGV WR XQH[SHFWHG VKLIWV E\ DOLJQLQJ ZLWK FRUH YDOXHV� UHYLHZLQJ GDWD

WR XQGHUVWDQG LPSDFWV� DQG DGDSWLQJ SURJUDPV DFFRUGLQJO\� &OHDU FRPPXQLFDWLRQ ZLWK

VWXGHQWV� SDUHQWV� VWDII� DQG SDUWQHUV LV SULRULWL]HG� SURYLGLQJ WLPHO\ XSGDWHV RQ UHDVRQV

IRU FKDQJHV DQG WKHLU LPSDFWV� :H DGMXVW FXUULFXOXP DQG DFWLYLWLHV WR ILW QHZ

FLUFXPVWDQFHV� HQVXULQJ UHOHYDQFH DQG HQJDJHPHQW� 7KHVH VWUDWHJLHV PDLQWDLQ D SRVLWLYH

DQG VXSSRUWLYH HQYLURQPHQW� VXSSRUWLQJ VWXGHQWV WKURXJK XQH[SHFWHG FKDQJHV�

��� 2DNODQG /HDI RIIHUV GLIIHUHQWLDWHG VHUYLFHV WR PHHW GLYHUVH VFKRRO� VWXGHQW� DQG IDPLO\

QHHGV E\ SULRULWL]LQJ VWUDWHJLF SDUWQHUVKLSV DQG LQWHJUDWLQJ LQSXW� &ROODERUDWLQJ ZLWK

YDULRXV RUJDQL]DWLRQV EURDGHQV DFFHVV WR FUHDWLYH OHDUQLQJ RSSRUWXQLWLHV DQG HQDEOHV XV WR

RIIHU D GLYHUVH DUUD\ RI SURJUDPV WKDW FDWHU WR GLIIHUHQW LQWHUHVWV� :H DFWLYHO\ VROLFLW DQG

LQFRUSRUDWH LQSXW IURP SDUHQWV DQG VWXGHQWV WR KHOS XV XQGHUVWDQG FRPPXQLW\ QHHGV�

VKDSLQJ WKH UHILQHPHQW RI RXU VHUYLFHV WR UHPDLQ UHOHYDQW DQG DOLJQHG ZLWK VWDNHKROGHU

H[SHFWDWLRQV� :H DUH FRPPLWWHG WR WDLORULQJ VHUYLFHV WKDW DGGUHVV PXOWLIDFHWHG QHHGV�

��� $W 2DNODQG /HDI� LQFOXVLYLW\ LV FHQWUDO� :H VXSSRUWHG D VLJQLILFDQW SRSXODWLRQ RI

([WHQGHG 6FKRRO <HDU �(6<� VWXGHQWV DW RQH VLWH� LQWHJUDWLQJ WKHP LQWR ERWK DFDGHPLF

\HDU DQG VXPPHU DIWHUVFKRRO SURJUDPV DORQJVLGH WKHLU SHHUV� 7R VXSSRUW (6< VWXGHQWV

HIIHFWLYHO\� ZH XVH SHUVRQDOL]HG LQVWUXFWLRQDO VWUDWHJLHV OLNH WDLORUHG OHVVRQ SODQV DQG

VSHFLDOL]HG WRROV IRU HQJDJHPHQW DQG FRPSUHKHQVLRQ� %UHDNV DQG VXSSRUWLYH

HQYLURQPHQWV KHOS PDQDJH WKHLU HQHUJ\ OHYHOV DQG IRFXV� %XLOGLQJ VWURQJ UHODWLRQVKLSV

EHWZHHQ (6< VWXGHQWV DQG DGXOW DOOLHV HQKDQFHV DFDGHPLF HQJDJHPHQW DQG HPRWLRQDO

ZHOO�EHLQJ� +LJK SDUWLFLSDWLRQ UDWHV DPRQJ (6< VWXGHQWV UHWXUQLQJ IRU VXPPHU SURJUDPV

KLJKOLJKW WKH VXFFHVV RI RXU LQFOXVLYH DSSURDFK�



6WURQJ 6\VWHPV DQG 6WUXFWXUHV

��� 2DNODQG /HDI VWUDWHJLFDOO\ DOORFDWHV IXQGV WR HQVXUH HIIHFWLYH SURJUDP LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ

DQG VXVWDLQDELOLW\� 2XU YDULRXV IXQGLQJ VWUHDPV VXSSRUW VWDIILQJ� SURJUDP GHVLJQ� DQG

RSHUDWLRQDO QHHGV DOLJQHG ZLWK JUDQW UHTXLUHPHQWV DQG RUJDQL]DWLRQDO JRDOV� $6(6

IXQGLQJ VXSSRUWV FULWLFDO PDQDJHULDO DQG DFDGHPLF PHQWRU SRVLWLRQV� FRYHULQJ VDODULHV IRU

D �� PRQWKV RI 3URJUDP 0DQDJHU DQG � WR � SDUW�WLPH DFDGHPLF PHQWRUV ZKR SURYLGH

HVVHQWLDO VWXGHQW VXSSRUW� 7KH 2DNODQG )XQG IRU &KLOGUHQ DQG <RXWK �2)&<� H[SDQGV

RXU VWDIILQJ E\ DGGLQJ WZR PRQWKV WR WKH 3URJUDP 0DQDJHU FRQWUDFW DQG IXQGV D IXOO�WLPH

3URJUDP &XOWXUH /HDGHU DQG SDUW�WLPH HQULFKPHQW LQVWUXFWRUV� HQKDQFLQJ SURJUDP

RIIHULQJV DQG RSHUDWLRQDO PDQDJHPHQW� (/23 IXQGLQJ VXSSRUWV D SDUW�WLPH DFDGHPLF

FRRUGLQDWRU DQG D SDUW�WLPH .LQGHU ,QVWUXFWRU� VWUHQJWKHQLQJ DFDGHPLF VXSSRUW DQG

FDSDFLW\� 2DNODQG /HDI OHYHUDJHV LQGLYLGXDO GRQRUV� IRXQGDWLRQV� DQG FRUSRUDWH

SDUWQHUVKLSV WR VXSSOHPHQW FRVWV IRU LQVWUXFWRUV DQG SURJUDP SDUWQHUV� H[SDQGLQJ

SURJUDPPDWLF VFRSH DQG TXDOLW\� )LQDQFLDOO\� ZH PDLQWDLQ VWDELOLW\ ZLWK D KHDOWK\ SURILW

DQG ORVV VWDWHPHQW DQG D �������� UHVHUYH IXQG� DORQJVLGH D �������� OLQH RI FUHGLW IRU

IOH[LELOLW\ LQ DGGUHVVLQJ VKRUW�WHUP ILQDQFLDO QHHGV� 2XU EXGJHW VWUDWHJ\ HQVXUHV IXQGLQJ

HIILFLHQF\� DOLJQV ZLWK SURJUDP JRDOV� DQG VXSSRUWV KLJK�TXDOLW\ HGXFDWLRQDO H[SHULHQFHV

IRU VWXGHQWV� IDPLOLHV� DQG WKH FRPPXQLW\�

��� 2DNODQG /HDI LV GHGLFDWHG WR PDLQWDLQLQJ SURJUDP TXDOLW\ DQG DFFHVVLELOLW\� HVSHFLDOO\

DPLG SRWHQWLDO IOXFWXDWLRQV LQ (/2�3 IXQGLQJ IURP &DOLIRUQLD� :H KDYH D UREXVW VWUDWHJ\

WR HQVXUH FRQWLQXLW\ DQG VXSSRUW IRU RXU FRPPXQLW\� :H DFWLYHO\ VHHN JUDQWV� FRUSRUDWH

VSRQVRUVKLSV� DQG LQGLYLGXDO GRQDWLRQV WR GLYHUVLI\ IXQGLQJ EH\RQG (/2�3� UHGXFLQJ

UHOLDQFH RQ DQ\ VLQJOH VRXUFH� :H SULRULWL]H RSHUDWLRQDO HIILFLHQF\� FRQWLQXRXVO\



LPSURYLQJ SURJUDP GHOLYHU\ DQG DGPLQLVWUDWLYH SUDFWLFHV WR PD[LPL]H LPSDFW DQG UHGXFH

FRVWV� 2XU VXVWDLQDELOLW\ SODQ LQFOXGHV VFHQDULR SODQQLQJ DQG FRQWLQJHQF\ PHDVXUHV WR

PDQDJH IXQGLQJ XQFHUWDLQWLHV HIIHFWLYHO\� HQVXULQJ RUJDQL]DWLRQDO UHVLOLHQFH� :H PDLQWDLQ

UHVHUYH IXQGV DV D ILQDQFLDO VDIHW\ QHW� FDUHIXOO\ PDQDJHG WR QDYLJDWH IXQGLQJ JDSV RU

FKDOOHQJHV ZLWKRXW FRPSURPLVLQJ SURJUDPV� 7KHVH LQLWLDWLYHV SUHSDUH 2DNODQG /HDI WR

VXVWDLQ FXUUHQW SURJUDPPLQJ OHYHOV� HQVXULQJ KLJK�TXDOLW\ HGXFDWLRQDO DQG HQULFKPHQW

RSSRUWXQLWLHV GHVSLWH SRWHQWLDO FKDQJHV LQ (/2�3 IXQGLQJ�

��� 2DNODQG /HDI SULRULWL]HV FRPSOLDQFH ZLWK &'( UHTXLUHPHQWV� HQVXULQJ HIIHFWLYH DQG

LQFOXVLYH SURJUDPV WKURXJK VWUXFWXUHG SURWRFROV� $GPLQLVWUDWLYH SURFHVVHV DUH

PHWLFXORXVO\ GHVLJQHG E\ RXU 'LUHFWRU RI )LQDQFH 	 $GPLQLVWUDWLRQ DQG 'LUHFWRU RI

3URJUDPV� ZLWK LQSXW IURP 3URJUDP 0DQDJHUV� HQVXULQJ FRPSOLDQFH EHIRUH

LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ� $OO�VWDII VXPPHU WUDLQLQJ LQFOXGHV FRPSUHKHQVLYH FRPSOLDQFH WUDLQLQJ

DW HYHU\ OHYHO� $Q H[DPSOH RI D FRPSOLDQFH VXFFHVV ZDV WKDW LQ ����� DOO HOHPHQWDU\ VLWHV

PHW DWWHQGDQFH WDUJHWV� ZLWK RQH VLWH DFKLHYLQJ ���� JRDOV E\ 0D\� (DFK VLWH

DFFRPPRGDWHG � WR � 7.�.LQGHU FODVVHV WR PHHW FRPPXQLW\ QHHGV� DQG RQH VLWH GRXEOHG

HQUROOPHQW FRPSDUHG WR ���������� $ FKDOOHQJH WKDW ZH IDFHG LQ PHHWLQJ FRPSOLDQFH

H[SHFWDWLRQV LQ ��������� ZDV VWDUWLQJ RII ZLWK VLJQLILFDQW VWDIILQJ VKRUWDJHV� PDNLQJ LW

FKDOOHQJLQJ WR PHHW WKH UHTXLUHG VWDII�WR�VWXGHQW UDWLRV� 7KLV LVVXH KLJKOLJKWHG WKH QHHG

IRU D PRUH UREXVW VWDIILQJ VWUDWHJ\ DQG FRQWLQJHQF\ SODQQLQJ� :H ZHUH DEOH WR GHYHORS

FRQWLQJHQF\ SODQV IRU VWDII VKRUWDJHV DQG IRFXVHG RQ HQKDQFLQJ UHFUXLWPHQW HIIRUWV�

2DNODQG /HDI VWULYHV WR FRQVLVWHQWO\ H[FHHG FRPSOLDQFH H[SHFWDWLRQV WKURXJK FRQWLQXRXV

LPSURYHPHQW� HQVXULQJ KLJK�TXDOLW\� LPSDFWIXO SURJUDPV IRU DOO VWXGHQWV�
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OAKLAND LEAF FOUNDATION
FY24 P&L

July 2023 - June 2024

A  !"#$ %#&'& (!')#*+ ,"$* -+ ./.0 112.3 A4 5467/82// 191

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET % OF BUDGET

Revenue

40000 Contributed Support

41000 Contract for Services 3,245,272.31 3,515,880.00 -270,607.69 92.30 %

42000 Corporations 34,782.00 48,240.00 -13,458.00 72.10 %

43000 Foundations 233,700.00 343,500.00 -109,800.00 68.03 %

44000 Events 168,963.44 265,000.00 -96,036.56 63.76 %

46000 Individual Contributions 136,269.00 132,120.00 4,149.00 103.14 %

49990 Other Income 2,534.63 2,534.63

Total 40000 Contributed Support 3,821,521.38 4,304,740.00 -483,218.62 88.77 %

49991 In-Kind Donation 3,000.00 3,000.00

Total Revenue $3,824,521.38 $4,304,740.00 $ -480,218.62 88.84 %

GROSS PROFIT $3,824,521.38 $4,304,740.00 $ -480,218.62 88.84 %

Expenditures

50010 DIRECT EXPENSES 94,467.28 203,608.00 -109,140.72 46.40 %

60000 PERSONNEL EXPENSES

60001 ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 606,840.26 677,495.00 -70,654.74 89.57 %

60002 PROGRAM STAFF 2,251,446.18 2,341,006.00 -89,559.82 96.17 %

69810 INDIRECT PERSONNEL EXPENSES 0.00 0.00

69840 PAYROLL TAXES + BENEFITS 419,333.37 719,331.00 -299,997.63 58.29 %

Total 60000 PERSONNEL EXPENSES 3,277,619.81 3,737,832.00 -460,212.19 87.69 %

62100 CONTRACT SERVICES - DIRECT 190,386.80 147,065.00 43,321.80 129.46 %

70000 FACILITIES EXPENSES- SHARED 76,851.25 70,565.00 6,286.25 108.91 %

80000 OPERATING EXPENSES-SHARED 161,048.50 136,864.00 24,184.50 117.67 %

Payroll Expenses 0.00 0.00

Total Expenditures $3,800,373.64 $4,295,934.00 $ -495,560.36 88.46 %

NET OPERATING REVENUE $24,147.74 $8,806.00 $15,341.74 274.22 %

Other Revenue $11,500.38 $0.00 $11,500.38 0.00%

Other Expenditures $ -0.86 $0.00 $ -0.86 0.00%

NET OTHER REVENUE $11,501.24 $0.00 $11,501.24 0.00%

NET REVENUE $35,648.98 $8,806.00 $26,842.98 404.83 %



OMB No. 1545-0047
Form 990

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax 2022
Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations)

Open to PublicDo not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.Department of the Treasury InspectionInternal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.
A For the 2022 calendar year, or tax year beginning , 2022, and ending , 20

Employer identification numberC DCheck if applicable:B

Address change

Telephone numberEName change

Initial return

Final return/terminated

$Amended return Gross receiptsG
Is this a group return for subordinates?H(a)Name and address of principal officer:FApplication pending Yes No

H(b) Are all subordinates included? Yes No
If "No," attach a list. See instructions.

( )Tax-exempt status: 501(c)(3) 501(c) (insert no.) 4947(a)(1) or 527I

Group exemption numberJ Website: H(c)

Form of organization: Corporation Trust Association Other Year of formation: State of legal domicile:K L M

Part I Summary
Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activities:1

Check this box if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.2
Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 3
Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 4
Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2022 (Part V, line 2a) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 5
Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 6
Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7a 7a
Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, Part I, line 11 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 7b

Prior Year Current Year
Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8
Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9
Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7d) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10
Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8c, 9c, 10c, and 11e). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11
Total revenue ' add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) . . . . . 12
Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13
Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14
Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10). . . . . . 15

Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11e). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16a

Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25)b

Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24e). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17
Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25). . . . . . . . . . . . . 18
Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19

End of YearBeginning of Current Year

Total assets (Part X, line 16). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20
Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21

Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22

Part II Signature Block
Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is true, correct, and
complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Signature of officer DateSign
Here

Type or print name and title

Print/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature Date PTINCheck if

self-employedPaid
Firm's namePreparer

Use Only Firm's EINFirm's address

Phone no.

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? See instructions. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Yes No

TEEA0101L  09/01/22BAA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. Form 990 (2022)

7/01 6/30 2023

OAKLAND LEAF FOUNDATION
520 3RD STREET, STE 109
OAKLAND, CA 94607

81-0565800

(510) 564-4334

X

WWW.OAKLANDLEAF.ORG

694,830.807,255.
176,328.43,728.
871,158.850,983.

-112,425.250,842.
2,829,821.2,311,147.

583,640.366,918.
264,107.

2,246,181.1,944,229.

2,717,396.2,561,989.
102,204.82,710.

279.3,294.

2,614,913.2,475,985.

0.
0.
0

91
12
13

CA2002X

2,740,202.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORMELISSA MENDEZ OCHOA

X

X

OAKLAND LEAF CULTIVATES COMMUNITY
TRANSFORMATION THROUGH CREATIVE EDUCATION FOR YOUTH AND FAMILIES. OAKLAND LEAF
RUNS 6 COMPREHENSIVE AFTERSCHOOL PROGRAMS, A SUMMER CAMP, AND TWO HIGH SCHOOL
INTERNSHIPS.

SUZANNE R. HEALY P00533689
HEALY AND ASSOCIATES

81-14898211200 CONCORD AVE STE 250
925-603-0800CONCORD, CA 94520

SAME AS C ABOVE
MELISSA MENDEZ OCHOA

SUZANNE R. HEALY



Form 990 (2022) Page 2

Part III Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part III. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Briefly describe the organization's mission:1

Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the prior2
Form 990 or 990-EZ?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Yes No
If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.

Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services?. . . . 3 Yes No
If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

4 Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses.
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses,
and revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

$ $ $(Code: ) (Expenses including grants of ) (Revenue )4a

$ $ $(Code: ) (Expenses including grants of ) (Revenue )4b

$ $ $(Code: ) (Expenses including grants of ) (Revenue )4c

Other program services (Describe on Schedule O.)4d
$ $ $(Expenses including grants of ) (Revenue )

4e Total program service expenses

Form 990 (2022)TEEA0102L   09/01/22BAA
2,398,343.

2,398,343.

X

X

81-0565800OAKLAND LEAF FOUNDATION

X

BRET HARTE AFTER-SCHOOL PROGRAM:
THE BRET HARTE AFTER-SCHOOL PROGRAM PROVIDES 140 YOUTH IN THE 6TH TO 8TH GRADE RANGE
THE ENVIRONMENT TO BE CREATIVE, STEWARDS, CRITICAL THINKERS AND ACTIVE PARTICIPANTS
IN THEIR SCHOOL IN ORDER TO BRING CHANGE TO THEIR IMMEDIATE COMMUNITY. YOUTH ARE
SUPPORTED IN CREATING ALLIANCES THAT ARE NURTURED THROUGH INDIVIDUAL DEVELOPMENT,
CROSS CULTURAL EXCHANGE, LEADERSHIP AND EXPOSURE TO THE WORLD BEYOND THEIR IMMEDIATE
COMMUNITY.

ICS AND TCN AFTER-SCHOOL PROGRAM:
THE ICS AND TCN AFTER-SCHOOL PROGRAM (ICS TCN ASP) EMPOWERS STUDENTS TO BE KEEPERS OF
THE COMMUNITY. THIS PROGRAM SERVES 160 STUDENTS ON AVERAGE PER DAY THAT ARE IN 1ST
THROUGH 5TH GRADE AT THE CESAR CHAVEZ SHARED CAMPUS. WITHIN A SAFE, CARING,
SUPPORTIVE, AND FUN LEARNING ENVIRONMENT ICS TCN ASP STUDENTS LET OUT THE INNER
ARTIST, SCHOLAR, ATHLETE, SCIENTIST, LEADER, AND CRITICAL THINKER WITHIN FOR THE
WORLD TO SEE. THEY ARE FREE TO EXPLORE THEIR IDENTITY, BE EXCITED ABOUT WHO THEY CAN
BE, LOVE WHO THEY ARE, AND TREAT OTHERS AS REFLECTIONS OF THEMSELVES.

ASCEND AFTER-SCHOOL PROGRAM (ASP):
ASCEND ASP AIMS TO PROVIDE WRAP-AROUND/HOLISTIC SUPPORT TO STUDENTS OF THE ASCEND
SCHOOL OFFERING ACADEMIC AND ENRICHMENT CLASSES THAT ENGAGE AND CHALLENGE STUDENTS IN
AN ENVIRONMENT THAT VALUES AND FOSTERS YOUTH LEADERSHIP, EMPOWERMENT, A SENSE OF
COMMUNITY, AND CRITICAL THINKING. ASCEND SERVES ON AVERAGE 110 STUDENTS PER DAY THAT
RANGE FROM KINDERGARTEN TO 8TH GRADE.

SEE SCHEDULE O

SEE SCHEDULE O



Form 990 (2022) Page 3

Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules
Yes No

Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? If "Yes," complete1
Schedule A. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors? See instructions. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 2

Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates3
for public office? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part I. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

4 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h) election
in effect during the tax year? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part II. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4

Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues,5
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-19? If "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part III . . . . . . 5

Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the right6
to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If "Yes," complete Schedule D,
Part I . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6

Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space, the7
environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part II. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7

Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If "Yes,"8
complete Schedule D, Part III. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8

Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a custodian9
for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation
services? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IV. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restricted endowments10
or in quasi endowments? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part V . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10

If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is "Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII, VIII, IX,11
or X, as applicable.

Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? If "Yes," complete Schedulea
D, Part VI . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11a
Did the organization report an amount for investments ' other securities in Part X, line 12, that is 5% or more of its totalb
assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VII . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11b

Did the organization report an amount for investments ' program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% or more of its totalc
assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIII. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11c

Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets reportedd
in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IX . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11d

Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X. . . . . . e 11e

Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addressesf
the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X . . . 11f

Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If "Yes," complete12a
Schedule D, Parts XI and XII . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12a

Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If "Yes," andb
if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XII is optional. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12b

Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii)? If "Yes," complete Schedule E. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13 13

Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14a 14a

Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising,b
business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued
at $100,000 or more? If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts I and IV. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14b

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for any15
foreign organization? If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts II and IV. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other assistance to16
or for foreign individuals? If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts III and IV. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16

Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part IX,17
column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part I. See instructions. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17

Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part VIII,18
lines 1c and 8a? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part II. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18

Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? If "Yes,"19
complete Schedule G, Part III. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19

20a20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If "Yes," complete Schedule H. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

If "Yes" to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 20b

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or21
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts I and II . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21
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Form 990 (2022) Page 4

Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules  (continued)
Yes No

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on Part IX,22
column (A), line 2? If "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts I and III. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22

Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5, about compensation of the organization's current23
and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? If "Yes," complete
Schedule J . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23

Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of24a
the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 2002? If a "Yes," answer lines 24b through 24d and
complete Schedule K. If "No," go to line 25a. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24a
Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 24b

Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defeasec
any tax-exempt bonds? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24c
Did the organization act as an "on behalf of" issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . d 24d

25a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
25atransaction with a disqualified person during the year? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part I. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior year, andb
that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? If "Yes," complete
Schedule L, Part I. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25b

Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for receivables from or payables to any current or26
former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35% controlled entity
or family member of any of these persons? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part II. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 26

Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key27
employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee
member, or to a 35% controlled entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these

27persons? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part III . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see the Schedule L, Part IV,28
instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):

A current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, or substantial contributor? Ifa
28a"Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

A family member of any individual described in line 28a? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 28b

A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or organizations described in line 28a or 28b? If "Yes,"c
complete Schedule L, Part IV. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28c
Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If "Yes," complete Schedule M. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29 29

Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified conservation30
contributions? If "Yes," complete Schedule M. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30
Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If "Yes," complete Schedule N, Part I . . . . . . 31 31

Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If "Yes," complete32
Schedule N, Part II. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32

Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations sections33
301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part I. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33

Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part II, III, or IV,34
and Part V, line 1. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 34
Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35a 35a

If "Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlledb
entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 35b

36 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related
36organization? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization and that is37
treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part VI. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 37

Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations on Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 19?38
Note: All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 38

Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Yes No
Enter the number reported in box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1a 1a
Enter the number of Forms W-2G included on line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable. . . . . . . . . . . b 1b

Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gamingc
(gambling) winnings to prize winners?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1c
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Form 990 (2022) Page 5

Part V Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (continued)
Yes No

Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax State-2a
ments, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return . . . . . 2a
If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 2b

Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3a 3a
If "Yes," has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If "No" to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedule O. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 3b

At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, a4a
financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? . . . . . . . . . 4a
If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign countryb
See instructions for filing requirements for FinCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).

Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5a 5a
Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction?. . . . . . . . . . . . b 5b
If "Yes," to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . c 5c

Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the organization6a
solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6a

If "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts wereb
not tax deductible?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6b

7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).

Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods anda
services provided to the payor?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7a
If "Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 7b
Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was required to filec

7cForm 8282? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

If "Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . d 7d
Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract?. . . . . . . . . . e 7e
Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . f 7f

If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899g
as required?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7g

If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file ah
7hForm 1098-C? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.  Did a donor advised fund maintained by the sponsoring

organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8

9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 9a
Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 9b

10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:

Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIII, line 12 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 10a
Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club facilities. . . . . b 10b

11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:

Gross income from members or shareholders. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 11a

Gross income from other sources. (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sourcesb
against amounts due or received from them.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11b

12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12a
If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year . . . . . . b 12b

13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 13a

Note: See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.

Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states inb
which the organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13b
Enter the amount of reserves on hand. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . c 13c
Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14a 14a

If "Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If "No," provide an explanation on Schedule O. . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 14b

15 Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
15excess parachute payment(s) during the year?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

If "Yes," see the instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.

16Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income?. . . . . . . . . 16
If "Yes," complete Form 4720, Schedule O.

17 Section 501(c)(21) organizations. Did the trust, or any disqualified or other person engage in any activities that would
17result in the imposition of an excise tax under section 4951, 4952, or 4953? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

If "Yes," complete Form 6069.
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Part VI Governance, Management, and Disclosure. For each "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for
a "No" response to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on
Schedule O. See instructions.
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VI. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Section A. Governing Body and Management
Yes No

Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year. . . . . . 1a 1a
If there are material differences in voting rights among members
of the governing body, or if the governing body delegated broad
authority to an executive committee or similar committee, explain on Schedule O.

Enter the number of voting members included on line 1a, above, who are independent. . . . . b 1b
Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other2
officer, director, trustee, or key employee? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct supervision3
of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3
Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents4
since the prior Form 990 was filed? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4
Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 5
Did the organization have members or stockholders?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 6
Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint one or more7a
members of the governing body? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7a

Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members,b
stockholders, or persons other than the governing body?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7b

Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by8
the following:

The governing body?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 8a
Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 8b

Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at the9
organization's mailing address? If "Yes," provide the names and addresses on Schedule O. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

Section B. Policies  (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)
Yes No

Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10a 10a

If "Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters, affiliates, and branches to ensure theirb
operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10b
Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11a 11a
Describe on Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.b
Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If "No," go to line 13. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12a 12a
Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give riseb
to conflicts? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12b

Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If "Yes," describe onc
Schedule O how this was done. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12c
Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13 13
Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14 14

Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by independent15
persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?

The organization's CEO, Executive Director, or top management official. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 15a
Other officers or key employees of the organization. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 15b
If "Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process on Schedule O. See instructions.

Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a16a
taxable entity during the year?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16a

If "Yes," did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate itsb
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the
organization's exempt status with respect to such arrangements?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16b

Section C. Disclosure
List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed17

Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T (section 501(c)(3)s only)18
available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.

Other (explain on Schedule O)Own website Another's website Upon request

Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial statements available to19
the public during the tax year.

State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization's books and records.20
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Part VII Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and
Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Section A.  Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the
organization's tax year.

? List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.

? List all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See the instructions for definition of "key employee."
? List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)

who received reportable compensation (box 5 of Form W-2, box 6 of Form 1099-MISC, and/or box 1 of Form 1099-NEC) of more than $100,000
from the organization and any related organizations.

? List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000
of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

? List all of the organization's former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

See the instructions for the order in which to list the persons above.

Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

(C)
Position (do not check more(A) (D) (E) (F)(B) than one box, unless person

Reportable ReportableName and title Average is both an officer and a Estimated amountcompensation from compensation fromhours director/trustee) of otherthe organization related organizationsper compensation from(W-2/1099- (W-2/1099-week the organizationMISC/1099-NEC) MISC/1099-NEC)(list any and relatedhours for organizationsrelated
organiza-

tions
below
dotted
line)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

TEEA0107L   09/01/22BAA Form 990 (2022)
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MELISSA MENDEZ OCHOA 40
EXECUTIVE DIR. 0 X 123,650. 0. 0.
MARINA ORTEGA 2
BOARD-CHAIR 0 X X 0. 0. 0.
ELIZABETH KIM 2
BOARD MEMBER 0 X 0. 0. 0.
SHAELYN DAWSON 2
BOARD MEMBER 0 X 0. 0. 0.
LEO KREMER 2
TREASURER 0 X X 0. 0. 0.
DEBRA LEVINSKY 2
BOARD MEMBER 0 X 0. 0. 0.
MONICA GUZMAN 2
BOARD MEMBER 0 X 0. 0. 0.
KIM BRONSON 2
BOARD MEMBER 0 X 0. 0. 0.
SCOTT SILLERS 2
BOARD MEMBER 0 X 0. 0. 0.
STEPHEN WALROD 2
BOARD MEMBER 0 X 0. 0. 0.
STEVEN TINDALL 2
BOARD MEMBER 0 X 0. 0. 0.
JOSE LUIS RODRIGUEZ 2
BOARD MEMBER 0 X 0. 0. 0.
AUDREY YANG 2
BOARD MEMBER 0 X 0. 0. 0.
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Part VII Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)

(B) (C)
Position (D) (E) (F)Average (do not check more than one(A)

hours box, unless person is both an Reportable ReportableName and title Estimated amountper officer and a director/trustee) compensation from compensation from
of otherweek the organization related organizations

compensation from(list any (W-2/1099- (W-2/1099-
the organizationhours MISC/1099-NEC) MISC/1099-NEC)

and relatedfor
organizationsrelated

organiza
- tions
below
dotted
line)

(15)

(16)

(17)

(18)

(19)

(20)

(21)

(22)

(23)

(24)

(25)

1b Subtotal. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

c Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

d Total (add lines 1b and 1c). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of reportable compensation2
from the organization

Yes No

3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee
3on line 1a? If "Yes,"complete Schedule J for such individual. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

4 For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from
the organization and related organizations greater than $150,000? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for

4such individual. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual
5for services rendered to the organization? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for such person. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of

compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.

(A) (B) (C)
Name and business address Description of services Compensation

Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than2
$100,000 of compensation from the organization

TEEA0108L  09/01/22BAA Form 990 (2022)
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0
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0.0.123,650.
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Part VIII Statement of Revenue
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

(A) (B) (C) (D)
Total revenue Related or Unrelated Revenue

exempt business excluded from tax
function revenue under sections
revenue 512-514

Federated campaigns. . . . . . . . . . 1a 1a
Membership dues. . . . . . . . . . . . . b 1b
Fundraising events. . . . . . . . . . . . c 1c
Related organizations . . . . . . . . . d 1d
Government grants (contributions). . . . . e 1e
All other contributions, gifts, grants, andf
similar amounts not included above. . . . 1f
Noncash contributions included ing

1glines 1a-1f. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
h Total. Add lines 1a-1f. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Business Code

2a

b

c

d

e
All other program service revenue. . . . f

g Total. Add lines 2a-2f. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Investment income (including dividends, interest, and3
other similar amounts). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds4
Royalties . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

(i) Real (ii) Personal

Gross rents . . . . . . . . 6a 6a

Less: rental expensesb 6b
Rental income or (loss)c 6c
Net rental income or (loss). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . d

(i) Securities (ii) Other
Gross amount from7a
sales of assets

7aother than inventory
Less: cost or other basisb

7band sales expenses

Gain or (loss). . . . . . . c 7c
Net gain or (loss) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . d

Gross income from fundraising events8a
(not including $
of contributions reported on line 1c).

See Part IV, line 18. . . . . . . . . . . . . 8a
Less: direct expenses . . . . . . b 8b
Net income or (loss) from fundraising events. . . . . . . . . . c

Gross income from gaming activities.9a
See Part IV, line 19. . . . . . . . . . . . . 9a
Less: direct expenses . . . . . . b 9b
Net income or (loss) from gaming activities. . . . . . . . . . . c

Gross sales of inventory, less . . . . . 10a
returns and allowances. . . . . . . . . . 10a
Less: cost of goods sold. . . . b 10b
Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory . . . . . . . . . . c

Business Code

11a

b

c
All other revenue. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . d

e Total. Add lines 11a-11d. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

12 Total revenue. See instructions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

TEEA0109L   09/01/22BAA Form 990 (2022)
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Part IX Statement of Functional Expenses
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

(A) (B) (C) (D)
Do not include amounts reported on lines Total expenses Management andProgram service Fundraising6b, 7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part  VIII. general expensesexpenses expenses

Grants and other assistance to domestic1
organizations and domestic governments.
See Part IV, line 21. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Grants and other assistance to domestic2
individuals. See Part IV, line 22. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Grants and other assistance to foreign3
organizations, foreign governments, and for-
eign individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16

Benefits paid to or for members. . . . . . . . . . . . . 4
Compensation of current officers, directors,5
trustees, and key employees. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
Compensation not included above to6
disqualified persons (as defined under
section 4958(f)(1)) and persons described
in section 4958(c)(3)(B) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Other salaries and wages. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7
Pension plan accruals and contributions8
(include section 401(k) and 403(b)
employer contributions) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Other employee benefits . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9
Payroll taxes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10
Fees for services (nonemployees):11
Management . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a
Legal. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b
Accounting . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . c
Lobbying. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . d
Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17. . . e
Investment management fees. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . f

g Other. (If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A), amount, list line 11g expenses on Schedule O.). . . . . 
Advertising and promotion. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12
Office expenses. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13
Information technology. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14
Royalties. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15
Occupancy . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16
Travel. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17
Payments of travel or entertainment18
expenses for any federal, state, or local
public officials . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Conferences, conventions, and meetings. . . . 19
Interest. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20
Payments to affiliates. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21
Depreciation, depletion, and amortization. . . . 22
Insurance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23
Other expenses. Itemize expenses not24
covered above. (List miscellaneous expenses
on line 24e. If line 24e amount exceeds 10%
of line 25, column (A), amount, list line 24e
expenses on Schedule O.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

a

b

c

d

All other expenses. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . e
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e. . . . 

26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if
the organization reported in column (B)
joint costs from a combined educational
campaign and fundraising solicitation.
Check here if following
SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
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13,087. 11,517. 654. 916.
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2,829,821. 2,398,343. 167,371. 264,107.

PROGRAM SUPPLIES
IN-KIND GOODS
INTERN STIPENDS
PAYROLL PROCESSING FEES
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Part X Balance Sheet
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year

Cash ' non-interest-bearing. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 1
Savings and temporary cash investments. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 2
Pledges and grants receivable, net. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 3
Accounts receivable, net. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 4

Loans and other receivables from any current or former officer, director,5
trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under6
6section 4958(f)(1)), and persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B). . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Notes and loans receivable, net. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 7
Inventories for sale or use. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 8
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9 9

Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other basis.10a
Complete Part VI of Schedule D. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10a
Less: accumulated depreciation. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 10b 10c

11Investments ' publicly traded securities. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11
12Investments ' other securities. See Part IV, line 11. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12
13Investments ' program-related. See Part IV, line 11 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 13
14Intangible assets. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14
15Other assets. See Part IV, line 11. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15
1616 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 33). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 17
Grants payable. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18 18
Deferred revenue. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19 19
Tax-exempt bond liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20 20
Escrow  or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D. . . . . . . . . . . 21 21
Loans and other payables to any current or former officer, director, trustee,22
key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22
Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23 23
Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24 24
Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third parties,25
and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X of Schedule D. 25

26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 26

Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here
and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33.
Net assets without donor restrictions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 27 27
Net assets with donor restrictions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 28 28

Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958, check here
and complete lines 29 through 33.

Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29 29
Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30 30
Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds. . . . . . . . . . . . 31 31
Total net assets or fund balances . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32 32
Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 33 33
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850,983. 871,158.



Form 990 (2022) Page 12

Part XI Reconciliation of Net Assets
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 1
Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 2
Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 3
Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 32, column (A)). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 4

Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 5
Donated services and use of facilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 6
Investment expenses. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 7
Prior period adjustments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8 8

Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain on Schedule O). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9 9

Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 32,10
column (B)) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10

Part XII Financial Statements and Reporting

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XII . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Yes No
Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: Cash Accrual Other1

If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explain
on Schedule O.

Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2a 2a

If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

Separate basis Consolidated basis Both consolidated and separate basis

Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 2b

If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a separate
basis, consolidated basis, or both:

Separate basis Consolidated basis Both consolidated and separate basis

c If "Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the audit,
review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2c

If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain
on Schedule O.
As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the Uniform3a
Guidance, 2 C.F.R Part 200, Subpart F?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3a

If "Yes," did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the required auditb
or audits, explain why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3b
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OMB No. 1545-0047Public Charity Status and Public Support
SCHEDULE A 2022Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section(Form 990)

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust.
Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public

Department of the Treasury InspectionGo to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.Internal Revenue Service

Name of the organization Employer identification number

Reason for Public Charity Status. (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.Part I
The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)

1 A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).
2 A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990).)

3 A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii).

4 A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the hospital's

name, city, and state:

5 An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in
section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part II.)

6 A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).
7 An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public described

in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.)

8 A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.)

An agricultural research organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college9
or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or

university:

10 An organization that normally receives (1) more than 33-1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts
from activities related to its exempt functions, subject to certain exceptions; and (2) no more than 33-1/3% of its support from gross
investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the organization after
June 30, 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part III.)

11 An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

12 An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of one
or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). Check the box on
lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

a Type I. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving the supported
organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the supporting organization. You must 
complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b Type II. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having control or
management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported organization(s). You
must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

c Type III functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with, its supported
organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d Type III non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s) that is not
functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness requirement (see
instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type I, Type II, Type III functionally
integrated, or Type III non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

Enter the number of supported organizations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . f
Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).g

(v)  Amount of monetary(i) Name of supported organization (vi)  Amount of other(iii) Type of organization(ii) EIN (iv) Is the
(described on lines 1-10 organization listed support (see instructions) support (see instructions)
above (see instructions)) in your governing

document?

Yes No

(A)

(B)

(C)

(D)

(E)

Total

BAA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule A (Form 990) 2022
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Part II Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under Part III. If the
organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part III.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year (a) 2018 (b) 2019 (c) 2020 (d) 2021 (e) 2022 (f) Total
beginning in)

Gifts, grants, contributions, and1
membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants."). . . . . . . . 

Tax revenues levied for the2
organization's benefit and
either paid to or expended
on its behalf. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

The value of services or3
facilities furnished by a
governmental unit to the
organization without charge. . . . 

4 Total. Add lines 1 through 3 . . . 

The portion of total5
contributions by each person
(other than a governmental
unit or publicly supported
organization) included on line 1
that exceeds 2% of the amount
shown on line 11, column (f). . . 

6 Public support. Subtract line 5
from line 4 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year (a) 2018 (b) 2019 (c) 2020 (d) 2021 (e) 2022 (f) Total
beginning in)

Amounts from line 4 . . . . . . . . . . 7

Gross income from interest,8
dividends, payments received
on securities loans, rents,
royalties, and income from
similar sources . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Net income from unrelated9
business activities, whether or
not the business is regularly
carried on. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Other income. Do not include10
gain or loss from the sale of
capital assets (Explain in
Part VI.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

11 Total support. Add lines 7
through 10. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12 12

13 First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check this box and stop here . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
Public support percentage for 2022 (line 6, column (f), divided by line 11, column (f)) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 14 14 %

Public support percentage from 2021 Schedule A, Part II, line 14 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . %15 15

16a 33-1/3% support test'2022. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33-1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

b 33-1/3% support test'2021. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33-1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test'2022. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is 10%
or more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how
the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization. . . . . . . . . . . . . 

b 10%-facts-and-circumstances test'2021. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line 15 is 10%
or more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the
organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see instructions . . . . . 

BAA Schedule A (Form 990) 2022
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Part III Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part I or if the organization failed to qualify under Part II. If the organization
fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part II.)

Section A. Public Support
(c) 2020Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2018 (b) 2019 (d) 2021 (e) 2022 (f) Total

Gifts, grants, contributions,1
and membership fees
received. (Do not include
any "unusual grants."). . . . . . . . . 
Gross receipts from admissions,2
merchandise sold or services
performed, or facilities
furnished in any activity that is
related to the organization's
tax-exempt purpose. . . . . . . . . . . 

Gross receipts from activities3
that are not an unrelated trade
or business under section 513 . 

Tax revenues levied for the4
organization's benefit and
either paid to or expended on
its behalf. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
The value of services or5
facilities furnished by a
governmental unit to the
organization without charge. . . . 

6 Total. Add lines 1 through 5 . . . 

Amounts included on lines 1,7a
2, and 3 received from
disqualified persons. . . . . . . . . . . 

Amounts included on lines 2b
and 3 received from other than
disqualified persons that
exceed the greater of $5,000 or
1% of the amount on line 13
for the year. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Add lines 7a and 7b. . . . . . . . . . . c

8 Public support. (Subtract line
7c from line 6.) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Section B. Total Support
(a) 2018 (b) 2019 (c) 2020 (d) 2021 (e) 2022 (f) TotalCalendar year (or fiscal year beginning in)

Amounts from line 6 . . . . . . . . . . 9
Gross income from interest, dividends,10a
payments received on securities loans,
rents, royalties, and income from
similar sources . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Unrelated business taxableb
income (less section 511
taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975. . . 

Add lines 10a and 10b. . . . . . . . . c
Net income from unrelated business11
activities not included on line 10b,
whether or not the business is
regularly carried on . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Other income.  Do not include12
gain or loss from the sale of
capital assets (Explain in
Part VI.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

13 Total support. (Add Iines 9,
10c, 11, and 12.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

14 First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check this box and stop here . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
%Public support percentage for 2022 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15 15
%Public support percentage from 2021 Schedule A, Part III, line 15. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16 16

Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
%17 Investment income percentage for 2022 (line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17
%18 Investment income percentage from 2021 Schedule A, Part III, line 17 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18

19a 33-1/3% support tests'2022. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33-1/3%, and line 17
is not more than 33-1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

b 33-1/3% support tests'2021. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33-1/3%, and
line 18 is not more than 33-1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization. . . . . . . 

20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 
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Part IV Supporting Organizations
(Complete only if you checked a box on line 12 of Part I. If you checked box 12a, Part I, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked box 12b, Part I, complete Sections A and C. If you checked box 12c, Part I, complete
Sections A, D, and E. If you checked box 12d, Part I, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)

Section A. All Supporting Organizations
Yes No

Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization's governing documents?1
If "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by class or purpose, describe
the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain. 1

Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status under section2
509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported organization was
described in section 509(a)(1) or (2). 2

Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? If "Yes," answer lines 3b3a
and 3c below. 3a

Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) andb
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? If "Yes," describe in Part VI when and how the organization
made the determination. 3b

c Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use. 3c

Was any supported organization not organized in the United States ("foreign supported organization")? If "Yes" anda4
if you checked box 12a or 12b in Part I, answer lines 4b and 4c below. 4a

Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign supportedb
organization? If "Yes," describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion despite being controlled
or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations. 4b

Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination underc
sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization used to ensure that
all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B) purposes. 4c

Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If "Yes," answer lines5a
5b and 5c below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN numbers of the
supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (ii) the reasons for each such action; (iii) the
authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action was

a5accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document).

Type I or Type II only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already designated in theb
organization's organizing document? b5

c Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control? 5c

6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (ii) individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited by one
or more of its supported organizations, or (iii) other supporting organizations that also support or benefit one or more of

6the filing organization's supported organizations? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI.

Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor7
(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity with
regard to a substantial contributor? If "Yes," complete Part I of Schedule L (Form 990). 7

Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described on line 7? If "Yes,"8
complete Part I of Schedule L  (Form 990). 8

Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more disqualified persons,9a
as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or (2))?
If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9a

Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined on line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which theb
supporting organization had an interest? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9b

Did a disqualified person (as defined on line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit from,c
assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9c

Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section 4943(f) (regarding10a
certain Type II supporting organizations, and all Type III non-functionally integrated supporting organizations)? If "Yes,"
answer line 10b below. 10a

Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to determineb
whether the organization had excess business holdings.) 10b

TEEA0404L   09/09/22BAA Schedule A (Form 990) 2022
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Supporting Organizations (continued)Part IV
Yes No

Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?11

a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described on lines 11b and 11c below,
the governing body of a supported organization? 11a

A family member of a person described on line 11a above?b 11b

c 11cA 35% controlled entity of a person described on line 11a or 11b above? If "Yes" to line 11a, 11b, or 11c, provide detail in Part VI.

Section B. Type I Supporting Organizations
Yes No

Did the governing body, members of the governing body, officers acting in their official capacity, or membership of one1
or more supported organizations have the power to regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization's
officers, directors, or trustees at all times during the tax year? If "No," describe in Part VI how the supported
organization(s) effectively operated, supervised, or controlled the organization's activities. If the organization had more
than one supported organization, describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove officers, directors, or trustees
were allocated among the supported organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers

1during the tax year.

2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported organization(s)
that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If "Yes," explain in Part VI how providing such
benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the

2supporting organization.

Section C. Type II Supporting Organizations
Yes No

1 Were a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors or trustees
of each of the organization's supported organization(s)? If "No," describe in Part VI how control or management of the

1supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed the supported organization(s).

Section D. All Type III Supporting Organizations
Yes No

1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization's tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (ii) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii) copies of the

1organization's governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided?

Were any of the organization's officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported2
organization(s) or (ii) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? If "No," explain in Part VI how
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s). 2

3 By reason of the relationship described on line 2, above, did the organization's supported organizations have a significant
voice in the organization's investment policies and in directing the use of the organization's income or assets at
all times during the tax year? If "Yes," describe in Part VI the role the organization's supported organizations played

3in this regard.

Section E. Type III Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations

1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions).

The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.a

The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.b

The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a governmental entity (see instructions).c

2 Activities Test. Answer lines 2a and 2b below. Yes No

a Did substantially all of the organization's activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of the
supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If "Yes," then in Part VI identify those supported
organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes, how the organization was
responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined that these activities constituted

2asubstantially all of its activities.

b Did the activities described on line 2a, above, constitute activities that, but for the organization's involvement, one or
more of the organization's supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? If "Yes," explain in Part VI the
reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in these activities

2bbut for the organization's involvement.

Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer lines 3a and 3b below.3

Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or trustees ofa
each of the supported organizations? If "Yes" or "No," provide details in Part VI. 3a

Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each of itsb
supported organizations? If "Yes," describe in Part VI the role played by the organization in this regard. 3b

TEEA0405L   09/09/22BAA Schedule A (Form 990) 2022
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Type III Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting OrganizationsPart V
1 Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part VI). See 

instructions. All other Type III non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

(B) Current Year(A) Prior YearSection A ' Adjusted Net Income (optional)

1 1Net short-term capital gain

2 2Recoveries of prior-year distributions

3 3Other gross income (see instructions)

4 4Add lines 1 through 3.

5 5Depreciation and depletion

6 Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or collection of gross
income or for management, conservation, or maintenance of property held for

6production of income (see instructions)

7 7Other expenses (see instructions)

8 8Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4)

(B) Current Year(A) Prior YearSection B ' Minimum Asset Amount (optional)

1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see instructions for short
tax year or assets held for part of year):

a 1aAverage monthly value of securities

b 1bAverage monthly cash balances

c Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets 1c

d 1dTotal (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1c)

e Discount claimed for blockage or other factors
(explain in detail in Part VI):

2 2Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets

3 3Subtract line 2 from line 1d.

4 Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 0.015 of line 3 (for greater amount,
4see instructions).

5 5Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3)

6 6Multiply line 5 by 0.035.

7 7Recoveries of prior-year distributions

8 8Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6)

Current YearSection C ' Distributable Amount

1 1Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, column A)

2 2Enter 0.85 of line 1.

3 3Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, column A)

4 4Enter greater of line 2 or line 3.

5 5Income tax imposed in prior year

6 Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to emergency
6temporary reduction (see instructions).

7 Check here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-functionally integrated Type III supporting organization
(see instructions).

BAA Schedule A (Form 990) 2022
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Type III Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued)Part V
Current YearSection D ' Distributions

1 1Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes

2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported organizations,
2in excess of income from activity

3 3Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations

4 4Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets

5 5Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required ' provide details in Part VI)
6 6Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions.

7 7Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6.
8 Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive (provide details

8in Part VI). See instructions.
9 9Distributable amount for 2022 from Section C, line 6

10 10Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount

(i) (ii) (iii)
Excess Underdistributions DistributableSection E ' Distribution Allocations (see instructions)

Distributions Pre-2022 Amount for 2022

1 Distributable amount for 2022 from Section C, line 6

2 Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2022 (reasonable
cause required ' explain in Part VI). See instructions.

3 Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2022

a From 2017. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

b From 2018. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

c From 2019. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

d From 2020. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

e From 2021. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

f Total of lines 3a through 3e

g Applied to underdistributions of prior years

h Applied to 2022 distributable amount

i Carryover from 2017 not applied (see instructions)

j Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from line 3f.

4 Distributions for 2022 from Section D,
line 7: $

a Applied to underdistributions of prior years

b Applied to 2022 distributable amount

Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from line 4.c

5 Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2022, if any.
Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result greater than
zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

6 Remaining underdistributions for 2022. Subtract lines 3h and 4b
from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in Part VI. See
instructions.

7 Excess distributions carryover to 2023. Add lines 3j and 4c.

8 Breakdown of line 7:

a Excess from 2018. . . . . . . 

b Excess from 2019. . . . . . . 

c Excess from 2020. . . . . . . 

d Excess from 2021. . . . . . . 

e Excess from 2022. . . . . . . 

BAA Schedule A (Form 990) 2022
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Part VI Supplemental Information.  Provide the explanations required by Part II, line 10; Part II, line 17a or 17b; Part
III, line 12; Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, 9c, 11a, 11b, and 11c; Part IV, Section
B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C, line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b,
3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V, Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E,
lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See instructions.)

BAA Schedule A (Form 990) 2022TEEA0408L   09/09/22

OAKLAND LEAF FOUNDATION 81-0565800

PART II, LINE 10 - OTHER INCOME

NATURE AND SOURCE 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

OTHER INCOME $ 651. $ 1,128. $ 7,371. $ 4,679.
TOTAL $ 651. $ 1,128. $ 7,371. $ 4,679. $ 0.



OMB No. 1545-0047Schedule B
Schedule of Contributors(Form 990)

2022Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-PF.
Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information.
Name of the organization Employer identification number

Organization type (check one):

Filers of: Section:

Form 990 or 990-EZ 501(c)( ) (enter number) organization

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust not treated as a private foundation

527 political organization

Form 990-PF 501(c)(3) exempt private foundation

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust treated as a private foundation

501(c)(3) taxable private foundation

Check if your organization is covered by the General Rule or a Special Rule.
Note: Only a section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) organization can check boxes for both the General Rule and a Special Rule. See instructions.

General Rule

For an organization filing Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF that received, during the year, contributions totaling $5,000
or more (in money  or property) from any one contributor. Complete Parts I and II. See instructions for determining
a contributor's total contributions.

Special Rules

For an organization described in section 501(c)(3) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that met the 33-1/3% support test of the
regulations under sections 509(a)(1) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi), that checked Schedule A (Form 990), Part II, line 13, 16a, or
16b, and that received from any one contributor, during the year, total contributions of the greater of (1) $5,000; or
(2) 2% of the amount on (i) Form 990, Part VIII, line 1h; or (ii) Form 990-EZ, line 1. Complete Parts I and II.

For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one
contributor, during the year, total contributions of more than $1,000 exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific,
literary, or educational purposes, or for the prevention of cruelty to children or animals. Complete Parts I (entering
"N/A" in column (b) instead of the contributor name and address), II, and III.

For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one
contributor, during the year, contributions exclusively for religious, charitable, etc., purposes, but no such
contributions totaled more than $1,000. If this box is checked, enter here the total contributions that were received
during the year for an exclusively religious, charitable, etc., purpose. Don't complete any of the parts unless the
General Rule applies to this organization because it received nonexclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions

$totaling $5,000 or more during the year. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Caution: An organization that isn't covered by the General Rule and/or the Special Rules doesn't file Schedule B (Form 990), but it
must answer "No" on Part IV, line 2, of its Form 990; or check the box on line H of its Form 990-EZ or on its Form 990-PF, Part I, line
2, to certify that it doesn't meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 990).

Schedule B (Form 990) (2022)BAA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF.

TEEA0701L   7/22/22
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Page 2Schedule B (Form 990) (2022)
Name of organization Employer identification number

Part I Contributors (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part I if additional space is needed.

(a) (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total  contributions Type of contribution

Person

Payroll

$ Noncash

(Complete Part II for
noncash contributions.)

(a) (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total  contributions Type of contribution

Person

Payroll

$ Noncash

(Complete Part II for
noncash contributions.)

(a) (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total  contributions Type of contribution

Person

Payroll

$ Noncash

(Complete Part II for
noncash contributions.)

(a) (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total  contributions Type of contribution

Person

Payroll

$ Noncash

(Complete Part II for
noncash contributions.)

(a) (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total  contributions Type of contribution

Person

Payroll

$ Noncash

(Complete Part II for
noncash contributions.)

(a) (b) (c) (d)
No. Name, address, and ZIP + 4 Total  contributions Type of contribution

Person

Payroll

$ Noncash

(Complete Part II for
noncash contributions.)

TEEA0702L   07/22/22BAA Schedule B (Form 990) (2022)

1 1

OAKLAND LEAF FOUNDATION 81-0565800

X1 CRANKSTART FOUNDATION

1660 BUSH STREET SUITE 300 101,500.

SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94109

X2 THE SAN FRANCISCO FOUNDATION: LOVE

1 EMBARCADERO CENTER SUITE #14 105,500.

SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94111



Page 3Schedule B (Form 990) (2022)
Name of organization Employer identification number

Part II Noncash Property (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part II if additional space is needed.

(a) No. (b) (c) (d)
from Description of noncash property given FMV (or estimate) Date received
Part I (See instructions.)

$

(a) No. (b) (c) (d)
from Description of noncash property given FMV (or estimate) Date received
Part I (See instructions.)

$

(a) No. (b) (c) (d)
from Description of noncash property given FMV (or estimate) Date received
Part I (See instructions.)

$

(a) No. (b) (c) (d)
from Description of noncash property given FMV (or estimate) Date received
Part I (See instructions.)

$

(a) No. (b) (c) (d)
from Description of noncash property given FMV (or estimate) Date received
Part I (See instructions.)

$

(a) No. (b) (c) (d)
from Description of noncash property given FMV (or estimate) Date received
Part I (See instructions.)

$

TEEA0703L   07/22/22BAA Schedule B (Form 990) (2022)

1 1

OAKLAND LEAF FOUNDATION 81-0565800
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Schedule B (Form 990) (2022) Page 4
Name of organization Employer identification number

Part III Exclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions to organizations described in section 501(c)(7), (8),
or (10) that total more than $1,000 for the year from any one contributor. Complete columns (a) through (e) and
the following line entry. For organizations completing Part III, enter the total of exclusively religious, charitable, etc.,
contributions of $1,000 or less for the year. (Enter this information once. See instructions.). . . . . . . . . . . . . $
Use duplicate copies of Part III if additional space is needed.

(a) No. (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is heldfrom
Part I

(e) Transfer of gift

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee

(a) No. (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is heldfrom
Part I

(e) Transfer of gift

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee

(a) No. (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is heldfrom
Part I

(e) Transfer of gift

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee

(a) No. (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is heldfrom
Part I

(e) Transfer of gift

Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee

TEEA0704L   07/22/22 Schedule B (Form 990) (2022)BAA

1 1
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OMB No. 1545-0047Supplemental Financial StatementsSCHEDULE D
(Form 990) Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, 2022

Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b.
Attach to Form 990. Open to PublicDepartment of the Treasury Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.Internal Revenue Service Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number

Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts.Part I
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

Total number at end of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

Aggregate value of contributions to (during year). . . . . . . 2
Aggregate value of grants from (during year). . . . . . . . . . 3
Aggregate value at end of year . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4

5 Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds
Yes Noare the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only
for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring

Yes Noimpermissible private benefit? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Part II Conservation Easements.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).1
Preservation of land for public use (for example, recreation or education) Preservation of a historically important land area

Protection of natural habitat Preservation of a certified historic structure

Preservation of open space

2 Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation easement on the
last day of the tax year.

Held at the End of the Tax Year
Total number of conservation easements. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 2 a
Total acreage restricted by conservation easements. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 2 b
Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in (a) . . . . . . . . . . . . . c 2 c

d Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after July 25, 2006 and not on a
2 dhistoric structure listed in the National Register . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the3
tax year

4 Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located

Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of violations,5
Yes Noand enforcement of the conservation easements it holds?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year6

Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year7

8 Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(i)
NoYesand section 170(h)(4)(B)(ii)?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

9 In Part XIII, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement and balance sheet, and
include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes the organization's accounting for
conservation easements.

Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.Part III
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

1 a If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art,
historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide in
Part XIII the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of art,
historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service, provide the
following amounts relating to these items:

$Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (i)
$Assets included in Form 990, Part X. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (ii)

2 If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the following
amounts required to be reported under FASB ASC 958 relating to these items:

$Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 1. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a
$Assets included in Form 990, Part X . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b

TEEA3301L   07/06/22BAA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule D (Form 990) 2022
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Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)Part III

3 Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its collection
items (check all that apply):

Public exhibition Loan or exchange programa d
Scholarly research Otherb e
Preservation for future generationsc

4 Provide a description of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpose in
Part XIII.

5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets
Yes Noto be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization's collection?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Part IV Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or 
reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

1 a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included
Yes Noon Form 990, Part X?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIII and complete the following table:b
Amount

Beginning balance. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . c 1 c
Additions during the year. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . d 1 d
Distributions during the year. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . e 1 e
Ending balance. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . f 1 f
Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability?. . . . . 2 a Yes No
If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIII. Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part XIII. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b

Endowment Funds. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.Part V
(a) Current year (b) Prior year (c) Two years back (d) Three years back (e) Four years back

Beginning of year balance. . . . . . 1 a
Contributions . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b

c Net investment earnings, gains,
and losses. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Grants or scholarships . . . . . . . . . d

e Other expenditures for facilities
and programs. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Administrative expenses. . . . . . . . f
End of year balance. . . . . . . . . . . . g
Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:2

%Board designated or quasi-endowmenta
%Permanent endowmentb

%Term endowment c
The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2c should equal 100%.

3 a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the
Yes Noorganization by:

Unrelated organizations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (i) 3a(i)
Related organizations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (ii) 3a(ii)

If "Yes" on line 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 3b
Describe in Part XIII the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds.4

Part VI Land, Buildings, and Equipment.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of property (d) Book value(a) Cost or other basis (b) Cost or other (c) Accumulated
(investment) basis (other) depreciation

Land. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 a
Buildings. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b
Leasehold improvements. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . c
Equipment. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . d
Other . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . e

Total. Add lines 1a through 1e. (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 10c.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Schedule D (Form 990) 2022BAA
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20,894. 17,412. 3,482.

3,482.



Schedule D (Form 990) 2022 Page 3

Part VII Investments ' Other Securities.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

(b) Book value(a) Description of security or category (including name of security) (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial derivatives. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

(2) Closely held equity interests. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

(3) Other

(A)

(B)

(C)

(D)

(E)

(F)

(G)

(H)

(I)

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B) line 12.) . . . . . 

Investments ' Program Related.Part VIII
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

(a) Description of investment (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X,  column (B) line 13.). . . . . 

Other Assets.Part IX
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

(a) Description (b) Book value
(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)
(5)

(6)

(7)
(8)

(9)

(10)

Total.  (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B) line 15.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Other Liabilities.Part X
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X, line 25.

(a) Description of liability (b) Book value1.
(1) Federal income taxes
(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B) line 25.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part XIII, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that reports the organization's liability for uncertain
tax positions under FASB ASC 740. Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XIII . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

TEEA3303L  07/06/22BAA Schedule D (Form 990) 2022

132,688.

81-0565800OAKLAND LEAF FOUNDATION
N/A

N/A

N/A

LINE OF CREDIT 100,000.
VACATION PAYABLE 32,688.
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Part XI Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 1
Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12:2
Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 2 a

b Donated services and use of facilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 b
Recoveries of prior year grants. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . c 2 c

d Other (Describe in Part XIII.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 d

e Add lines 2a through 2d. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 e
Subtract line 2e from line 1. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 3
Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on line 1:4
Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b. . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 4 a
Other (Describe in Part XIII.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 4 b

c Add lines 4a and 4b. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 c

5 Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 12.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

Part XII Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1 1
Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:2
Donated services and use of facilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 2 a
Prior year adjustments . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 2 b

c Other losses. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 c
Other (Describe in Part XIII.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . d 2 d

e Add lines 2a through 2d. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 e

3 Subtract line 2e from line 1. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b. . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 a
b Other (Describe in Part XIII.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 b
c Add lines 4a and 4b. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4 c

5 Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 18.). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

Supplemental Information.Part XIII

Provide the descriptions required for Part II, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part III, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V,
line 4; Part X, line 2; Part XI, lines 2d and 4b; and Part XII, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

BAA Schedule D (Form 990) 2022

TEEA3304L   07/06/22

OAKLAND LEAF FOUNDATION 81-0565800
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2,717,396.
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2,829,821.

2,829,821.



OMB No. 1545-0047Supplemental Information Regarding Fundraising or Gaming Activities
SCHEDULE G Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 17, 18, or 19, or if the
(Form 990) 2022organization entered more than $15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a.

 Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to PublicDepartment of the Treasury
 Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. InspectionInternal Revenue Service

Name of the organization Employer identification number

Fundraising Activities. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 17.Part I Form 990-EZ filers are not required to complete this part.

Indicate whether the organization raised funds through any of the following activities. Check all that apply.1
Mail solicitations Solicitation of non-government grantsa e

Internet and email solicitations Solicitation of government grantsb f

Phone solicitations Special fundraising eventsc g

In-person solicitationsd

2 a Did the organization have a written or oral agreement with any individual (including officers, directors, trustees, or key
Yes Noemployees listed in Form 990, Part VII) or entity in connection with professional fundraising services? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

If "Yes," list the 10 highest paid individuals or entities (fundraisers) pursuant to agreements under which the fundraiser is to beb
compensated at least $5,000 by the organization.

(v) Amount paid to (vi) Amount paid to(iii) Did fundraiser(i) Name and address of individual (iv) Gross receipts (or retained by)(ii) Activity (or retained by)have custody or controlor entity (fundraiser) from activity fundraiser listed in organizationof contributions? column (i)
Yes No

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

Total. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

3 List all states in which the organization is registered or licensed to solicit contributions or has been notified it is exempt from registration
or licensing.

BAA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule G (Form 990) 2022
TEEA3701L   07/05/22

X
X
XX
XX

81-0565800OAKLAND LEAF FOUNDATION

X

0.
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Fundraising Events. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 18, orPart II
reported more than $15,000 of fundraising event contributions and gross income on Form 990-EZ, lines 1
and 6b. List events with gross receipts greater than $5,000.

(d) Total events(a) Event #1 (b) Event #2 (c) Other events
(add column (a)

through column (c))
(event type) (event type) (total number)

Gross receipts . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

Less: Contributions. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

Gross income (line 1 minus line 2) . . . . . 3

Cash prizes. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4

Noncash prizes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

Rent/facility costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6

Food and beverages. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7

Entertainment. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8

Other direct expenses. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9

Direct expense summary. Add lines 4 through 9 in column (d). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10
Net income summary. Subtract line 10 from line 3, column (d). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11

Gaming. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 19, or reported morePart III
than $15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a.

(b) Pull tabs/instant (d) Total gaming
(a) Bingo (c) Other gamingbingo/progressive (add column (a)

bingo through column (c))

Gross revenue. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1

Cash prizes. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

Noncash prizes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

Rent/facility costs . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4

Other direct expenses. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5
% % %Yes Yes Yes

Volunteer labor . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6 No No No

Direct expense summary. Add lines 2 through 5 in column (d). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7

Net gaming income summary. Subtract line 7 from line 1, column (d). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8

Enter the state(s) in which the organization conducts gaming activities:9
Is the organization licensed to conduct gaming activities in each of these states? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a Yes No
If "No," explain:b

Were any of the organization's gaming licenses revoked, suspended, or terminated during the tax year?. . . . . . . . . . . . . 10 a Yes No
If "Yes," explain:b

TEEA3702L   07/05/22BAA Schedule G (Form 990) 2022

101,553.
22,806.

22,806.22,806.

124,359.124,359.

124,359.124,359.

81-0565800OAKLAND LEAF FOUNDATION

NONEGALA & MISC.
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Yes NoDoes the organization conduct gaming activities with nonmembers?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 11

Is the organization a grantor, beneficiary or trustee of a trust, or a member of a partnership or other entity formed to12
Yes Noadminister charitable gaming?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Indicate the percentage of gaming activity conducted in:13
The organization's facility. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . a 13 a %
An outside facility. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . b 13 b %
Enter the name and address of the person who prepares the organization's gaming/special events books and records:14

Name

Address

Does the organization have a contract with a third party from whom the organization receives gaming revenue? . . . . . . 15 a Yes No
$If "Yes," enter the amount of gaming revenue received by the organization and the amountb

$of gaming revenue retained by the third party

If "Yes," enter name and address of the third party:c

Name

Address

Gaming manager information:16

Name

$Gaming manager compensation

Description of services provided

Director/officer Employee Independent contractor

Mandatory distributions:17

Is the organization required under state law to make charitable distributions from the gaming proceeds to retain thea
state gaming license?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Yes No
Enter the amount of distributions required under state law to be distributed to other exempt organizations or spent in theb

$organization's own exempt activities during the tax year. . . 

Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part I, line 2b, columns (iii) and (v);Part IV
and Part III, lines 9, 9b, 10b, 15b, 15c, 16, and 17b, as applicable. Also provide any additional
information. See instructions.

TEEA3703L   0705/22BAA Schedule G (Form 990) 2022
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OMB No. 1545-0047SCHEDULE M Noncash Contributions
(Form 990) 2022Complete if the organizations answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, lines 29 or 30.

Attach to Form 990. Open to Public
Department of the Treasury Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. InspectionInternal Revenue Service

Name of the organization Employer identification number

Part I Types of Property
(a) (b) (c) (d)

Check if Number of Noncash contribution Method of determining
applicable contributions or amounts reported noncash contribution amounts

items contributed on Form 990,
Part VIII, line 1g

Art ' Works of art . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1
Art ' Historical treasures. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2
Art ' Fractional interests. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3
Books and publications. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4
Clothing and household goods. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5
Cars and other vehicles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6
Boats and planes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7
Intellectual property. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 8
Securities ' Publicly traded . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 9
Securities ' Closely held stock . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 10
Securities ' Partnership, LLC, or trust interests. . 11
Securities ' Miscellaneous. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 12

Qualified conservation contribution '13
Historic structures. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Qualified conservation contribution ' Other. . . . . . 14
Real estate ' Residential. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 15
Real estate ' Commercial. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16
Real estate ' Other. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17
Collectibles. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 18
Food inventory. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 19
Drugs and medical supplies. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 20
Taxidermy. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 21
Historical artifacts. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22
Scientific specimens . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23
Archeological artifacts. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 24

( ). . . . 25 Other

( ). . . . 26 Other

( ). . . . 27 Other

( ). . . . 28 Other

Number of Forms 8283 received by the organization during the tax year for contributions for which the29
organization completed Form 8283, Part V, Donee Acknowledgement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 29

Yes No

During the year, did the organization receive by contribution any property reported in Part I, lines 1 through 28, that30a
it must hold for at least 3 years from the date of the initial contribution, and which isn't required to be used
for exempt purposes for the entire holding period?. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30 a
If "Yes," describe the arrangement in Part II.b
Does the organization have a gift acceptance policy that requires the review of any nonstandard contributions?. . . . . 31 31

Does the organization hire or use third parties or related organizations to solicit, process, or sell noncash32a
contributions? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 32 a
If "Yes," describe in Part II.b
If the organization didn't report an amount in column (c) for a type of property for which column (a) is checked,33
describe in Part II.

BAA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule M (Form 990) 2022

TEEA4601L   09/09/22

X

X

X

OAKLAND LEAF FOUNDATION 81-0565800

PROG SUPPLIES 60,205. FMV
SUPPLIES/AUCTIO 22,770.
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Part II Supplemental Information. Provide the information required by Part I, lines 30b, 32b, and 33, and whether
the organization is reporting in Part I, column (b), the number of contributions, the number of items
received, or a combination of both. Also complete this part for any additional information.

TEEA4602L 07/12/22BAA Schedule M (Form 990) 2022

OAKLAND LEAF FOUNDATION 81-0565800



OMB No. 1545-0047Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZSCHEDULE O
(Form 990) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 2022Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.

Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.
Open to Public

Department of the Treasury Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. InspectionInternal Revenue Service

Name of the organization Employer identification number

TEEA4901L   07/22/22 Schedule O (Form 990) 2022BAA  For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ.

81-0565800OAKLAND LEAF FOUNDATION

FORM 990, PART III, LINE 1 - ORGANIZATION MISSION

OAKLAND LEAF SPURS CREATIVE AND EDUCATIONAL GROWTH FOR OAKLAND YOUTH BY PROVIDING

PROGRAMS THAT CULTIVATE CRITICAL THINKING SKILLS, EMPHASIZE SOCIOEMOTIONAL LEARNING

OPPORTUNITIES, AND SUPPORT AUTHENTIC LEADERSHIP DEVELOPMENT. OAKLAND LEAF

FACILITATED DYNAMIC AFTER-SCHOOL PROGRAMS FOR  K-8 STUDENTS  AT SIX HIGH NEED

SCHOOLS: ASCEND, BRET HARTE, ENCOMPASS ACADEMY, INTERNATIONAL COMMUNITY SCHOOL,

LEARNING WITHOUT LIMITS, AND THINK COLLEGE NOW. OAKLAND LEAF YOUTH CREATED

INTENTIONAL COMMUNITIES, EXPERIENCED NEW CREATIVE EXPERIENCES, AND DEVELOPED

CONFIDENCE IN THEIR UNIQUE VOICE.

FORM 990, PART III, LINE 4D - OTHER PROGRAM SERVICES DESCRIPTION

ENCOMPASS AFTER-SCHOOL PROGRAM (ASP):

ENCOMPASS AFTER-SCHOOL PROGRAM PROVIDES EXTENDED ACADEMIC AND ENRICHMENT SERVICES TO

100 STUDENTS IN 1ST -5TH GRADE. STUDENTS IN PROGRAM DEVELOP AND STRENGTHEN THEIR

ACADEMIC, PHYSICAL, SOCIAL, LIFE, AND LEADERSHIP SKILLS. WE AIM TO OFFER A

CULTURALLY SENSITIVE, RESPONSIBLE, AND RESPONSIVE PROGRAM AIMED TO DEVELOP STUDENTS

INTO CONFIDENT AND COMPASSIONATE LEADERS. FOR THIS YEAR, THIS PROGRAM WAS CONSIDERED

A “THRIVING” PROGRAM AND SCORED A 4.77 OUT OF A 5.0 SCALE ACCORDING TO THE YOUTH

PROGRAM QUALITY ASSESSMENT.

LEARNING WITHOUT LIMITS AFTER-SCHOOL PROGRAM:

LEARNING WITHOUT LIMITS AFTER-SCHOOL PROGRAM IS DEDICATED TO ENHANCING THE LEARNING

EXPERIENCE OF 85 STUDENTS IN 1ST THROUGH 5TH GRADE AT LEARNING WITHOUT LIMITS BY

OFFERING ACADEMIC AND ENRICHMENT CLASSES THAT ENGAGE, CHALLENGE, AND EMPOWERS

STUDENTS TO EXPLORE AND TAKE ON YOUTH LEADERSHIP, THINK CRITICALLY, AND BUILD A

SENSE OF COMMUNITY.



Schedule O (Form 990) 2022 Page 2
Name of the organization Employer identification number

BAA Schedule O (Form 990) 2022

TEEA4902L   07/22/22

81-0565800OAKLAND LEAF FOUNDATION

FORM 990, PART III, LINE 4D - OTHER PROGRAM SERVICES DESCRIPTION

OAKLAND PEACE CAMP:

OAKLAND PEACE CAMP (OPC) FINISHED ITS 13TH YEAR IN SUMMER 2015. OPC IS A FREE

FOUR-WEEK SUMMER CAMP FOR 120 YOUTH 10 TO 18 YEARS OLD, THAT UTILIZES A

PROJECT-BASED ARTS, SOCIAL JUSTICE, AND SCIENCE BASED CURRICULUM. OAKLAND PEACE CAMP

EMPHASIZES YOUTH EMPOWERMENT, ARTS-BASED LEARNING, COMMUNITY ACTIVISM, CULTURAL

LITERACY, AND REFLECTION. PEACE CAMP HELPS BUILD A COHESIVE COMMUNITY BY ENCOURAGING

OAKLAND LEAF STUDENTS, INTERNS, AND FAMILIES TO INTERACT AND LEARN FROM EACH OTHER

LOVE CULTIVATING SCHOOLYARDS:

WITH LOVE CULTIVATING SCHOOLYARDS (LCS) YOUTH BECOME ACTIVE KEEPERS OF THE LAND

THROUGH HANDS-ON GARDEN ACTIVITIES AND LEADERSHIP OPPORTUNITIES. LCS ALLOWS 15 HIGH

SCHOOL PAID YOUTH INTERNS TO LEARN ABOUT ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE AND TEACH A GARDEN

CLASS TO 15-20 ELEMENTARY AGED STUDENTS.

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 11B - FORM 990 REVIEW PROCESS

THE TAX RETURN IS PREPARED BY AN OUTSIDE ACCOUNTING FIRM.  AFTER COMPLETION OF SAID

RETURNS, THE ORGANIZATION IS SENT A DRAFT OF THE TAX RETURNS TO BE REVIEWED AND

EXAMINED.  THE ORGANIZATION MAKES COPIES OF THE RETURNS AND DISTRIBUTES TO THOSE

INDIVIDUALS CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE.  THOSE INDIVIDUALS AT THAT TIME CAN REVIEW AND

IF APPLICABLE DISCUSS ANY LINE ITEMS IN THE RETURN WITH THE ACCOUNTANT WHO HAS

PREPARED THE RETURN.  IF ALL ITEMS ARE FOUND TO BE ACCEPTABLE, AN AUTHORIZATION IS

SIGNED AND PROVIDED TO AUTHORIZE THE OUTSIDE ACCOUNTING FIRM TO PROCESS, SIGN AND

PROVIDE COPIES OF THE RETURNS TO BE FILED (PAPER OR ELECTRONICALLY) WITH THE

DESIGNATED GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES. THE TAX RETURNS ARE THEN SIGNED BY THE

ORGANIZATION, STAMPED AND MAILED WITH CERTIFIED RETURN RECEIPT OR THE SIGNED FORM

8879 IS PROVIDED TO THE OUTSIDE ACCOUNTING FIRM ALLOWING ELECTRONIC FILING.
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FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 12C - EXPLANATION OF MONITORING AND ENFORCEMENT OF CONFLICTS

ORGANIZATION REQUIRES ANNUAL UPDATES TO CONFLICT OF INTEREST STATEMENTS.

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 15A - COMPENSATION REVIEW & APPROVAL PROCESS - CEO & TOP MANAGEMENT

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS REVIEWS THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S ANNUAL SALARY FOR

PERFORMANCE AND NONPROFIT SUPPORT AGENCY INDUSTRY WAGE RELATED DECISIONS.

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 18 - EXPLANATION OF OTHER MEANS FORMS AVAILABLE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION

FEDERAL TAX RETURNS ARE AVAILABLE AT GUIDESTAR.ORG & CHARITYNAVIGATOR.ORG.

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 19 - OTHER ORGANIZATION DOCUMENTS PUBLICLY AVAILABLE

GOVERNING DOCUMENTS ARE AVAILABLE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION AT THE PRINCIPAL PLACE OF

BUSINESS.

THE CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY AND THE ORGANIZATION'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE

AVAILABLE UPON REQUEST.
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ZULWLQJ�DQG�ZH�GR�QRW�UHFHLYH�LW�ZLWKLQ����EXVLQHVV�GD\V��ZH�PD\�QRW�FUHGLW�\RXU�
DFFRXQW��

)RU�HUURUV�LQYROYLQJ�QHZ�DFFRXQWV��SRLQW�RI�VDOH��RU�IRUHLJQ��LQLWLDWHG�WUDQVDFWLRQV��
ZH�PD\�WDNH�XS�WR����GD\V�WR�LQYHVWLJDWH�\RXU�FRPSODLQW�RU�TXHVWLRQ��)RU�QHZ�
DFFRXQWV��ZH�PD\�WDNH�XS�WR����EXVLQHVV�GD\V�WR�FUHGLW�\RXU�DFFRXQW�IRU�WKH�DPRXQW�
\RX�WKLQN�LV�LQ�HUURU��

:H�ZLOO�WHOO�\RX�WKH�UHVXOWV�ZLWKLQ�WKUHH�EXVLQHVV�GD\V�DIWHU�FRPSOHWLQJ�RXU�
LQYHVWLJDWLRQ��,I�ZH�GHFLGH�WKDW�WKHUH�ZDV�QR�HUURU��ZH�ZLOO�VHQG�\RX�D�ZULWWHQ�
H[SODQDWLRQ��<RX�PD\�DVN�IRU�FRSLHV�RI�WKH�GRFXPHQWV�WKDW�ZH�XVHG�LQ�RXU�
LQYHVWLJDWLRQ��

��RI��
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����������2$./$1'�/($)�)281'$7,21�������������������3DJH����������������������������������������
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��$FFRXQW�1XPEHU�������������'����������������
����������������������7<3(�2)�$&&2817��,QWHUHVW�%XVLQHVV�&KHFNLQJ�������������������������������
BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB��6WDWHPHQW�6XPPDU\��BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB������������
%HJLQQLQJ�%DODQFH�������������������������������������������������������������������������������
'HSRVLWV�&UHGLWV�����������������������������������&UHGLWV��������������������������������������
&KHFNV�'HELWV��������������������������������������'HELWV���������������������������������������
,QWHUHVW�3DLG�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
(QGLQJ�%DODQFH����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB��&UHGLWV�'HSRVLWV��BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB������������
'DWH�����������$PRXQW����'HVFULSWLRQ������������������������������������������������������������
�������������������������a������a�5HSOHQLVK�/LQH�2I�&UHGLW�,QWHUH��7UDQVIHU���������������������
��������������������������)URP�
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�������������������������,QWHUHVW�'HSRVLWHG�����������������������������������������������������
BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB��2WKHU�'HELWV��BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB������������
'DWH�����������$PRXQW����'HVFULSWLRQ������������������������������������������������������������
�������������������������$XWRPDWLF�7UDQVIHU�(IW�7UDQVIHU�'HELW����������������������������������
BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB��'DLO\�%DODQFH�,QIRUPDWLRQ��BBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBBB������������
'DWH��������������������%DODQFH����'DWH���������%DODQFH����'DWH���������%DODQFH�����������������
%HJLQQLQJ�%DODQFH�������������������������������������������������������������������������������
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
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,Q�&DVH�RI�(UURUV�RU�4XHVWLRQV�$ERXW�<RXU�(OHFWURQLF�7UDQVIHUV�7HOHSKRQH�XV�DW�
����������������ZULWH�XV�DW�%HQHILFLDO�6WDWH�%DQN��&XVWRPHU�&DOO�&HQWHU��
�����1(�0�/��.LQJ�%OYG��3RUWODQG��2UHJRQ��������RU�HPDLO�XV�DW�
VXSSRUW#EHQHILFLDOVWDWH�FRP�DV�VRRQ�DV�\RX�FDQ��LI�\RX�WKLQN�\RXU�VWDWHPHQW�RU�
UHFHLSW�LV�ZURQJ�RU�LI�\RX�QHHG�PRUH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DERXW�D�WUDQVIHU�OLVWHG�RQ�WKH�
VWDWHPHQW�RU�UHFHLSW��:H�PXVW�KHDU�IURP�\RX�QR�ODWHU�WKDQ����GD\V�DIWHU�ZH�VHQW�WKH�
),567�VWDWHPHQW�RQ�ZKLFK�WKH�SUREOHP�RU�HUURU�DSSHDUHG��

����7HOO�XV�\RXU�QDPH�DQG�DFFRXQW�QXPEHU��LI�DQ\���
����'HVFULEH�WKH�HUURU�RU�WKH�WUDQVIHU�\RX�DUH�XQVXUH�DERXW��DQG�H[SODLQ�DV�FOHDUO\�
DV�\RX�FDQ�ZK\�\RX�EHOLHYH�LW�LV�DQ�HUURU�RU�ZK\�\RX�QHHG�PRUH�LQIRUPDWLRQ��
����7HOO�XV�WKH�GROODU�DPRXQW�RI�WKH�VXVSHFWHG�HUURU��
,I�\RX�WHOO�XV�RUDOO\��ZH�PD\�UHTXLUH�WKDW�\RX�VHQG�XV�\RXU�FRPSODLQW�RU�TXHVWLRQ�LQ�
ZULWLQJ�ZLWKLQ����EXVLQHVV�GD\V��

:H�ZLOO�GHWHUPLQH�ZKHWKHU�DQ�HUURU�RFFXUUHG�ZLWKLQ����EXVLQHVV�GD\V�DIWHU�ZH�KHDU�
IURP�\RX�DQG�ZLOO�FRUUHFW�DQ\�HUURU�SURPSWO\��,I�ZH�QHHG�PRUH�WLPH��KRZHYHU��ZH�PD\�
WDNH�XS�WR����GD\V�WR�LQYHVWLJDWH�\RXU�FRPSODLQW�RU�TXHVWLRQ��,I�ZH�GHFLGH�WR�GR�
WKLV��ZH�ZLOO�FUHGLW�\RXU�DFFRXQW�ZLWKLQ����EXVLQHVV�GD\V�IRU�WKH�DPRXQW�\RX�WKLQN�LV�
LQ�HUURU��VR�WKDW�\RX�ZLOO�KDYH�WKH�XVH�RI�WKH�PRQH\�GXULQJ�WKH�WLPH�LW�WDNHV�XV�WR�
FRPSOHWH�RXU�LQYHVWLJDWLRQ��,I�ZH�DVN�\RX�WR�SXW�\RXU�FRPSODLQW�RU�TXHVWLRQ�LQ�
ZULWLQJ�DQG�ZH�GR�QRW�UHFHLYH�LW�ZLWKLQ����EXVLQHVV�GD\V��ZH�PD\�QRW�FUHGLW�\RXU�
DFFRXQW��

)RU�HUURUV�LQYROYLQJ�QHZ�DFFRXQWV��SRLQW�RI�VDOH��RU�IRUHLJQ��LQLWLDWHG�WUDQVDFWLRQV��
ZH�PD\�WDNH�XS�WR����GD\V�WR�LQYHVWLJDWH�\RXU�FRPSODLQW�RU�TXHVWLRQ��)RU�QHZ�
DFFRXQWV��ZH�PD\�WDNH�XS�WR����EXVLQHVV�GD\V�WR�FUHGLW�\RXU�DFFRXQW�IRU�WKH�DPRXQW�
\RX�WKLQN�LV�LQ�HUURU��

:H�ZLOO�WHOO�\RX�WKH�UHVXOWV�ZLWKLQ�WKUHH�EXVLQHVV�GD\V�DIWHU�FRPSOHWLQJ�RXU�
LQYHVWLJDWLRQ��,I�ZH�GHFLGH�WKDW�WKHUH�ZDV�QR�HUURU��ZH�ZLOO�VHQG�\RX�D�ZULWWHQ�
H[SODQDWLRQ��<RX�PD\�DVN�IRU�FRSLHV�RI�WKH�GRFXPHQWV�WKDW�ZH�XVHG�LQ�RXU�
LQYHVWLJDWLRQ��
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�ƀŚĥƀãŏ͓iãőãĥČƀ͓]Śþ͓$ČƈÿƀıŽƔıŚő
̹¢�Itta͓k�i*̺͓�ĤƔČƀƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓�ƀŚĥƀãŏ

͓�þŚƜƔ͓tãńŇãőĆ͓aČãĤ͓
tãńŇãőĆ͓ aČãĤ͓ ƴãƈ͓ ĤŚƜőĆČĆ͓ ıő͓ ˠ˞˞˟͓ þƺ͓ ã͓ ÿŚŇŇČÿƔıƳČ͓ ŚĤ͓ *ãƈƔ͓ tãńŇãőĆ͓ ČĆƜÿãƔŚƀƈ͓ ıőƔČőƔ͓ Śő͓
ČŏŽŚƴČƀıőĥ͓ƺŚƜƔĬ͓ƳŚıÿČ̮͓¢ıőÿČ͓ ƔĬãƔ͓ƔıŏČ͓ƴČ͓ĬãƳČ͓ĆČƳČŇŚŽČĆ͓ıőƔŚ͓ã͓ĬıĥĬŇƺ͓ƀČĥãƀĆČĆ͓ƺŚƜƔĬ͓
ĆČƳČŇŚŽŏČőƔ͓ ıőƈƔıƔƜƔıŚő͓ ŽƀŚƳıĆıőĥ͓ ĤƀČČ͓ ŽƀŚĥƀãŏŏıőĥ͓ ƔŚ͓ ƜŽƴãƀĆƈ͓ ŚĤ͓ ˟̩˞˞˞͓ƺŚƜƔĬ͓ãőőƜãŇŇƺ̮͓
tƜƀ͓ ĥŚãŇ͓ ıƈ͓ ƔŚ͓ ČŏŽŚƴČƀ͓ ƺŚƜƔĬ͓ ƴıƔĬ͓ ƔĬČ͓ ÿŚőǌĆČőÿČ͓ ƔŚ͓ ČƹŽŇŚƀČ͓ ŇıĤČ͓ ƴıƔĬ͓ ÿƜƀıŚƈıƔƺ͓ ãőĆ͓
ČƹÿıƔČŏČőƔ̩͓ãĆƳŚÿãƔČ͓ĤŚƀ͓ƔĬČŏƈČŇƳČƈ͓ãőĆ͓ƔĬČıƀ͓ÿŚŏŏƜőıƔƺ̩͓ãőĆ͓ÿãƔãŇƺǄČ͓ÿĬãőĥČ͓ãƈ͓ŇČãĆČƀƈ̮͓
tƜƀ͓ÿŚŏŽƀČĬČőƈıƳČ͓ãĤƔČƀ́ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ŽƀŚĥƀãŏƈ͓ČŏŽĬãƈıǄČ̨͓ƈŚÿıãŇ͓ČŏŚƔıŚőãŇ͓ŇČãƀőıőĥ̩͓ĬČãŇƔĬ͓ãőĆ͓
ƴČŇŇőČƈƈ̩͓ ČŏŽŚƴČƀŏČőƔ͓ãőĆ͓ ŇČãĆČƀƈĬıŽ̩͓ ãƀƔƈ͓ ãőĆ͓ÿƜŇƔƜƀČ̩͓ ãőĆ͓ĬãƳıőĥ͓ ĤƜő͓ ͓́́þČÿãƜƈČ͓ńıĆƈ͓
ĆČƈČƀƳČ͓ƔŚ͓þČ͓ńıĆƈ̫

ÎĬŚ͓ƴČ͓ãƀČ
ÎČ͓ ãƀČ͓ ã͓ÿŚŇŇČÿƔıŚő͓ŚĤ͓ČĆƜÿãƔŚƀƈ̩͓ ãƀƔıƈƔƈ̩͓ ÿƀČãƔıƳČƈ̩͓ ãƔĬŇČƔČƈ̩͓ ãÿƔıƳıƈƔƈ̩͓ ŇıĤČ͓ČőƔĬƜƈıãƈƔƈ̩͓ ãőĆ͓
ãþŚƳČ͓ ãŇŇ̩͓ ŽãƈƈıŚőãƔČ͓ ƈƜŽŽŚƀƔČƀƈ͓ ŚĤ͓ ƺŚƜƔĬ͓ ıő͓ ŚƜƀ͓ ƈĬãƀČĆ͓ÿŚŏŏƜőıƔıČƈ̮͓ NĤ͓ ƺŚƜ͓ŽŚƈƈČƈƈ͓ ƔĬČ͓
ŽãƈƈıŚő͓ƔŚ͓ŏãńČ͓tãńŇãőĆ͓ã͓ŏŚƀČ͓ŇŚƳıőĥ̩͓ŁƜƈƔ̩͓ãőĆ͓ƳıþƀãőƔ͓ŽŇãÿČ̩͓ƔĬČő͓tãńŇãőĆ͓aČãĤ͓ŏıĥĬƔ͓þČ͓
ƔĬČ͓ŽŇãÿČ͓ĤŚƀ͓ƺŚƜ͓ƔŚ͓ƀŚŚƔ͓ıő̩͓ƀıƈČ͓ƜŽ͓ãőĆ͓þƀãőÿĬ͓ŚƜƔ̮͓

̹¢�Itta͓k�i*̺͓�ĤƔČƀƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓�ƀŚĥƀãŏ
tãńŇãőĆ͓aČãĤ͌ƈ͓͓ �ĤƔČƀƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓�ƀŚĥƀãŏ͓̻�¢�̼͓ãƔ͓̹¢�Itta͓k�i*̺͓ıƈ͓ã͓ĤƀČČ͓ŽƀŚĥƀãŏ͓ŽƀŚƳıĆıőĥ͓
ÿƜŇƔƜƀãŇŇƺ͓ ƀČŇČƳãőƔ͓ ČőƀıÿĬŏČőƔ͓ ÿŇãƈƈČƈ̩͓ ƈŚÿıãŇ́ČŏŚƔıŚőãŇ͓ ŇČãƀőıőĥ͓ ŚŽŽŚƀƔƜőıƔıČƈ̩͓ ãőĆ͓
ãÿãĆČŏıÿ͓ ƈƜŽŽŚƀƔ͓ ƔŚ͓ ƈƔƜĆČőƔƈ͓ ˣ͓ Ćãƺƈ͓ ŽČƀ͓ ƴČČń̮͓ ̹¢�Itta͓ k�i*̺͓ �¢�͓ ıƈ͓ ĆČƈıĥőČĆ͓ ƔŚ͓
ÿƜŇƔıƳãƔČ͓ ã͓ ƈČőƈČ͓ ŚĤ͓ þČŇŚőĥıőĥ̩͓ ãĥČőÿƺ̩͓ ãőĆ͓ ƈŚÿıãŇ͓ ƀČƈŽŚőƈıþıŇıƔƺ͓ ãŏŚőĥ͓ ƈƔƜĆČőƔƈ̩͓ ãőĆ͓
ƈƜŽŽŚƀƔ͓ƔĬČıƀ͓ĆČƳČŇŚŽŏČőƔ͓ıőƔŚ͓ÿŚŏŽãƈƈıŚőãƔČ̩͓ÿƀČãƔıƳČ̩͓ČőĥãĥČĆ͓ÿŚŏŏƜőıƔƺ͓ŇČãĆČƀƈ̮

¯Ĭıƈ͓ ŽƀŚĥƀãŏ͓ ƔãńČƈ͓ŽŇãÿČ͓ãƔ͓ ̹¢�Itta͓Î*�¢N¯*͓aNk_̺͓ƴĬČƀČ͓tãńŇãőĆ͓aČãĤ͓ ƈČƀƳČƈ͓ãƈ͓ ƔĬČ͓
aČãĆ͓�ĥČőÿƺ̮

¢Ɯŏŏãƀƺ͓ŚĤ͓�ŚƈıƔıŚő
¯ĬČ͓ �ƀŚĥƀãŏ͓ iãőãĥČƀ͓ ŽƀŚƳıĆČƈ͓ ŚƳČƀãŇŇ͓ ŏãőãĥČŏČőƔ͓ ŚĤ͓tãńŇãőĆ͓aČãĤ͌ƈ͓ ̹¢�Itta͓k�i*̺͓
�ĤƔČƀƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ �ƀŚĥƀãŏ͓ ıőÿŇƜĆıőĥ͓ ƈƜŽČƀƳıƈıŚő͓ ŚĤ͓ ƈƔãǉ̩͓ ŏãıőƔãıőıőĥ͓ ƔĬČ͓ ŽƀŚĥƀãŏ͓ þƜĆĥČƔ̩͓
ČőƈƜƀıőĥ͓ ıŏŽŇČŏČőƔãƔıŚő͓ ŚĤ͓ ŽŚŇıÿıČƈ͓ ãőĆ͓ ŽƀŚÿČĆƜƀČƈ̩͓ ãőĆ͓ ÿŚŚƀĆıőãƔıőĥ͓ ŚŽČƀãƔıŚőƈ͓ ŚĤ͓ ƔĬČ͓
ƈŽČÿıǌÿ͓ŽƀŚĥƀãŏ̮͓¯Ĭıƈ͓ŽŚƈıƔıŚő͓ƀČŽŚƀƔƈ͓ƔŚ͓ƔĬČ͓$ıƀČÿƔŚƀ͓ŚĤ͓¢ÿĬŚŚŇ͓�ãƈČĆ͓�ƀŚĥƀãŏƈ̮

¢ŽČÿıǌÿ͓$ƜƔıČƈ͓Ώ͓ƀČƈŽŚőƈıþıŇıƔıČƈ
Ɣ iãőãĥČ͓ ıŏŽŇČŏČőƔãƔıŚő͓ ŚĤ͓ ãĤƔČƀ́ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ ŽƀŚĥƀãŏƈ͓ ŚŽČƀãƔıŚőƈ̩͓ ıőÿŇƜĆıőĥ͓ ƈƔƜĆČőƔ͓

ƀČÿƀƜıƔŏČőƔ̩͓ ƈČŇČÿƔıŚő̩͓ ƀČĥıƈƔƀãƔıŚő̩͓ ãƔƔČőĆãőÿČ̩͓ ãőĆ͓ ČƹıƔ̳͓ ŽƀŚĥƀãŏ͓ ĆČƈıĥő͓ ãőĆ͓
ÿƜƀƀıÿƜŇƜŏ͓ĆČƳČŇŚŽŏČőƔ̳͓ŽãƀČőƔ͓ČőĥãĥČŏČőƔ̳͓ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ƔƀãőƈıƔıŚőƈ̳͓ĤãÿıŇıƔƺ̩͓ƈƜŽŽŇƺ̩͓ãőĆ͓
ĤŚŚĆ͓ƈČƀƳıÿČ͓ŇŚĥıƈƔıÿƈ̳͓ãőĆ͓ƈŽČÿıãŇ͓ČƳČőƔƈ͓ãőĆ͓ãÿƔıƳıƔıČƈ͓ÿŚŚƀĆıőãƔıŚő̮

Ɣ iãőãĥČ͓ ıŏŽŇČŏČőƔãƔıŚő͓ŚĤ͓ãĤƔČƀƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ŽƀŚĥƀãŏ͓ĆČƈıĥő͓ãőĆ͓ÿƜƀƀıÿƜŇƜŏ͓ƔĬãƔ͓ƀČǍČÿƔƈ͓
tãńŇãőĆ͓aČãĤ͌ƈ͓ƳıƈıŚő̩͓ŏıƈƈıŚő̩͓ƳãŇƜČƈ͓ãőĆ͓őČČĆƈ͓ŚĤ͓ƔĬČ͓ÿŚŏŏƜőıƔƺ

Ɣ iãőãĥČ͓ ıŏŽŇČŏČőƔãƔıŚő͓ ŚĤ͓ ƔĬČ͓ ŽƀŚĥƀãŏ͓ ıŏŽƀŚƳČŏČőƔ͓ ŽƀŚÿČƈƈ̩͓ ıőÿŇƜĆıőĥ͓ ĆãƔã͓
ÿŚŇŇČÿƔıŚő̩͓ ŽČƀĤŚƀŏãőÿČ͓ ãőĆ͓ ŚƜƔÿŚŏČ͓ ãőãŇƺƈıƈ̩͓ ŽƀŚĤČƈƈıŚőãŇ͓ ŇČãƀőıőĥ̩͓ ãőĆ͓ŽƀŚĥƀãŏ͓
ıŏŽƀŚƳČŏČőƔ

Ɣ *ƈƔãþŇıƈĬ͓ ƴŚƀń͓ ŽŇãőƈ͓ ĤŚƀ̩ ͓ ãőĆ͓ Ɣƀãıő̩͓ ƈƜŽŽŚƀƔ̩͓ ãőĆ͓ ƈƜŽČƀƳıƈČ͓ ĤƜŇŇ́ƔıŏČ̴ŽãƀƔ́ƔıŏČ͓
ŽƀŚĥƀãŏ͓ČŏŽŇŚƺČČƈ̩͓ƳŚŇƜőƔČČƀƈ̩͓ãőĆ̴Śƀ͓ıőƔČƀőƈ̮

²ŷāÞƋćā̹ˏ˓̛ː˘̛ˑˏˑ˒



�ƀŚĥƀãŏ͓iãőãĥČƀ͓]Śþ͓$ČƈÿƀıŽƔıŚő
̹¢�Itta͓k�i*̺͓�ĤƔČƀƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓�ƀŚĥƀãŏ

Ɣ ¢ČƀƳČ͓ ãƈ͓ ŽƀıőÿıŽãŇ͓ ŇıãıƈŚő͓ ƴıƔĬ͓ ƔĬČ͓ ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ ŽƀıőÿıŽãŇ̩͓ ãƈƈıƈƔãőƔ͓ ŽƀıőÿıŽãŇƈ̩͓ ŚǊÿČ͓
ŏãőãĥČƀ̩ ͓ƔČãÿĬČƀƈ̩͓ÿƜƈƔŚĆıãőƈ̩͓ĤŚŚĆ͓ƈČƀƳıÿČ͓ƴŚƀńČƀƈ̩͓ãőĆ͓ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ƈČÿƜƀıƔƺ͓ŚǊÿČƀƈ̮

Ɣ �ãƀƔıÿıŽãƔČ͓ ıő͓ ãŇŇ͓ tãńŇãőĆ͓ aČãĤ͓ ŏČČƔıőĥƈ̩͓ ČƳČőƔƈ̩͓ ãőĆ͓ ãÿƔıƳıƔıČƈ͓ ĆČƈıĥőãƔČĆ͓ þƺ͓ ƔĬČ͓
$ıƀČÿƔŚƀ͓ŚĤ͓�ĤƔČƀƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓�ƀŚĥƀãŏ͓

Ɣ *ƈƔãþŇıƈĬ͓ ãőĆ͓ ŏãıőƔãıő͓ŽŚƈıƔıƳČ͓ ƀČŇãƔıŚőƈĬıŽƈ͓ƴıƔĬ͓ÿŚŏŏƜőıƔƺ͓ ƈƔãńČĬŚŇĆČƀƈ͓ ƈƜÿĬ͓ãƈ͓
ŽãƀƔőČƀƈ̩͓ĤãŏıŇıČƈ̩͓ƈƔƜĆČőƔƈ͓ãőĆ͓ŚƔĬČƀ͓ÿŚŏŏƜőıƔƺ͓ŏČŏþČƀƈ̮

Ɣ tƔĬČƀ͓ ĆƜƔıČƈ͓ ĆČƔČƀŏıőČĆ͓ þƺ͓ ƔĬČ͓ �ƀŚĥƀãŏ͓ $ıƀČÿƔŚƀ͓ ƔŚ͓ ƈƜŽŽŚƀƔ͓ ƔĬČ͓ �ĤƔČƀ́¢ÿĬŚŚŇ͓
�ƀŚĥƀãŏ͓ãőĆ͓ČƳČőƔƈ

iıőıŏƜŏ͓�ƜãŇıǌÿãƔıŚőƈ
Ɣ tƀĥãőıǄãƔıŚőãŇ̩͓ƔıŏČ͓ŏãőãĥČŏČőƔ̩͓ãőĆ͓ŽƀıŚƀıƔıǄãƔıŚő͓ƈńıŇŇƈ
Ɣ �þıŇıƔƺ͓ƔŚ͓ƴŚƀń͓ıőĆČŽČőĆČőƔŇƺ̩͓ƀČŇıãþŇƺ̩͓ƔãńČ͓ıőıƔıãƔıƳČ͓ãőĆ͓ŽƀŚþŇČŏ͓ƈŚŇƳČ͓
Ɣ *ƹÿČŽƔıŚőãŇ͓ŁƜĆĥŏČőƔ̩͓ıőÿŇƜĆıőĥ͓ã͓ĬıĥĬ͓ŇČƳČŇ͓ŚĤ͓ĆıƈÿƀČƔıŚő͓ƴĬČő͓ĬãőĆŇıőĥ͓ÿŚőǌĆČőƔıãŇ͓

ŏãƔČƀıãŇƈ
Ɣ *ƹÿČŇŇČőƔ͓ıőƔČƀŽČƀƈŚőãŇ͓ãőĆ͓ÿŚŏŏƜőıÿãƔıŚő͓̻ƴƀıƔƔČő͓ãőĆ͓ŚƀãŇ̼͓ƈńıŇŇƈ
Ɣ �͓ƈƔƀŚőĥ͓ƴŚƀń͓ČƔĬıÿ̩͓ƴıƔĬ͓ã͓ĆČƈıƀČ͓ƔŚ͓ĥŚ͓ãþŚƳČ͓ãőĆ͓þČƺŚőĆ͓ƈƔãőĆãƀĆ͓ČƹŽČÿƔãƔıŚőƈ
Ɣ ¢ƔƀŚőĥ͓ãƔƔČőƔıŚő͓ƔŚ͓ĆČƔãıŇ͓ƔĬƀŚƜĥĬŚƜƔ͓ãŇŇ͓ãƈŽČÿƔƈ͓ŚĤ͓ƔĬČıƀ͓ƴŚƀń
Ɣ �ŚőƔıőƜŚƜƈ͓ŇČãƀőČƀ
Ɣ �þıŇıƔƺ͓ƔŚ͓ŏŚƔıƳãƔČ̩͓ČƹÿıƔČ̩͓ČőÿŚƜƀãĥČ͓ÿƀıƔıÿãŇ͓ƔĬıőńıőĥ͓ãőĆ͓þƜıŇĆ͓ÿŚŏŏƜőıƔƺ͓ƴıƔĬ͓

ƺŚƜƔĬ͓ãőĆ͓ƈƔãǉ
Ɣ �þıŇıƔƺ͓ƔŚ͓ČǉČÿƔıƳČŇƺ͓ãőĆ͓ƈıŏƜŇƔãőČŚƜƈŇƺ͓ŏãőãĥČ͓ŏƜŇƔıŽŇČ͓ŽƀŚŁČÿƔƈ͓
Ɣ ÎŚƀń͓ƴČŇŇ͓ıő͓ã͓ƔČãŏ͓ƈČƔƔıőĥ
Ɣ �ãƈıÿ͓þČĬãƳıŚƀ͓ŏãőãĥČŏČőƔ͓ãőĆ͓ÿŚőǍıÿƔ͓ƀČƈŚŇƜƔıŚő͓ƈńıŇŇƈ
Ɣ �ŚŏŏıƔŏČőƔ͓ƔŚ͓tãńŇãőĆ͓ŇČãĤ͓ãőĆ͓¢ÿĬŚŚŇ͓ƈıƔČ͓ŏıƈƈıŚő͓ãőĆ͓ÿŚƀČ͓ƳãŇƜČƈ
Ɣ �ƀŚƳıĆČ͓¯�͓ÿŇČãƀãőÿČ͓ãőĆ͓þãÿńĥƀŚƜőĆ͓ÿŇČãƀãőÿČ͓ĤƀŚŏ͓A�N͓ãőĆ͓$t]
Ɣ AŇƜČőÿƺ͓ıő͓¢ŽãőıƈĬ͓ıƈ͓ŽƀČĤČƀƀČĆ͓þƜƔ͓őŚƔ͓ƀČſƜıƀČĆ͓

*ĆƜÿãƔıŚő͓Ώ͓*ƹŽČƀıČőÿČ
Ɣ �ãÿĬČŇŚƀ̲ƈ͓$ČĥƀČČ͓ıő͓*ĆƜÿãƔıŚőãŇ͓AıČŇĆ̩͓őŚƔ͓ƀČſƜıƀČĆ͓þƜƔ͓ŽƀČĤČƀƀČĆ
Ɣ �Ɣ͓ ŇČãƈƔ͓ ˠͳ͓ ƺČãƀƈ͓ŚĤ͓ČƹŽČƀıČőÿČ͓ãƈ͓ãő͓�ĤƔČƀƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓�ƀŚĥƀãŏ͓�ƈƈıƈƔãőƔ͓Śƀ͓ƴŚƀńıőĥ͓ãƈ͓ã͓

ŏãőãĥČƀ̴ÿŚŚƀĆıőãƔŚƀ͓ıő͓ƺŚƜƔĬ͓ĆČƳČŇŚŽŏČőƔ͓ƈČƔƔıőĥ͓
Ɣ *ƹŽČƀıČőÿČ͓ƴŚƀńıőĥ͓ÿŚŇŇãþŚƀãƔıƳČŇƺ͓ıő͓ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ÿŚŏŏƜőıƔıČƈ

ÎŚƀńıőĥ͓ÿŚőĆıƔıŚőƈ̴ŽĬƺƈıÿãŇ͓ĆČŏãőĆƈ
Ɣ kŚƀŏãŇ͓ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ãőĆ͓ŚǊÿČ͓ÿŚőĆıƔıŚőƈ
Ɣ tǉƈıƔČ͓ŏČČƔıőĥƈ
Ɣ �ČſƜıƀČĆ͓ƔŚ͓ƴŚƀń͓ƈŚŏČ͓őıĥĬƔƈ͓ĤŚƀ͓ČƳČőƔƈ
Ɣ iƜƈƔ͓þČ͓ãþŇČ͓ƔŚ͓ŇıĤƔ͓ƜŽ͓ƔŚ͓ˠˣŇþ

ÎŚƀń͓¢ÿĬČĆƜŇČ͓ãőĆ͓�ČƀıŚĆ
Ɣ ÔČãƀ͓ ƀŚƜőĆ̩͓ ĤƜŇŇ͓ ƔıŏČ͓ ̻˟˞͓ �i͓ ƔŚ͓ ˤ̨ˡ˞͓ �i͓ ČƹÿŇƜĆıőĥ͓ ˡ˞͓ ŏıő͓ ŇƜőÿĬ͓ þƀČãń̼̩͓ ČƹČŏŽƔ͓

ČŏŽŇŚƺČČ

�ŚŏŽČőƈãƔıŚő
Ɣ ͜ˤ˞̩˞˞˞͓ƔŚ͓͜ˤˣ̩˞˞˞̩͓ĆČŽČőĆıőĥ͓Śő͓ČƹŽČƀıČőÿČ͓
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�ƀŚĥƀãŏ͓iãőãĥČƀ͓]Śþ͓$ČƈÿƀıŽƔıŚő
̹¢�Itta͓k�i*̺͓�ĤƔČƀƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓�ƀŚĥƀãŏ

Ɣ ˟˞˞΋͓ŽãıĆ͓ŏČĆıÿãŇ̩͓ĆČőƔãŇ͓ãőĆ͓ãÿƜŽƜőÿƔƜƀČ͓ČŏŽŇŚƺČČ͓þČőČǌƔƈ
Ɣ �ãıĆ͓IŚŇıĆãƺƈ͓ãőĆ͓ĥČőČƀŚƜƈ͓ŽãıĆ͓ƔıŏČ͓Śǉ͓ŽŚŇıÿƺ͓

0BLMBOE�-FBG� JT� BO� FRVBM�PQQPSUVOJUZ�FNQMPZFS�BOE�XJMM�OPU�EJTDSJNJOBUF�BHBJOTU�BOZ�JOEJWJEVBM
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�PS�BQQMJDBUJPO�GPS�
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�TUBUF
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͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓_ıőĆČƀ̴˟ƈƔ͓BƀãĆČ͓�ƀŚĥƀãŏ͓NőƈƔƀƜÿƔŚƀ͓]Śþ͓$ČƈÿƀıŽƔıŚő͓̻�ãƀƔ́¯ıŏČ̼

͓�þŚƜƔ͓tãńŇãőĆ͓aČãĤ͓
tãńŇãőĆ͓ aČãĤ͓ ƴãƈ͓ ĤŚƜőĆČĆ͓ ıő͓ ˠ˞˞˟͓ þƺ͓ ã͓ ÿŚŇŇČÿƔıƳČ͓ ŚĤ͓ *ãƈƔ͓ tãńŇãőĆ͓ ČĆƜÿãƔŚƀƈ͓ ıőƔČőƔ͓ Śő͓
ČŏŽŚƴČƀıőĥ͓ ƺŚƜƔĬ͓ƳŚıÿČ̮͓ AŚƀ͓ ƔĬČ͓ŽãƈƔ͓ ˠ˞ͳ͓ ƺČãƀƈ̩͓tãńŇãőĆ͓aČãĤ͓͓ Ĭãƈ͓ČƳŚŇƳČĆ͓ ıőƔŚ͓ã͓ĬıĥĬŇƺ͓
ƀČĥãƀĆČĆ͓ŇČãĆČƀ͓ıő͓ƔĬČ͓ǌČŇĆƈ͓ŚĤ͓ƺŚƜƔĬ͓ĆČƳČŇŚŽŏČőƔ͓ãőĆ͓ŚƜƔ́ŚĤ́ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ƔıŏČ͓ŇČãƀőıőḫ̂

tãńŇãőĆ͓ aČãĤ͓ ĤãÿıŇıƔãƔČƈ͓ ÿƜŇƔƜƀãŇŇƺ͓ ƀČŇČƳãőƔ͓ ŚƜƔ́ŚĤ́ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ ƔıŏČ͓ ŽƀŚĥƀãŏŏıőĥ͓ ĤŚƀ͓
ãŽŽƀŚƹıŏãƔČŇƺ͓ ˟̩˞˞˞͓ _́˟ˠ͓ *ãƈƔ͓ tãńŇãőĆ͓ ƈƔƜĆČőƔƈ͓ ƔĬƀŚƜĥĬ͓ ƈČƳČő͓ãĤƔČƀ͓ ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ŽƀŚĥƀãŏƈ͓ãƔ͓
ŽƜþŇıÿ͓ČŇČŏČőƔãƀƺ͓ãőĆ͓ŏıĆĆŇČ͓ ƈÿĬŚŚŇƈ͓ ãÿƀŚƈƈ͓*ãƈƔ͓tãńŇãőĆ̩͓ŚőČ͓ŽãıĆ͓ıőƔČƀőƈĬıŽ͓ŽƀŚĥƀãŏƈ͓
ĤŚƀ͓ĬıĥĬ͓ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ƈƔƜĆČőƔƈ̩͓ãőĆ͓ƔƴŚ͓ˣ́ƴČČń͓ƈƜŏŏČƀ͓ÿãŏŽƈ͓͓́ŚőČ͓ĤŚƀ͓ČŇČŏČőƔãƀƺ͓ÿĬıŇĆƀČő͓ãőĆ͓
ŚőČ͓ ĤŚƀ͓ŏıĆĆŇČ͓ ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ ƺŚƜƔĬ̮͓tƜƀ͓ŽƀŚĥƀãŏŏıőĥ͓ČŏŽĬãƈıǄČƈ͓ƈŚÿıãŇ͓ãőĆ͓ČŏŚƔıŚőãŇ͓ŇČãƀőıőĥ̩͓
ÿƀČãƔıƳČ͓ ČƹŽƀČƈƈıŚő̩͓ ÿƀıƔıÿãŇ͓ ƔĬıőńıőĥ̩͓ ŇČãĆČƀƈĬıŽ͓ ĆČƳČŇŚŽŏČőƔ̩͓ ƈŚÿıãŇ͓ ŁƜƈƔıÿČ̩͓ ÿŚŇŇČĥČ͓ ãőĆ͓
ÿãƀČČƀ͓ ƀČãĆıőČƈƈ̩͓ ãőĆ͓ ıőÿŇƜĆČƈ͓ ã͓ ĆıƳČƀƈČ͓ ƀãőĥČ͓ ŚĤ͓ ČőƀıÿĬŏČőƔ͓ ŚŽŽŚƀƔƜőıƔıČƈ͓ ıőÿŇƜĆıőĥ͓
¢̮̄ ̮*̮i̮͓ãÿƔıƳıƔıČƈ̩͓ƈŽŚƀƔƈ̩͓ŽŚČƔƀƺ̩͓ƳıƈƜãŇ͓ãƀƔƈ̩͓ĆãőÿČ̩͓ŇıƔČƀãÿƺ̩͓ÿŚŏŏƜőıƔƺ͓ıŏŽãÿƔ͓ŽƀŚŁČÿƔƈ̩͓ãőĆ͓
ŏŚƀČ̮͓

ÎĬŚ͓ƴČ͓ãƀČ
ÎČ͓ ãƀČ͓ ã͓ÿŚŇŇČÿƔıŚő͓ŚĤ͓ČĆƜÿãƔŚƀƈ̩͓ ãƀƔıƈƔƈ̩͓ ÿƀČãƔıƳČƈ̩͓ ãƔĬŇČƔČƈ̩͓ ãÿƔıƳıƈƔƈ̩͓ ŇıĤČ͓ČőƔĬƜƈıãƈƔƈ̩͓ ãőĆ͓
ãþŚƳČ͓ ãŇŇ̩͓ ŽãƈƈıŚőãƔČ͓ ƈƜŽŽŚƀƔČƀƈ͓ ŚĤ͓ ƺŚƜƔĬ͓ ıő͓ ŚƜƀ͓ ƈĬãƀČĆ͓ÿŚŏŏƜőıƔıČƈ̮͓ NĤ͓ ƺŚƜ͓ŽŚƈƈČƈƈ͓ ƔĬČ͓
ŽãƈƈıŚő͓ƔŚ͓ŏãńČ͓tãńŇãőĆ͓ã͓ŏŚƀČ͓ŇŚƳıőĥ̩͓ŁƜƈƔ̩͓ãőĆ͓ƳıþƀãőƔ͓ŽŇãÿČ̩͓ƔĬČő͓tãńŇãőĆ͓aČãĤ͓ŏıĥĬƔ͓þČ͓
ƔĬČ͓ŽŇãÿČ͓ĤŚƀ͓ƺŚƜ͓ƔŚ͓ƀŚŚƔ͓ıő̩͓ƀıƈČ͓ƜŽ͓ãőĆ͓þƀãőÿĬ͓ŚƜƔ̮͓

¢Ɯŏŏãƀƺ͓ŚĤ͓�ŚƈıƔıŚő͓
¯ĬČ͓ �ƀŚĥƀãŏ͓ NőƈƔƀƜÿƔŚƀ͓ ŽƀČŽãƀČƈ͓ ãőĆ͓ ŽƀŚƳıĆČƈ͓ ıő́ŽČƀƈŚő͓ ãÿãĆČŏıÿ͓ ãőĆ͓ ČőƀıÿĬŏČőƔ͓
ıőƈƔƀƜÿƔıŚő͓ ƔŚ͓ _ıőĆČƀ͓ Śƀ͓ ˟ƈƔ͓ ĥƀãĆČ͓ ƈƔƜĆČőƔƈ͓ ãƔ͓ ŚőČ͓ ŚĤ͓ ƈıƹ͓ tãńŇãőĆ͓ aČãĤ͓ *ŇČŏČőƔãƀƺ͓
�ĤƔČƀ́¢ÿĬŚŚŇ͓ŽƀŚĥƀãŏƈ̮͓¯Ĭıƈ͓ŽŚƈıƔıŚő͓ƀČŽŚƀƔƈ͓ƔŚ͓ƔĬČ͓ƈıƔČ͓ƈŽČÿıǌÿ͓�ƀŚĥƀãŏ͓iãőãĥČƀ̮͓

¢ŽČÿıǌÿ͓�ČƈŽŚőƈıþıŇıƔıČƈ
Ɣ $ČƳČŇŚŽ͓ƴČČńŇƺ͓ŇČƈƈŚő͓ŽŇãőƈ͓ƔĬãƔ͓ČőĥãĥČ͓ƔĬČ͓ƺŚƜƔĬ̩͓ãƀČ͓ãĥČ͓ãŽŽƀŚŽƀıãƔČ̩͓ãőĆ͓ŏČČƔ͓

ƔĬČ͓ĬıĥĬ́ſƜãŇıƔƺ͓ƈƔãőĆãƀĆƈ͓ŚĤ͓tãńŇãőĆ͓aČãĤ͌ƈ͓ŏıƈƈıŚő͓
Ɣ �ƀČãƔČ͓ãőĆ͓ ĤãÿıŇıƔãƔČ͓Čőĥãĥıőĥ̩͓ŽƀŚŁČÿƔ́þãƈČĆ͓ÿƜƀƀıÿƜŇƜŏ͓ ƔĬãƔ͓ ıƈ͓ŚĤ͓ ĬıĥĬ͓ ıőƔČƀČƈƔ͓ ĤŚƀ͓

tãńŇãőĆ͓_ıőĆČƀ͓Śƀ͓˟ƈƔ͓ĥƀãĆČ͓ƈƔƜĆČőƔƈ͓ĆãıŇƺ͓ĤŚƀ͓˟́ĬŚƜƀ͓ČőƀıÿĬŏČőƔ͓ƈČƈƈıŚőƈ̮
Ɣ �ƀŚƳıĆČ͓ ˟͓ĬŚƜƀ͓ĆãıŇƺ͓ãÿãĆČŏıÿ͓ƈČƈƈıŚő͓ƔĬãƔ͓ãƈƈıƈƔƈ͓_ıőĆČƀ͓Śƀ͓˟ƈƔ͓ĥƀãĆČ͓ƈƔƜĆČőƔƈ͓ƴıƔĬ͓

ĬŚŏČƴŚƀń͓ãőĆ͓ãÿãĆČŏıÿ͓ƈƜÿÿČƈƈ̮
Ɣ NŏŽŇČŏČőƔãƔıŚő͓ ŚĤ͓ tãńŇãőĆ͓ aČãĤ͓ ƈƔãőĆãƀĆƈ͓ ĤŚƀ͓ ŏãőãĥıőĥ͓ ƔĬČ͓ÿŇãƈƈƀŚŚŏ͓ ı̮Č̮͓ ƳıƈıþŇČ͓

ĆãıŇƺ͓ãĥČőĆã̩͓ÿŚŏŏƜőıƔƺ͓ãĥƀČČŏČőƔƈ̩͓ČƔÿ̮͓
Ɣ ¢ČƔ͓ƜŽ͓ãőĆ͓ŏãőãĥČ͓ÿŚőƈıƈƔČőƔ͓ƈƔƀƜÿƔƜƀČƈ̩͓ƀŚƜƔıőČƈ̩͓ãőĆ͓ŽƀŚƔŚÿŚŇƈ͓ĤŚƀ͓ƺŚƜƔĬ͓ƔŚ͓ĤŚŇŇŚƴ̮͓
Ɣ �ãƈƈıŚő͓ ĤŚƀ͓ ıőőŚƳãƔıŚő͓ ãőĆ͓ ČƹÿČŇŇČőÿČ͓ ıő͓ ƈŚÿıãŇ͓ ãőĆ͓ ƀČƈƔŚƀãƔıƳČ͓ ŁƜƈƔıÿČ͓ ãőĆ͓ ƺŚƜƔĬ͓

ĆČƳČŇŚŽŏČőƔ
Ɣ �ČƈŽŚőĆ͓̻őŚƔ͓ƀČãÿƔ̼͓ƴıƔĬ͓ã͓ƴãƀŏ́ĆČŏãőĆČƀ͓ƈƔãőÿČ͓ƴĬČő͓ƀČĆıƀČÿƔıőĥ͓ƺŚƜƔĬ͓þČĬãƳıŚƀ͓
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Ɣ �ŚŏŽŇČƔČ͓ãŇŇ͓ ãĆŏıőıƈƔƀãƔıƳČ͓ Ɣãƈńƈ͓Śő͓ã͓ĆãıŇƺ͓ãőĆ̴Śƀ͓ƴČČńŇƺ͓
þãƈıƈ͓ıőÿŇƜĆıőĥ͓þƜƔ͓őŚƔ͓ŇıŏıƔČĆ͓ƔŚ͓ƈƔƜĆČőƔ͓ãƔƔČőĆãőÿČ̩͓ŏŚőƔĬŇƺ͓ƀČŽŚƀƔƈ̩͓ƈƜƀƳČƺƈ̩͓ČƔÿ̮͓

Ɣ �ãƀƔıÿıŽãƔČ͓ıő͓ŏãőĆãƔŚƀƺ͓ƈƔãǉ͓ŏČČƔıőĥƈ͓ãőĆ͓Ɣƀãıőıőĥƈ͓ƴĬČő͓ƈÿĬČĆƜŇČĆ

iıőıŏƜŏ͓�ƜãŇıǌÿãƔıŚőƈ
Ɣ �ƀŚƳıĆČ͓¯�͓ÿŇČãƀãőÿČ͓ãőĆ͓þãÿńĥƀŚƜőĆ͓ÿŇČãƀãőÿČ͓ĤƀŚŏ͓A�N͓ãőĆ͓$t]
Ɣ �ƀŚƳıĆČ͓ˢ˦͓ƈČŏČƈƔČƀ͓ÿŚŇŇČĥČ͓ƜőıƔƈ͓Śƀ͓Žãƈƈ͓ƔĬČ͓NőƈƔƀƜÿƔıŚőãŇ͓�ıĆČ͓Čƹãŏ
Ɣ �þıŇıƔƺ͓ƔŚ͓ŏãőãĥČ͓ãőĆ͓ƈƜŽŽŚƀƔ͓ã͓ĥƀŚƜŽ͓ŚĤ͓˟˞͓_ıőĆČƀ͓ƈƔƜĆČőƔƈ͓Śƀ͓ˠ˞͓˟ƈƔ͓ĥƀãĆČ͓ƈƔƜĆČőƔƈ͓
Ɣ �þıŇıƔƺ͓ƔŚ͓ŽŇãő͓ãőĆ͓ŽƀČŽãƀČ͓ŇČƈƈŚőƈ͓ãőĆ͓ĆČŇıƳČƀ͓ıőƈƔƀƜÿƔıŚő͓
Ɣ �ŚŏŏıƔŏČőƔ͓ƔŚ͓tãńŇãőĆ͓ŇČãĤ͓ŏıƈƈıŚő͓ãőĆ͓ÿŚƀČ͓ƳãŇƜČƈ

ÎŚƀńıőĥ͓ÿŚőĆıƔıŚőƈ̴ŽĬƺƈıÿãŇ͓ĆČŏãőĆƈ
Ɣ kŚƀŏãŇ͓ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ãőĆ͓ŚǊÿČ͓ÿŚőĆıƔıŚőƈ
Ɣ tǉƈıƔČ͓ŏČČƔıőĥƈ
Ɣ �ČſƜıƀČĆ͓ƔŚ͓ƴŚƀń͓ƈŚŏČ͓őıĥĬƔƈ͓ĤŚƀ͓ČƳČőƔƈ
Ɣ iƜƈƔ͓þČ͓ãþŇČ͓ƔŚ͓ŇıĤƔ͓ƜŽ͓ƔŚ͓ˠˣŇþ

ÎŚƀń͓¢ÿĬČĆƜŇČ͓ãőĆ͓�ČƀıŚĆ
Ɣ kŚƔČ̨͓¯Ĭıƈ͓ıƈ͓ã͓ŽãƀƔ͓ƔıŏČ̩͓ƈČãƈŚőãŇ͓ŽŚƈıƔıŚő͓
Ɣ iŚőĆãƺ͓ ƔĬƀŚƜĥĬ͓AƀıĆãƺ̩͓ ˟͓�i͓ƔŚ͓ƔŚ͓ˤ̨ˡ˞͓�i͓ĤŚƀ͓˟˦˞͓ƴŚƀń͓Ćãƺƈ͓ĤƀŚŏ͓iŚőĆãƺ̩͓�ƜĥƜƈƔ͓

˟ˠ̩͓ˠ˞ˠˢ͓ƔĬƀŚƜĥĬ͓¯ĬƜƀƈĆãƺ̩͓iãƺ͓ˠ˧̩͓ˠ˞ˠˣ͓ČƹÿŇƜĆıőĥ͓ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ĬŚŇıĆãƺƈ͓ãőĆ͓þƀČãńƈ͓
Ɣ tƀıČőƔãƔıŚő͓ĤƀŚŏ͓ÎČĆőČƈĆãƺ̩͓]ƜŇƺ͓ˡ˟̩͓ˠ˞ˠˢ͓ƔĬƀŚƜĥĬ͓AƀıĆãƺ̩͓�ƜĥƜƈƔ͓˧̩͓ˠ˞ˠˢ͓˟˟͓�i͓ƔŚ͓ˢ͓

�ŏ͓ĆãıŇƺ̮͓

�ŚŏŽČőƈãƔıŚő
Ɣ ͜ˠ˞͓ƔŚ͓͜ˠˣ͓ŽČƀ͓ĬŚƜƀ̩ ͓ĆČŽČőĆıőĥ͓Śő͓ČƹŽČƀıČőÿČ
Ɣ �ãıĆ͓ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ĬŚŇıĆãƺƈ͓ãőĆ͓þƀČãńƈ͓
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͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓�ÿãĆČŏıÿ͓iČőƔŚƀ͓͓]Śþ͓$ČƈÿƀıŽƔıŚő͓̻�ãƀƔ́¯ıŏČ̼

͓�þŚƜƔ͓tãńŇãőĆ͓aČãĤ͓
tãńŇãőĆ͓ aČãĤ͓ ƴãƈ͓ ĤŚƜőĆČĆ͓ ıő͓ ˠ˞˞˟͓ þƺ͓ ã͓ ÿŚŇŇČÿƔıƳČ͓ ŚĤ͓ *ãƈƔ͓ tãńŇãőĆ͓ ČĆƜÿãƔŚƀƈ͓ ıőƔČőƔ͓ Śő͓
ČŏŽŚƴČƀıőĥ͓ ƺŚƜƔĬ͓ƳŚıÿČ̮͓ AŚƀ͓ ƔĬČ͓ŽãƈƔ͓ ˠ˞ͳ͓ ƺČãƀƈ̩͓tãńŇãőĆ͓aČãĤ͓͓ Ĭãƈ͓ČƳŚŇƳČĆ͓ ıőƔŚ͓ã͓ĬıĥĬŇƺ͓
ƀČĥãƀĆČĆ͓ŇČãĆČƀ͓ıő͓ƔĬČ͓ǌČŇĆƈ͓ŚĤ͓ƺŚƜƔĬ͓ĆČƳČŇŚŽŏČőƔ͓ãőĆ͓ŚƜƔ́ŚĤ́ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ƔıŏČ͓ŇČãƀőıőḫ̂

tãńŇãőĆ͓ aČãĤ͓ ĤãÿıŇıƔãƔČƈ͓ ÿƜŇƔƜƀãŇŇƺ͓ ƀČŇČƳãőƔ͓ ŚƜƔ́ŚĤ́ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ ƔıŏČ͓ ŽƀŚĥƀãŏŏıőĥ͓ ĤŚƀ͓
ãŽŽƀŚƹıŏãƔČŇƺ͓ ˟̩˞˞˞͓ _́˟ˠ͓ *ãƈƔ͓ tãńŇãőĆ͓ ƈƔƜĆČőƔƈ͓ ƔĬƀŚƜĥĬ͓ ƈČƳČő͓ãĤƔČƀ͓ ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ŽƀŚĥƀãŏƈ͓ãƔ͓
ŽƜþŇıÿ͓ČŇČŏČőƔãƀƺ͓ãőĆ͓ŏıĆĆŇČ͓ ƈÿĬŚŚŇƈ͓ ãÿƀŚƈƈ͓*ãƈƔ͓tãńŇãőĆ̩͓ŚőČ͓ŽãıĆ͓ıőƔČƀőƈĬıŽ͓ŽƀŚĥƀãŏƈ͓
ĤŚƀ͓ĬıĥĬ͓ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ƈƔƜĆČőƔƈ̩͓ãőĆ͓ƔƴŚ͓ˣ́ƴČČń͓ƈƜŏŏČƀ͓ÿãŏŽƈ͓͓́ŚőČ͓ĤŚƀ͓ČŇČŏČőƔãƀƺ͓ÿĬıŇĆƀČő͓ãőĆ͓
ŚőČ͓ ĤŚƀ͓ŏıĆĆŇČ͓ ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ ƺŚƜƔĬ̮͓tƜƀ͓ŽƀŚĥƀãŏŏıőĥ͓ČŏŽĬãƈıǄČƈ͓ƈŚÿıãŇ͓ãőĆ͓ČŏŚƔıŚőãŇ͓ŇČãƀőıőĥ̩͓
ÿƀČãƔıƳČ͓ ČƹŽƀČƈƈıŚő̩͓ ÿƀıƔıÿãŇ͓ ƔĬıőńıőĥ̩͓ ŇČãĆČƀƈĬıŽ͓ ĆČƳČŇŚŽŏČőƔ̩͓ ƈŚÿıãŇ͓ ŁƜƈƔıÿČ̩͓ ÿŚŇŇČĥČ͓ ãőĆ͓
ÿãƀČČƀ͓ ƀČãĆıőČƈƈ̩͓ ãőĆ͓ ıőÿŇƜĆČƈ͓ ã͓ ĆıƳČƀƈČ͓ ƀãőĥČ͓ ŚĤ͓ ČőƀıÿĬŏČőƔ͓ ŚŽŽŚƀƔƜőıƔıČƈ͓ ıőÿŇƜĆıőĥ͓
¢̮̄ ̮*̮i̮͓ãÿƔıƳıƔıČƈ̩͓ƈŽŚƀƔƈ̩͓ŽŚČƔƀƺ̩͓ƳıƈƜãŇ͓ãƀƔƈ̩͓ĆãőÿČ̩͓ŇıƔČƀãÿƺ̩͓ÿŚŏŏƜőıƔƺ͓ıŏŽãÿƔ͓ŽƀŚŁČÿƔƈ̩͓ãőĆ͓
ŏŚƀČ̮͓

ÎĬŚ͓ƴČ͓ãƀČ
ÎČ͓ ãƀČ͓ ã͓ÿŚŇŇČÿƔıŚő͓ŚĤ͓ČĆƜÿãƔŚƀƈ̩͓ ãƀƔıƈƔƈ̩͓ ÿƀČãƔıƳČƈ̩͓ ãƔĬŇČƔČƈ̩͓ ãÿƔıƳıƈƔƈ̩͓ ŇıĤČ͓ČőƔĬƜƈıãƈƔƈ̩͓ ãőĆ͓
ãþŚƳČ͓ ãŇŇ̩͓ ŽãƈƈıŚőãƔČ͓ ƈƜŽŽŚƀƔČƀƈ͓ ŚĤ͓ ƺŚƜƔĬ͓ ıő͓ ŚƜƀ͓ ƈĬãƀČĆ͓ÿŚŏŏƜőıƔıČƈ̮͓ NĤ͓ ƺŚƜ͓ŽŚƈƈČƈƈ͓ ƔĬČ͓
ŽãƈƈıŚő͓ƔŚ͓ŏãńČ͓tãńŇãőĆ͓ã͓ŏŚƀČ͓ŇŚƳıőĥ̩͓ŁƜƈƔ̩͓ãőĆ͓ƳıþƀãőƔ͓ŽŇãÿČ̩͓ƔĬČő͓tãńŇãőĆ͓aČãĤ͓ŏıĥĬƔ͓þČ͓
ƔĬČ͓ŽŇãÿČ͓ĤŚƀ͓ƺŚƜ͓ƔŚ͓ƀŚŚƔ͓ıő̩͓ƀıƈČ͓ƜŽ͓ãőĆ͓þƀãőÿĬ͓ŚƜƔ̮͓

¢Ɯŏŏãƀƺ͓ŚĤ͓�ŚƈıƔıŚő͓
¯ĬČ͓�ÿãĆČŏıÿ͓iČőƔŚƀ͓ŽƀČŽãƀČƈ͓ãőĆ͓ŽƀŚƳıĆČƈ͓ıő́ŽČƀƈŚő͓ãÿãĆČŏıÿ͓ıőƈƔƀƜÿƔıŚő͓ƔŚ͓ČŇČŏČőƔãƀƺ͓
Śƀ͓ŏıĆĆŇČ͓ ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ƈƔƜĆČőƔƈ͓ıő͓ŚőČ͓ŚĤ͓ƈČƳČő͓tãńŇãőĆ͓aČãĤ͓�ĤƔČƀ́¢ÿĬŚŚŇ͓ŽƀŚĥƀãŏƈ̮͓�ÿãĆČŏıÿ͓
NőƈƔƀƜÿƔıŚő͓ıőÿŇƜĆČƈ͓ĬŚŏČƴŚƀń͓ƈƜŽŽŚƀƔ͓ãőĆ͓ŇıƔČƀãÿƺ͓ıőƔČƀƳČőƔıŚő̮͓¯Ĭıƈ͓ŽŚƈıƔıŚő͓ƀČŽŚƀƔƈ͓ƔŚ͓ƔĬČ͓
ƈıƔČ͓ƈŽČÿıǌÿ͓�ƀŚĥƀãŏ͓iãőãĥČƀ̮͓

¢ŽČÿıǌÿ͓�ČƈŽŚőƈıþıŇıƔıČƈ
Ɣ NŏŽŇČŏČőƔ͓ƴČČńŇƺ͓ŇČƈƈŚő͓ŽŇãőƈ͓ƔĬãƔ͓ČőĥãĥČ͓ƔĬČ͓ƺŚƜƔĬ̩͓ãƀČ͓ãĥČ͓ãŽŽƀŚŽƀıãƔČ̩͓ãőĆ͓

ŏČČƔ͓ƔĬČ͓ĬıĥĬ́ſƜãŇıƔƺ͓ƈƔãőĆãƀĆƈ͓ŚĤ͓tãńŇãőĆ͓aČãĤ͌ƈ͓ŏıƈƈıŚő͓
Ɣ �ƀŚƳıĆČ͓ƔƴŚ͓˟͓ĬŚƜƀ͓ĆãıŇƺ͓ãÿãĆČŏıÿ͓ƈČƈƈıŚőƈ͓ƔĬãƔ͓ãƈƈıƈƔƈ͓ČŇČŏČőƔãƀƺ͓Śƀ͓ŏıĆĆŇČ͓ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓

ƈƔƜĆČőƔƈ͓ ƴıƔĬ͓ ĬŚŏČƴŚƀń͓ ãőĆ͓ ãÿãĆČŏıÿ͓ ƈƜÿÿČƈƈ̮͓ *ãÿĬ͓ ƈČƈƈıŚő͓ ƴıŇŇ͓ þČ͓ ƴıƔĬ͓ ƔƴŚ͓
ĆıǉČƀČőƔ͓ĥƀŚƜŽƈ͓ŚĤ͓ƈƔƜĆČőƔƈ̮͓

Ɣ NŏŽŇČŏČőƔãƔıŚő͓ ŚĤ͓ tãńŇãőĆ͓ aČãĤ͓ ƈƔãőĆãƀĆƈ͓ ĤŚƀ͓ ŏãőãĥıőĥ͓ ƔĬČ͓ÿŇãƈƈƀŚŚŏ͓ ı̮Č̮͓ ƳıƈıþŇČ͓
ĆãıŇƺ͓ãĥČőĆã̩͓ÿŚŏŏƜőıƔƺ͓ãĥƀČČŏČőƔƈ̩͓ČƔÿ̮͓

Ɣ ¢ČƔ͓ƜŽ͓ãőĆ͓ŏãőãĥČ͓ÿŚőƈıƈƔČőƔ͓ƈƔƀƜÿƔƜƀČƈ̩͓ƀŚƜƔıőČƈ̩͓ãőĆ͓ŽƀŚƔŚÿŚŇƈ͓ĤŚƀ͓ƺŚƜƔĬ͓ƔŚ͓ĤŚŇŇŚƴ̮͓
Ɣ �ãƈƈıŚő͓ ĤŚƀ͓ ıőőŚƳãƔıŚő͓ ãőĆ͓ ČƹÿČŇŇČőÿČ͓ ıő͓ ƈŚÿıãŇ͓ ãőĆ͓ ƀČƈƔŚƀãƔıƳČ͓ ŁƜƈƔıÿČ͓ ãőĆ͓ ƺŚƜƔĬ͓

ĆČƳČŇŚŽŏČőƔ
Ɣ �ČƈŽŚőĆ͓̻őŚƔ͓ƀČãÿƔ̼͓ƴıƔĬ͓ã͓ƴãƀŏ́ĆČŏãőĆČƀ͓ƈƔãőÿČ͓ƴĬČő͓ƀČĆıƀČÿƔıőĥ͓ƺŚƜƔĬ͓þČĬãƳıŚƀ͓

²ŷāÞƋćā̹ˏ˓̛ˑˑ̛ˑˏˑ˓



Ɣ �ŚŏŽŇČƔČ͓ãŇŇ͓ ãĆŏıőıƈƔƀãƔıƳČ͓ Ɣãƈńƈ͓Śő͓ã͓ĆãıŇƺ͓ãőĆ̴Śƀ͓ƴČČńŇƺ͓
þãƈıƈ͓ıőÿŇƜĆıőĥ͓þƜƔ͓őŚƔ͓ŇıŏıƔČĆ͓ƔŚ͓ƈƔƜĆČőƔ͓ãƔƔČőĆãőÿČ̩͓ŏŚőƔĬŇƺ͓ƀČŽŚƀƔƈ̩͓ƈƜƀƳČƺƈ̩͓ČƔÿ̮͓

Ɣ �ãƀƔıÿıŽãƔČ͓ıő͓ŏãőĆãƔŚƀƺ͓ƈƔãǉ͓ŏČČƔıőĥƈ͓ãőĆ͓Ɣƀãıőıőĥƈ͓ƴĬČő͓ƈÿĬČĆƜŇČĆ

iıőıŏƜŏ͓�ƜãŇıǌÿãƔıŚőƈ
Ɣ �ƀŚƳıĆČ͓¯�͓ÿŇČãƀãőÿČ͓ãőĆ͓þãÿńĥƀŚƜőĆ͓ÿŇČãƀãőÿČ͓ĤƀŚŏ͓A�N͓ãőĆ͓$t]
Ɣ �ƀŚƳıĆČ͓ˢ˦͓ƈČŏČƈƔČƀ͓ÿŚŇŇČĥČ͓ƜőıƔƈ͓Śƀ͓Žãƈƈ͓ƔĬČ͓NőƈƔƀƜÿƔıŚőãŇ͓�ıĆČ͓Čƹãŏ
Ɣ �þıŇıƔƺ͓ƔŚ͓ŏãőãĥČ͓ãőĆ͓ƈƜŽŽŚƀƔ͓ã͓ĥƀŚƜŽ͓ŚĤ͓ˠ˞͓ČŇČŏČőƔãƀƺ͓Śƀ͓ŏıĆĆŇČ͓ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ƈƔƜĆČőƔƈ͓
Ɣ �þıŇıƔƺ͓ƔŚ͓ŽŇãő͓ãőĆ͓ŽƀČŽãƀČ͓ŇČƈƈŚőƈ͓ãőĆ͓ĆČŇıƳČƀ͓ıőƈƔƀƜÿƔıŚő͓
Ɣ �ŚŏŏıƔŏČőƔ͓ƔŚ͓tãńŇãőĆ͓ŇČãĤ͓ŏıƈƈıŚő͓ãőĆ͓ÿŚƀČ͓ƳãŇƜČƈ

ÎŚƀńıőĥ͓ÿŚőĆıƔıŚőƈ̴ŽĬƺƈıÿãŇ͓ĆČŏãőĆƈ
Ɣ kŚƀŏãŇ͓ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ãőĆ͓ŚǊÿČ͓ÿŚőĆıƔıŚőƈ
Ɣ tǉƈıƔČ͓ŏČČƔıőĥƈ
Ɣ �ČſƜıƀČĆ͓ƔŚ͓ƴŚƀń͓ƈŚŏČ͓őıĥĬƔƈ͓ĤŚƀ͓ČƳČőƔƈ
Ɣ iƜƈƔ͓þČ͓ãþŇČ͓ƔŚ͓ŇıĤƔ͓ƜŽ͓ƔŚ͓ˠˣŇþ

ÎŚƀń͓¢ÿĬČĆƜŇČ͓ãőĆ͓�ČƀıŚĆ
Ɣ kŚƔČ̨͓¯Ĭıƈ͓ıƈ͓ã͓ŽãƀƔ͓ƔıŏČ̩͓ƈČãƈŚőãŇ͓ŽŚƈıƔıŚő͓
Ɣ iŚőĆãƺ͓ ƔĬƀŚƜĥĬ͓AƀıĆãƺ̩͓ ˟͓�i͓ƔŚ͓ƔŚ͓ˤ̨ˡ˞͓�i͓ĤŚƀ͓˟˦˞͓ƴŚƀń͓Ćãƺƈ͓ĤƀŚŏ͓iŚőĆãƺ̩͓�ƜĥƜƈƔ͓

˟ˠ̩͓ˠ˞ˠˢ͓ƔĬƀŚƜĥĬ͓¯ĬƜƀƈĆãƺ̩͓iãƺ͓ˠ˧̩͓ˠ˞ˠˣ͓ČƹÿŇƜĆıőĥ͓ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ĬŚŇıĆãƺƈ͓ãőĆ͓þƀČãńƈ͓
Ɣ tƀıČőƔãƔıŚő͓ĤƀŚŏ͓ÎČĆőČƈĆãƺ̩͓]ƜŇƺ͓ˡ˟̩͓ˠ˞ˠˢ͓ƔĬƀŚƜĥĬ͓AƀıĆãƺ̩͓�ƜĥƜƈƔ͓˧̩͓ˠ˞ˠˢ͓˟˟͓�i͓ƔŚ͓ˢ͓

�ŏ͓ĆãıŇƺ̮͓

�ŚŏŽČőƈãƔıŚő
Ɣ ͜ˠ˞͓ƔŚ͓͜ˠˣ͓ŽČƀ͓ĬŚƜƀ̩ ͓ĆČŽČőĆıőĥ͓Śő͓ČƹŽČƀıČőÿČ
Ɣ �ãıĆ͓ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ĬŚŇıĆãƺƈ͓ãőĆ͓þƀČãńƈ

0BLMBOE�-FBG� JT� BO� FRVBM�PQQPSUVOJUZ�FNQMPZFS�BOE�XJMM�OPU�EJTDSJNJOBUF�BHBJOTU�BOZ�JOEJWJEVBM
�FNQMPZFF
�PS�BQQMJDBUJPO�GPS�
FNQMPZNFOU� PO� UIF� CBTJT� PG� SBDF
� DPMPS
� NBSJUBM� TUBUVT
�SFMJHJPO
�BHF
�TFY
�TFYVBM�PSJFOUBUJPO
�OBUJPOBM�PSJHJO
�IBOEJDBQ
�PS�BOZ�
PUIFS�MFHBMMZ�QSPUFDUFE�TUBUVT�SFDPHOJ[FE�CZ�GFEFSBM
�TUBUF
�PS�MPDBM�MBX���
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͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓͓*őƀıÿĬŏČőƔ͓͓NőƈƔƀƜÿƔŚƀ͓]Śþ͓$ČƈÿƀıŽƔıŚő͓̻�ãƀƔ́¯ıŏČ̼

͓�þŚƜƔ͓tãńŇãőĆ͓aČãĤ͓
tãńŇãőĆ͓ aČãĤ͓ ƴãƈ͓ ĤŚƜőĆČĆ͓ ıő͓ ˠ˞˞˟͓ þƺ͓ ã͓ ÿŚŇŇČÿƔıƳČ͓ ŚĤ͓ *ãƈƔ͓ tãńŇãőĆ͓ ČĆƜÿãƔŚƀƈ͓ ıőƔČőƔ͓ Śő͓
ČŏŽŚƴČƀıőĥ͓ ƺŚƜƔĬ͓ƳŚıÿČ̮͓ AŚƀ͓ ƔĬČ͓ŽãƈƔ͓ ˠ˞ͳ͓ ƺČãƀƈ̩͓tãńŇãőĆ͓aČãĤ͓͓ Ĭãƈ͓ČƳŚŇƳČĆ͓ ıőƔŚ͓ã͓ĬıĥĬŇƺ͓
ƀČĥãƀĆČĆ͓ŇČãĆČƀ͓ıő͓ƔĬČ͓ǌČŇĆƈ͓ŚĤ͓ƺŚƜƔĬ͓ĆČƳČŇŚŽŏČőƔ͓ãőĆ͓ŚƜƔ́ŚĤ́ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ƔıŏČ͓ŇČãƀőıőḫ̂

tãńŇãőĆ͓ aČãĤ͓ ĤãÿıŇıƔãƔČƈ͓ ÿƜŇƔƜƀãŇŇƺ͓ ƀČŇČƳãőƔ͓ ŚƜƔ́ŚĤ́ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ ƔıŏČ͓ ŽƀŚĥƀãŏŏıőĥ͓ ĤŚƀ͓
ãŽŽƀŚƹıŏãƔČŇƺ͓ ˟̩˞˞˞͓ _́˟ˠ͓ *ãƈƔ͓ tãńŇãőĆ͓ ƈƔƜĆČőƔƈ͓ ƔĬƀŚƜĥĬ͓ ƈČƳČő͓ãĤƔČƀ͓ ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ŽƀŚĥƀãŏƈ͓ãƔ͓
ŽƜþŇıÿ͓ČŇČŏČőƔãƀƺ͓ãőĆ͓ŏıĆĆŇČ͓ ƈÿĬŚŚŇƈ͓ ãÿƀŚƈƈ͓*ãƈƔ͓tãńŇãőĆ̩͓ŚőČ͓ŽãıĆ͓ıőƔČƀőƈĬıŽ͓ŽƀŚĥƀãŏƈ͓
ĤŚƀ͓ĬıĥĬ͓ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ƈƔƜĆČőƔƈ̩͓ãőĆ͓ƔƴŚ͓ˣ́ƴČČń͓ƈƜŏŏČƀ͓ÿãŏŽƈ͓͓́ŚőČ͓ĤŚƀ͓ČŇČŏČőƔãƀƺ͓ÿĬıŇĆƀČő͓ãőĆ͓
ŚőČ͓ ĤŚƀ͓ŏıĆĆŇČ͓ ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ ƺŚƜƔĬ̮͓tƜƀ͓ŽƀŚĥƀãŏŏıőĥ͓ČŏŽĬãƈıǄČƈ͓ƈŚÿıãŇ͓ãőĆ͓ČŏŚƔıŚőãŇ͓ŇČãƀőıőĥ̩͓
ÿƀČãƔıƳČ͓ ČƹŽƀČƈƈıŚő̩͓ ÿƀıƔıÿãŇ͓ ƔĬıőńıőĥ̩͓ ŇČãĆČƀƈĬıŽ͓ ĆČƳČŇŚŽŏČőƔ̩͓ ƈŚÿıãŇ͓ ŁƜƈƔıÿČ̩͓ ÿŚŇŇČĥČ͓ ãőĆ͓
ÿãƀČČƀ͓ ƀČãĆıőČƈƈ̩͓ ãőĆ͓ ıőÿŇƜĆČƈ͓ ã͓ ĆıƳČƀƈČ͓ ƀãőĥČ͓ ŚĤ͓ ČőƀıÿĬŏČőƔ͓ ŚŽŽŚƀƔƜőıƔıČƈ͓ ıőÿŇƜĆıőĥ͓
¢̮̄ ̮*̮i̮͓ãÿƔıƳıƔıČƈ̩͓ƈŽŚƀƔƈ̩͓ŽŚČƔƀƺ̩͓ƳıƈƜãŇ͓ãƀƔƈ̩͓ĆãőÿČ̩͓ŇıƔČƀãÿƺ̩͓ÿŚŏŏƜőıƔƺ͓ıŏŽãÿƔ͓ŽƀŚŁČÿƔƈ̩͓ãőĆ͓
ŏŚƀČ̮͓

ÎĬŚ͓ƴČ͓ãƀČ
ÎČ͓ ãƀČ͓ ã͓ÿŚŇŇČÿƔıŚő͓ŚĤ͓ČĆƜÿãƔŚƀƈ̩͓ ãƀƔıƈƔƈ̩͓ ÿƀČãƔıƳČƈ̩͓ ãƔĬŇČƔČƈ̩͓ ãÿƔıƳıƈƔƈ̩͓ ŇıĤČ͓ČőƔĬƜƈıãƈƔƈ̩͓ ãőĆ͓
ãþŚƳČ͓ ãŇŇ̩͓ ŽãƈƈıŚőãƔČ͓ ƈƜŽŽŚƀƔČƀƈ͓ ŚĤ͓ ƺŚƜƔĬ͓ ıő͓ ŚƜƀ͓ ƈĬãƀČĆ͓ÿŚŏŏƜőıƔıČƈ̮͓ NĤ͓ ƺŚƜ͓ŽŚƈƈČƈƈ͓ ƔĬČ͓
ŽãƈƈıŚő͓ƔŚ͓ŏãńČ͓tãńŇãőĆ͓ã͓ŏŚƀČ͓ŇŚƳıőĥ̩͓ŁƜƈƔ̩͓ãőĆ͓ƳıþƀãőƔ͓ŽŇãÿČ̩͓ƔĬČő͓tãńŇãőĆ͓aČãĤ͓ŏıĥĬƔ͓þČ͓
ƔĬČ͓ŽŇãÿČ͓ĤŚƀ͓ƺŚƜ͓ƔŚ͓ƀŚŚƔ͓ıő̩͓ƀıƈČ͓ƜŽ͓ãőĆ͓þƀãőÿĬ͓ŚƜƔ̮͓

¢Ɯŏŏãƀƺ͓ŚĤ͓�ŚƈıƔıŚő͓
¯ĬČ͓ *őƀıÿĬŏČőƔ͓ NőƈƔƀƜÿƔŚƀ͓ ŽƀČŽãƀČƈ͓ ãőĆ͓ ŽƀŚƳıĆČƈ͓ ıő́ŽČƀƈŚő͓ ČőƀıÿĬŏČőƔ͓ ıőƈƔƀƜÿƔıŚő͓ ƔŚ͓
ČŇČŏČőƔãƀƺ͓Śƀ͓ŏıĆĆŇČ͓ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ƈƔƜĆČőƔƈ͓ıő͓ŚőČ͓ŚĤ͓ƈČƳČő͓tãńŇãőĆ͓aČãĤ͓�ĤƔČƀ́¢ÿĬŚŚŇ͓ŽƀŚĥƀãŏƈ̮͓͓
*őƀıÿĬŏČőƔ͓ƴıŇŇ͓ ĤŚÿƜƈ͓Śő͓ŚőČ͓ŚĤ͓ ƔĬƀČČ͓ãƀČãƈ̨͓ ˟̼�ƀƔ͓Ώ͓�ƜŇƔƜƀČ͓ˠ̼¢¯*i͓ˡ̼IČãŇƔĬ͓Ώ͓ÎČŇŇþČıőḫ͓̂
¯Ĭıƈ͓ŽŚƈıƔıŚő͓ƀČŽŚƀƔƈ͓ƔŚ͓ƔĬČ͓ƈıƔČ͓ƈŽČÿıǌÿ͓�ƀŚĥƀãŏ͓iãőãĥČƀ̮͓

¢ŽČÿıǌÿ͓�ČƈŽŚőƈıþıŇıƔıČƈ
Ɣ $ČƳČŇŚŽ͓ƴČČńŇƺ͓ŇČƈƈŚő͓ŽŇãőƈ͓ƔĬãƔ͓ČőĥãĥČ͓ƔĬČ͓ƺŚƜƔĬ̩͓ãƀČ͓ãĥČ͓ãŽŽƀŚŽƀıãƔČ̩͓ãőĆ͓ŏČČƔ͓

ƔĬČ͓ĬıĥĬ́ſƜãŇıƔƺ͓ƈƔãőĆãƀĆƈ͓ŚĤ͓tãńŇãőĆ͓aČãĤ͌ƈ͓ŏıƈƈıŚő͓
Ɣ �ƀČãƔČ͓ãőĆ͓ ĤãÿıŇıƔãƔČ͓Čőĥãĥıőĥ̩͓ŽƀŚŁČÿƔ́þãƈČĆ͓ÿƜƀƀıÿƜŇƜŏ͓ ƔĬãƔ͓ ıƈ͓ŚĤ͓ ĬıĥĬ͓ ıőƔČƀČƈƔ͓ ĤŚƀ͓

tãńŇãőĆ͓ ČŇČŏČőƔãƀƺ͓ Śƀ͓ŏıĆĆŇČ͓ ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ ãĥČĆ͓ƺŚƜƔĬ͓ĆãıŇƺ͓ ĤŚƀ͓ ƔƴŚ͓ ˟́ĬŚƜƀ͓ČőƀıÿĬŏČőƔ͓
ƈČƈƈıŚőƈ̮͓*ãÿĬ͓ƈČƈƈıŚő͓ƴıŇŇ͓þČ͓ƴıƔĬ͓ƔƴŚ͓ĆıǉČƀČőƔ͓ĥƀŚƜŽƈ͓ŚĤ͓ƈƔƜĆČőƔƈ̮͓

Ɣ NŏŽŇČŏČőƔãƔıŚő͓ ŚĤ͓ tãńŇãőĆ͓ aČãĤ͓ ƈƔãőĆãƀĆƈ͓ ĤŚƀ͓ ŏãőãĥıőĥ͓ ƔĬČ͓ÿŇãƈƈƀŚŚŏ͓ ı̮Č̮͓ ƳıƈıþŇČ͓
ĆãıŇƺ͓ãĥČőĆã̩͓ÿŚŏŏƜőıƔƺ͓ãĥƀČČŏČőƔƈ̩͓ČƔÿ̮͓

Ɣ ¢ČƔ͓ƜŽ͓ãőĆ͓ŏãőãĥČ͓ÿŚőƈıƈƔČőƔ͓ƈƔƀƜÿƔƜƀČƈ̩͓ƀŚƜƔıőČƈ̩͓ãőĆ͓ŽƀŚƔŚÿŚŇƈ͓ĤŚƀ͓ƺŚƜƔĬ͓ƔŚ͓ĤŚŇŇŚƴ̮͓
Ɣ �ãƈƈıŚő͓ ĤŚƀ͓ ıőőŚƳãƔıŚő͓ ãőĆ͓ ČƹÿČŇŇČőÿČ͓ ıő͓ ƈŚÿıãŇ͓ ãőĆ͓ ƀČƈƔŚƀãƔıƳČ͓ ŁƜƈƔıÿČ͓ ãőĆ͓ ƺŚƜƔĬ͓

ĆČƳČŇŚŽŏČőƔ
Ɣ �ČƈŽŚőĆ͓̻őŚƔ͓ƀČãÿƔ̼͓ƴıƔĬ͓ã͓ƴãƀŏ́ĆČŏãőĆČƀ͓ƈƔãőÿČ͓ƴĬČő͓ƀČĆıƀČÿƔıőĥ͓ƺŚƜƔĬ͓þČĬãƳıŚƀ͓
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Ɣ �ŚŏŽŇČƔČ͓ãŇŇ͓ ãĆŏıőıƈƔƀãƔıƳČ͓ Ɣãƈńƈ͓Śő͓ã͓ĆãıŇƺ͓ãőĆ̴Śƀ͓ƴČČńŇƺ͓
þãƈıƈ͓ıőÿŇƜĆıőĥ͓þƜƔ͓őŚƔ͓ŇıŏıƔČĆ͓ƔŚ͓ƈƔƜĆČőƔ͓ãƔƔČőĆãőÿČ̩͓ŏŚőƔĬŇƺ͓ƀČŽŚƀƔƈ̩͓ƈƜƀƳČƺƈ̩͓ČƔÿ̮͓

Ɣ �ãƀƔıÿıŽãƔČ͓ıő͓ŏãőĆãƔŚƀƺ͓ƈƔãǉ͓ŏČČƔıőĥƈ͓ãőĆ͓Ɣƀãıőıőĥƈ͓ƴĬČő͓ƈÿĬČĆƜŇČĆ

iıőıŏƜŏ͓�ƜãŇıǌÿãƔıŚőƈ
Ɣ �ƀŚƳıĆČ͓¯�͓ÿŇČãƀãőÿČ͓ãőĆ͓þãÿńĥƀŚƜőĆ͓ÿŇČãƀãőÿČ͓ĤƀŚŏ͓A�N͓ãőĆ͓$t]
Ɣ �ƀŚƳıĆČ͓ˢ˦͓ƈČŏČƈƔČƀ͓ÿŚŇŇČĥČ͓ƜőıƔƈ͓Śƀ͓Žãƈƈ͓ƔĬČ͓NőƈƔƀƜÿƔıŚőãŇ͓�ıĆČ͓Čƹãŏ
Ɣ �þıŇıƔƺ͓ƔŚ͓ŏãőãĥČ͓ãőĆ͓ƈƜŽŽŚƀƔ͓ã͓ĥƀŚƜŽ͓ŚĤ͓ˠ˞͓ČŇČŏČőƔãƀƺ͓Śƀ͓ŏıĆĆŇČ͓ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ƈƔƜĆČőƔƈ͓
Ɣ �þıŇıƔƺ͓ƔŚ͓ŽŇãő͓ãőĆ͓ŽƀČŽãƀČ͓ŇČƈƈŚőƈ͓ãőĆ͓ĆČŇıƳČƀ͓ıőƈƔƀƜÿƔıŚő͓
Ɣ �ŚŏŏıƔŏČőƔ͓ƔŚ͓tãńŇãőĆ͓ŇČãĤ͓ŏıƈƈıŚő͓ãőĆ͓ÿŚƀČ͓ƳãŇƜČƈ

ÎŚƀńıőĥ͓ÿŚőĆıƔıŚőƈ̴ŽĬƺƈıÿãŇ͓ĆČŏãőĆƈ
Ɣ kŚƀŏãŇ͓ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ãőĆ͓ŚǊÿČ͓ÿŚőĆıƔıŚőƈ
Ɣ tǉƈıƔČ͓ŏČČƔıőĥƈ
Ɣ �ČſƜıƀČĆ͓ƔŚ͓ƴŚƀń͓ƈŚŏČ͓őıĥĬƔƈ͓ĤŚƀ͓ČƳČőƔƈ
Ɣ iƜƈƔ͓þČ͓ãþŇČ͓ƔŚ͓ŇıĤƔ͓ƜŽ͓ƔŚ͓ˠˣŇþ

ÎŚƀń͓¢ÿĬČĆƜŇČ͓ãőĆ͓�ČƀıŚĆ
Ɣ kŚƔČ̨͓¯Ĭıƈ͓ıƈ͓ã͓ŽãƀƔ͓ƔıŏČ̩͓ƈČãƈŚőãŇ͓ŽŚƈıƔıŚő͓
Ɣ iŚőĆãƺ͓ ƔĬƀŚƜĥĬ͓AƀıĆãƺ̩͓ ˟͓�i͓ƔŚ͓ƔŚ͓ˤ̨ˡ˞͓�i͓ĤŚƀ͓˟˦˞͓ƴŚƀń͓Ćãƺƈ͓ĤƀŚŏ͓iŚőĆãƺ̩͓�ƜĥƜƈƔ͓

˟ˠ̩͓ˠ˞ˠˢ͓ƔĬƀŚƜĥĬ͓¯ĬƜƀƈĆãƺ̩͓iãƺ͓ˠ˧̩͓ˠ˞ˠˣ͓ČƹÿŇƜĆıőĥ͓ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ĬŚŇıĆãƺƈ͓ãőĆ͓þƀČãńƈ͓
Ɣ tƀıČőƔãƔıŚő͓ĤƀŚŏ͓ÎČĆőČƈĆãƺ̩͓]ƜŇƺ͓ˡ˟̩͓ˠ˞ˠˢ͓ƔĬƀŚƜĥĬ͓AƀıĆãƺ̩͓�ƜĥƜƈƔ͓˧̩͓ˠ˞ˠˢ͓˟˟͓�i͓ƔŚ͓ˢ͓

�ŏ͓ĆãıŇƺ̮͓̮͓

�ŚŏŽČőƈãƔıŚő
Ɣ ͜ˠ˞͓ƔŚ͓͜ˠˣ͓ŽČƀ͓ĬŚƜƀ̩ ͓ĆČŽČőĆıőĥ͓Śő͓ČƹŽČƀıČőÿČ
Ɣ �ãıĆ͓ƈÿĬŚŚŇ͓ĬŚŇıĆãƺƈ͓ãőĆ͓þƀČãńƈ
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STATE OF CALIFORNIA�
)5$1&+,6(�7$;�%2$5' 
PO BOX 942857 
SACRAMENTO CA 94257-0540

(QWLW\�6WDWXV�/HWWHU�
Date: 

ESL ID: 

:K\�<RX�5HFHLYHG�7KLV�/HWWHU

According to our records, the following entity information is true and accurate as of the date of this letter. 

Entity ID: 

Entity Name:  

�� The entity is in good standing with the Franchise Tax Board.

�� The entity is QRW in good standing with the Franchise Tax Board.

�� The entity is currently exempt from tax under Revenue and Taxation Code (R&TC) Section 23701

�� We do not have current information about the entity.

�� 7KH�HQWLW\�ZDV�DGPLQLVWUDWLYHO\�GLVVROYHG�FDQFHOOHG�RQ �WKURXJK�WKH�)UDQFKLVH�7D[�%RDUG�
$GPLQLVWUDWLYH�'LVVROXWLRQ�SURFHVV�

,PSRUWDQW�,QIRUPDWLRQ
• 7KLV�LQIRUPDWLRQ�GRHV�QRW�QHFHVVDULO\�UHIOHFW�WKH�HQWLW\
V�FXUUHQW�OHJDO�RU�DGPLQLVWUDWLYH�VWDWXV�ZLWK�DQ\�RWKHU

DJHQF\�RI�WKH�VWDWH�RI�&DOLIRUQLD�RU�RWKHU�JRYHUQPHQWDO�DJHQF\�RU�ERG\�
• ,I�WKH�HQWLW\
V�SRZHUV��ULJKWV��DQG�SULYLOHJHV�ZHUH�VXVSHQGHG�RU�IRUIHLWHG�DW�DQ\�WLPH�LQ�WKH�SDVW��RU�LI�WKH

HQWLW\�GLG�EXVLQHVV�LQ�&DOLIRUQLD�DW�D�WLPH�ZKHQ�LW�ZDV�QRW�TXDOLILHG�RU�QRW�UHJLVWHUHG�WR�GR�EXVLQHVV�LQ
&DOLIRUQLD��WKLV�LQIRUPDWLRQ�GRHV�QRW�UHIOHFW�WKH�VWDWXV�RU�YRLGDELOLW\�RI�FRQWUDFWV�PDGH�E\�WKH�HQWLW\�LQ
&DOLIRUQLD�GXULQJ�WKH�SHULRG�WKH�HQWLW\�ZDV�VXVSHQGHG�RU�IRUIHLWHG��5	7&�6HFWLRQV������������������
�����D�����������

• 7KH�HQWLW\�FHUWLILFDWH�RI�UHYLYRU�PD\�KDYH�D�WLPH�OLPLWDWLRQ�RU�PD\�OLPLW�WKH�IXQFWLRQV�WKH�UHYLYHG�HQWLW\�FDQ
SHUIRUP��RU�ERWK��5	7&�6HFWLRQ������E��

&RQQHFW�:LWK�8V 
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3hone:�� �
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800�852�5711 IURP���D�P��WR���S�P��ZHHNGD\V��H[FHSW�VWDWH�KROLGD\V
916�845�6500 from outside the United States

&DOLIRUQLD
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2DNODQG�/HDI�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV
���������

2IILFHUV�
0RQLFD�*X]PDQ��&KDLU�
3ULQFLSDO�RQ�6SHFLDO�$VVLJQPHQW��6DQ�/HDQGUR�
8QLILHG�6FKRRO�'LVWULFW
�-RLQHG��������QG�7HUP�

$XGUH\�<DQJ��6HFUHWDU\�
8VHU�([SHULHQFH�5HVHDUFK�&RQVXOWDQW
�-RLQHG��������VW�7HUP�

/HR�.UHPHU��7UHDVXUHU
&R�)RXQGHU��)RXQGHUV�5HVWDXUDQW�7DEOH�*URXS
�-RLQHG��������VW�7HUP�

.LP�%URQVRQ��$W�/DUJH
6RXUFLQJ�0DQDJHU��*HQHQWHFK
�-RLQHG��������VW�7HUP�

6KDHO\Q�'DZVRQ��$W�/DUJH
$WWRUQH\��0RUULVRQ�	�)RHUVWHU
�-RLQHG��������VW�7HUP�

(OL]DEHWK�.LP��$W�/DUJH
,QYHVWPHQW�%DQNHU�DQG�0	$�$GYLVRU
�-RLQHG��������VW�WHUP�

'HEUD�/HYLQVN\��(PHULWXV�%RDUG�0HPEHU
5HWLUHG�0HGLFDO�'RFWRU��3ULYDWH�3UDFWLFH
�)RXQGLQJ�0HPEHU�

-RVH�/XLV�5RGULJXH]��$W�/DUJH�	�$OXPQL
3URMHFW�0DQDJHU��*URZLQJ�7RJHWKHU
�-RLQHG��������VW�7HUP�

6WHYHQ�7LQGDOO��$W�/DUJH
3DUWQHU�DW�*LEEV�/DZ�*URXS�//3
�-RLQHG��������VW�7HUP�

6WHSKHQ�:DOURG��(PHULWXV�%RDUG�0HPEHU
&OLQLFDO�3V\FKRORJLVW��3ULYDWH�3UDFWLFH
�)RXQGLQJ�0HPEHU�

/LQGVH\�:LOOLDPV��$W�/DUJH
$GPLQLVWUDWLYH�'LUHFWRU��8&6)�0HGLFDO�&HQWHU
�-RLQHG��������VW�WHUP�

8SGDWHG�����������



2DNODQG /HDI )RXQGDWLRQ %RDUG 0HHWLQJ
���������� ����SP

3UHVHQW� .LP %URQVRQ� 6KDHO\Q 'DZVRQ �YLD ]RRP�� 0RQLFD *X]PDQ� /HR .UHPHU�
-RVH /XLV 5RGULJXH]� 6WHYHQ 7LQGDOO

$EVHQW� /L] .LP� /LQGVD\ :LOOLDPV� $XGUH\ <DQJ

0((7,1* $*(1'$

7,0( $*(1'$ ,7(0 )$&,/,7$725

���� � ���� :HOFRPH DQG 'LQQHU
Ɣ

0RQLFD� &KDLU

���� ����� &KHFN ,Q 0RQLFD� &KDLU

����� ���� $SSURYDO RI PLQXWHV
Ɣ SULRU PHHWLQJ PLQXWHV

ż 6WHYHQ 7LQGDOO PDGH D PRWLRQ WR DSSURYH� /HR
.UHPHU VHFRQGV� $OO LQ IDYRU�

0RQLFD� &KDLU

���� � ���� 4� 5HSRUW 2XW
Ɣ �6OLGHV � WR ���)<���%RDUG�5HSRUW�IRU�4XDUWHU��

'HYHORSPHQW 8SGDWH� 6XEPLWWHG WZR 2DNODQG 3URPLVH
5HTXHVW IRU 3URSRVDOV �5)3V�� (' KDV EHHQ IRFXVHG RQ GRQRU
FXOWLYDWLRQ ² UHDFKLQJ RXW WR GRQRUV WR VFKHGXOH FRIIHH FKDWV RU
OXQFK� :H UHFHLYHG D JLIW IURP :RUNGD\ IRU KRVWLQJ D YROXQWHHU
HYHQW LQ )HEUXDU\� 2XU DQQXDO HYHQW KDG WR EH UHVFKHGXOHG WR
-XQH GXH WR ORZ WLFNHW VDOHV DQG VSRQVRUVKLSV� /RWV RI OXFN RQ
WKH DXFWLRQ IURQW� :LWK WKH QHZ GDWH� RQO\ RQH SHUVRQ LV QRW
DEOH WR PDNH QHZ GDWH� 'RQRUV ZKR KDYH SXUFKDVHG WLFNHWV
WKDW FRXOG QRW PDNH WKH RULJLQDO GDWH� 2YHUDOO� ZH DUH VWLOO
SURMHFWHG WR IDOO XQGHU RXU IXQGUDLVLQJ JRDO WKLV \HDU E\ ����N
DVVXPLQJ ZLWK D QHZ GDWH ZH UHDFK RXU ����N JRDO IRU WKH
HYHQW ² ZH KDYH UHFHLYHG ���N DV RI WRGD\� PHDQLQJ ZH KDYH
WR UDLVH ���N ² ODVW \HDU GXULQJ WKH HYHQW ZH UDLVHG ���N�

4XHVWLRQ DURXQG ZKDW YROXQWHHU HYHQWV ORRN OLNH � (YHQWV YDU\
GHSHQGLQJ RQ WKH UHTXHVW IURP FRUSRUDWH OHDG� KDV EHHQ
HYHU\WKLQJ IURP KDQGV RQ LQ RXU JDUGHQV WR FUHDWLQJ VLJQV IRU
RXU JDUGHQV�

+U� )LQDQFH 	 2SV 8SGDWHV� 0LG \HDU VWDII VXUYH\ KDV
LQIRUPHG FKDQJHV IRU WKH VHFRQG KDOI RI WKH \HDU� 2YHU ��� RI
VWDII UHSRUWHG WKH\ IHHO KDSS\ WR ZRUN DW 2DNODQG /HDI� IHHO D
VHQVH RI DFFRPSOLVKPHQW IURP WKHLU ZRUN� DQG NQRZ KRZ WKHLU
UROH KHOSV PHHW WKH RUJ·V YLVLRQ DQG PLVVLRQ� 7KH ELJJHVW DUHD

0HOLVVD� ('



RI JURZWK FRQWLQXHV WR EH SURIHVVLRQDO 'HYHORSPHQW�
2QERDUGLQJ LPSURYHPHQWV KDYH VKRZQ LPSDFW ZLWK DQ LQFUHDVH
LQ VWDII VWDWLQJ WKH\ IHHO PRUH VXSSRUWHG ZKHQ VWDUWLQJ
FRPSDUHG WR ODVW ZLQWHU UHVXOWV ² KRZHYHU VWLOO QRW ZKHUH ZH
ZDQW WR EH� :H DUH LQ WKH PLGVW RI PRYLQJ� ORWV RI VSULQJ
FOHDQLQJ�

4XHVWLRQ UHJDUGLQJ ZKHWKHU WKH SURIHVVLRQDO GHYHORSPHQW
IHHGEDFN LV DURXQG ZDQWLQJ PRUH RI LW RU WKH FRQWHQW RI LW ²
WKH VWDII DUH DVNLQJ WKDW WKH WRSLFV DUH PRUH UHOHYDQW�

$63
6LWHV DUH IXOO\ VWDIIHG ZKLFK KDV KHOSHG RXU SURJUDPV
WUHPHQGRXVO\� 3URJUDP &XOWXUH /HDGHUV DQG 3URJUDP 0DQDJHUV
KDYH EHHQ DEOH WR LPSOHPHQW VPDOO JURXS RU RQH�RQ�RQH
LQWHUYHQWLRQV IRU VWXGHQWV WKDW UHTXLUH LW� ,Q -DQXDU\ WKH $63
WHDP ODXQFKHG D QHZ OHVVRQ SODQ WHPSODWH� WKHUH KDV EHHQ D
ORW RI SRVLWLYH IHHGEDFN IURP RXU GLUHFW VWDII� 6XEPLVVLRQ RI
RXU ZHHNO\ RYHUYLHZ OHVVRQ SODQ WHPSODWH KDV EHHQ LQFUHDVLQJ�
%UHW +DUWH VWXGHQWV DUH HQWKXVLDVWLFDOO\ SDUWLFLSDWLQJ LQ VFKRRO
VSRUWV DQG ZLQQLQJ PRVW RI WKHLU JDPHV� %UHW +DUWH·V ER\V
EDVNHWEDOO� *LUOV EDVNHWEDOO� DQG VRFFHU DOO SDUWLFLSDWHG LQ
2DNODQG $WKOHWLF /HDJXH �2$/� SOD\RIIV� 6SDFH FRQWLQXHV WR EH
D FKDOOHQJH IRU RXU $63 VLWHV� %UHW +DUWH $WWHQGDQFH FRQWLQXHV
WR EH D VWUXJJOH QRW MXVW IRU XV EXW IRU GD\WLPH ² DOUHDG\
SURMHFWHG WR QRW PDNH WKHLU ���� $'$ QXPEHU� WKLV FRXOG
UHVXOW LQ D JUDQW UHGXFWLRQ� &ROODERUDWLQJ ZLWK WKH GD\WLPH RQ
LQWHUYHQWLRQ WR UHDFK RXW WR VWXGHQWV RQ WKH FKURQLF DEVHQWHH
OLVW RU LQ GDQJHU RI EHLQJ RQ WKH OLVW�

4XHVWLRQ DURXQG KRZ 2$/ ZRUNV ² 7KH GLVWULFW UXQV WKH OHDJXH�
DQ\ 286' PLGGOH VFKRRO FDQ VLJQ XS�

4XHVWLRQ DURXQG ZDQWLQJ WR NQRZ PRUH DERXW VSDFH LVVXH ²
:LWK (/23 ZH QRZ VHUYH PRUH VWXGHQWV� DW RXU FKDUWHU
FDPSXVHV (/23 LV IXQGLQJ SDUDOOHO SURJUDPV DW WKH VDPH WLPH
DQG DW 286' WHDFKHUV DUH JHWWLQJ SDLG WR VWD\ IRU �����
PLQXWHV WR GR OLWHUDF\ LQWHUYHQWLRQ ZLWK VWXGHQWV� 7KLV PHDQV
ZH DUH JHWWLQJ OHVV DFFHVV WR VSDFHV EXW VHUYLQJ PRUH VWXGHQWV�

&RPPHQW RQ KRZ DWWHQGDQFH LV D QDWLRQZLGH LVVXH WKHUH ZDV D
UHFHQW 1< WLPHV DUWLFOH DERXW FKURQLF DEVHQWHHLVP�

,QWHUQVKLSV
/&6 DQG 5RRWV LQWHUQV KDYH SDUWLFLSDWHG LQ D VHULHV RI
SURIHVVLRQDO GHYHORSPHQW ZRUNVKRSV VXFK DV WLPH
PDQDJHPHQW� ILQDQFH OLWHUDF\� DQG HIIHFWLYH FRPPXQLFDWLRQ�
,Q WKH XSFRPLQJ PRQWKV WKH\ ZLOO OHDUQ DERXW UHVXPH EXLOGLQJ
DQG LQWHUYLHZLQJ ���� *DUGHQ &OXE 5HVXPHG � $ VHQVH RI
FRPPXQLW\ KDV EHHQ FXOWLYDWHG DW HDFK JDUGHQ FOXE� DQG WKH
LQFUHDVH LQ VWXGHQW YRLFHV WKDW ZH KHDU GXULQJ HQULFKPHQWV�

6XPPHU &DPSV



3ODQQLQJ LV LQ IXOO VZLQJ ² KRVWLQJ WZR FDPSV RQH DW ,&6 7&1
DQG RQH DW %+� 2XU JRDO LV WR HQUROO ��� VWXGHQWV EHWZHHQ ERWK
FDPSV� 6WXGHQWV ZLOO DWWHQG ��� KRXUV RI DFDGHPLF VXSSRUW
ZLWK GD\WLPH WHDFKHUV DQG WKHQ WUDQVLWLRQ WR RXU FDPS IURP
���� 30 WR ��� 30� 7KH FDPS LV EHLQJ IXOO\ VWDIIHG E\ RXU
VWURQJHVW $63 WHDFKHUV�

4XHVWLRQV URXQG KRZ ORQJ FDPS WDNHV SODFH ² LW LV D � ZHHN
FDPS�

���� � ���� ([HFXWLYH 5HSRUW
Ɣ �6OLGHV �� WR ���)<���%RDUG�5HSRUW�IRU�4XDUWHU��

2IILFH /HDVH :H DUH PRYLQJ LQ WZR ZHHNV LQWR RXU QHZ VSDFH�
7KH QHZ VSDFH ZLOO QRW EH D VKDUHG VSDFH ZLWK RWKHU QRQ
SURILWV EXW ZLOO EH IXOO\ RXU VSDFH� 7KLV ZLOO UHVXOW LQ D
UHGXFWLRQ WR UHQW QH[W ILVFDO \HDU�

%RDUG VXJJHVWHG ZH GR D VPDOO FHOHEUDWLRQ LQ WKH QHZ VSDFH�

2UJ *RDOV� 2XU RUJ JRDOV KDYH EHHQ VHW IRU QH[W ILVFDO \HDU� WKH
JRDOV DUH EDVHG RQ WKH ODVW \HDU RI RXU FXUUHQW VWUDWHJLF SODQ�
2XU ILUVW VWUDWHJ\ RI (QKDQFH 3URJUDPPLQJ ZLOO KDYH WKUHH
JRDOV� ��,PSOHPHQW 2DNODQG /HDI TXDOLW\ FXUULFXOXP DFURVV
VLWHV RQ D FRQVLVWHQW EDVLV� �� 6WUHQJWKHQ RXU 5- DQG 6(/
SUDFWLFHV� �� )XUWKHU VWUHQJWKHQ RXU LQWHUQVKLS SURJUDP LQ
WHUPV RI ZRUNIRUFH GHYHORSPHQW 2XU VHFRQG VWUDWHJ\ RI ,QYHVW
LQ 3HRSOH ZLOO KDYH WKUHH JRDOV �� ,QFUHDVH VWDII GHYHORSPHQW
DQG WUDLQLQJV �� (QKDQFH DQG HOHYDWH RQERDUGLQJ ��
6WUHQJWKHQ�)RUPDOL]H RSSRUWXQLWLHV IRU DGYDQFHPHQW� 2XU
WKLUG JRDO RI 0HDVXUH LPSDFW ZLOO KDYH RQH JRDO IRFXVHG RQ
VWUHQJWKHQLQJ WKH EXLOGLQJ EORFNV RI EHLQJ D WUXH GDWD GULYHQ
DQG OHDUQLQJ RUJDQL]DWLRQ� 2XU IRXUWK JRDO RI 6WUHQJWKHQ %UDQG
ZLOO KDYH RQH JRDO IRFXVHG RQ GHYHORSLQJ D VWURQJ IXQGUDLVLQJ
SODQ IRU WKH RUJDQL]DWLRQ

)<�� 2UJ &KDQJHV
'LUHFWRUV ZHQW WKURXJK D 6:27 DQDO\VLV EXW DOVR PDSSHG RXU
ILQDQFLDO�SURJUDPPDWLF LPSDFW IRU DOO SURJUDPV WR GHFLGH ZKDW
FKDQJHV ZH QHHG WR PDNH IRU QH[W \HDU� ,Q DGGLWLRQ� WKHUH DUH
SURMHFWHG UHYHQXH FKDQJHV WR RXU LQFRPH QH[W \HDU� 'XH WR
286' QHZ (/23 IXQGLQJ SROLF\ EDVHG RQ ���� $YHUDJH 'DLO\
DWWHQGDQFH QXPEHUV� ZH DUH ORVLQJ VRPH (/23 IXQGLQJ ² WRWDO
RI ����N� 7KLV ZLOO PRVWO\ EDODQFH RXW ZLWK XV HQUROOLQJ OHVV
VWXGHQWV DQG WKXV KLULQJ OHVV LQVWUXFWRUV� WKH UHGXFWLRQ RI
LQVWUXFWRUV LV ����N DQG QR ORQJHU SDUWQHU ZLWK *LUOV ,QF DW ,&6
7&1 UHVXOWLQJ LQ ���N VDYLQJV�

:H ZLOO EH FXWWLQJ WKH $WWHQGDQFH &OHUN SRVLWLRQ IURP DOO VLWHV
XQOHVV WKH\ PHHW FULWHULD RI RSHQ FDPSXV ² RQO\ RQH VLWH�
&OHYHODQG PHHWV WKDW UHTXLUHPHQW� 7KLV FKDQJH LV D VDYLQJV RI
����N�

0HOLVVD� ('



:H ZLOO EH DGGLQJ $FDGHPLF &RRUGLQDWRUV WR KHOS ZLWK RXU
DFDGHPLF FRPSRQHQW DQG FROOHJH�FDUHHU DZDUHQHVV LQLWLDWLYH�
$Q\ VLWH WKDW KDV ��� RI VWXGHQWV ZKR DUH EHORZ OLWHUDF\ OHYHO
ZLOO JHW D FRRUGLQDWRU� 7KLV LV DOO RXU VLWHV EXW &OHYHODQG� 7KLV
ZLOO EH DQ LQFUHDVH RI ���N� +RZHYHU WKLV SRVLWLRQ H[SDQVLRQ LV
VWLOO FRQWLQJHQW RQ LI ZH UHFHLYH 2DNODQG 3URPLVH IXQGLQJ�

7KH SURSRVHG EXGJHW LQ -XQH IRU QH[W ILVFDO \HDU ZLOO VKRZ DOO
UHWXUQLQJ VWDII UHFHLYLQJ D ���� FRVW RI OLYLQJ DGMXVWPHQW� 7KLV
LV DQ LQFUHDVH RI ���N�6WDII KDYH EHHQ LQIRUPHG WKHUH ZLOO EH
QR SHUIRUPDQFH LQFUHDVHV GXH WR EXGJHW FRQVWUDLQWV�

2XU LQWHUQVKLS GHSDUWPHQW LV JHWWLQJ D ELJ FKDQJH� 2XU /RYH
&XOWLYDWLQJ 6FKRRO\DUGV ZLOO QR ORQJHU KDYH WZR FRPSRQHQWV�
WKH LQWHUQVKLS SLHFH DQG DIWHU VFKRRO JDUGHQ FOXE� :H DUH
UHPRYLQJ WKH LQWHUQVKLS FRPSRQHQW RI /&6 DQG LW ZLOO VROHO\
IRFXV RQ WKH *DUGHQ &OXE FRPSRQHQW� 7KH (/23 IXQGLQJ IURP
FXWWLQJ WKH DWWHQGDQFH FOHUN SRVLWLRQ ZLOO EH XVHG WR FRYHU WKH
FRVW RI *DUGHQ &OXE� 2XU FXUUHQW /&6 LQWHUQV ZLOO EH PRYHG WR
RXU 5RRWV LQWHUQVKLS� PHDQLQJ RXU 5RRWV SURJUDP ZLOO H[SDQG
DQG EH DVVLJQHG WR VXSSRUW /&6 *DUGHQ 0DQDJHU� 'XH WR WKLV ZH
KRSH WR DGG D ��� )7( 5RRWV 0DQDJHU WR KROG WKLV SURJUDP�
7KLV VKLIW LQ WKH LQWHUQVKLS GHSDUWPHQW ZLOO EH D ��N VDYLQJV
RYHUDOO EXW JLYH /&6 D PRUH VXVWDLQDEOH IXQGLQJ�

/RRNLQJ DKHDG� 286' ZLOO UHOHDVH WKHLU 5)3 SURFHVV� 286' KDV
D OLVW RI DSSURYHG DIWHUVFKRRO OHDG DJHQFLHV� SULQFLSDOV FDQ
RQO\ FRQWUDFW ZLWK DJHQFLHV RQ WKDW OLVW� (YHU\ � \HDUV WKLV OLVW
JHWV XSGDWHG EDVHG RQ WKH 5)3� 7KLV SURFHVV ZLOO WDNH SODFH
GXULQJ WKH VXPPHU� ,Q WKH )DOO� SULQFLSDOV ZLOO JR WKURXJK
H[SORUDWLRQ SKDVH ZHUH WKH\ FDQ UH�HYDOXDWH WKHLU OHDG DJHQF\�
7KLV ZRXOG EH RXU FKDQFH WR DGG D VFKRRO VLWH� $V RI ULJKW QRZ�
DOO RXU 286' SULQFLSDOV KDYH H[SUHVVHG ZDQWLQJ WR VWD\ ZLWK
2DNODQG OHDI� 2QFH VFKRRO VLWH SDUWQHUVKLSV DUH FRQILUPHG�
&LW\ RI 2DNODQG UHOHDVHV 5)3 IRU 2DNODQG )XQG IRU &KLOGUHQ RI
<RXWK �2)&<� ZKLFK LV WKH IXQGLQJ WKDW VXSSOHPHQWV RXU $6(6
DQG (/23 IXQGLQJ� 7KLV LV D � \HDU JUDQW DZDUG�

:LWK FKDQJH LQ /&6 PRGHO� ZH KRSH WR FUHDWH D IXQGLQJ PRGHO�
-XVW OLNH *LUOV ,QF VHUYHV DV D OHDG DJHQF\ EXW DOVR D
VXEFRQWUDFWRU IRU RWKHU OHDG DJHQFLHV ² ZH ZDQW WR UHSOLFDWH
WKDW PRGHO IRU RXU /&6 JDUGHQ FOXE� +RZ GR ZH UXQ JDUGHQ
FOXEV IRU RWKHU OHDG DJHQFLHV OLNH *LUOV ,QF� (%$<&� (%$&� HWF"

$63 3DUWQHUVKLSV
:LWK 286' 5)3 FRPLQJ XS� ZH QHHG WR GLVFXVV LI ZH ZDQW WR
H[SDQG RU VWD\ ZLWK FXUUHQW DJHQFLHV� :H ZLOO QHHG WR PDNH D
GHFLVLRQ GXULQJ VXPPHU � RWKHU TXHVWLRQV WR H[SORUH� 'R ZH
ZDQW WR VWD\ IRFXVHG RQ (DVW 2DNODQG RU RSHQ XS WR 2DNODQG"
'R ZH ZDQW WR FKDQJH WR MXVW EH DQ HOHPHQWDU\ $63 OHDG
DJHQF\" 'R ZH ZDQW WR DGG D 06 WR RXU OLVW VR LW LV QRW MXVW
%UHW KDUWH"



(' VKDUHG WKDW � VLWHV UHDFK RXW WKLV \HDU ZLWK KRSHV RI 2/
LQWHUYLHZLQJ WR EH WKH OHDG DJHQF\�

���� � ���� %RDUG $VVHVVPHQW 5HSRUW 2XW
Ɣ 'HFN

5\DQ VKDUHG WKH ERDUG DVVHVVPHQW UHVXOWV IURP WKH %RDUG
$VVHVVPHQW WKDW HDFK ERDUG PHPEHU FRPSOHWHG LQ 'HFHPEHU�

5\DQ SUHVHQWHG DUHDV RI RSSRUWXQLWLHV IRU HDFK FDWHJRU\ EDVHG
RQ UHVSRQVHV� 5\DQ ZRUNHG ZLWK 0HOLVVD DQG 0RQLFD WR
GHWHUPLQH WZR SURMHFWV WKDW KH FRXOG GR IRU XV EDVHG RQ WKHVH
RSSRUWXQLWLHV� *LYHQ WKH FRQVWUDLQW RI D PRQWK WZR LWHPV ZHUH
LGHQWLILHG� 2ULHQWDWLRQ RQERDUG GHFN DQG FRPSOLDQFH FDOHQGDU

2ULHQWDWLRQ 2QERDUGLQJ 'HFN � EXLOW RII ZKDW 0HOLVVD SUHVHQWHG
WR ERDUG LQ WKH )DOO� 7KLV LV DQ RQERDUGLQJ GHFN WKDW FDSWXUHV
WKH SROLFLHV� JLYHV DQ LQWUR WR QRQSURILW ERDUGV� ERDUG
VWUXFWXUH� DQG QH[W VWHSV�

&RPSOLDQFH &DOHQGDU ² RXWOLQHV WKH URXWLQH DQG UHJXODWRU\
REOLJDWLRQV RI QRQSURILWV LQ &$� 7KLV LV D UHIHUHQFH GRFXPHQW
WKDW WKH ERDUG FDQ XVH WR NQRZ ZKDW ILOLQJV DUH FRPLQJ XS RU
KRZ RIWHQ WKH\ VKRXOG UHYLHZ WKH ILOLQJV�

5\DQ� %RDUG )HOORZ

���� � ���� %RDUG %XVLQHVV
Ɣ %RDUG ZHQW LQWR FORVHG 6HVVLRQ

0HOLVVD� ('

���� &ORVHG VHVVLRQ 0RQLFD� &KDLU

83&20,1* %2$5' 0((7,1*6

'$7( 3XUSRVH 'LQQHU VLJQ XS $WWHQGDQFH 1RWHV

-XQH ��� ���� %XGJHW $SSURYDO IRU )<��



2DNODQG /HDI )RXQGDWLRQ %RDUG 0HHWLQJ
���������� ����SP
=RRP /LQN�

KWWSV���XV��ZHE�]RRP�XV�M������������"SZG O��XS6:�'�F[:NUW25-]P6H�EK[EQ���

3UHVHQW� .LP %URQVRQ� 6KDHO\Q 'DZVRQ� (OL]DEHWK .LP� /HR .UHPHU� -RVH /XLV 5RGULJXH]�
6WHYHQ 7LQGDOO� /LQGVD\ :LOOLDPV
$EVHQW� 0RQLFD *X]PDQ� $XGUH\ <DQJ

0((7,1* $*(1'$

7,0( $*(1'$ ,7(0

���� � ���� :HOFRPH
Ɣ

���� ����� &KHFN ,Q

����� ���� $SSURYDO RI PLQXWHV
Ɣ SULRU PHHWLQJ PLQXWHV

ż 6WHYHQ 7LQGDOO PDGH D PRWLRQ WR DSSURYH� /HR .UHPHU VHFRQGV� $OO LQ
IDYRU�

���� � ���� 4� DV RI ������� 5HSRUW 2XW
Ɣ 'HYHORSPHQW

ż &RPSOHWHG D ZHDOWK VFUHHQLQJ WR DVVHVV GRQRUV· JLYLQJ SDWWHUQV� PLVVLRQ
ILW� DQG DVVHWV� /RRNHG DW ��� GRQRUV ZKR KDYH HYHU JLYHQ ���� RU PRUH
DQG QDUURZHG GRZQ WR �� WDUJHWV ZLWK VSHFLILHG WRXFK SRLQWV�

ż 6XEPLWWHG PXOWLSOH JUDQWV ZLWK D IHZ QHZ SURVSHFWLYH JUDQWV� :H GLG JHW
DQ LQFUHDVH LQ IXQGLQJ IURP RQH RI RXU UHWXUQLQJ IXQGHUV � LQFUHDVHG IURP
��N WR ���N�\HDU� 2DNODQG 3URPLVH FDPH LQ DW DQ DZDUGHG DPRXQW RI
���N�

ż 2XU HYHQW SODQQLQJ ZDV RQ WUDFN DQG WRRN SODFH HDUOLHU WKLV PRQWK� ZH
PHW RXU QHW LQFRPH JRDO RI ���N�

Ɣ )LQDQFH 	 $GPLQLVWUDWLRQ
ż %DVHG RQ GDWD LQIRUPHG OHDUQLQJV IURP WKLV \HDU� ZH KDYH LPSURYHG RXU

VFUHHQLQJ DQG DSSOLFDWLRQ SURFHVV IRU WKH XSFRPLQJ VFKRRO \HDU�
ż (QG RI \HDU VWDII VXUYH\ GHPRQVWUDWHG WKDW VWDII IHHO PRUH DSSUHFLDWHG�

ZH KDYH EHHQ LQWHQWLRQDO DURXQG WKLV SLHFH� +RZHYHU� SURIHVVLRQDO
GHYHORSPHQW FRQWLQXHV WR EH DQ DUHD IRU LPSURYHPHQW�

ż $V RI WRGD\� ZH DUH IRUHFDVWHG WR HQG WKH ILVFDO \HDU ZLWK DERXW ��N LQ
VXUSOXV� &DVK IORZ FRQWLQXHV WR EH D FRQFHUQ� ZH KDYH EHHQ MXVW ILQH
ZLWK /LQH RI &UHGLW EXW JHWWLQJ UHLPEXUVHG IURP FRQWUDFWV IRU VHUYLFH KDV
EHHQ VORZ�

Ɣ $63



ż 7KH (2< HYHQWV ZHUH G\QDPLF DQG VKRZFDVHG WKH MRE� ODXJKWHU� DQG
FUHDWLYLW\ WKDW WRRN SODFH WKURXJKRXW WKH \HDU� :H KDG WZR IXQGHUV FRPH
RXW WR RQH RI RXU VKRZFDVH ZKR LQIRUPHG PH KRZ KDSS\ WKH\ ZHUH WR
H[SHULHQFH WKH MR\ DQG VHH WKH SURMHFWV RQ GLVSOD\�

ż 2XU 0DQDJHUV KHOG WKHLU VWDII UHIOHFWLRQ WR WDON DERXW WKH KLJKOLJKWV IRU
WKLV \HDU DQG FKDOOHQJHV� WKH\ KDYH VWDUWHG WR GHYHORS SODQV RQ ZKDW
QHHGV WR FKDQJH IRU QH[W \HDU� 3DUW RI WKH UHIOHFWLRQ KDG WR GR ZLWK
UHYLHZLQJ RXU \RXWK DQG IDPLO\ VXUYH\V� 7KH\ FHOHEUDWHG WKDW ��� RI
IDPLOLHV DUH SOHDVHG ZLWK RXU SURJUDP DQG IHHO WKHLU FKLOG LV VDIH GXULQJ
WKH SURJUDP� :H KDG D SDUHQW VD\ WKH IROORZLQJ ´:H DUH JUDWHIXO IRU
VXFK DQ DPD]LQJ DIWHU VFKRRO SURJUDP� 7KH JLUOV UHDOO\ ORYH LW DQG , FDQ
VHH KRZ LW LV VKDSLQJ DQG GHYHORSLQJ WKHP ERWK� :H DUH JUDWHIXO IRU \RXU
KDUG ZRUN DQG WR \RXU DZHVRPH WHDP�µ

ż 2XU SURJUDPV DUH DOO SURMHFWHG WR PHHW WKHLU UHTXLUHG $'$ WDUJHW ZLWK
WKH H[FHSWLRQ RI %+� :H KDYH EHHQ LQ FROODERUDWLRQ ZLWK 286' WR
GHYHORS SODQV RI DFWLRQV WR HQVXUH WKDW ZH FDQ PHHW DW OHDVW ��� RI RXU
JRDO WR EULQJ XV WR WLHU ��

Ɣ ,QWHUQVKLS
ż /&6 DQG 5RRWV KHOG DQ HQG RI \HDU MRLQW FHOHEUDWLRQ DW 'LPRQG 3DUN� 7KH

WHDP UHIOHFWHG RQ WKH LQWHUQ VXUYH\V ZKLFK VKRZHG WKH JUHDW
LPSURYHPHQW FRPSDUHG WR IDOO ² LW GHPRQVWUDWHG WKH LPSDFW WKH
LPSOHPHQWHG FKDQJHV KDG RQ WKH SURJUDP�

ż :H JRW WR WDEOH DW WKH 2DNODQG 3URPLVH (YHQW WKDW ZDV D UHVRXUFH IDLU
IRU PLGGOH DQG KLJK VFKRRO VWXGHQWV� 2XU VWDII ZHUH LQWHUYLHZHG IRU WKHLU
VRFLDO PHGLD�

ż 7KH FKDOOHQJH ZH DUH VWLOO WU\LQJ WR DGGUHVV LV KRZ GXULQJ 6SULQJ ZH VHH D
GHFUHDVH LQ HQJDJHPHQW GXH WR FRPSHWLQJ HYHQWV DQG DFDGHPLFV�

Ɣ 6XPPHU &DPSV
ż 6XPPHU FDPS LV DOPRVW GRQH� QH[W ZHHN� :H KDYH EHHQ VHUYLQJ ���

VWXGHQWV LQ FDPS WKLV VXPPHU EHWZHHQ %+ DQG ,&6 7&1� 2XU HOHPHQWDU\
VWXGHQWV KDYH EHHQ DEOH WR SUDFWLFH WKHLU FUHDWLYH VNLOOV WKURXJK DUWV 	
FUDIWV� SDUWLFLSDWH LQ VXPPHU JDUGHQLQJ� DQG HQJDJH LQ PDQ\ PRYHPHQW
DFWLYLWLHV ZLWK ORWV RI WLPH RXWGRRUV DQG WKURXJK WHDP VSRUWV� 7KH\ ZHUH
DEOH WR JR WR $QJHO ,VODQG WKLV ZHHN DQG ZLOO EH JRLQJ WR WKH ]RR QH[W
ZHHN� 2XU PLGGOH VFKRRO VWXGHQWV KDYH SUDFWLFH WKHLU FUHDWLYH VNLOOV
WKURXJK DFWLYLWLHV OLNH ZDWHUFRORU SDLQWLQJ� WKH\ OHDUQHG KRZ WR PDNH
VRODU RYHQV� DQG DUH LQ WKH PLGVW RI WKHLU VHUYLFH OHDUQLQJ SURMHFW� )RU
6HUYLFH /HDUQLQJ� WKH\ ZHUH DEOH WR SUHVHQW WKHLU SURMHFWV WR D SDQHO ODVW
ZHHN IRU IHHGEDFN DQG UHFRPPHQGDWLRQV� 7KH\ ZLOO ILQLVK WKHLU SURMHFWV
QH[W ZHHN� 7KH\ ZHUH DEOH WR JR RQ D KLNLQJ ILHOG WULS RQ /DQGV (QG /RRS
7UDLO LQ 6DQ )UDQFLVFR ODVW ZHHN DQG QH[W ZHHN ZLOO EH KDYLQJ $GYHQWXUH
'D\ DW 'HO 9DOOH ZKHUH WKH\ ZLOO EH DEOH WR JR ERDWLQJ DQG VZLPPLQJ DV
ZHOO DV KDYH &UHZ &RPSHWLWLRQV�

Ɣ ([HFXWLYH
ż 286' KDV UHOHDVH WKHLU 5)3 GXH RQ -XO\ ��WK � WKLV DQ LPSRUWDQW SLHFH DV

LW GHWHUPLQHV LI ZH DUH DSSURYHG WR EH DQ DIWHUVFKRRO SURYLGHU IRU VFKRRO
\HDUV RI ������� WR �������

ż 2XU IXQGLQJ IURP &,W\ RI 2DNODQG LV HQWHULQJ \HDU � RI �� :H MXVW
VXEPLWWHG WKH XSGDWHG VFRSH RI ZRUN DQG EXGJHW IRU WKH ILQDO \HDU RI
FRQWUDFW� 7KH\ KDYH DOVR XSGDWHG XV WKDW WKH\ DUH ZRUNLQJ RQ WKHLU
VWUDWHJLF LQLWLDWLYHV IRU WKH XSFRPLQJ 5)3 WR EH UHOHDVHG LQ -DQXDU\ �����



ż 'LVFXVVHG WKH QHHG WR XSGDWH RXU DGPLQ VWDIILQJ VWUXFWXUH� %RDUG
UHFRPPHQGHG WKDW ZH ORRN DW HQWLUH VWDIILQJ WR VHH ZKDW XSGDWHV QHHG
WR EH PDGH� QRW MXVW DW LQGLYLGXDO GHSDUWPHQWV�

���� � ���� )<�� %XGJHW 3URSRVDO
Ɣ 'LVFXVVHG WKH FRQWH[W RI WKH EXGJHW EHLQJ RXU � DUHDV RI VWUDWHJ\ SODQ � HQKDQFH

SURJUDP� VWDII GHYHORSPHQW� LPSDFW DQG DZDUHQHVV�
Ɣ 5HYLHZHG WKH VHUYLFHV WKDW 2DNODQG /HDI ZLOO SURYLGH IRU QH[W \HDU ² SURMHFWHG

HQUROOPHQW IRU DIWHUVFKRRO SURJUDP LV ��� VWXGHQWV DQG �� LQWHUQV�
Ɣ ,QFRPH 6RXUFHV� )XQGUDLVLQJ PDWFKHV ZKDW ZDV UDLVHG WKLV \HDU� &RQWUDFWV IRU

6HUYLFH IRU 286' $6(6� 2)&< DQG ()& $6(6�(/23 UHPDLQ WKH VDPH� 286' (/23
LV GHFUHDVLQJ� ��� RI RXU IXQGUDLVLQJ JRDO LV DOUHDG\ FRPPLWWHG DQG ��� LV
DOUHDG\ SHQGLQJ�

Ɣ ,Q WHUPV RI H[SHQVHV WKHUH ZLOO EH D FXW RI ����N GXH WR (/23 IXQGLQJ GHFUHDVHV
� ZH KDYH FXW WKH $WWHQGDQFH &OHUN SRVLWLRQ DQG UHGXFHG WKH QXPEHU RI
LQVWUXFWRUV WR PDWFK HQUROOPHQW WDUJHWV�

Ɣ :H DUH VWLOO ZRUNLQJ RQ EXLOGLQJ RXU UHVHUYH�
Ɣ %RDUG IHOW WKLV LV D VWURQJ DQG FRQVHUYDWLYH EXGJHW�
Ɣ .LP %URQVRQ PDGH D PRWLRQ WR DSSURYH ZLWK VWLSXODWLRQ /HDGHUVKLS &RVW IRU ('

EH DGGHG� /L] .LP VHFRQGV� $OO LQ IDYRU�

���� � ���� %RDUG %XVLQHVV
Ɣ 8SGDWLQJ +DQGERRN WR LQFRUSRUDWH &$·V 3DLG 6LFN /HDYH

ż %RDUG GLVFXVVHG KRZ WKLV GRHV QRW LQFUHDVH ILQDQFLDO OLDELOLW\ DV VLFN
OHDYH GRHV QRW QHHG WR EH SDLG RXW�

ż /HR .UHPHU PDGH D PRWLRQ WR DSSURYH� 6WHYHQ 7LQGDOO VHFRQGV� $OO LQ
IDYRU�

���� &ORVHG VHVVLRQ

83&20,1* %2$5' 0((7,1*6

'$7( 3XUSRVH 'LQQHU VLJQ XS $WWHQGDQFH 1RWHV

$XJXVW ��� ���� /DXQFK RI QHZ 6FKRRO <HDU
)<�� (2< 8SGDWH

2FWREHU ��� ���� 4� 5HSRUW 2XW
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�
%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�
2DNODQG�/HDI�)RXQGDWLRQ��
2DNODQG��&DOLIRUQLD�
�
2SLQLRQ�
,�KDYH�DXGLWHG�WKH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�2DNODQG�/HDI�)RXQGDWLRQ��D�QRQSURILW�
SXEOLF�EHQHILW�FRUSRUDWLRQ���ZKLFK�FRPSULVH�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ILQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DV�RI�-XQH�����������
DQG�WKH�UHODWHG�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�DFWLYLWLHV�� IXQFWLRQDO�H[SHQVHV��DQG�FDVK� IORZV�IRU� WKH�\HDU�WKHQ�
HQGHG��DQG�WKH�UHODWHG�QRWHV�WR�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��
,Q�P\�RSLQLRQ��WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�UHIHUUHG�WR�DERYH�SUHVHQW�IDLUO\��LQ�DOO�PDWHULDO�UHVSHFWV��
WKH�ILQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�RI�2DNODQG�/HDI�)RXQGDWLRQ�DV�RI�-XQH�����������DQG�WKH�FKDQJHV�LQ�QHW�
DVVHWV� DQG� LWV� FDVK� IORZV� IRU� WKH� \HDU� WKHQ� HQGHG� LQ� DFFRUGDQFH� ZLWK� DFFRXQWLQJ� SULQFLSOHV�
JHQHUDOO\�DFFHSWHG�LQ�WKH�8QLWHG�6WDWHV�RI�$PHULFD��
%DVLV�IRU�2SLQLRQ�
,� FRQGXFWHG�P\�DXGLW� LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK� DXGLWLQJ�VWDQGDUGV� JHQHUDOO\� DFFHSWHG� LQ� WKH�8QLWHG�
6WDWHV�RI�$PHULFD��0\�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�XQGHU�WKRVH�VWDQGDUGV�DUH�IXUWKHU�GHVFULEHG�LQ�WKH�$XGLWRU¶V�
5HVSRQVLELOLWLHV�IRU�WKH�$XGLW�RI�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�VHFWLRQ�RI�P\�UHSRUW��,�DP�UHTXLUHG�WR�EH�
LQGHSHQGHQW� RI� 2DNODQG� /HDI� )RXQGDWLRQ� DQG� WR� PHHW� P\� RWKHU� HWKLFDO� UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV� LQ�
DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK� WKH�UHOHYDQW�HWKLFDO� UHTXLUHPHQWV�UHODWLQJ� WR�P\�DXGLW�� ,�EHOLHYH� WKDW� WKH�DXGLW�
HYLGHQFH�,�KDYH�REWDLQHG�LV�VXIILFLHQW�DQG�DSSURSULDWH�WR�SURYLGH�D�EDVLV�IRU�P\�DXGLW�RSLQLRQ��
5HVSRQVLELOLWLHV�RI�0DQDJHPHQW�IRU�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�
0DQDJHPHQW�LV�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�DQG�IDLU�SUHVHQWDWLRQ�RI�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�DFFRXQWLQJ�SULQFLSOHV�JHQHUDOO\�DFFHSWHG�LQ�WKH�8QLWHG�6WDWHV�RI�$PHULFD��DQG�
IRU� WKH�GHVLJQ�� LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ��DQG�PDLQWHQDQFH�RI� LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO�UHOHYDQW�WR�WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�
DQG�IDLU�SUHVHQWDWLRQ�RI� ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�WKDW�DUH�IUHH�IURP�PDWHULDO�PLVVWDWHPHQW��ZKHWKHU�
GXH�WR�IUDXG�RU�HUURU��
,Q� SUHSDULQJ� WKH� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV��PDQDJHPHQW� LV� UHTXLUHG� WR� HYDOXDWH�ZKHWKHU� WKHUH� DUH�
FRQGLWLRQV�RU�HYHQWV��FRQVLGHUHG� LQ� WKH�DJJUHJDWH�� WKDW� UDLVH�VXEVWDQWLDO�GRXEW�DERXW�2DNODQG�
/HDI�)RXQGDWLRQ
V�DELOLW\�WR�FRQWLQXH�DV�D�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ�ZLWKLQ�RQH�\HDU�DIWHU�WKH�GDWH�WKDW�WKH�
ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�DYDLODEOH�WR�EH�LVVXHG��
$XGLWRU¶V�5HVSRQVLELOLWLHV�IRU�WKH�$XGLW�RI�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�
0\�REMHFWLYHV�DUH�WR�REWDLQ�UHDVRQDEOH�DVVXUDQFH�DERXW�ZKHWKHU�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DV�D�
ZKROH�DUH�IUHH�IURP�PDWHULDO�PLVVWDWHPHQW��ZKHWKHU�GXH�WR�IUDXG�RU�HUURU��DQG�WR�LVVXH�DQ�DXGLWRU¶V�
UHSRUW� WKDW� LQFOXGHV�P\�RSLQLRQ��5HDVRQDEOH�DVVXUDQFH� LV�D�KLJK� OHYHO�RI�DVVXUDQFH�EXW� LV�QRW�
DEVROXWH�DVVXUDQFH�DQG�WKHUHIRUH�LV�QRW�D�JXDUDQWHH�WKDW�DQ�DXGLW�FRQGXFWHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�
JHQHUDOO\�DFFHSWHG�DXGLWLQJ�VWDQGDUGV�ZLOO�DOZD\V�GHWHFW�D�PDWHULDO�PLVVWDWHPHQW�ZKHQ�LW�H[LVWV��
7KH� ULVN� RI� QRW� GHWHFWLQJ� D�PDWHULDO�PLVVWDWHPHQW� UHVXOWLQJ� IURP� IUDXG� LV� KLJKHU� WKDQ� IRU� RQH�
UHVXOWLQJ� IURP� HUURU�� DV� IUDXG� PD\� LQYROYH� FROOXVLRQ�� IRUJHU\�� LQWHQWLRQDO� RPLVVLRQV��
PLVUHSUHVHQWDWLRQV��RU� WKH�RYHUULGH�RI� LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO��0LVVWDWHPHQWV�� LQFOXGLQJ�RPLVVLRQV��DUH�
FRQVLGHUHG�PDWHULDO�LI�WKHUH�LV�D�VXEVWDQWLDO�OLNHOLKRRG�WKDW��LQGLYLGXDOO\�RU�LQ�WKH�DJJUHJDWH��WKH\�
ZRXOG�LQIOXHQFH�WKH�MXGJPHQW�PDGH�E\�D�UHDVRQDEOH�XVHU�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��
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2DNODQG�/HDI�)RXQGDWLRQ�
3DJH�7ZR�
�
,Q�SHUIRUPLQJ�DQ�DXGLW�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�JHQHUDOO\�DFFHSWHG�DXGLWLQJ�VWDQGDUGV��,��

x� ([HUFLVH�SURIHVVLRQDO�MXGJPHQW�DQG�PDLQWDLQ�SURIHVVLRQDO�VNHSWLFLVP�WKURXJKRXW�WKH�DXGLW��

x� ,GHQWLI\�DQG�DVVHVV�WKH�ULVNV�RI�PDWHULDO�PLVVWDWHPHQW�RI� WKH� ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��ZKHWKHU�
GXH� WR� IUDXG�RU�HUURU�� DQG�GHVLJQ�DQG�SHUIRUP�DXGLW�SURFHGXUHV� UHVSRQVLYH� WR� WKRVH� ULVNV��
6XFK�SURFHGXUHV� LQFOXGH�H[DPLQLQJ��RQ�D� WHVW�EDVLV��HYLGHQFH�UHJDUGLQJ� WKH�DPRXQWV�DQG�
GLVFORVXUHV�LQ�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��

x� 2EWDLQ� DQ� XQGHUVWDQGLQJ� RI� LQWHUQDO� FRQWURO� UHOHYDQW� WR� WKH� DXGLW� LQ� RUGHU� WR� GHVLJQ� DXGLW�
SURFHGXUHV�WKDW�DUH�DSSURSULDWH�LQ�WKH�FLUFXPVWDQFHV��EXW�QRW�IRU�WKH�SXUSRVH�RI�H[SUHVVLQJ�
DQ�RSLQLRQ�RQ�WKH�HIIHFWLYHQHVV�RI�2DNODQG�/HDI�)RXQGDWLRQ
V�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO��$FFRUGLQJO\��QR�
VXFK�RSLQLRQ�LV�H[SUHVVHG��

x� (YDOXDWH� WKH� DSSURSULDWHQHVV� RI� DFFRXQWLQJ� SROLFLHV� XVHG� DQG� WKH� UHDVRQDEOHQHVV� RI�
VLJQLILFDQW� DFFRXQWLQJ� HVWLPDWHV� PDGH� E\� PDQDJHPHQW�� DV� ZHOO� DV� HYDOXDWH� WKH� RYHUDOO�
SUHVHQWDWLRQ�RI�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��

x� &RQFOXGH� ZKHWKHU�� LQ� P\� MXGJPHQW�� WKHUH� DUH� FRQGLWLRQV� RU� HYHQWV�� FRQVLGHUHG� LQ� WKH�
DJJUHJDWH��WKDW�UDLVH�VXEVWDQWLDO�GRXEW�DERXW�2DNODQG�/HDI�)RXQGDWLRQ
V�DELOLW\�WR�FRQWLQXH�DV�
D�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ�IRU�D�UHDVRQDEOH�SHULRG�RI�WLPH��

,� DP� UHTXLUHG� WR� FRPPXQLFDWH� ZLWK� WKRVH� FKDUJHG� ZLWK� JRYHUQDQFH� UHJDUGLQJ�� DPRQJ� RWKHU�
PDWWHUV��WKH�SODQQHG�VFRSH�DQG�WLPLQJ�RI�WKH�DXGLW��VLJQLILFDQW�DXGLW�ILQGLQJV��DQG�FHUWDLQ�LQWHUQDO�
FRQWURO�UHODWHG�PDWWHUV�WKDW�,�LGHQWLILHG�GXULQJ�WKH�DXGLW��
�
�
� � � � � � � � +HDO\�DQG�$VVRFLDWHV�
� � � � � � � � &RQFRUG��&DOLIRUQLD�

�
�



OAKLAND LEAF FOUNDATION
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
JUNE 30, 2023

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents 257,636$      
Grants receivable 591,852        
Prepaid expenses 14,188          

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 863,676        

Property and equipment, net 3,482            

Deposit 4,000            

TOTAL ASSETS 871,158$      

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

LIABILITIES:
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 43,640$        
Vacation payable 32,688          
Line of credit 100,000        

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 176,328        

COMMITMENTS

NET ASSETS:  
Without donor restrictions:

General 584,830        
Board designated 10,000          

With donor restrictions 100,000        

TOTAL NET ASSETS 694,830        

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 871,158$      

See Notes to Financial Statements
3



OAKLAND LEAF FOUNDATION
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total

SUPPORT AND REVENUE
Government grants 2,060,375$    -$                   2,060,375$    
Contributions 332,637         -                     332,637         
Gala event

Gross receipts 124,359$ 
Less: expenses (22,806)    

101,553         -                     101,553         
Foundation grants 87,000           -                     87,000           
In-kind revenue 82,975           -                     82,975           
Corporate grants 51,926           -                     51,926           
Interest income 279                -                     279                
Other income 651                -                     651                

2,717,396      -                     2,717,396      

Net assets released from restrictions 175,000         (175,000)        -                     

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE 2,892,396      (175,000)        2,717,396      

EXPENSES
Program services 2,398,343      -                     2,398,343      
General and administrative 167,371         -                     167,371         
Fundraising and events 264,107         -                     264,107         

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,829,821      -                     2,829,821      

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 62,575           (175,000)        (112,425)        

NET ASSETS, beginning of year 532,255         275,000         807,255         

NET ASSETS, end of year 594,830$       100,000$       694,830$       

See Notes to Financial Statements
4



OAKLAND LEAF FOUNDATION
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Program General and Fundraising
Services Administrative and Events Total

EXPENSES
Salaries 1,672,082$      97,898$          193,330$        1,963,310$     
Payroll taxes 151,021           7,534              14,813            173,368          
Employee benefits 62,818             19,499            17,323            99,640            
Workers' compensation 7,833               171                 1,859              9,863              

  TOTAL PERSONNEL EXPENSES 1,893,754        125,102          227,325          2,246,181       

Contract services 189,554           1,171              -                      190,725          
Program supplies 110,055           331                 105                 110,491          
In-kind expenses 60,205             3,265              19,505            82,975            
Rent 45,767             2,600              3,641              52,008            
Consultants 10,176             27,562            1,208              38,946            
Office expense 17,721             5,040              6,206              28,967            
Event expense -                       -                      22,806            22,806            
Intern stipends 15,784             -                      -                      15,784            
Insurance 11,517             654                 916                 13,087            
Professional development 10,563             -                      138                 10,701            
Marketing and outreach 4,365               53                   2,885              7,303              
Interest expense 6,292               357                 500                 7,149              
Depreciation 6,129               348                 488                 6,965              
Telephone and internet 4,840               198                 278                 5,316              
Payroll processing fees 4,417               251                 351                 5,019              
Equipment rental 3,695               210                 294                 4,199              
Taxes and licenses 3,354               191                 267                 3,812              
Travel 155                  38                   -                      193                 

504,589           42,269            59,588            606,446          

2,398,343        167,371          286,913          2,852,627       

Less: expenses included with revenues
 on the statement of activities
    Fundraising event expenses -                       -                      (22,806)           (22,806)           

Total expenses inluded in the expense
 section on the statement of activities 2,398,343$      167,371$        264,107$        2,829,821$     

See Notes to Financial Statements
5



OAKLAND LEAF FOUNDATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets (112,425)$    

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
cash used by operating activities:
Depreciation 6,965           

CHANGES IN CURRENT ASSETS AND
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Grants receivable (114,694)      
Prepaid expenses 65                
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 18,931         
Vacation payable 13,669         

NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (187,489)      

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Borrowing on line of credit 100,000       

NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 100,000       

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (87,489)        

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year 345,125       

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year 257,636$     

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION:
Interest paid 7,149$         

See Notes to Financial Statements
6
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2DNODQG� /HDI� )RXQGDWLRQ� �2UJDQL]DWLRQ�� LV� D� &DOLIRUQLD� QRQSURILW� SXEOLF� EHQHILW� FRUSRUDWLRQ�
LQFRUSRUDWHG� LQ� 'HFHPEHU� ����� WR� FXOWLYDWH� FRPPXQLW\� WUDQVIRUPDWLRQ� WKURXJK� FUHDWLYH�
HGXFDWLRQ�IRU�\RXWK�DQG�IDPLOLHV��7KHLU�YLVLRQ�LV�WR�HPEROGHQ�\RXWK�DQG�IDPLOLHV�WR�EH�FUHDWLYH�
OHDGHUV�ZKR�DFWXDOL]H�D�PRUH�ORYLQJ��MXVW��DQG�YLEUDQW�2DNODQG��7KH\�VXSSRUW�\RXWK�WR�EH�FULWLFDO�
DQG�FUHDWLYH�WKLQNHUV��PDNH�KHDOWK\�DQG�VDIH�GHFLVLRQV�IRU�WKHPVHOYHV�DQG�WKH�HQYLURQPHQW��
QDYLJDWH�WKHLU�OLYHV��DQG�DSSURDFK�OLIH�ZLWK�FXULRVLW\�DQG�D�GHVLUH�WR�OHDUQ��7KH�2UJDQL]DWLRQ�LV�
VXSSRUWHG�SULPDULO\�WKURXJK�JUDQWV�DQG�FRQWULEXWLRQV��
�
127(�%�±�6800$5<�2)�6,*1,),&$17�$&&2817,1*�32/,&,(6�

�
$FFRXQWLQJ�0HWKRG�DQG�%DVLV�RI�3UHVHQWDWLRQ��
�
7KH� DFFRXQWLQJ� UHFRUGV� RI� WKH� 2UJDQL]DWLRQ� DUH� PDLQWDLQHG� RQ� WKH� DFFUXDO� EDVLV� RI�
DFFRXQWLQJ��7KH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�WKH�2UJDQL]DWLRQ�KDYH�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�
ZLWK�$68����������1RW�IRU�3URILW�(QWLWLHV��7RSLF������±�3UHVHQWDWLRQ�RI�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�
RI�1RW�IRU�3URILW�(QWLWLHV��ZKLFK�UHTXLUH�WKH�2UJDQL]DWLRQ�WR�UHSRUW� LQIRUPDWLRQ�UHJDUGLQJ� LWV�
ILQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DQG�DFWLYLWLHV�DFFRUGLQJ�WR�WKH�IROORZLQJ�QHW�DVVHW�FODVVLILFDWLRQV���
�
1HW�DVVHWV�ZLWKRXW�GRQRU�UHVWULFWLRQV��1HW�DVVHWV�WKDW�DUH�QRW�VXEMHFW�WR�GRQRU�LPSRVHG�
UHVWULFWLRQV�DQG�PD\�EH�H[SHQGHG�IRU�DQ\�SXUSRVH�LQ�SHUIRUPLQJ�WKH�SULPDU\�REMHFWLYHV�RI�
WKH�2UJDQL]DWLRQ��7KHVH�QHW�DVVHWV�PD\�EH�XVHG�DW� WKH�GLVFUHWLRQ�RI� WKH�2UJDQL]DWLRQ¶V�
PDQDJHPHQW�DQG�WKH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV��

�
1HW�DVVHWV�ZLWK�GRQRU�UHVWULFWLRQV��1HW�DVVHWV�VXEMHFW�WR�VWLSXODWLRQV�LPSRVHG�E\�GRQRUV�
DQG�JUDQWRUV��6RPH�GRQRU�UHVWULFWLRQV�DUH�WHPSRUDU\�LQ�QDWXUH��WKRVH�UHVWULFWLRQV�ZLOO�EH�
PHW�E\�DFWLRQV�RI�WKH�2UJDQL]DWLRQ�RU�E\�WKH�SDVVDJH�RI�WLPH��2WKHU�GRQRU�UHVWULFWLRQV�DUH�
SHUSHWXDO� LQ� QDWXUH�� ZKHUHE\� WKH� GRQRU� KDV� VWLSXODWHG� WKH� IXQGV� EH� PDLQWDLQHG� LQ�
SHUSHWXLW\���

�
'RQRU� UHVWULFWHG� FRQWULEXWLRQV� DUH� UHSRUWHG� DV� LQFUHDVHV� LQ� QHW� DVVHWV� ZLWK� GRQRU�
UHVWULFWLRQV��:KHQ�D�UHVWULFWLRQ�H[SLUHV��QHW�DVVHWV�DUH�UHFODVVLILHG� IURP�QHW�DVVHWV�ZLWK�
GRQRU�UHVWULFWLRQV�WR�QHW�DVVHWV�ZLWKRXW�GRQRU�UHVWULFWLRQV�LQ�WKH�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�DFWLYLWLHV���

�
(VWLPDWHV�
7KH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LQ�FRQIRUPLW\�ZLWK�8�6��JHQHUDOO\�DFFHSWHG�DFFRXQWLQJ�
SULQFLSOHV�UHTXLUHV�WKH�2UJDQL]DWLRQ�WR�PDNH�HVWLPDWHV�DQG�DVVXPSWLRQV�WKDW�DIIHFW�WKH�UHSRUWHG�
DPRXQWV� RI� DVVHWV� DQG� OLDELOLWLHV� DW� WKH� GDWH� RI� WKH� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV� DQG� WKH� UHSRUWHG�
DPRXQWV�RI�UHYHQXHV�DQG�H[SHQVHV�GXULQJ�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG��$FWXDO�UHVXOWV�FRXOG�GLIIHU�IURP�
WKRVH�HVWLPDWHV��DQG�WKRVH�GLIIHUHQFHV�FRXOG�EH�PDWHULDO��
�
�
�
�
�
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&DVK�DQG�&DVK�(TXLYDOHQWV�
&DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV� LQFOXGH�DOO�PRQLHV� LQ�EDQNV�DQG�KLJKO\� OLTXLG� LQYHVWPHQWV�ZLWK�
PDWXULW\�GDWHV�RI�OHVV�WKDQ�WKUHH�PRQWKV��ZKLFK�DUH�QHLWKHU�KHOG�IRU�QRU�UHVWULFWHG�E\�GRQRUV�
IRU�ORQJ�WHUP�SXUSRVHV��
�
)DLU�9DOXH�0HDVXUHPHQWV�
7KH�2UJDQL]DWLRQ¶V�ILQDQFLDO� LQVWUXPHQWV�LQFOXGH�FDVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�PHDVXUHG�XVLQJ�
/HYHO���LQSXWV��)DLU�YDOXH�LV�GHILQHG�DV�WKH�SULFH�WKDW�ZRXOG�EH�UHFHLYHG�WR�VHOO�DQ�DVVHW�LQ�WKH�
SULQFLSDO�RU�PRVW�DGYDQWDJHRXV�PDUNHW�IRU�WKH�DVVHW�LQ�DQ�RUGHUO\�WUDQVDFWLRQ�EHWZHHQ�PDUNHW�
SDUWLFLSDQWV� RQ� WKH�PHDVXUHPHQW� GDWH�� )DLU� YDOXH� VKRXOG� EH� EDVHG� RQ� WKH� DVVXPSWLRQV�
PDUNHW�SDUWLFLSDQWV�ZRXOG�XVH�ZKHQ�SULFLQJ�DQ�DVVHW��8�6��*$$3�HVWDEOLVKHV�D� IDLU�YDOXH�
KLHUDUFK\�WKDW�SULRULWL]HV�LQYHVWPHQWV�EDVHG�RQ�WKRVH�DVVXPSWLRQV��7KH�IDLU�YDOXH�KLHUDUFK\�
JLYHV�WKH�KLJKHVW�SULRULW\�WR�TXRWHG�SULFHV�LQ�DFWLYH�PDUNHWV��REVHUYDEOH�LQSXWV��DQG�WKH�ORZHVW�
SULRULW\�WR�DQ�HQWLW\
V�DVVXPSWLRQV��XQREVHUYDEOH�LQSXWV���7KH�2UJDQL]DWLRQ�JURXSV�DVVHWV�DW�
IDLU� YDOXH� LQ� WKUHH� OHYHOV�� EDVHG� RQ� WKH�PDUNHWV� LQ�ZKLFK� WKH� DVVHWV� DUH� WUDGHG�� DQG� WKH�
UHOLDELOLW\�RI�WKH�DVVXPSWLRQV�XVHG�WR�GHWHUPLQH�IDLU�YDOXH��7KHVH�OHYHOV�DUH���
�
x� /HYHO��²�4XRWHG�SULFHV�IRU�LGHQWLFDO�DVVHWV�LQ�DFWLYH�PDUNHWV���
x� /HYHO� �²2EVHUYDEOH� LQSXWV� RWKHU� WKDQ� /HYHO� ��� ZKLFK� LQFOXGH� TXRWHG� SULFHV� IRU�

VLPLODU�DVVHWV�LQ�DFWLYH�PDUNHWV��TXRWHG�SULFHV�IURP�WKRVH�ZLOOLQJ�WR�WUDGH�LQ�PDUNHWV�
WKDW�DUH�QRW�DFWLYH��RU�RWKHU� LQSXWV�WKDW�DUH�REVHUYDEOH�RU�FDQ�EH�FRUURERUDWHG�E\�
PDUNHW�GDWD�IRU�WKH�WHUP�RI�WKH�LQVWUXPHQW����

x� /HYHO��²�8QREVHUYDEOH�LQSXWV�WKDW�FDQQRW�EH�FRUURERUDWHG�E\�REVHUYDEOH�PDUNHW�
GDWD��

�
*UDQWV�5HFHLYDEOH�
*UDQWV�UHFHLYDEOH�DUH�SULPDULO\�GXH�IURP�JRYHUQPHQWDO�DJHQFLHV�DQG�QRQ�SURILW�RUJDQL]DWLRQV��
7KH� 2UJDQL]DWLRQ� HYDOXDWHV� WKH� FROOHFWDELOLW\� RI� LWV� UHFHLYDEOHV� RQ� DQ� RQJRLQJ� EDVLV� DQG�
UHFRUGV�D�SURYLVLRQ� IRU�SRWHQWLDO�XQFROOHFWLEOH� UHFHLYDEOHV�ZKHQ�DSSURSULDWH��0DQDJHPHQW�
GLG�QRW�FRQVLGHU�DQ�DOORZDQFH�IRU�GRXEWIXO�DFFRXQWV�QHFHVVDU\�DV�RI�-XQH�����������
�
3URSHUW\�DQG�(TXLSPHQW�
7KH�2UJDQL]DWLRQ�UHFRUGV�GHSUHFLDWLRQ�RQ�LWV�SURSHUW\�DQG�HTXLSPHQW�H[SHQGLWXUHV�LQ�H[FHVV�
RI��������RQ�D�VWUDLJKW�OLQH�EDVLV�XVLQJ�WKH�IROORZLQJ�HVWLPDWHG�XVHIXO�OLYHV��
�
� &RPSXWHU�HTXLSPHQW�DQG�VRIWZDUH�� ����<HDUV�
� )XUQLWXUH�DQG�IL[WXUHV���� � � ����<HDUV�
� �
0DLQWHQDQFH�DQG�UHSDLUV�DUH�H[SHQVHG�DV�LQFXUUHG��
�
�
�
�
�
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�
5HYHQXH�5HFRJQLWLRQ���&RQWULEXWLRQV�
7KH� 2UJDQL]DWLRQ� UHFRJQL]HV� FRQWULEXWLRQV� ZKHQ� FDVK�� VHFXULWLHV� RU� RWKHU� DVVHWV�� DQ�
XQFRQGLWLRQDO�SURPLVH� WR�JLYH��RU�QRWLILFDWLRQ�RI�D� EHQHILFLDO� LQWHUHVW� LV� UHFHLYHG��&RQGLWLRQDO�
SURPLVHV�WR�JLYH��WKDW�LV��WKRVH�ZLWK�D�PHDVXUDEOH�SHUIRUPDQFH�RU�RWKHU�EDUULHU��DQG�D�ULJKW�RI�
UHWXUQ��DUH�QRW�UHFRJQL]HG�XQWLO�WKH�FRQGLWLRQV�RQ�ZKLFK�WKH\�GHSHQG�KDYH�EHHQ�VXEVWDQWLDOO\�
PHW��
�
5HYHQXH�5HFRJQLWLRQ�±�&RQWUDFW�(DUQLQJV�
$�SRUWLRQ�RI� WKH�2UJDQL]DWLRQ¶V�UHYHQXH� LV�GHULYHG� IURP�FRVW�UHLPEXUVDEOH�JUDQWV��ZKLFK�DUH�
FRQGLWLRQHG� XSRQ� WKH� LQFXUUHQFH� RI� DOORZDEOH� TXDOLI\LQJ� H[SHQVHV�� $PRXQWV� UHFHLYHG� DUH�
UHFRJQL]HG�DV�UHYHQXH�ZKHQ�WKH�2UJDQL]DWLRQ�KDV�LQFXUUHG�H[SHQGLWXUHV�LQ�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�
VSHFLILF� JUDQW� SURYLVLRQV�� $PRXQWV� UHFHLYHG� SULRU� WR� LQFXUULQJ� TXDOLI\LQJ� H[SHQGLWXUHV� DUH�
UHSRUWHG�DV�UHIXQGDEOH�DGYDQFHV�LQ�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�ILQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ��7KH�2UJDQL]DWLRQ�KDV�
����������� LQ� FRVW�UHLPEXUVHPHQW� JUDQWV� WKDW� KDYH� QRW� EHHQ� UHFRJQL]HG� DW� -XQH����� �����
EHFDXVH�TXDOLI\LQJ�H[SHQGLWXUHV�KDYH�QRW�\HW�EHHQ�LQFXUUHG��1R�DPRXQWV�KDYH�EHHQ�UHFHLYHG�
LQ�DGYDQFH�XQGHU�WKH�FRVW�UHLPEXUVDEOH�IHGHUDO�DQG�VWDWH�JUDQWV��
�
)XQFWLRQDO�$OORFDWLRQ�RI�([SHQVHV�
7KH�FRVWV�RI�SURJUDP�DFWLYLWLHV�DQG�VXSSRUWLQJ�VHUYLFHV�KDYH�EHHQ�VXPPDUL]HG�RQ�D�IXQFWLRQDO�
EDVLV�LQ�WKH�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�IXQFWLRQDO�H[SHQVHV��7KH�VWDWHPHQW�SUHVHQWV�WKH�QDWXUDO�FODVVLILFDWLRQ�
RI�GHWDLO�RI�H[SHQVHV�E\�IXQFWLRQ��$FFRUGLQJO\��FHUWDLQ�FRVWV�KDYH�EHHQ�DOORFDWHG�DPRQJ�WKH�
SURJUDPV�DQG�VXSSRUWLQJ�VHUYLFHV�EHQHILWHG��,QGLUHFW�FRVWV�VXFK�DV�JHQHUDO�DQG�DGPLQLVWUDWLYH�
H[SHQVHV�LQFOXGH�FRVWV�WKDW�DUH�QRW�GLUHFWO\�LGHQWLILDEOH�ZLWK�DQ\�VSHFLILF�SURJUDP��EXW�ZKLFK�
SURYLGH� WKH� RYHUDOO� VXSSRUW� DQG� GLUHFWLRQ� RI� WKH� 2UJDQL]DWLRQ�� 6XFK� H[SHQVHV� ZKLFK� DUH�
FRPPRQ�WR�PXOWLSOH�IXQFWLRQV�KDYH�EHHQ�DOORFDWHG�DPRQJ�WKH�YDULRXV�IXQFWLRQV�EHQHILWHG�EDVHG�
RQ�WLPH�DQG�HIIRUW�VSHQW�LQ�WKH�DUHD�RU�RQ�WKH�VSDFH�XVHG��
�
,Q�NLQG�&RQWULEXWLRQV�
,Q�NLQG�FRQWULEXWLRQV�DUH�UHFRUGHG�DW�WKH�UHVSHFWLYH�IDLU�YDOXHV��,Q�NLQG�FRQWULEXWLRQV�UHFHLYHG�
DUH���������IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG�-XQH�����������,Q�DGGLWLRQ��WKH�2UJDQL]DWLRQ�UHFHLYHV�XVH�RI�
IDFLOLWLHV�VSDFH�V��IRU�FDUU\LQJ�RXW�WKHLU�SURJUDP��7KH�YDOXH�RI� WKH�GRQDWHG�XVH�RI� IDFLOLWLHV�
FDQQRW�EH�TXDQWLILHG�DQG�LV�WKHUHIRUH�QRW�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
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127(�%���6800$5<�2)�6,*1,),&$17�$&&2817,1*�32/,&,(6��&RQWLQXHG��
�
5HOHYDQW�$FFRXQWLQJ�3URQRXQFHPHQWV�
,Q�)HEUXDU\�������WKH�)$6%�LVVXHG�$68����������/HDVHV��7RSLF�������7KH�QHZ�VWDQGDUG�
HVWDEOLVKHV�D�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�QHZ�OHDVH�DFFRXQWLQJ�PRGHO��,W�FODULILHV�WKH�GHILQLWLRQ�RI�D�OHDVH�
DQG�FDXVHV� OHVVHHV� WR� UHFRJQL]H� OHDVHV�RQ� WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI� ILQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DV�D� OHDVH�
OLDELOLW\�ZLWK�D�FRUUHVSRQGLQJ�ULJKW�RI�XVH�DVVHW�IRU�OHDVHV�ZLWK�D�OHDVH�WHUP�RI�PRUH�WKDQ�RQH�
\HDU��,W�LV�HIIHFWLYH�IRU�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LVVXHG�IRU�ILVFDO�\HDUV�EHJLQQLQJ�DIWHU�'HFHPEHU�
����������DQG� LQWHULP�SHULRGV�ZLWKLQ� WKRVH� ILVFDO�\HDUV��7KH�VWDQGDUG� UHTXLUHV�D�PRGLILHG�
UHWURVSHFWLYH� WUDQVLWLRQ� IRU�FDSLWDO�RU�RSHUDWLQJ� OHDVHV�H[LVWLQJ�DW�RU�HQWHUHG� LQWR�DIWHU� WKH�
EHJLQQLQJ�RI�WKH�HDUOLHVW�FRPSDUDWLYH�SHULRG�SUHVHQWHG�LQ�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��EXW�LW�GRHV�
QRW�UHTXLUH�WUDQVLWLRQ�DFFRXQWLQJ�IRU�OHDVHV�WKDW�H[SLUH�SULRU�WR�WKH�GDWH�RI�LQLWLDO�DSSOLFDWLRQ��
7KH� 2UJDQL]DWLRQ� DGRSWHG� WKH� VWDQGDUG� RQ� -XO\� ��� ������ 7KH� 2UJDQL]DWLRQ� HOHFWHG� WKH�
µSDFNDJH�RI�SUDFWLFDO�H[SHGLHQWV¶��ZKLFK�SHUPLWWHG�WKH�2UJDQL]DWLRQ�QRW�WR�UHDVVHVV�XQGHU�
WKH�QHZ�VWDQGDUG� LWV�SULRU�FRQFOXVLRQV�DERXW� OHDVH� LGHQWLILFDWLRQ�� OHDVH�FODVVLILFDWLRQ��DQG�
LQLWLDO�GLUHFW�FRVWV��DQG�DOO�RI�WKH�QHZ�VWDQGDUG¶V�DYDLODEOH�WUDQVLWLRQ�SUDFWLFDO�H[SHGLHQWV��,Q�
DGGLWLRQ��WKH�2UJDQL]DWLRQ�DGRSWHG�WKH�SUDFWLFDO�H[SHGLHQWV�RI�XVLQJ�WKH�ULVN�IUHH�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�
DQG�WKH�VKRUW�WHUP�OHDVH�GHILQLWLRQ��7KH�DGRSWLRQ�RI�WKH�VWDQGDUG�UHVXOWHG� LQ�QR�FKDQJH�WR�
2UJDQL]DWLRQ¶V�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��
�
127(�&���,1&20(�7$;�
�
7KH�2UJDQL]DWLRQ� KDV� UHFHLYHG� WD[�H[HPSW� VWDWXV�XQGHU�6HFWLRQ�����F�����RI� WKH� ,QWHUQDO�
5HYHQXH�&RGH��6HFWLRQ�������G��RI�WKH�6WDWH�RI�&DOLIRUQLD�5HYHQXH�DQG�7D[DWLRQ�&RGH��7KH�
2UJDQL]DWLRQ¶V�WD[�UHWXUQV�DUH�VXEMHFW�WR�H[DPLQDWLRQ�E\�IHGHUDO�DQG�VWDWH�WD[LQJ�DXWKRULWLHV�
JHQHUDOO\� IRU� WKUHH�\HDUV�DIWHU� WKH\�DUH� ILOHG��7KH�2UJDQL]DWLRQ�KDV�QR�XQUHODWHG�EXVLQHVV�
LQFRPH��DQG�PDQDJHPHQW�KDV�DQDO\]HG�WKH� WD[�SRVLWLRQV� WDNHQ��RU�H[SHFWHG� WR�EH� WDNHQ��
WKDW�ZRXOG�UHTXLUH�UHFRJQLWLRQ�RI�D�OLDELOLW\�RU�GLVFORVXUH�LQ�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV���
�
127(�'���3523(57<�$1'�(48,30(17�
�
3URSHUW\�DQG�HTXLSPHQW�E\�PDMRU�FODVVHV�DW�-XQH����������DUH�DV�IROORZV��
� � �� � �

)XUQLWXUH�DQG�HTXLSPHQW� � � ���������
$FFXPXODWHG�GHSUHFLDWLRQ� � � ���������
� � � �
� � � �����������

�
'HSUHFLDWLRQ�H[SHQVH�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG�-XQH����������ZDV���������
�
�
�
�
�
�
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127(�(�±�/,1(�2)�&5(',7�
�
7KH�2UJDQL]DWLRQ�KDV�D�VHFXUHG�OLQH�RI�FUHGLW�LQ�WKH�DPRXQW�RI�����������EHDULQJ�LQWHUHVW�DW�
���RYHU�WKH�LQGH[�UDWH�ZLWK�D�IORRU�RI��������ZLWK�DGYDQFHV�DYDLODEOH�WKURXJK�-XO\�������DQG�
PDWXUHV�-XO\�������$W�-XQH�����������WKHUH�ZDV�D�EDODQFH�RI����������RXWVWDQGLQJ��
�
127(�)�±�&200,70(176�
�
7KH� 2UJDQL]DWLRQ� OHDVHV� RIILFH� VSDFH� XQGHU� DQ� DQQXDO� QRQ�FDQFHOODEOH� OHDVH� ZKLFK� UDQ�
WKURXJK�'HFHPEHU� ����� DQG� KDV� EHHQ� DPHQGHG� IRU� WZR�RQH�\HDU� UHQHZDOV� DW� D� UDWH� RI�
DSSUR[LPDWHO\��������SHU�PRQWK��)RU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG�-XQH�����������UHQW�H[SHQVH�LV�����������
�
2IILFH� HTXLSPHQW� LV� OHDVHG� WR� FRQGXFW� WKH� 2UJDQL]DWLRQ¶V� RSHUDWLRQV� XQGHU� ORQJ�WHUP�
RSHUDWLQJ�OHDVH�DJUHHPHQWV�ZKLFK�UXQ�WKURXJK�2FWREHU������DW�D�UDWH�RI�DSSUR[LPDWHO\������
SHU�PRQWK���
�
7KH�PLQLPXP�OHDVH�SD\PHQWV�XQGHU�WKHVH�DJUHHPHQWV�DUH�VXPPDUL]HG�DV�IROORZV��
�

<HDU�HQGHG�-XQH���� �
����� ���������
����� �����������

�
127(�*�±�&21&(175$7,216�
�
&DVK�RQ�'HSRVLW�
)LQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV�WKDW�SRWHQWLDOO\�VXEMHFW�WKH�2UJDQL]DWLRQ�WR�FRQFHQWUDWLRQV�RI�FUHGLW�ULVN�
FRQVLVW� RI� FDVK�DQG� FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV� LQ� D� ILQDQFLDO� LQVWLWXWLRQ�� )XQGV�RQ�GHSRVLW� H[FHHGLQJ�
IHGHUDOO\�LQVXUHG�OLPLWV�WRWDOHG���������DW�-XQH������������
�
5HYHQXH�DQG�6XSSRUW�
'XULQJ�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG�-XQH�����������WKH�2UJDQL]DWLRQ�UHFHLYHG�����RI�LWV�VXSSRUW�DQG�UHYHQXH�
IURP�WKH�2DNODQG�8QLILHG�6FKRRO�'LVWULFW�DQG�WKH�&LW\�RI�2DNODQG���$�VLJQLILFDQW�UHGXFWLRQ�LQ�WKH�
OHYHO�RI�WKLV�VXSSRUW�FRXOG�DIIHFW�WKH�2UJDQL]DWLRQ¶V�DELOLW\�WR�FRQWLQXH�LWV�RSHUDWLRQV��
�
*UDQWV�5HFHLYDEOH�
7KUHH�IXQGHUV�UHSUHVHQW�DSSUR[LPDWHO\���������������DQG������RI�WRWDO�JUDQWV�UHFHLYDEOH��
0DQDJHPHQW� KDV� HYDOXDWHG� WKH� VRXUFHV� RI� IXQGLQJ� DQG� GHWHUPLQHV� WKHP� WR� EH� IXOO\�
FROOHFWLEOH��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�



2$./$1'�/($)�)281'$7,21�
127(6�72�),1$1&,$/�67$7(0(176�
<($5�(1'('�-81(����������

�

�
�

���

� �

�
127(�+�±�(03/2<((�%(1(),76�
�
7KH�2UJDQL]DWLRQ�DFFUXHV�YDFDWLRQ�IRU�IXOO�WLPH�VWDII�PHPEHUV��$W�-XQH�����������WKH�DFFUXHG�
YDFDWLRQ�SD\DEOH�LV����������DQG�LV�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��
�
'XULQJ�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG�-XQH�����������WKH�2UJDQL]DWLRQ�DGRSWHG�D�SODQ�XQGHU�WKH�&DO6DYHUV�
5HWLUHPHQW�6DYLQJV�3URJUDP��3URJUDP���7KH�3URJUDP�UHTXLUHV�DOO�&DOLIRUQLD�HPSOR\HUV�ZLWK�
�� RU� PRUH� HPSOR\HHV� WR� SURYLGH� DFFHVV� WR� D� UHWLUHPHQW� SODQ� E\� -XQH� ���� ������ 7KH�
2UJDQL]DWLRQ�GRHV�QRW�FRQWULEXWH�WR�WKH�3URJUDP��
�
127(�,�±�/,48,',7<�$1'�$9$,/$%,/,7<�
�
)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DYDLODEOH�IRU�JHQHUDO�H[SHQGLWXUH��WKDW�LV��ZLWKRXW�GRQRU�RU�RWKHU�UHVWULFWLRQV�
OLPLWLQJ�WKHLU�XVH��ZLWKLQ�RQH�\HDU�RI�WKH�EDODQFH�VKHHW�GDWH��FRPSULVH�WKH�IROORZLQJ���
�
&DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV� �����������
*UDQWV�UHFHLYDEOH� ���������
7RWDO�ILQDQFLDO�DVVHWV� ����������
/HVV�� �
��1HW�DVVHWV�ZLWK�ERDUG�GHVLJQDWLRQV� ���������
��1HW�DVVHWV�H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�UHOHDVHG�ZLWKLQ�RQH�\HDU� ����������
�
)LQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DYDLODEOH�WR�PHHW�FDVK�QHHGV�IRU�JHQHUDO�
H[SHQGLWXUHV�ZLWKLQ�RQH�\HDU� ������������

�
7KH�2UJDQL]DWLRQ¶V�ERDUG�GHVLJQDWHG�IXQGV�DUH���������DW�-XQH�����������$OWKRXJK�WKH\�GR�
QRW�LQWHQG�WR�VSHQG�IURP�WKLV�ERDUG�GHVLJQDWHG�IXQG��WKHVH�DPRXQWV�FRXOG�EH�PDGH�DYDLODEOH�
LI� QHFHVVDU\��$V�SDUW� RI� WKH�2UJDQL]DWLRQ¶V� OLTXLGLW\�PDQDJHPHQW�� WKH�2UJDQL]DWLRQ� KDV�D�
SROLF\�WR�VWUXFWXUH�LWV�ILQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�WR�EH�DYDLODEOH�DV�LWV�JHQHUDO�H[SHQGLWXUHV��OLDELOLWLHV��
DQG�RWKHU�REOLJDWLRQV�FRPH�GXH���
�
127(�-�±�1(7�$66(76�:,7+�%2$5'�'(6,*1$7,216�
�
)RU� WKH� \HDU� HQGHG� -XQH����������� QHW� DVVHWV�ZLWK� ERDUG� GHVLJQDWLRQV�KDG� WKH� IROORZLQJ�
DFWLYLW\��

�
�

1DWXUH�RI�'HVLJQDWLRQ�

� �
%HJLQQLQJ�
%DODQFH�

� �
,QFRPH�DQG�
&RQWULEXWLRQ�

� 5HOHDVHG�
IURP�

5HVWULFWLRQ�

� �
(QGLQJ�
%DODQFH�

5HVHUYH� � ���������� � ��������������� � ��������������� � ����������
� � � � � � � � �

7RWDO� � ���������� � ��������������� � ��������������� � ����������
�
�
�
�
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127(�.�±�1(7�$66(76�:,7+�'2125�5(675,&7,216�
�
)RU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG�-XQH�����������QHW�DVVHWV�ZLWK�GRQRU�UHVWULFWLRQV�KDG�WKH�IROORZLQJ�DFWLYLW\��

�
�

1DWXUH�RI�5HVWULFWLRQ�

� �
%HJLQQLQJ�
%DODQFH�

� �
,QFRPH�DQG�
&RQWULEXWLRQ�

� 5HOHDVHG�
IURP�

5HVWULFWLRQ�

� �
(QGLQJ�
%DODQFH�

7LPH�UHVWULFWHG� � ���������� � ��������������� � ����������� � ����������
� � � � � � � � �

7RWDO� � ���������� � ��������������� � ����������� � ���������
�
127(�/�±�,1�.,1'�&2175,%87,216�
�
'XULQJ� WKH� \HDU� HQGHG� -XQH� ���� ������ WKH� 2UJDQL]DWLRQ� ZDV� WKH� UHFLSLHQW� RI� LQ�NLQG�
FRQWULEXWLRQV�RI�VHUYLFHV�DQG�JRRGV���7KH�YDOXHV�RI�WKHVH�FRQWULEXWLRQV��DV�UHIOHFWHG�LQ�WKH�
DFFRPSDQ\LQJ�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��DUH�DV�IROORZV��
�
6HUYLFHV�RU�*RRGV�5HFHLYHG�

DQG�$OORFDWLRQ� %DVLV�IRU�9DOXDWLRQ� 7RWDO�
3URJUDP� � �
2IILFH�6XSSOLHV� %DVHG�RQ�)09�RI�GRQDWHG�LWHPV� ��������
&ODVVURRP�VXSSOLHV� %DVHG�RQ�)09�RI�GRQDWHG�LWHPV� ������
3URJUDP�HYHQW�VXSSOLHV� %DVHG�RQ�)09�RI�GRQDWHG�LWHPV� ������
� � �������
)XQGUDLVLQJ� � �
$XFWLRQ�LWHPV� %DVHG�RQ�)09�RI�GRQDWHG�LWHPV� �������
� � �
$GPLQ� � �
3UR�ERQR�DFFRXQWLQJ�VHUYLFHV� %DVHG�RQ�)09�RI�VHUYLFHV� ������
2IILFH�VXSSOLHV� %DVHG�RQ�)09�RI�GRQDWHG�LWHPV� ����
� � ������
���7RWDO� � ���������
�
127(�0�±�68%6(48(17�(9(176�
�
6XEVHTXHQW� WR� \HDU� HQG�� WKH� 2UJDQL]DWLRQ� LQFUHDVHG� LWV� OLQH� RI� FUHGLW� IURP� ��������� WR�
���������ZLWK�DQ�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�RI�SULPH�UDWH��DV�VWDWHG�E\�WKH�:DOO�6WUHHW�-RXUQDO��SOXV����
DQG�PDWXUHV�-XO\�������
�
,Q� DFFRUGDQFH� ZLWK� )$6%� $FFRXQWLQJ� 6WDQGDUGV� &RGLILFDWLRQ� 7RSLF� ����� ³6XEVHTXHQW�
(YHQWV�´�0DQDJHPHQW�KDV�HYDOXDWHG�VXEVHTXHQW�HYHQWV� WKURXJK�'HFHPEHU�����������WKH�
GDWH�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�ZHUH�DYDLODEOH�WR�EH�LVVXHG�DQG�FRQFOXGHG�WKDW�WKHUH�ZHUH�QR�
VXEVHTXHQW�HYHQWV�WKDW�UHTXLUH�UHFRJQLWLRQ�RU�GLVFORVXUH�LQ�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�IRU�WKH�
\HDU�HQGHG�-XQH�����������



&OHYHODQG (OHPHQWDU\ 6FKRRO

��� &OHYHODQG 6WUHHW� 2DNODQG &$ �����
������������

7R :KRP ,W 0D\ &RQFHUQ�

$W &OHYHODQG (OHPHQWDU\ 6FKRRO� ZHŖYH EHHQ ZRUNLQJ ZLWK WKH 2DNODQG /HDI RUJDQL]DWLRQ WR
PDQDJH RXU DIWHUVFKRRO SURJUDP IRU WKH ODVW WZR \HDUV� VWDUWLQJ LQ $XJXVW ����� :H KDYH KDG DQ
LQFUHGLEOH H[SHULHQFH WKDW KDV EHQHıWHG RXU VWXGHQWV DQG RXU HQWLUH FRPPXQLW\�

,Q WKH ZLQWHU DQG VSULQJ RI �������� ZH KDG DQ LQWHQVLYH H[SHULHQFH LQ ORRNLQJ IRU D QHZ SDUWQHU
WR PDQDJH RXU DIWHU VFKRRO SURJUDPV� :H ZHUH PRYLQJ IURP D VWDEOH SURJUDP WKDW KDG OLWWOH
LQQRYDWLRQ RU FOHDU FRPPXQLFDWLRQ ZLWK WKH VLWH ZKR ZDV ORRNLQJ WR VKULQN WKH QXPEHU RI
VFKRROV WKH\ ZHUH ZRUNLQJ ZLWK� DQG RXU FRPPXQLW\ ZDV D OLWWOH QHUYRXV DERXW WKH FKDQJH DQG
SRVVLEOH LPSDFWV� 7KURXJK WKH VHDUFK� LW EHFDPH YHU\ FOHDU WKDW YHU\ IHZ RUJDQL]DWLRQV KDG D
YDOXHV�EDVHG PRGHO WKDW WKH\ ZHUH ORRNLQJ WR UHSOLFDWH DW RWKHU VFKRROV� DQG WKDW RI WKRVH IHZ�
2DNODQG /HDI ZDV WKH VWDQG RXW� 7KH\ KDG PDQ\ SURJUDPV LQ SODFH �VXFK DV UHVWRUDWLYH MXVWLFH
VXSSRUW DQG DFDGHPLF VXSSRUW� WKDW DFWXDOO\ PDWFKHG ZLWK RXU VFKRRO DQG GLVWULFW SODQV� ZKLFK
ZDV D VWDUN FRQWUDVW WR RWKHU SURJUDPV�
2QFH VHOHFWHG� WKH\ LPPHGLDWHO\ SDUWQHUHG ZLWK XV LQ LGHQWLI\LQJ VWDĴQJ DQG VWDĴQJ PRGHOV WR
VXSSRUW WKH VFKRRO� :H FROODERUDWHG RQ D VLWH GLUHFWRU DQG WKH\ ZHQW DERYH DQG EH\RQG WR ıQG
VWDĴQJ� HVSHFLDOO\ LQ WKH FKDOOHQJLQJ IDOO RI ���� ZKHQ SURJUDPV DFURVV WKH VWDWH ZHUH
VWUXJJOLQJ WR ıQG VWDĳ� 7KH\ SURDFWLYHO\ ZRUNHG ZLWK WKH VLWH� WKH FRPPXQLW\� DQG RXU GLVWULFW
WR QRW RQO\ IXOO\ VWDĳ RXU SURJUDP� EXW WR PDNH VXUH WKDW IDPLOLHV ZLWK WKH PRVW QHHG ZHUH WKH
RQHV ZKR ZHUH VXSSRUWHG ıUVW�
6LQFH WKH\ ZHUH VHOHFWHG� WKH SURJUDP GLUHFWRU DQG , KDYH ZRUNHG FORVHO\ ZLWK PXOWLSOH
PHHWLQJV DQG FKHFN LQV SHU ZHHN WR PDNH VXUH WKH SURJUDP LV UXQQLQJ VPRRWKO\ DQG VWXGHQWV
DUH JHWWLQJ WKH LQGLYLGXDO VXSSRUW QHHGHG� $GGLWLRQDOO\� 2DNODQG /HDG KDV SURYLGHG D QXPEHU
RI FRPPXQLW\ DQG VWXGHQW VXUYH\V WKDW WKH\ KDYH LPSOHPHQWHG WR DVVHVV WKH SURJUDP� 7KH
([HFXWLYH 'LUHFWRU DQG WKH FHQWUDO DIWHU VFKRRO SURJUDP VWDĳ KDYH KDG UHJXODU PHHWLQJV ZLWK
PH ZKHUH WKH\ GLVFXVVHG WKH GDWD WKH\ FROOHFWHG DQG ZKDW FKDQJHV RU LPSURYHPHQWV WKH\ KDG
LGHQWLıHG WR DGGUHVV WKH GDWD� DOO WKH ZKLOH DVNLQJ IRU P\ RZQ LQSXW DQG PDNLQJ VXUH WKDW RXU
PRVW QHHG\ IDPLOLHV UHFHLYH WKH VXSSRUW WKH\ QHHG�
2XU ZRUNLQJ UHODWLRQVKLS KDV EHHQ D MR\ DQG KDV SURYLGHG D WRQ RI VXSSRUW IRU RXU HQWLUH
FRPPXQLW\ŠHYHQ RXWVLGH WKRVH VWXGHQWV HQUROOHG LQ 2DNODQG /HDI� :H FRXOG QRW EH KDSSLHU
ZLWK WKH RUJDQL]DWLRQ DQG WKHLU SURJUDPV� DQG KLJKO\ UHFRPPHQG WKDW WKH\ PDLQWDLQ DQG
H[SDQG WKHLU UHODWLRQVKLSV ZLWK 2DNODQG 8QLıHG� 7KDQN \RX DQG SOHDVH UHDFK RXW ZLWK DQ\
IXUWKHU TXHVWLRQV�

3HWHU 9DQ 7DVVHO
3ULQFLSDO
SHWHU�YDQWDVVHO#RXVG�RUJ



�

�����,QWHUQDWLRQDO�%RXOHYDUG
2DNODQG��&$�������
���������������SKRQH

-XQH���������

7R�:KRP�,W�0D\�&RQFHUQ�

,�DP�ZULWLQJ�WKLV�OHWWHU�WR�UHFRPPHQG�2DNODQG�/($)�DV�DQ�DIWHU�VFKRRO�SURYLGHU�IRU�286'��

0\�QDPH�LV�5DTXHO�5RGUtJXH]�-RQHV�DQG�,�DP�WKH�SULQFLSDO�RI�,QWHUQDWLRQDO�&RPPXQLW\�6FKRRO��,&6���,�KDYH�
EHHQ�WKH�SULQFLSDO�RI�,&6�IRU�WZR�\HDUV��2DNODQG�/($)�KDV�EHHQ�WKH�DIWHU�VFKRRO�SURYLGHU�IRU�WKRVH�WZR�\HDUV�

2DNODQG�/($)�KDV�EHHQ�D�UHVSRQVLYH�DQG�FROODERUDWLYH�SDUWQHU�LQ�WKH�HGXFDWLRQ�RI�,&6�VWXGHQWV��
&RPPXQLFDWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�2DNODQG�/($)�FRRUGLQDWRU��$QD�,Y\�3HxD��LV�DOZD\V�ZHOO�UHFHLYHG�DQG�WLPHO\��:H�
PHHW�HDUO\�RQ�WR�JHQHUDWH�JRDOV�IRU�WKH�VFKRRO�\HDU��FUHDWH�DYHQXHV�IRU�WKH�JHQHUDO�HG�WHDFKHUV�DQG�WKH�$63�
WHDFKHUV�WR�PHHW�DQG�FROODERUDWH��DQG�WR�FROODERUDWLYHO\�EUDLQVWRUP�D�SURJUDP�WKDW�ZLOO�PHHW�WKH�DFDGHPLF�DQG�
FUHDWLYH�QHHGV�RI�WKH�VWXGHQWV��:H�PHHW�UHJXODUO\�WR�FKHFN�LQ�DQG�SUREOHP�VROYH�DQ\�LVVXHV�WKDW�PLJKW�DULVH��
$QD�,Y\�LV�DOZD\V�KLJKO\�UHVSRQVLYH�DQG�DWWHQWLYH�WR�WKH�QHHGV�RI�WKH�VWXGHQWV�DQG�D�JUHDW�WKRXJKW�SDUWQHU��$QD�
,Y\�LV�DOZD\V�DYDLODEOH�WR�GLVFXVV�D�VWXGHQW¶V�QHHGV�ZKHQ�QHHGV�LVVXHV�DULVH�

7KLV�\HDU�HVSHFLDOO\�WKH�$63�SURJUDP�KDV�ZRUNHG�WR�RIIHU�D�ZLGHU�YDULHW\�RI�SURJUDPV�WR�EHWWHU�PHHW�WKH�QHHGV�
RI�VWXGHQWV�DQG�WR�SXEOLFL]H�WKHVH�RIIHULQJV�WR�IDPLOLHV��

,�NQRZ�WKDW�VWXGHQWV�DUH�KDSS\�ZLWK�WKH�DIWHU�VFKRRO�SURJUDP�EHFDXVH�WKH�$63�SURJUDP�VWDII�VXUYH\�WKH�
VWXGHQWV�DQG�KDYH�VKDUHG�WKH�UHVXOWV�ZLWK�PH��,�DP�SOHDVHG�WKDW�VWXGHQWV�ILQG�WKH�$63�RIIHULQJV�IXQ�DQG�
LQWHUHVWLQJ��

)RU�WKH�JHQHUDO�HG�WHDFKHUV�RI�,&6��WKH\�DSSUHFLDWH�WKDW�KRPHZRUN�KHOS�FRQWLQXHV�WR�EH�D�SULRULW\�ZLWK�WKH�$63�
VWDII�DQG�WR�VXSSRUW�WKLV�WKH�$63�VWDII�SXUFKDVHG�D�FKURPHERRN�FDUW�WR�VXSSRUW�VWXGHQWV
�DFFHVV�WR�RQOLQH�
HGXFDWLRQDO�SODWIRUPV�

,�KRSH�WKDW�WKH�2DNODQG�/($)�DIWHU�VFKRRO�SURJUDP�LV�UH�DSSURYHG�DV�D�OHDG�DJHQF\�IRU�WKH�����������VFKRRO�
\HDUV��

,�FDQ�EH�UHDFKHG�DW��������������LI�DQ\�IXUWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�LV�QHHGHG�

7KDQN�\RX�

5DTXHO�5RGUtJXH]�-RQHV
3ULQFLSDO�,QWHUQDWLRQDO�&RPPXQLW\�6FKRRO
286'



MID YEAR PRINCIPAL CHECK INS

02/05/2024
4:00 PM TO 5:00 PM
ENCOMPASS PROGRAM

Outcomes
● Site Leadership team will reflect on the first half of the fiscal year to celebrate our wins and

address lessons learned

AGENDA
TIME Item
4:00 PM
5 min

Welcome (Isa)
● Review Agenda
● Check in question

4:05 PM
5 min

Review Program Compliance (Melissa)
● Celebrate meeting 89% of target goal for 2023
● Looking forward to 2024

4:10 PM
10 Min

Report out on Youth Surveys (Tania)
● Manager share out highlights (successes and areas of improvement)
● Director share out any ASP wide changes

4:20 PM
20 min

Partnership Reflection (Isa)
● Are students receiving the academic, enrichment, physical activity, and social-emotional

support they need? What works? What needs to shift?
● What are the successful alignment elements between the school day and expanded

learning programming? What is challenging?
● Any other feedback?

4:40 PM
10 min

SubContractors Pulse Check
● Current subcontractors (Ignite Reading, PushPlay, Mindful life Project, ClassEquity)

○ How is it going? What's working? What's not working?
4:50 PM
10 min

Manager Update
●

5:00 PM
5 min

Closing
● Review Action Steps

○
● Much loves

○

 

Sample of Fulfillment of 
minimum Proposals - 
Collaboration



10/26/2023

Fidelity Insurance Service
a member of United Valley
801 Allston Way
Berkeley CA 94710

Aliyyah Harvey
(510) 548-8200 (510) 548-6145

aharvey@fidelityinsuranceservice.com

Oakland Leaf Foundation
520 3rd Street #109

Oakland CA 94607

NIAC 99998
Hartford Casualty Ins Co 29424
Amwins Brokerage Insurance Services

CL23102620948

A Y 202316332NPO 10/05/2023 10/05/2024

1,000,000
500,000
20,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000

A 202316332NPO 10/05/2023 10/05/2024

1,000,000

A 202316332UMBNPO 10/05/2023 10/05/2024
1,000,000
1,000,000

B 57WECAE2JLV 10/30/2023 10/30/2024
1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000

C
Commercial Cyber Liability

C4LRF-252661-CYBER2023 10/16/2023 10/16/2024 Occurrence & Aggregate $ 1,000,000
Retention $ 2,500

Oakland Unified School District is additional insured with respect to the operations of the named insured per written contract.

Oakland Unified School District Attn: Risk Management
1011 Union St Suite 987

Oakland CA 94607

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED

ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY




